
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JULY 5, 2016 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Recognition of the 40th anniversary of the Gila
County Courthouse.  (Bryan Chambers)

Recognized

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement between
Maricopa County and Gila County regarding
the use of the Maricopa County's Sheriff's
Office Detention Officer Training Academy for
the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30,
2019.  (Matt Solberg)

Approved

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between
the Town of Payson and Gila County to provide
centralized dispatch services to the Gila
County Sheriff's Office in the amount of
$279,000 for one year effective when the IGA
has been fully executed by both parties, and
with the option to renew the agreement for two
additional one-year periods.  (J. Adam
Shepherd)

Approved

 



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061716
(Economic Development Grant) between Gila
County and the Town of Miami in the amount
of $61,000 in order to assist the Town of
Miami with its Cobre Valley Community
Transit System; and further, the Board
determines this is for the benefit of the public
and will improve or enhance the economic
welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County. 
(Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept or
reject a Citizens' Petition to begin the process
to establish Cohea Lane as a Primitive Road.  
(Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 to
extend the contract term with Canyon State
Oil in the amount of $750,000 to provide bulk
fuel and lubricants at various Gila County
locations from June 24, 2016, to June 23,
2017.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-07-02 authorizing staff to
submit an application to the Central Federal
Lands Highway Division of the Federal
Highway Administration to construct a bridge
over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin.  (Steve
Sanders)

Adopted

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the
2016 Gila County Emergency Operations
Plan.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Adopted

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Adopted



H.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the
2016 updates to the Northern Gila County
Community Wildfire Protection Plan and the
Southern Gila County Community Wildfire
Protection Plan.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Adopted

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt an
Order designating polling places within each
election precinct and appointing poll workers
and election board workers for the purpose of
conducting the Primary Election to be held on
August 30, 2016.   (Eric Mariscal)

Adopted

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-07-01 whereby the Board of
Supervisors is declaring the need to address
governmental cooperation and protective
measures regarding predatory animals,
including introduced, experimental and
managed species, interaction with humans,
domesticated animals, and livestock as a
result of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's
recent finalized changes to the Mexican Wolf
Experimental Population Rule in Arizona and
New Mexico; and further that this Resolution
be provided immediately to Arizona Governor
Doug Ducey, Arizona Game and Fish
Department, United States Fish and Wildlife
Service, Arizona Congressional Delegation and
the Arizona Legislature.   (John Marcanti)

No Action
Taken

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

 



A.   Approval of the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime
Control Grant Agreement (FY2017 Award
Cycle 30-Grant No. DC-17-004) between the
Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of
$318,376 ($130,534 in federal funds,
$108,248 in state funds and $79,594 in
matching funds from the County's General
Fund) to provide continued funding for the
Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes
Task Force for the period of July 1, 2016,
through June 30, 2017.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of an Independent Contractor
Agreement (Contract No. 07012016-17)
between the Arizona Community Action
Association (ACAA) and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Community
Action Program (CAP), whereby ACAA will
administer funding in the amount of
$102,341, which will be used to provide
weatherization services, utility repair and
replacement, utility deposits and bill
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County for the period of July 1, 2016, through
June 30, 2017.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of Agreement No. 203-16 between
the Arizona Department of Housing and the
Gila County Division of Community Services,
Housing Services, to provide Department of
Energy Weatherization Assistance Program for
Low Income Persons funding in the amount of
$33,959; Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program funding in the amount of $87,770;
and, Southwest Gas Corporation
Weatherization Assistance Program funding in
the amount of $27,150 to be used to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens

Approved



residing in Gila County for the period of July
1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

 

D.   Approval of the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) Community
Outreach Partner Application for Federal
Fiscal Year 2017, between the Arizona
Community Action Association and the Gila
County Community Services Division,
Community Action Program which, if
approved, will allow Gila County to continue to
be a SNAP Outreach Partner and be
reimbursed for expenses in an estimated
amount of $14,000.94 for the period of
October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of Amendment No. 13 to an
Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income
Weatherization Program Implementation
(Contract No. 700518523) between Arizona
Public Service (APS) and the Gila County
Division of Community Services,
Weatherization Program, whereby APS will
provide additional funding in the amount of
$60,000 not to exceed $166,429 to be used to
provide weatherization services to eligible
low-income citizens residing in Gila County for
the period from June 1, 2016, through
December 31, 2016.

Approved

 

F.   Approval to adopt an Order canceling precinct
committeemen elections and appointing
precinct committeemen as shown in
Attachment A of the Order, who have filed a
nomination petition for precinct
committeeman of their party in the precinct
shown.

Adopted

 

 



G.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
110514-Janitorial Service for Southern Gila
County to extend the contract term with
Jani-Serv, Inc. from May 5, 2016, to May 04,
2017, at a cost of $92,036.86.

Approved

 

H.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional
Services Contract No. 040815 between the
Superior Court in Gila County and Raymond
Geiser to increase the contract amount by
$14,000 for an amended contract amount of
$154,643 to cover the remainder of the
contract term from July 1, 2015, to June 30,
2016.

Approved

 

I.   Approval of Amendment No. 7 to Professional
Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and
Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC, to increase the
current contract amount by $30,000, from
$65,000 for a new total contract amount of
$95,000 for the contract term of January 7,
2016, to July 6, 2016.

Approved

 

J.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional
Services Contract No. 041515-3 between the
Superior Court in Gila County and Myers &
Associates, PLLC to increase the contract
amount by $6,930 for an amended contract
amount of $57,930 for the contract term of
July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Approved

 

K.   Approval of the ten separate Amendments
to ten separate Professional Services
Contracts, which are between Gila County and
various attorneys (attached to the agenda
item) who are utilized by the Superior Court to
extend the term of the contracts for an

Approved



additional one-year period, from July 1, 2016,
to June 30, 2017; all of whom assist the
Superior Court in Gila County as public
defenders on an annual basis.

 

L.   Approval of a fee-waiver request submitted by
Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament Roman
Catholic Church Parish for Father
Jay's Appreciation Dinner at the Gila County
Fairgrounds Exhibition Hall on July 22, 2016.

Approved

 

M.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License
Application submitted by Pleasant Valley
Community Council, Inc. to serve liquor at the
Annual Pleasant Valley Days to be held in
Young on July 15-17, 2016.

Approved

 

N.   Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

O.   Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

P.   Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Recorder's
Office.

Acknowledged

 

Q.   Approval of the June 21, 2016, and June 23,
2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

R.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of June 7, 2016, June
14, 2016, June 21, 2016, and June 28, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

S.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 Acknowledged



S.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of May 16, 2016
through May 20, 2016; and May 23, 2016
through May 27, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

T.   Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
May 30-June 5, 2016; June 6-12, 2016; June
13-19, 2016; and June 20-26, 2016.

Approved

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE



MEETING



   
ARF-3825     Presentation      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk

of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Recognition of the 40th Anniversary of the Gila County Courthouse.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors dedicated the Gila County
Courthouse building to public service on July 4, 1976 and this July 4th
will mark the 40th year the many County elected offices and departments
have utilized the building to provide service to the public in Globe,
Arizona.  

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
The new Courthouse building is a vast improvement over the previous
Courthouse building, and County maintenance staff has done well over
the years keeping the building functional and helping it adapt to changing
needs.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Recognition of the 40th anniversary of the Gila County Courthouse. 
(Bryan Chambers)

Attachments
Courthouse Wall Plaque





   

ARF-3790     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016
through June
30, 2019

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Maricopa County and Gila County
regarding Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Detention Officer Training Academy.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office (GCSO) does not have its own academy and is required
to train its Detention Officers. GCSO contacts agencies as needed throughout the state
that operate Detention Officer Training Academies and requests seats for GCSO
Detention Officers to attend. Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) Detention Officer
Training Academy is one that is utilized as needed by GCSO Detention Officers when
space is available. This agreement outlines the responsibilities of MCSO and GCSO
regarding the use of MCSO Detention Officer Training Academy. (An agreement
number will be assigned to the IGA by Maricopa County once Maricopa County
officials have approved the IGA.)

Evaluation
Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) responsibilities: will provide training space,
when available, for GCSO Detention Officers to attend scheduled Detention Officer
Training Academies; has sole discretion to decide whether GCSO recruits maintain the
academic standings to continue in the ccademy; has sole discretion to dismiss any
recruit for training, academic, ethical or disciplinary standards applicable to all
detention academy participants; will provide GCSO with training and attendance
records of each recruit; and, will treat GCSO recruits in the same manner as MCSO
recruits for purposes of training, academics, ethics and discipline. GCSO
responsibilities: agrees to provide instructors or administrative assistance to the MCSO
Academy, upon request; agrees to pay $150 per registrant; understands and agrees
that the curriculum will consist of the standard MCSO training program, will
investigate any Internal Affairs Investigation concerning actions of a GCSO recruit;
and, will provide statutory worker's compensation insurance, salary, benefits,
weapons, and uniforms.

Conclusion
The GCSO utilizes the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Detention Officer Training



The GCSO utilizes the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Detention Officer Training
Academy on an as-needed basis to assist in the training of the GCSO Detention
Officers. This IGA may be renewed for one additional three-year period upon Board of
Supervisors' approval.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve the IGA between Maricopa County and Gila County regarding the use of the
Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Detention Officer Training Academy beginning July 1,
2016, through June 30 2019. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between
Maricopa County and Gila County regarding the use of the Maricopa County's Sheriff's
Office Detention Officer Training Academy for the period of July 1, 2016, through June
30, 2019.  (Matt Solberg)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-17-00__-3-00
Corrections Needed



1 
 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
GILA COUNTY 

AND MARICOPA COUNTY 
BY AND THROUGH THE  

MARICOPA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
FOR DETENTION OFFICER TRAINING ACADEMY  

C-50-17-00__-3-00 
 

 
This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) is entered into by and between MARICOPA 
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona by and through the MARICOPA COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE “MCSO” and GILA COUNTY; collectively referred to as the Parties.   
Whereas MCSO offers Detention Officer Training Academies on as-needed basis and generally 
has sufficient space for additional participants. 
 
Whereas Gila County does not have its own training academy and its detention or corrections 
officer recruits are required to be formally trained in an acceptable training program. 
 
Maricopa County and Gila County enter into this IGA regarding Gila County’s participation in 
MCSO’s Detention Officer Academy. 
 
Term: 
 
This IGA shall be for a term of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019.  This IGA is effective when 
signed by the Parties.   This IGA may be renewed by written agreement of the parties for one 
additional three-year period subject to the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors’ approval prior 
to the extension effective date. 
 
Termination/Suspension/Cancellation:  
 

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, each party shall have the right to terminate 
this IGA without liability to the non-terminating party  by hand-delivering  to the 
non-terminating party written notice of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the effective date of said termination or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties in 
writing. 
 

B. In the event of early termination for any reason, any funds advanced to either 
party shall be returned to the advancing party within ten (10) days after the date 
of termination or upon receipt of notice of termination of the IGA, whichever is 
earlier.   
 

C. Either party has the right to terminate this IGA upon twenty-four (24) hour notice 
when it is deemed the health or welfare of the service recipients is endangered. 

  
 
D. Non-Availability of Funds.  If funds are not allocated and available for the 
 continuance of this IGA, this IGA may be terminated by either Party at the end of 
 the period for which funds are available. No liability shall accrue to Parties in the 
 event this provision is exercised. Neither Party shall be obligated, or liable for any 
 future payments of, for any damages as a result of termination under this 
 paragraph. 

 
E. Notice is given that pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the  Parties may cancel any IGA 
 without penalty or further obligation within three years after execution of the IGA, 



2 
 

 if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or 
 creating the IGA on behalf of the County is at any time while the IGA or any 
 extension of the IGA is in effect, an employee or agent of any other party to the 
 IGA in any capacity or consultant to any other party of the IGA with respect to the 
 subject matter of the IGA. Additionally, pursuant to A.R.S §38-511 the Parties
 may recoup any fee or commission paid or due to any person significantly 
 involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the IGA on behalf 
 of the County from any other party to the IGA arising as the result of the IGA.   
 Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511, parties, their political subdivisions or any 
 department or agency of either may, within three years after its execution, cancel 
 any IGA without penalty or further obligation, made by either party political 
 subdivisions or any department or agency of either if any person significantly 
 involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the IGA on behalf 
 of either party, its political subdivisions or any department or agency of either is, 
 at any time while the IGA or any extension of the IGA is in effect, an employee or 
 agent of any other party to the IGA in any capacity or a consultant to any other 
 party to the IGA with respect to the matter of the IGA. A cancellation made 
 pursuant to this provision shall be effective when either party receives written 
 notice of the cancellation, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 
The MCSO:   
 
 1. Will provide training space as available for Gila County detention   
  recruit officers to attend scheduled Detention Officer Training Academies. 
  
 2. Reserves the right in its sole discretion to decide whether the Gila County 
  recruits maintain the academic standings necessary to continue in the   
  Academy class.   
 

3. Retains the right, in its sole discretion, to dismiss any recruit for training, 
academic, ethical or disciplinary standards applicable to all Detention academy 
participants.  

 
4. Will provide Gila County original individual training records for each of its recruits 

upon completion of the MCSO Academy or termination of a recruit’s attendance 
at the MCSO Academy.   

 
 5. Will treat Gila County recruits in the same manner as MCSO    
  recruits  for purposes of training, academics, ethics and discipline.    
 
 6. Will require Gila County to investigate its recruits should a    
  situation arise for an Internal Affairs Investigation concerning the actions of one  
  of its recruits.  
 
 7. Will bill Gila County non-refundable registration in the amount of    
  $150, per registrant for materials after the first full day of the academy which will  
  be payable to Maricopa County.   
  

   

Gila County: 
 
.  

1. Agrees to provide instructors or administrative assistance to the MCSO Academy 
upon request by the MCSO.  Such assistance is to be provided in consultation 
with and concurrence of both parties.  



3 
 

 
2. Agrees to pay $150 per registrant. 

 
 3. Understands and agrees that the curriculum will consist of the standard   
  MCSO training program for MCSO.  Although some facilitation of cross-  
  training  on materials may occur, the curriculum shall focus on the policies  
  and procedures of the MCSO. 
 
 4. Will provide worker’s compensation insurance, salary, benefits, and uniforms for  
  its recruits. 
 
The Parties agree: 
 

1. Each Party (as "indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
other Party (as "indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, 
costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as "claims") arising out of the negligent performance of this IGA, but 
only to the extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to 
the indemnitee are caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other 
fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers. 

 
2. This IGA is not intended to constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize 

a joint venture agreement, partnership or other formal business association or 
organization of any kind, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 
only those expressly set forth in this IGA. 

 
3. Parties acknowledge that under this IGA no employee or participant, instructor or 

administrative assistant of Gila County is to be considered a Maricopa County 
employee, and that no rights of Maricopa County civil service, Maricopa County 
retirement, or Maricopa County personnel rules shall accrue to such individual. 
Gila County shall have total responsibility for all salaries, wages, bonuses, 
retirement, withholdings, workman's compensation, occupational disease 
compensation, unemployment compensation, other employee benefits, and all 
taxes and premiums appurtenant thereto concerning such individuals and shall 
save and hold the Maricopa County harmless with respect thereto. 

 
4. Each party to this IGA warrants compliance with the Immigration and Nationality 

Act (INA using e-verify) and all other federal immigration laws and regulations 
related to the immigration status of its employees and A.R.S. §23-214(A). Each 
party shall obtain statements from its subcontractors certifying compliance and 
shall furnish the statements to the other party upon request. These warranties 
shall remain in effect through the term of this IGA. Each party and its 
subcontractors shall also maintain Employment Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) 
as required by the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended 
from time to time, for all employees performing work under this IGA and verify 
employee compliance using the E-verify system and shall keep a record of the 
verification for the duration of the employee’s employment or at least three years, 
whichever is longer. I-9 forms are available for download at USCIS.GOV.  Each 
party retains the legal right to inspect contractor and sub-contractors or employee 
documents performing work under this IGA to verify compliance with this IGA. 
Each party and its subcontractors shall be given reasonable notice of the other 
party’s intent to inspect and shall make the documents available at the time and 
date specified. Should either party find that the other party or any of its 
subcontractors are not in compliance; such non-compliance may be considered a 
material breach of this IGA and may pursue any and all remedies allowed by law. 



4 
 

Nothing set out herein shall make any subcontractor an agent or employee of 
either party. 

 
5. Each party shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, Executive Orders, 

rules, regulations, standards, and codes of the Federal, State, and local 
governments whether or not specifically reference herein. The Parties agree that 
there will be no discrimination as to race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, national 
origin, sex, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, age, marital 
status or status in regard to obligations, work, and services performed under the 
terms and any IGA ensuing from this engagement. The Parties will comply with 
the Executive Order No. 11246, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity” and as 
amended by Executive Order No. 11375, as supplemented by the Department of 
Labor Regulations (41 CFR, Part 60). 

 
6. The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern this IGA.  Venue will be in the 

Maricopa County Superior Court unless otherwise agreed to between the Parties. 
The parties to this Agreement agree to resolve all disputes arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement through arbitration, after exhausting applicable 
administrative review, to the extent required by A.R.S. § 12-1518 except as may 
be required by other applicable statutes. 

7. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214 and § 35-215, both parties shall retain and shall 
contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data, books and other 
records (“records”) relating to this Agreement for a period of five (5) years after 
completion of the Agreement.  All records shall be subject to inspection and audit 
by either party at reasonable times. Upon request, a party shall produce a legible 
copy of any or all such records. 

 

8. Each party is responsible to finance and maintain a budget for its respective 
obligations under this agreement. 
 

 9. In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-154, every payment obligation of each party  
  under this Agreement is conditioned upon  the availability of funds appropriated  
  or allocated for the payment of such obligation. If funds are not allocated and  
  available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be   
  terminated by either party at the end of the period for which funds are available.   
  No liability shall accrue to either party in the event this provision is exercised, and 
  the parties shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any  
  damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 

10. If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this IGA is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated. 

 
11. This IGA may be amended only by the mutual written consent of authorized 

representatives for all Parties and require Board approval. 
 

  Any provision of this IGA which is determined to be invalid, void or illegal shall in 
 no way affect, impair or invalidate any other provision hereof, and remaining 
 provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
12. Waiver of any breach of any term, conditions or covenant herein contained shall 

not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of any term, covenant 
or condition herein.   



5 
 

 
13. Any notice to be given under this IGA shall be sent to the Parties listed below. 

 
  If to MCSO:    If to Gila County  
 
  Chief, Administration   Detention Commander 
  Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office  Gila County Sheriff’s Office  
  550 W Jackson    1100 South Street 
  5

th
 Floor    P.O. Box 311 

  Phoenix, AZ  85003   Globe, AZ  85002 
 
 

14. This IGA may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Faxed and copied signatures are acceptable as original signatures. 

 
(Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signatures to follow)   

 
 



6 
 

DETENTION OFFICER TRAINING ACADEMY 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this IGA as of the date of the last 
signature set forth below. 
 
 
 
Gila County, a political subdivision  MARICOPA County, a political subdivision 
of the State of Arizona    of the State of Arizona 
 
 
 
BY: __________________________________ BY: _________________________________ 
        Michael A. Pastor          Date         Clint Hickman,    Date 
        Chairman, Board of Supervisors          Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
      
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Marian E. Sheppard                     Date Fran McCarroll,     Date 
Clerk of the Board    Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Gila County Sheriff’s Office   Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office 
 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
J. Adam Shepherd       Date  Joe Arpaio,              Date 
Sheriff      Sheriff 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form:        Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________     __________________________   
Jefferson R. Dalton  Date     Deputy County Attorney   Date 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 
 
 



June 20, 2016 

 

To:  The Gila County Sheriff’s Office 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  Agenda Item No. 3790; IGA for Detention Officer Training 

 

Corrections needed: 

1. There are two indemnity provisions in this IGA.  The first is on 
page one, paragraph D.  One sentence, inexplicably, requires both 
parties to indemnify the “State” which is not a party to the 
contract.  And the indemnity provisions of this paragraph are 
unintelligible.  This paragraph should be removed. The second  
indemnity provision is on page three, paragraph one; it is fine. 
 

2. Paragraph three on page three needs corrections.  On line two the 
word “the” in front of “Gila County” should be deleted. In the 
balance of the paragraph the word “County” is used many times 
without specifying which county is being referred to, i.e. Gila or 
Maricopa.  Since the agreement is between two counties, the 
specific county referred to should be expressly stated.  
 

3. A.R.S. Section 952(B)(3) requires that each intergovernmental 
agreement specify: “The manner of financing the joint or 
cooperative undertaking and of establishing a budget for the 
undertaking.”    As part of the agreement, page three, Gila County 



agrees to provide instructors or administrative assistance to the 
academy upon request by the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office.  
Therefore, this is a cooperative undertaking -- but there is no 
language about a budget or financing. I suggest the following 
language: “Each party is responsible to finance and maintain a 
budget for its respective obligations under this agreement.” 

 

 



   

ARF-3814     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016
through June
30, 2019

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the Town of Payson and Gila County for
Centralized Dispatch Services to the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
Gila County contacted the Town of Payson to look into the feasibility of the Town of
Payson Police Department centralizing dispatch services in northern Gila County.  An
IGA was drafted by the Town of Payson.

Evaluation
The Town of Payson Police Department will provide dispatch services in a manner
consistent with dispatch services being provided to the Payson Police Department
Officers. The Town of Payson will supply twenty-four hours per day, seven days a
week dispatching, telephone answering, 911 dispatch services and paging services
through its two-way radio communication dispatch center and log all communication.
The Town of Payson will provide dispatch services which includes law enforcement
information from NCIC/ACJIS in conformance with their guidelines and provide law
enforcement information for the enforcement of the County's civil and criminal law and
ordinance code. The County agrees to use its best efforts to keep warrant information
current, provide all contact information required for dispatching, telephone answering,
paging, and maintain current MSAG/911 addresses.  The County will decrease the
Sheriff's Office Dispatch Position Control, six 911 Dispatch positions, and one Dispatch
Supervisor to fulfill the requirements of this agreement.

Conclusion
The Town of Payson will provide dispatch services for the Gila County Sheriff’s Office in
the amount of $279,000 for a period of twelve months, with the option to renew the
IGA for two one-year periods contingent on an annual review from the effective date
affirming renewal of each yearly period.  Such annual review shall be performed
forty-five (45) days prior to end of each year.



Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Payson and Gila
County for centralized dispatch services to the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the
amount of $279,000 for a period of twelve months effective when fully executed by Gila
County and the Town of Payson.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
between the Town of Payson and Gila County to provide centralized dispatch services
to the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $279,000 for one year effective
when the IGA has been fully executed by both parties, and with the option to renew
the agreement for two additional one-year periods.  (J. Adam Shepherd)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement for Centralized Dispatch Services



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

TOWN OF PAYSON 

AND 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FOR 

CENTRALIZED DISPATCH SERVICES TO THE GILA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this _____ day of July, 2016, by  

and  between  t h e  T o w n  o f  P a ys o n  o n  b e h a l f  o f  t h e  T o w n  o f  P a ys o n  P o l i c e  

D e p a r t m e n t , a municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, 

hereinafter referred to as "TPPD" or “the Town”, and Gila County Board of Supervisors 

(“Gila County”), a  political  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Arizona, on behalf of the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office, hereinafter referred to as "GCSO", “the County”, or “Gila County” 

and singularly as “the Party”, and collectively as "the Parties". 

 

WHEREAS, the TPPD is the primary law enforcement agency charged with the duty to 

provide law enforcement and dispatch services within the boundaries under its 

jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gila County requires the provision of law enforcement centralized 

dispatch services for the GCSO in the Payson and surrounding jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town through TPPD desires to provide law enforcement centralized 

dispatch services to  GCSO within and without the boundaries of the Town under its 

jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County, through the Gila County Sheriff s Office, desires to 

contract with the Town, through the T o w n  o f  P a ys o n  P o l i c e  D e p a r t m e n t  for law 

enforcement centralized dispatch services to the GCSO; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-952, the Parties are authorized and 

empowered to enter into intergovernmental  agreements for joint or cooperative action. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to define the terms upon which 

the Town through the Payson Police Department will provide dispatch services to the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office. 



 

2. Term and Renewal 

A. Initial Term: This Intergovernmental Agreement shall become effective when fully 

executed, by and under the authority of the governing body of each Party's jurisdiction. 

The initial term shall be for three (3), one (1) year periods subject to and contingent on 

an annual review from the effective date affirming renewal of each yearly period. Such 

annual review shall be performed forty-five (45) days prior to end of each year. 

 

3. Dispatch Services to be Provided by the TPPD 

Town of Payson through the TPPD will provide centralized dispatch services to 

the GCSO during the term of this Intergovernmental Agreement. The dispatch 

services to be provided to the GCSO shall be in substantial conformance with the 

dispatch services provided for the Town of Payson Police Department and the 

Tonto Apache Tribe Police Department (“TAPPD”), except that dispatch services 

shall also be provided to the protection and enforcement of Town laws, as well 

as the enforcement of applicable federal and state laws, within and without the 

Town. TPPD will provide on-going training on the use of the dispatch system to the 

GCSO dispatch and law enforcement personnel transferred to the TPPD system in 

conformance with the regular training schedule provided to dispatchers and officers 

of the Town of Payson Police Department. 

 

With respect to the TPPD's obligation to provide dispatch services pursuant to 

this Intergovernmental Agreement, the Parties understand and agree: 

 

a. TPPD will provide centra l ized dispatch services in a manner consistent 

with negotiated payment terms for dispatch services being provided to 

the GCSO and TATPD law enforcement agencies. 

 

b. TPPD will supply dispatching, telephone answering and paging services to 

the GCSO through its two-way radio communication dispatch center 

located at the Payson Police Department Dispatch Center. The TPPD's 

obligation to provide dispatch services is expressly limited to the 

continuation of Dispatch allocated line item (as budgeted by the County's 

Board of Supervisors), and the ability to employ Dispatchers. If the County 

Board of Supervisors reduces the allotment of Dispatch expense allocation, 

such reduction shall be allocated in a manner that complies with Section 

3.a of this Intergovernmental Agreement.  

The Parties agree that any Gila County semi-annual personnel raises or salary 

increases will be incorporated into the amount of reimbursement to the Town 

payment schedule herein. 

 

c. The GCSO shall provide the TPPD with the phone numbers required for 

dispatching, answering and paging services. When a telephone call arrives 

at the dispatch center, the TPPD shall contact the GCSO for emergency 

law enforcement, fire, or medical services. The TPPD shall provide these 

services twenty-four hours per day, seven days a week. 



 

 

d. During a call, TPPD shall receive and log all communication from the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office personnel. 

 

e. TPPD will provide centralized dispatch services which includes law 

enforcement information from the NCIC/ACJIS system (in conformance with 

NCIC/ACJIS guidelines) and local jurisdictions, including Gila County and 

other local jurisdictions. 

 

f. TPPD will provide central ized dispatch services to the GCSO which 

includes law enforcement information for the enforcement of the County's 

civil and criminal law and ordinance code. 

 

g. TPPD will provide 911 dispatch services to the GCSO within and without the 

Town limits and will dispatch 911 calls made to the GCSO and Town of 

Payson Fire Department. 

 

h. TPPD and the GCSO a g r e e  t o  m a i n t a i n  t h e i r  o w n  s e p a r a t e  

warrant information file. The Parties agree to share the warrant information 

maintained by each Party.  

 

i. The GCSO will maintain current MSAG/911 addresses and TPPD will use its 

GEO file addressing and mapping for the Town and the Parties agree to share 

same. 

 

j. TPPD will provide training to the GCSO regarding the use of the dispatch 

services in a manner consistent with the training being provided to the Payson 

Police Department law enforcement officers. 

 

4. Compensation 

In consideration for providing the agreed upon c e n t r a l i z e d  dispatch services, 

Gila County agrees to pay the Town of Payson an annual amount of $ 279,000.00. 

 

5. Billing 
 

A. Town of Payson will invoice Gila County an amount of $279,000.00, in twelve 

monthly payments in the amount of $23,250.00 to be invoiced on the last day of each 

month, due on the fifteenth (15
th

) day of the following month for dispatch services, 

provided under this Intergovernmental Agreement, and the same day of each 

succeeding month thereafter for the term of this IGA. 

 

B. In the event Gila County fails to pay any payment required hereunder, the TPPD may 

cease to provide dispatch services to the GCSO or terminate this Intergovernmental 

Agreement after giving thirty (30) days notice of its intention to terminate or cease 

providing services. 



 

 

6. Obligations 

TPPD shall have no obligation to provide dispatch and training services pursuant to 

this Intergovernmental Agreement after its expiration, termination or non-renewal. In 

such event, the Gila County shall have no further obligation to the Town of Payson, 

except for the payment to the Town of any amounts then owing. 

 

7. Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, each Party agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the other Party and the other Party's officers, agents, and employees from all 

claims, losses, and causes of actions arising out of, resulting from, or in any manner 

connected with this Agreement, to the extent such claim, loss, cause of action, damage, or 

injury is caused or contributed to by, the negligent or willful acts, or omissions of the 

indemnifying party. 

 

8.  Termination 

 A. This Intergovernmental Agreement may be terminated by either Party for any 

reason by providing at least 180 days written notice to the other party. 

 

9. Either Party may terminate this Intergovernmental Agreement for a material breach 

provided that the non-breaching Party provides at least thirty (30) days written notice 

to the other Party of its intent to terminate the Intergovernmental Agreement, via hand 

delivery or certified mail, return receipt requested, and allows at least twenty (20) 

days from the date of receipt of the notice to cure the alleged breach. 

 

10. Notices and Contact List 

All notices or demands upon any party to this Intergovernmental Agreement shall be 

in writing, unless other forms are designated elsewhere, and shall be delivered in 

person or sent by mail addressed as follows: 

 

 Town of Payson (TPPD)   Gila County (GCSO) 
 

 LaRon Garrett     Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 

Attn: Town Manager    County Manager 

 303 N. Beeline Hwy.    1400 E. Ash Street 

Payson, Arizona 85541   Globe, Arizona 85501 

(928) 472-5041    (928) 402-4344 

LGarrett@paysonaz.gov    dmcdaniel@co.gila.az.us  

 

 Don Engler     J. Adam Shepherd 

 Chief of Police    Gila County Sheriff 

 303 N. Beeline Hwy.    1100 E. South St. 

 Payson, Arizona 85541   Globe, Arizona 85501 

 (928) 472-5053    (928) 425-4449 

 DEngler@paysonaz.gov    ashepherd@gilacountyaz.gov  

 

mailto:LGarrett@paysonaz.gov
mailto:dmcdaniel@co.gila.az.us
mailto:DEngler@paysonaz.gov
mailto:ashepherd@gilacountyaz.gov


 

11. Non-Discrimination 

The Parties to this agreement shall not discriminate against any employee, client, or 

any other individual in any way because of that person's age, race, creed, color, religion, 

sex, disability, or national origin in the course of carrying out the Party's duties and 

responsibilities pursuant to this Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 

12.   Compliance with Laws 

Each Party shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 

regulations, standards, and Executive Orders, when acting under this 

Intergovernmental Agreement. Any changes in applicable governing laws, rules and 

regulations during the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement shall apply, but do 

not require an amendment. 

 

13. No Third Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing in this Intergovernmental Agreement is intended to create duties, obligations 

to, rights or remedies in third parties not Parties to this Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 

14. Standard of Care 

Nothing in this Intergovernmental Agreement is intended to affect the legal liability 

of either Party to the Intergovernmental Agreement by imposing any standard of care 

different from the standard of care imposed by applicable law. 

 

15. Jurisdiction 

Nothing in this Intergovernmental Agreement shall be construed as otherwise limiting 

or extending the legal jurisdiction of any Party. 

 

16. Conflict of Interest 

This Intergovernmental Agreement is subject to cancellation for conflict of interest 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the pertinent provisions of which are incorporated herein 

by reference. 

 

17. Severability 

If any provision of this Intergovernmental Agreement is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable to 

the full extent permitted by law. 

 

18. Assignment 

It is hereby agreed by the Parties that there will be no assignment or transfer of this 

Intergovernmental Agreement, nor of any interest in this Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 

19. Entire Agreement 

This document constitutes the entire Intergovernmental Agreement between the 

Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof. This Intergovernmental Agreement shall 

not be modified, amended, altered or extended except through a written amendment 

signed by the Parties under the same authority and direction as this Intergovernmental 

Agreement has been executed. 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this 

Intergovernmental Agreement each which shall include original signatures and for all 

purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 

hereinafter named, on the date and year first above written. 

 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TOWN OF PAYSON 

 

 

_____________________________________  _____________________________ 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board  Kenny J. Evans, Mayor 

 

 

_____________________________________  _____________________________ 

Adam Shepherd, Gila County Sheriff   Don Engler, Public Safety Director 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________  _____________________________ 

Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board   Silvia Smith, Town Clerk 
 

I have reviewed the above referenced Intergovernmental Agreement between the TOWN OF 

PAYSON, on behalf of the Payson Police Department and GILA COUNTY, on behalf of the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office, an agreement among public agencies in accordance with the requirements 

of A. R. S. §§ 11-951 through 11-954 and declare this Agreement to be in proper form and within 

the powers and authority granted to the Town of Payson under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________   ___________________ 

Hector M. Figueroa, Payson Town Attorney   Date 

 

In accordance with the requirements of A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the undersigned Deputy 

County Attorney acknowledges that he has reviewed the above Intergovernmental 

Agreement on behalf of the Gila County Sheriff’s Office and has determined that this 

agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 

the State of Arizona. 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________   ___________________ 

Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney    Date 

for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 



   
ARF-3827     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted By: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Town of Miami's FY 2016-2017 Economic Development Grant Request
(Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061716) for the Cobre Valley
Community Transit System

Background Information
On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)-Economic Development Grant with
the Town of Miami in the amount of $74,700 so that the Town of Miami
could purchase the Cobre Valley Community Transit (CVCT) building
located in Miami, AZ.

On November 13, 2012, the BOS approved the issuance of a one-time
economic development grant in the amount of $25,000 to the Town of
Miami for the continued operation and expansion of its CVCT System, in
particular its Dial-A-Ride Program, providing that an IGA was presented
to the BOS for signature at a future BOS meeting.  Granting of these
funds was allowed per the requirements outlined in A.R.S. § 11-254.

On February 5, 2013, the BOS and the Town of Miami entered into an
IGA in order to release a $25,000 economic development grant to the
Town of Miami for its CVCT System.

On June 24, 2014, the BOS and the Town of Miami entered into an IGA in
order to release a $31,500 economic development grant to the Town of
Miami for its CVCT System.

On September 15, 2015 the BOS and the Town of Miami entered into an
IGA in order to release a $31,500 economic development grant to the
Town for its CVCT System.

Evaluation



The Town of Miami is requesting the Board of Supervisors' approval of an
Intergovernmental Agreement between both entities in order to provide
the Town with an economic development grant in the amount of $61,000
to assist with the continued operation of its CVCT System.  The Town has
provided ridership studies which substantiate its position that
the majority of those who utilize the system are not Miami Town
residents. The ridership is more heavily weighted toward Globe and
unincorporated County residents. Miami has proposed to split the
operating costs equally between the three entities as follows:
Miami-$61,000; Globe-$61,000; and, Unincorporated Gila
County-$61,000. The Globe City Council approved the expenditure of
their $61,000 subject to the County approving the expenditure of its
portion too.

Conclusion
According to the Town of Miami, without continued and increased
financial support from Gila County and the City of Globe, the Cobre
Valley Community Transit System will be forced to discontinue operation.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the request and
an Intergovernmental Agreement for increased economic development
funds in the amount of $61,000 to assist with the continuation of the
CVCT System, and that the Town provide the Board of Supervisors with
an annual update on the activities of the CVCT System per the
requirements in the IGA.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement
No. 061716 (Economic Development Grant) between Gila County and the
Town of Miami in the amount of $61,000 in order to assist the Town of
Miami with its Cobre Valley Community Transit System; and further, the
Board determines this is for the benefit of the public and will improve or
enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.  (Don
McDaniel)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061716 with Town of Miami Cobre
Valley Community Transit System
County Attorney's Comment
Cobre Valley Transit Presentation













June 27, 2016 

 

To:  Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  July 5, 2016 Agenda Item 3827 re: Economic Development 
Grant to the Town of Miami for the Cobre Valley Community Transit 

 

We suggest some additional language be added to the paragraph 
entitled “Termination” on page three of the agreement. The additional 
language is in italics: 

Either party may, at any time, before the grant funds are 
transferred to Miami, with or without cause, cancel this 
Agreement by providing 30 days written notice to the other 
party.”  

We suggest the following provision be added to the agreement: 

In compliance with A.R.S. § 23-214(B), before receiving the 
economic development grant, Miami shall provide proof to 
the County that it is registered with and is participating in 
the e-verify program. 

 

 



Cobre Valley Transit
May 26, 2016



History

Dial-A-Ride operational since 1987
Deviated Fixed Route since 2013
July 2015 to April 2016 the Fixed Route averaged 970 people per 
Month
July 2015 to April 2016 the Dial-A-Ride averaged 404 people per 
Month
About 78% to 82% of the customers originate in Globe 
Current Local Match split is $25,000 Globe, $31,500 Gila County, and 
Miami about $127,000



Operations



Service Basics

Hours: 6 am to 6:30 pm
Monday thru Friday 

Fees: 
Full - $1.00; 
Reduced (Disabled and Seniors) - $.50; 
12 and Under - free 
Core Service Fixed Route Service-

• Each route goes out and back twice from each end of the valley
• Miami Route & Alhambra Route - 6:30 am to 6:00 pm, 128 stops throughout the day 
• Each Bus makes a complete run 4 times a day Together

Existing Dial-a-ride 
• Serves disabled, elderly, and areas buses cannot navigate
• Will not pickup near fixed route stops



Ridership Levels Calendar Year 2015
2015 Ridership total Fixed Route and Dial-A-Ride Combined: 16,467
Fixed Route in 2015

Riders: 11,620, averaging 968 a month (One person getting on and 
then off, shopping, and then back on and off = tracks as 2 riders)
Miles: Revenue miles 62,739; dead miles, 5,860; 8,823 fuel gal.  

Dial-A-Ride in 2015
Riders: 4847, averaging 404 a month
Miles: Revenue miles 24,336; dead miles, 6,293; 2,196 fuel gal.  

Days of Operation: 250 a year or average of 21 days a month



Top 10 Rider Destinations for April 2016

Fry’s Grocery – 136 On 148 Off
Globe Train Depot (Downtown) – 117 On 136 Off
Walmart -117 On 133 Off
Christina Apartments – 102 On 77 Off
Miami Senior Center - 76 On 60 Off
Globe Court House - 47 On 49 Off
Santiago MHP (Copper Country) - 44 On 45 Off
Cobre Regional Valley Medical Center – 55 On 36 Off
Cobre Village Apt - 35 On 36 Off
Dollar General – 15 On 35 Off



Reporting Requirements

Ridership: Number of riders On and Off at each location (See Transit 
Trackers) and amount of fees collected (See Fare Tracker)
Dial a Ride Request Logs: Records name, address, priority, pick-up and 
drop times and locations (See Dial A Ride daily request logs) 
Call Logs: Records complaints, and complaint follow up
Maintenance: Regular maintenance, certified repairs, and roadside 
(See Daily Bus Report)
Compliance with Americans with Disability (ADA) and Title 6
Driver training, certifications and policy adherence  



Ridership Tracker





Vehicle ID#________________

6:00 6:15 6:30 6:45

FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO:

7:00 7:15 7:30 7:45

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

8:00 8:15 8:30 8:45

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

9:00 9:15 9:30 9:45

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

10:00 10:15 10:30 10:45

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

Total Passengers - 

11:00 12:15 12:30 12:45

12:00 FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO:

1:00 1:15 1:30 1:45

FR: FR: FR: FR: 

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

2:00 2:15 2:30 2:45

FR: FR; FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

3:00 3:15 3:30 3:45

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

FR: FR: FR: FR:

TO: TO: TO: TO:

    $
             

Cash Total =

Day of Week     Date / YearDial-A-Ride

Priority Passengers = Yellow Background

* *

* * * * * *

*

* *

* * *

* * * * * *

*

* *

* * * *

* Passenger Pick Up & Drop Box - Write last 4 digets for Odometer Reading 

Note; Passengers are placed by who called in first, not the order in which to pick them up.

Lunch

Dead Miles - 

* * * *

      

*

$0

*Passenger Pick Up & Drop Box - Write last 4 digits for Odometer Reading

Expected Fare Total:                   $

Fuel Up / Clean Up   -   Post Trip Inspection

Note: Passengers are placed by who called first, not the order in which to pick them up.

 Bus Passes Sold Today: 

 Fuel Odometer: 

Fuel Gallons:  

Final Yard Odometer: 

Drivers  Name:

Start Yard Odometer: 

Passenger Miles - 

Pre-Trip Inspection

DAR Total -





Improvements based on ADOT Audit

Expanded dispatch hours to match hours of operation
Eliminated duplication of services between the Fixed Route and the Dial-A-
Ride except for seniors and Disabled
Plans for Bus Shelter installations
Inventory of FTA-funded assets
Town has minimum coverage of a combined single limit of $5,000,000 for 
the transit fleet
Transit Advisory Council
Improved effective management of program
Improved record retention 



Financials



Account Budget 15-16 Actual 15-16           Proposed 16-17
Salaries / Wages 188,977.00$                     235,683.00$             265,100.00$                     
Contract Services 32,012.00$                       3,612.00$                 3,360.00$                         

Benefits & Withholdings 75,591.00$                       78,948.00$               109,990.00$                     
Training & Staff Develop 1,000.00$                         -$                         $                                  
Office / Operational Exp. -$                                  3,337.00$                 3,500.00$                         
Vehicle / Machinery Exp 46,970.00$                       16,445.00$               20,500.00$                       

Maint. Benefits 8,500.00$                         -$                         $                                  
Utilities 9,923.00$                 10,000.00$                       

Capital Outlay 186,950.00$                     -$                         40,000.00$                       
Other 650.00$                            4,725.00$                 $                                  
Fuel 42,000.00$                       43,250.00$               45,000.00$                       

Totals: 582,650.00$          395,923.00$   497,450.00$         

25,000.00$             $                     61,000.00 
31,500.00$             $                     61,000.00 
87,054.00$             $                     61,000.00 

Subtotal: 143,554.00$          $                  183,000.00 

14,815.00$             $                     16,000.00 
237,554.00$           $                   298,500.00 

T ota ls : 395,923.00$   497,500.00$         

Town of Miami Match Funds:
Gila County Match Funds:

Globe Match Funds:

A.D.O.T. Contribution:

Use Of Funds:

Source of Funds:

Fares:



Match Formula by type of activity

Match structure varies between Categories of Cost 

Match Fed & ADOT Local & Fees % of Cost 
Operations 58% 42%
Administration 80% 20%
Capitol 90% 10%



Categories of Cost and Staffing

Definitions of Category of Cost: 
Operations: Drivers, Dispatch, Mechanic (50%) Fuel, Tires, and Maintenance
Administration: Transit Manager, facilities, software, printers, City Manager (10%)
Capitol: Replacement of Vehicles 

Current Staffing Levels 
4.0 Drivers
1.0 Dispatch (Driver back-up)
0.5 Mechanic
1.0 Transit Manager



Operational and Financial Safeguards

Subject to multiple levels of federal oversite
Included as part of City Financial Audit
Subject to random Dept. of Transportation audit
Subject to ADOT targeted audit and site visits
Miami Council oversite 
Cobre Valley Community Transit Transportation Advisory Council 



Request

To adopt the concept of a three way split of the Local Match cost which 
would require the City of Globe and Gila County to become active 
equal participating partners.

Local Match Split Current Percent  Requested Percent 
Town of Miami $127,000 69.4% $61,000 33.3%
Gila County $31,000 16.9% $61,000 33.3%
City of Globe $25,000 13.7% $61,000 33.3%
Total Match $183,000 100.0% $183,000 100.0%



   
ARF-3821     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to begin the process to designate
Cohea Lane as a Primitive Road.

Background Information
Gila County Public Works received a Citizens' Petition to establish Cohea
Lane, from Baker Ranch Road south to the end, as a Primitive Road. The
road is located in the community of Young.

Evaluation
The petition and the road meets the requirements of Public Works Policy
#ENG03-03 “Guidelines to Primitive Roads” which was approved by the
Board of Supervisors on October 3, 2003, and revised on December 1,
2004.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners will need to be granted to Gila County.
Once the easements are accepted by the County, providing maintenance
as described in the Primitive Road Policy will consist of grading the road a
few times a year. Providing maintenance on this road will not reduce the
level of service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway
System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board accept
the Citizens' Petition to begin the process to establish Cohea Lane as a
Primitive Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to



Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to
begin the process to establish Cohea Lane as a Primitive Road.  (Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Citizens' Petition
Map







   

ARF-3849     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff
Hessenius,
Finance
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 with Canyon State Oil for the
purchase of bulk fuel and lubricants.

Background Information
On May 13, 2014, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) authorized the advertisement of
Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 041414-Bulk Fuel and Lubricants.

On May 19, 2014, Addendum No. 1 and Addendum No. 2 were added to the IFB and
issued in response to questions which had been submitted by prospective bidders.  In
response to one of the questions, Gila County stated that the award of the fuel and
lubricants would not be split among bidders. All four vendors that submitted a sealed
bid for Invitation for Bid (IFB) No. 041414 acknowledged receipt of both addenda that
were issued on this IFB.

On June 24, 2014, the BOS awarded a contract to Canyon State Oil in response to IFB
No. 041414-Bulk Fuel and Lubricants for the fuel portion for the period of June 26,
2014, through June 25, 2015.

On July 15, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041414, which
essentially added the award of the lubricant portion to the Contract No. 041414;
thereby, awarding the entire contract Canyon State Oil.

On June 10, 2015, the County Manager approved Amendment No. 2 to renew the term
of Contract No. 041414 for a one-year term, from June 24, 2015, to June 23, 2016.

Evaluation
The current term of Contract No. 041414 expired on June 23, 2016.  The contract
allows for renewal for two additional one-year periods at an annual cost of $750,000;
therefore, staff recommends that the contract be renewed for one additional year, from
June 24, 2016, to June 23, 2017.

Conclusion
In order to renew Contract No. 041414 for one more year, the BOS will need to approve



In order to renew Contract No. 041414 for one more year, the BOS will need to approve
Amendment No. 3 to the contract, which will extend the contract through June 23,
2017.

Recommendation
The Finance Director and the Fuel Management Division Director recommend renewing
the contract with Canyon State Oil for one additional year, whereby Canyon State Oil
will continue to provide bulk fuel lubricants at various Gila County locations.  This
amendment for the renewal of the contract for one remaining year will complete all
terms of Contract No. 041414.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414
to extend the contract term with Canyon State Oil in the amount of $750,000 to
provide bulk fuel and lubricants at various Gila County locations from June 24, 2016,
to June 23, 2017.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 041414
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041414
Contract 041414 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants Signed on 6-24-14.
County Attorney's Comments
Approval as to Form





















































































County Attorney’s Comments 

June 23, 2016 

To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  Agenda Item No.: 3849; July 5, 2016 Agenda; Approval of 
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 Canyon State Oil – Bulk Fuel  

 

1. On the Agenda Review Form the first document is called 
“Addendum No. 3 to 041414 Bulk Fuel Lubricants” but it should be 
called “Amendment No. 3 to 041414 Bulk Fuel Lubricants” 
(Emphasis added.) 

2. Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 refers to Amendment 
No. 1 but this seems to be the wrong name.  We can find no 
document titled that way. It appears this should be Addendum 
No. 1. 

3. Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 refers to Amendment 
No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 041414 but that amendment is 
not attached to the agenda item. 

4. The last paragraph of Amendment No. 3 refers to signing two 
identical counterparts of the amendment. But signing in 
counterparts refers to having two or more copies of a document 
that will be signed in different localities and at different times.  If 
that is not what is going to happen here, the word counterparts 
should be changed to copies.   

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3847     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 16-07-02 authorizing staff to submit an application to the
Central Federal Lands Highway Division (CFLHD) of the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) for the construction of a bridge over Tonto Creek
in Tonto Basin, AZ.

Background Information
In April 2016, the CFLHD issued a call for projects for the Federal Lands
Access Program (FLAP). The transportation facilities owned or maintained
by the State or local entity that provides access to, are adjacent to, or are
located within Federal lands with an emphasis on high-use recreation
sites or federal economic generators. Projects may include engineering,
rehabilitation, restoration, construction, reconstruction, transportation
planning, and research of the eligible transportation facility. A local match
of 5.7% is required if the project is funded. If successful the match will
come from the County’s ½ cent Transportation Excise Tax.
 
The Tonto Creek Bridge Project will construct a bridge across Tonto Creek
and improve the existing roadway in Tonto Basin. The County and the
residents of Tonto Basin have been working to make this project a reality
since the early 1980s. The total cost of the project is $17.86 million. If
successful Gila County will provide a 5.7% match totaling $1.02 million.

Evaluation
Three existing at-grade dirt road crossings currently serve as the only
means for crossing Tonto Creek in the project area—Green-back Valley
Road (FR 71), Bar-X Road (FR 470), and A-Cross Road (FR 60). A bridge
eliminates two of these at-grade dirt crossings from the County road
system providing critical all-weather access to the Tonto Basin region. The
project will enrich the quality of life for residents of Tonto Basin through
improved safety along the road and access for first responders; efficiency
of travel; access to educational institutions, businesses, and healthcare



facilities; and enhanced recreational opportunities.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of the County to submit an application for
funding to construct a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Director that the
Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 16-07-02, which authorizes
staff submit an application to the Federal Lands Access Program to
construct a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-07-02
authorizing staff to submit an application to the Central Federal Lands
Highway Division of the Federal Highway Administration to construct a
bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 16-07-02



Resolution 16-07-02 Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-07-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

AUTHORIZING COUNTY STAFF TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO 

THE CENTRAL FEDERAL LANDS HIGHWAY DIVISION OF THE 

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION FOR A FEDERAL LANDS 

ACCESS PROGRAM TO FUND A BRIDGE OVER TONTO CREEK  IN 

TONTO BASIN, GILA COUNTY. 

 

WHEREAS, the Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) is sponsored by the Central Federal 

Lands Highway Division (CFLHD) of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the FLAP is used to fund transportation facilities owned or maintained by the state, 

or local entity that provide access to, are adjacent to, or are located within federal lands: and, 

 

WHEREAS, Gila County is desirous of FLAP funding to assist in constructing a bridge over 

Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors: 

 

SECTION 1: The Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes staff to submit and 

execute an application for the purpose of FLAP funding that will be used for the construction of 

a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin, Gila County. 

 

SECTION 2: Gila County hereby certifies that Gila County will comply with all appropriate 

procedures, guidelines, and requirements established by the CFLHD of the FHWA for the FLAP. 

 

SECTION 3:  Gila County hereby certifies that Gila County will comply with all appropriate 

state and federal regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements as they relate to the FLAP 

Program. 

 

SECTION 4:  Gila County hereby authorizes the Public Works Director to execute and submit 

all documents including but not limited to, applications, agreements and documents, which may 

be necessary for the completion of the aforementioned project. 

 

 
 

  



Resolution 16-07-02 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of July 2016 at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 

 

 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 

 



   
ARF-3811     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director Submitted By: Josh Beck, EM, PHEP Manager
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of the 2016 Gila County Emergency Operations Plan

Background Information
The Gila County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) serves as a guide to facilitate the County’s response to all
disasters within its jurisdiction, and to coordinate resources of state, federal, city, town, tribal, non-governmental
organizations, and private sector relief organizations in the response and recovery process. The EOP also establishes
a comprehensive, countywide, all-hazards approach to providing effective and efficient incident management in all
phases of an emergency including preparedness, response, recovery and mitigation. This plan specifies the roles and
responsibilities of local governments in time of disaster.

Evaluation
The EOP was developed through a multi-agency group of local, state and federal response partners to ensure that all
community preparedness  and response recommendations were met. This plan establishes the emergency
organization for the County, assigns tasks, specifies policies and general procedures, and provides for coordination
of the duties of Gila County in both response and recovery procedures. This plan builds upon previous efforts to
enhance the County’s emergency and disaster preparedness, response, and recovery capabilities and includes the
critical elements of the National Incident Management System (NIMS), the National Response Framework (NRF), and
the Incident Command System (ICS).

Conclusion
The adoption of the Gila County EOP will provide local agencies and departments with an approved plan to enhance
the County’s emergency and disaster preparedness, response, and recovery capabilities and includes the critical
elements of the National Incident Management System (NIMS), the National Response Framework (NRF), and the
Incident Command System (ICS).

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division Director that the Board of
Supervisors adopt the 2016 Gila County EOP.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the 2016 Gila County Emergency Operations Plan.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments

Emergency Operations Plan



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 i Forward 

FORWARD  

This 2016 Gila County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) is designed as the foundation for 
disaster response and recovery operations for Gila County and the political subdivisions within 
the county. This EOP supersedes all previous emergency management plans, and may serve as 
a reference and guidance document during natural, technological, and human-caused 
emergencies and disasters. 
 
This plan establishes the emergency organization for the County, assigns tasks, specifies policies 
and general procedures, and provides for coordination of the duties of Gila County in both 
response and recovery procedures.  This plan builds upon previous efforts to enhance the 
County’s emergency and disaster preparedness, response, and recovery capabilities and 
includes the critical elements of the National Incident Management System (NIMS), the 
National Response Framework (NRF), and the Incident Command System (ICS).  
 
This Emergency Operations Plan is an extension of the State of Arizona Emergency Response 
and Recovery Plan in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 26, Chapter 2. Its 
concepts may be used to coordinate localized emergencies as well as catastrophic disasters to 
ensure the safety and survival of the population and protection of property and the 
environment. County departments will prepare and maintain procedures and guidelines that 
align with this plan and carry out the training and exercises needed to support this plan. The 
plan will be reviewed and exercised periodically and revised as necessary to meet changing 
conditions. 
 
The Board of Supervisors for Gila County gives its full support to this plan and urges all officials, 
employees, and residents, individually and collectively, to do their share in the total emergency 
preparedness, response, and recovery efforts of Gila County.  
 
This Emergency Operations Plan is effective upon approval and resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of Gila County. Concurrence with this promulgation letter constitutes the adoption 
of the Emergency Operations Plan by Gila County officials. A copy of this plan has been filed in 
the Office of the County Clerk of Gila County, under the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, 
Section 26-307B. 

 
Sincerely,  

 
 

 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
Chairman 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 ii Forward 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 iii Table of Contents 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Forward .................................................................................................................... i 

Plan Concurrence .................................................................................................... vii 

Plan Adoption Resolution .......................................................................................... ix 

Record of Revisions .................................................................................................. xi 

Introduction.............................................................................................................. 1 

Plan Format........................................................................................................... 1 

Plan Development and Maintenance ....................................................................... 1 

Plan Distribution List .............................................................................................. 2 

Gila County EOP Activation ..................................................................................... 3 

Authorities and References ..................................................................................... 3 

Federal .............................................................................................................. 3 

State ................................................................................................................. 4 

County ............................................................................................................... 4 

Relationship to Other Plans/References ................................................................... 4 

Basic Plan ................................................................................................................. 7 

Purpose ................................................................................................................ 7 

Scope ................................................................................................................... 7 

Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................. 7 

Goals ................................................................................................................. 7 

Objectives .......................................................................................................... 7 

Situation Overview ................................................................................................. 8 

Hazard Analysis Summary ................................................................................... 8 

Capabilities Assessment ...................................................................................... 8 

Mitigation Overview ............................................................................................ 9 

Assumptions ...................................................................................................... 9 

Concept of Operations ............................................................................................. 11 

Preparedness Phase ............................................................................................. 11 

Public Education and Outreach .......................................................................... 11 

Training and Exercise ....................................................................................... 12 

Response Phase .................................................................................................. 12 

Pre-Emergency ................................................................................................. 12 

Emergency Response ....................................................................................... 13 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 iv Table of Contents 

Recovery Phase ................................................................................................... 14 

Prevention / Mitigation Phase ............................................................................... 15 

Presidential Policy Directive 8 and the National Preparedness Goal ......................... 15 

National Incident Management System ................................................................. 15 

Incident Command System ................................................................................... 16 

Direction, Control, and Coordination ..................................................................... 17 

Field Response Level ........................................................................................ 17 

Local Government Level .................................................................................... 17 

Multi/Inter-Agency Coordination ........................................................................ 18 

Unified Command ............................................................................................. 18 

State Level ....................................................................................................... 18 

Federal Level ................................................................................................... 18 

Non-governmental, Volunteer, and Private Sector Organizations ......................... 19 

Emergency Operations Center .............................................................................. 19 

Mutual Aid ........................................................................................................... 21 

Arizona Emergency Management Master Mutual Aid Agreement .......................... 22 

Arizona Mutual Aid Compact (AZMAC) ............................................................... 22 

Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) ........................................ 22 

Emergency Facilities used for Mutual Aid ........................................................... 22 

Emergency Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities ................................... 23 

Continuity of Government .................................................................................... 25 

Emergency Activation Levels ................................................................................ 25 

Level I – Minor Emergency – No EOC Activation Required ................................... 25 

Level II – Moderate Emergency – Potential EOC Activation ................................. 25 

Level III – Major Emergency - Full EOC Activation .............................................. 25 

EOC Activations ................................................................................................... 25 

EOC Information Collection, Analysis, and Dissemination ........................................ 26 

Communications .................................................................................................. 28 

Radio Systems ................................................................................................. 28 

Alerting and Warning Systems ........................................................................... 28 

Administration and Finance .................................................................................. 30 

Documentation ................................................................................................. 31 

Vital Records Preservation ................................................................................ 31 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 v Table of Contents 

Requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act ........................................... 32 

People with Disabilities and Others with Access and Functional Needs ................. 32 

Animal Care Considerations .................................................................................. 33 

Recovery Operations ............................................................................................... 35 

Recovery Organization ......................................................................................... 35 

Damage Assessment ............................................................................................ 36 

Concerns for Public Safety ................................................................................ 36 

Structural Damage ........................................................................................... 36 

Recovery Activities ............................................................................................... 36 

List of Damages ............................................................................................... 37 

Recovery Reporting and Documentation ................................................................ 37 

Recovery Documentation .................................................................................. 37 

After-Action Reporting ...................................................................................... 37 

Disaster Assistance .............................................................................................. 38 

Government Assistance to Individuals ................................................................ 38 

Federal Programs ............................................................................................. 38 

Non Profit Volunteer Charitable Organizations .................................................... 39 

Public Assistance ................................................................................................. 39 

Federal – Robert T Stafford Disaster Relief Act of 1974 ....................................... 39 

Joint Field Office .............................................................................................. 39 

Disaster Declaration Process ................................................................................. 40 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Programs ........................................................................ 41 

Mitigation......................................................................................................... 41 

Forms of Mitigation........................................................................................... 42 

Reference Information ......................................................................................... 42 

Appendix A: Acronyms .......................................................................................... A-1 

 
 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 vi Table of Contents 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 vii Plan Concurrence 

PLAN CONCURRENCE  

As designated officials of Gila County’s emergency management effort, and having reviewed 
the Gila County Emergency Operations Plan, the following County Officials have signed the 
concurrence chart to show their approval of the plan and its contents.   
 

Position Signature Date 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 viii Plan Concurrence 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 ix Plan Adoption Resolution 

PLAN ADOPTION RESOLUTION 

 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 x Plan Adoption Resolution 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 xi Record of Revisions 

RECORD OF REVISIONS 

The use of this Record of Revisions will manage modifications to the EOP throughout the life of 
the document. All attempts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information within 
this EOP as of the initial distribution date.  
 

Date Page Description By 

    

    

    

    

 

  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 xii Record of Revisions 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 1 Introduction 

INTRODUCTION 

The Gila County EOP serves as a guide to facilitate the County’s response to all disasters within 
its jurisdiction, and to coordinate resources of state, federal, city, town, tribal, non-
governmental organizations, and private sector relief organizations in the response and 
recovery process. The EOP also establishes a comprehensive, countywide, all-hazards approach 
to providing effective and efficient incident management in all phases of an emergency 
including preparedness, response, recovery and mitigation. This plan specifies the roles and 
responsibilities of local governments in time of disaster. 

Plan Format  
The plan format consists of four parts which include functional and support annexes to the EOP. 

 Basic Plan: this section of the plan includes the introduction and administrative features; 
the hazards and threats to the county which provide the rationale for prioritizing 
emergency preparedness actions for specific hazards; and the concept of operations 
including the principles and methods used to carry out emergency operations.  

 Emergency Support Function Annexes: attachments to support Emergency Operations 
Center (EOC) staff in performing their functions. The annexes represent a set of specific 
plans that are complementary to the EOP and used during specific, significant 
emergency situations that require unique planning beyond the all hazards approach 
within the Basic Plan.  

 Support Annexes: these annexes provide guidance and develop specific information and 
direction for the functional processes and administrative requirements necessary to 
ensure efficient and effective implementation of incident management objectives. 

 Incident Annexes: these annexes address potential hazards within the county and the 
roles, responsibilities, and coordination processes that govern the interaction of multi-
agency response and recovery operations.  

 Recovery Operations: recovery refers to the measures undertaken by an entity following 
a disaster that will return existence back to normal, or at least as normal as possible 
within a given time period. Effective recovery consists of a complex array of 
interdependent and coordinated actions. This section includes short term and long term 
recovery, damage assessment, recovery activities, disaster assistance, public assistance, 
and hazard mitigation programs. 

Plan Development and Maintenance  
The Gila County Department of Health and Emergency Management is responsible for the 
development of the County emergency plans. The EOP provides for the effective mobilization of 
all of the resources of the County, both public and private, to meet any condition constituting a 
local emergency, state of emergency or state of war emergency, and shall provide for the 
organization, powers and duties, services and staff of the emergency organization.  
 
The mission of the Gila County Office of Emergency Management is to centralize the direction 
and control of the planning, coordination and management of disaster preparedness, 
mitigation, response and recovery. The Office of Emergency Management is responsible for 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 2 Introduction 

reviewing and maintaining the EOP. Individual County departments are responsible for 
updating and revising their departmental information regularly and submitting any relevant 
updates to the Office of Emergency Management. These updates should include new or revised 
information, and changes to relevant standard operational procedures or positions. All changes 
to the EOP will be made by the Office of Emergency Management and documented in the 
record of revisions table.  Changes to the EOP will be distributed to each County department 
and the stakeholders shown on the Plan Distribution List. Major revisions to the EOP will be 
submitted to the County Manager for approval or recommendation for review by the Board of 
Supervisors.  
 

Plan Distribution List 
The distribution list designates the departments and stakeholder agencies that received copies 
of the Gila County Emergency Operations Plan. The plan was distributed in an electronic form 
or printed version: 
 

Departments and Stakeholder Agencies 

Arizona Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs (DEMA) 

City of Globe 

Board of Supervisors Town of Hayden 

County Manager Town of Miami 

County Attorney’s Office Town of Payson 

Community Development Division Town of Star Valley 

Community Services Division Town of Winkleman 

Finance Division Northern Gila County Fire Chief’s Association 

Health and Emergency Management 
Division 

Southern Gila County Fire Chief’s Association 

Human Resources Division San Carlos Apache Tribe 

Library District Tonto Apache Tribe 

County School Superintendent White Mountain Apache Tribe 

Sheriff’s Office  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 3 Introduction 

Gila County EOP Activation  
Activation of the Emergency Operations Plan occurs as a result of one of the following 
conditions: 

 On the order of the Board of Supervisors, based upon recommendation from the County 
Manager or the County Emergency Management Director. 

 Upon the recommendation of the County Sheriff, a city, town, or district Fire Chief, the 
County Public Health Officer, or the County Emergency Management Director because 
of exigent circumstances due to an emergency or hazard or based on current 
assessment of a situation. 

 When the Governor has declared a State of Emergency in an area including this 
jurisdiction. 

 A Presidential Declaration of a National Emergency. 

 Automatically on receipt of an attack warning or the observation of a nuclear 
detonation. 

Authorities and References 

Federal 
 Homeland Security Act of 2002, 6 USC Section 101, et seq., as amended. 

 Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5 (HSPD 5), February 28, 2003.   

 Homeland Security Presidential Directive 7 (HSPD 7), December 17, 2003. 

 Homeland Security Presidential Directive 8, National Preparedness, March 30, 2011. 

 Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) 1990, Public Law 101-336. 

 ADA Amendment Act (ADAAA) of 2008, Public Law 110-325. 

 Post-Katrina Emergency Reform Act of 2006, Public Law 109-295. 

 Sandy Recovery Improvement Act of 2013. 

 Disaster Relief Appropriation Act of 2013. 

 The Pets Evacuation and Transportation Standards Act of 2006, Public Law 109-308. 

 Disaster Assistance Program, Federal Emergency Management Agency- Eligible Costs 

Related to Pet Evacuations and Sheltering, Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(DAP 9523.19). 
 Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, Public Law 106-390. 

 Presidential Policy Directive (PPD) 8, March 30, 2011, National Preparedness. 

 Public Law 84-99 (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers-Flood Control Act). 

 Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950 (Public Law 920), as amended. 

 Public Law 81-920 and Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 205 and 205.16, 
Federal Disaster Assistance. 

 Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, Public Law 93-
288, as amended. 

 40 CFR Parts 300 and 355. Extremely Hazardous Substances List. 

 NRT-1, Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide and NRT-1A Plan Review Guide 
(Environmental Protection Agency's National Response Team). 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 4 Introduction 

 Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986, Public Law 99-499, 

Title III, Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act (EPCRA). 

 Volunteer Protection Act of 1997, Public Law 105-19. 

 Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended in 1977 and 1990, 42 USC, Sections 7401-7671. 

 Clean Water Act of 1948, as amended in 1972, 1977, and 1987, 33 USC Section 1251 et 
seq. 

 Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2008, Public Law 110-161. 

 Fair Housing Act as amended in 1988, 42 USC 3601. 

 Federal Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended in 1996, 42 USC Sections 300j-9(i). 
 Public Law 920, Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, as amended. 

 

State 
 ARS § 11-952 Intergovernmental agreements and contracts. 

 ARS § 23-1022 Compensation as exclusive remedy for employees. 

 ARS § 26-301 Emergency Management, et seq. 
 ARS § 26-308(B) Powers of local government. 

 ARS § 26-401 Emergency Management Assistance Compact, et seq. 

 Chapter 2, Title 26, Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) as amended.   

 Chapter 1, Title 35, Arizona Revised Statutes as amended. 

County 
 Resolution adopting the National Incident Management System, September 27, 2005, 

No. 05-09-12. 

 

Relationship to Other Plans/References 
The EOP is the primary document used by the County to describe the conduct of emergency 
management activities. The EOP describes how emergency response and recovery activities will 
be conducted, and how support will be requested and coordinated, in the form of mutual aid 
and other resources. When emergencies or disasters necessitate resource support from 
regional, state, federal, international, non-governmental or non-profit sources outside the 
immediate control of County departments, then this EOP will serve as the primary guide to 
coordinating those resources at the next jurisdictional level. 
 
At the same time, this EOP is not a stand-alone document. Its purpose is to support the 
emergency plans and procedures of County departments. This plan is designed to be flexible 
enough that it can adapt to a changing response environment and to the needs of supporting 
and requesting organizations. Some of the plans and guidelines that this EOP will frequently 
support and complement include:  

 State of Arizona, Emergency Response and Recovery Plan, 2013. 

 Gila County Tactical Interoperable Communications Plan. 

 Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan. 

 Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 5 Introduction 

 Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement between the San Carlos Apache Tribe, Gila 
County Sheriff, and Gila County Attorney. 

 Onsite / Offsite Emergency Response Plans for Palo Verde Nuclear Generating 
Station. 

 Arizona Mutual Aid Compact, October 1, 2014. 

 Arizona Statewide Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan, July, 2011. 
 Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC). 

 National Disaster Recovery Framework, 2011. 

 National Preparedness Guidelines, 2007. 

 National Preparedness System, 2011. 
 National Response Framework, 2013. 
 Developing and Maintaining Emergency Operations Plans, Comprehensive 

Preparedness Guide 101 (CPG101), Version 2.0, November 2010. 

  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 6 Introduction 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 7 Basic Plan 

BASIC PLAN 

Purpose 
This Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) addresses Gila County’s planned response to 
extraordinary situations associated with natural disasters and/or technological incidents 
including both peacetime and national security operations. The plan provides an overview of 
the operational concepts relating to various emergency situations, identifies components of the 
emergency response organization, and describes the overall responsibilities of the County 
departments in protecting life and property and assuring the overall well-being of the 
population.  

Scope 
The EOP was prepared for Gila County, Arizona, which includes the city of Globe and towns of 
Hayden, Miami, Payson, Star Valley and Winkleman. Unincorporated communities in Gila 
County include Strawberry, Pine, Christopher Creek, Young, Tonto Basin, and Roosevelt. Gila 
County is also home to the Tonto Apache Reservation and a portion of the San Carlos Apache 
and White Mountain Apache Reservations. The provisions of this plan are applicable to all 
disasters of such magnitude as to require a response above the normal role of County and local 
government agencies.  

Goals and Objectives 
This EOP was developed to ensure effective and coordinated planning and response efforts at 
all levels of government, including non-governmental organizations and the private sector to 
minimize injuries, hardship and suffering to the affected population of the county, and alleviate 
damage to property and the environment. 
 
The EOP serves as the foundation for the development of supplementary plans and procedures 
to enable efficient, cost effective implementation of response activities. The EOP is applicable 
to all County departments that may be tasked to provide resources, whether personnel, 
equipment, supplies or material, or to conduct operations in the context of actual or potential 
declared disasters or emergencies. These incidents may require a coordinated response by an 
appropriate combination of local, county, state, tribal, private-sector, NGO, and Federal 
entities. 

Goals  
 Provide effective life safety measures and reduce property loss and damage to the 

environment 

 Provide for the rapid resumption of impacted businesses and community services 

 Provide accurate documentation and records required for cost recovery efforts 

Objectives 
 Maintain overall coordination of emergency response and recovery operations, 

including on-scene incident management as required 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 8 Basic Plan 

 Coordinate and liaise with appropriate federal, state and other local government 
agencies, as well as applicable segments of private sector entities, volunteer agencies 
and faith based organizations 

 Establish priorities and resolve conflicting demands for support 

 Prepare and disseminate emergency public information to alert, warn, and inform the 
public 

 Record and maintain damage information, time and cost records, and other essential 
data 

Situation Overview 

Hazard Analysis Summary 
A detailed analysis of the hazards facing Gila County and its political subdivisions was conducted 
as part of the Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, approved by FEMA in 
November 2011. Refer to the Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2011 for 
more detailed hazard information. The hazards determined to be the greatest risk within Gila 
County are: 

 Drought  

 Flooding and Flash Flooding 

 Hazardous Materials 

 Severe Wind 

 Transportation Accidents with Multiple Casualties 

 Wildfires 

 Winter Storms  
 
At the time of this plan revision, stakeholders concurred with the hazards identified above from 
the 2011 Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, and proposed that the next 
revision of the Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan consider pandemic 
influenza and earthquake as potential hazards.   

Capabilities Assessment 
Gila County has implemented many capabilities to prepare for, respond to, recover from, and 
mitigate the effects of an emergency or disaster. In addition, the County, cities and towns within 
the county and tribal governments maintain local response capabilities and regional mutual aid 
agreements to provide assistance when resources are exhausted. In developing the EOP, the 
following capabilities should be taken into consideration:  

 Regulatory tools; ordinances, plans, and codes 

 Personnel resources; emergency response personnel including law, fire, public works, 
emergency medical, health care, environmental safety, emergency management staff, 
public information officers, GIS and information system technicians, risk management, 
animal control, medical examiner, and other personnel as needed 

 Financial resources; general funds, facilities maintenance funds, equipment 
replacement funds, grant program funding 

 Hazard information systems 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 9 Basic Plan 

 Stocking of emergency supplies; food and water, equipment, materials  

 Vehicles 

 Accessible transportation 

 Medical surge, medical countermeasures, and treatment capability 

 General and medical supplies, durable medical equipment, and disability-related 
assistance 

 Emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs 

 Communications equipment 
 Shelter facilities and supplies, and animal sheltering needs 

Mitigation Overview 
The 2011 Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan was developed with input 
from the cities and towns in the county. Mitigation is defined as sustained actions that reduce 
or eliminate the long-term risk to people and property from natural hazards and their effects. 
The intent of mitigation is to focus on actions that produce repetitive benefits over time, not on 
those actions that might be considered emergency planning or emergency services. Hazard 
mitigation is the effort to reduce the effects of the hazard. Emergency preparedness is 
preparing for the effects of the hazard should the mitigation efforts fail. Hazard mitigation is 
the only phase of emergency management that can break the cycle of damage, reconstruction, 
and repeated damage. 
 
Hazard identification and a risk assessment is the foundation of the mitigation plan. The risk 
assessment also provides information on the potential vulnerability of the county to natural 
and technological hazards. Hazard mitigation planning helps the County and jurisdictions within 
the county sustain fewer losses and recover more quickly when faced with the next disaster.  

Assumptions 
 An emergency or disaster may occur in the County at any time and with no warning.  

 Incidents are typically managed at the lowest possible geographic, organizational, and 
jurisdictional level. 

 Municipalities within the county may participate in the Gila County response. 

 Gila County is primarily responsible for emergency response and will commit available 
resources to save lives, minimize injury to persons, and minimize damage to property 
and the environment. 

 Gila County and the municipalities will utilize the National Incident Management 
System in emergency response and management operations. 

 The County Emergency Management Director will coordinate the County’s disaster 
response in conformance with its emergency organization and functions. 

 The resources of Gila County will be made available to local agencies and residents to 
cope with disasters affecting this area to the broadest extent possible. 

 Gila County will commit its resources to a reasonable degree before requesting mutual 
aid assistance from other jurisdictions and the State of Arizona. 

 Mutual aid assistance may be requested when disaster relief requirements exceed Gila 
County’s ability to meet them. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 10 Basic Plan 

 Emergency incidents involving federal agencies, military personnel, and mutual aid, 
such as an aircraft accident or act of terrorism, will be managed through multi-agency 
coordination, established unified command, and by delegation of authority.   

 Gila County will designate authorized and trained personnel to perform public 
information and media outreach as appropriate.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 11 Basic Plan 

CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 

The Gila County Office of Emergency Management has developed plans and procedures to 
protect life, property and the environment from potential threats. These plans and procedures 
direct emergency response and recovery activities in order to maintain a robust emergency 
management organization with strong collaborative ties among local government, community-
based organizations and volunteers, public service agencies, and the private sector under NIMS. 
Emergency management activities during peacetime and national security emergencies are 
often associated with the four federal emergency management phases indicated below, 
however, not every disaster necessarily includes all of the phases. All departments of Gila 
County have responsibilities in one or more of the emergency phases: 

 Preparedness Phase 

 Response Phase 

 Recovery Phase 

 Mitigation Phase 

Preparedness Phase 
The preparedness phase involves activities that are undertaken in advance of an emergency or 
disaster to develop operational capabilities and effective responses to a disaster.  Disaster plans 
are developed and revised to guide disaster response and increase available resources. 
Planning activities include developing hazard analyses, training response personnel, and 
improving public information and communications systems, all aimed toward a position of 
increased readiness for a disaster.  
 
Increased readiness actions will be initiated by the receipt of a warning or the observation that 
an emergency situation is imminent or likely to occur soon. Actions to be accomplished include, 
but are not necessarily limited to the points listed below: 

 Review and update of emergency plans, Standard Operating Procedures, and resource 
listings 

 Pre-incident and post-incident public awareness information and education programs 
regarding disaster preparedness 

 Inspection of critical facilities 

 Recruitment of additional staff 

 Mobilization of resources 

 Testing warning and communications systems 

Public Education and Outreach 
Public education and outreach promotes preparedness and hazard mitigation concepts and 
techniques through the community’s participation in planning, education, training and 
coordination with public and private sectors. This is accomplished through a variety of outreach 
activities including hosting community meetings and workshops, coordinating educating 
seminars, providing disaster handouts, and training through social media, community based 
presentations, Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) programs, representation at 
community, business, faith based and civic organizational meetings, and literature. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 12 Basic Plan 

Training and Exercise 
The County Office of Emergency Management will provide appropriate training or coordinate 
with the Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs for the training of members of 
the County emergency response organization and other emergency response personnel.   
 
All employees having responsibilities in emergency response or a position in the EOC will 
receive NIMS training. Additionally, the appropriate NIMS training will be provided to all public 
safety and first responder personnel. Each County department is responsible for coordinating 
NIMS training(s) for those employees that have a role in emergency management.  
 
The core courses of training will be selected from the following list, commensurate with 
individual and supervisory responsibilities:  

 IS-700.a: NIMS An Introduction 

 IS-800.b: National Response Framework, An Introduction 

 IS-100.b: Introduction to Incident Command System, ICS 100 

 IS-200.b: ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents, ICS 200 

 ICS-300: Intermediate ICS for Expanding Incidents   

 ICS-400: Advanced ICS Command and General Staff—Complex Incidents  
 
Additional courses designed to enhance skills development and fulfill NIMS credentialing tracks 
are available. County departments will document the training provided to emergency response 
personnel to document compliance with NIMS.   
 
In addition to training, exercises are the best method of ensuring emergency responders 
understand their roles and responsibilities. Exercises allow emergency responders to become 
familiar with the procedures, facilities and systems that they will actually use in emergency 
situations. Exercises will be conducted on a regular basis to maintain readiness. Exercises will 
include stakeholders that have potential roles and responsibilities based on the exercise 
scenario and objectives. Not all exercises require every agency or department to partake in 
them. The Office of Emergency Management will document each exercise in accordance with 
current U.S. Department of Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP) 
guidelines. The Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program provides a set of guiding 
principles for exercise programs, as well as a common approach to exercise program 
management, design and development 

Response Phase 

Pre-Emergency 
When a disaster is imminent, actions are precautionary and emphasize protection of life. 
Typical responses may be: 

 Alerting necessary agencies, placing critical resources and personnel on stand-by 

 Evacuation of threatened populations to safe areas, and protection of their safety 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 13 Basic Plan 

 Advising threatened populations of the emergency and apprising them of safety 
measures they should take to protect themselves 

 Activating appropriate Emergency Operations Centers and staff 

 Identifying the need for mutual aid 

 Declaration of a Local Emergency by local authorities 

Emergency Response 
During this phase, emphasis is placed on saving lives and property, isolation and control of the 
situation, and minimizing effects of the disaster. Immediate response is accomplished within 
the affected area by local government agencies and segments of the private sector. One of the 
following conditions will apply to the County during this phase: 

 The situation can be controlled without mutual aid  

 Evacuation of portions of the County is required due to uncontrollable immediate and 
ensuing threats 

 Mutual aid from outside the County is required 

 The County is either minimally impacted or not impacted at all, and is requested to 
provide mutual aid to other jurisdictions 

 
Gila County will give priority to the following operations: 

 Dissemination of accurate and timely emergency information and warning to the public 

 Situation analysis and information sharing with stakeholders and response partners 

 Resource allocation and control 

 Evacuation and rescue operations 

 Medical care operations 

 Care and shelter operations 

 Access and perimeter control 

 Public health operations 

 Restoration of vital services and utilities 

 
When local resources are overwhelmed and/or additional resources are required, the impacted 
jurisdiction may request assistance through their respective mutual aid agreements. Mutual aid 
is a formal agreement among emergency responders to lend assistance across jurisdictional 
boundaries when required. Gila County is a signatory of the Arizona Mutual Aid Compact 
(AZMAC) as of August, 2015.  Local jurisdictions will request county and state resources through 
the county’s emergency management office. Depending on the severity of the emergency, 
incorporated jurisdictions and/or the county may activate their respective emergency 
operations centers. 
 
A local emergency may be declared by the County, or an incorporated jurisdiction. The 
Governor may declare a State of Emergency. Should a State of Emergency be declared, state 
agencies will, to the extent possible, respond to requests for assistance. These activities will be 
coordinated with DEMA and/or the Governor. DEMA may also activate the State Emergency 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 14 Basic Plan 

Operations Center (SEOC) in Phoenix to support state agencies and other entities in the 
affected areas and to ensure the effectiveness of the state's emergency response. 
 
The Governor may request a Presidential Declaration of an Emergency through the Regional 
Director, Region IX, of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to meet specific 
needs to save lives, protect property, health and safety or avert or lessen the threat of a 
disaster. This is specialized direct assistance to meet a specific need which must be stipulated 
by the State in a Federal-State Agreement for Emergencies.   
 
Sustained Emergency 
In addition to continuing life and property protection operations, the following operations may 
be implemented in a sustained emergency:  

 Mass care 

 Relocation 

 Public information 

 Situation analysis  

 Damage assessment 

Recovery Phase 
At the onset of an emergency, actions are taken to enhance the effectiveness of recovery 
operations. Recovery consists of both short-term activities intended to return vital life-support 
systems to operation, and long-term activities designed to return infrastructure systems to pre-
disaster conditions. Recovery also includes cost recovery activities. The recovery period has 
major objectives which may overlap, including: 

 Reinstatement of family and individuals autonomy 

 Provision of essential public services 

 Permanent restoration of private and public property 

 Identification of residual hazards 

 Plans to mitigate future hazards 

 Recovery of costs associated with response and recovery efforts 

 Coordination of state and federal, private and public assistance 
 
As the immediate threat to life, property and the environment subsides, the rebuilding of 
affected areas of Gila County will begin through various recovery activities. Recovery activities 
involve the restoration of services to the public and rebuilding the affected area(s). Examples of 
recovery activities include: 

 Restoring all utilities, life support systems, and critical infrastructure 

 Establishing and staffing Local Assistance Centers and Disaster Assistance Centers 

 Applying for state and federal assistance programs 

 Conducting hazard mitigation analysis 

 Identifying residual hazards 

 Determining recovery costs associated with response and recovery 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 15 Basic Plan 

Prevention / Mitigation Phase 
Preventing damage and losses from disasters includes those efforts known as mitigation 
activities. Mitigation efforts occur both before and following disaster incidents. Post-disaster 
mitigation is part of the recovery process. Preventing, eliminating or reducing the impact of 
hazards that exist within the county and are a threat to life and property are part of the 
mitigation efforts. Mitigation tools include: 

 2011 Gila County Multi-Jurisdiction Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 Local ordinances and statutes (zoning ordinance, building codes and enforcement, etc.) 

 Structural measures 

 Tax levy or abatements 

 Public outreach and community relations 

 Land use planning 

Presidential Policy Directive 8 and the National Preparedness Goal 
Together, Gila County, its emergency response departments, and the Nation strive to meet the 
approach to preparing for the threats and hazards that pose the greatest risk to the security of 
the United States as described in Presidential Policy Directive 8 (PPD8), September 2011, and 
the National Preparedness Goal, October 2011. This directive is aimed at strengthening the 
security and resilience of the United States through systematic preparation for the threats that 
pose the greatest risk to the security of the Nation, including acts of terrorism, cyber-attacks, 
pandemics, and catastrophic natural disasters. National preparedness is the shared 
responsibility of all levels of government, the private and nonprofit sectors, and individual 
citizens. Everyone can contribute to safeguarding the Nation from harm. While these directives 
are intended to galvanize action by the Federal Government, they are also aimed at facilitating 
an integrated, capabilities-based approach to preparedness. Key elements of the National 
Preparedness Goal include:  

 The Five Mission Areas 

 The Core Capabilities 

 The Strategic National Risk Assessment Scenarios 

 The concept of the “whole community” 
 

PPD- 8 encompasses the full spectrum of prevention, protection, mitigation, response, and 
recovery efforts to prepare the Nation for all hazards – whether terrorist attack or natural 
disaster – and define what it means for the Nation to be prepared for all hazards. 

National Incident Management System 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive-5 (HSPD-5) established the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS), integrating best practices into a consistent, flexible and 
adjustable nationwide approach for emergency management.  Using NIMS, federal, state, local 
and tribal governments, and private sector and non-governmental organizations work together 
to prepare for, respond to, and recover from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size or 
complexity. Federal and state government agencies are required to use NIMS, while local 
government agencies and special districts must use NIMS in order to be eligible for federal 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 16 Basic Plan 

funding for emergency and disaster preparedness activities. Gila County has incorporated the 
use of NIMS into their regular and emergency operations. The NIMS includes the following 
components: 

 Command and Management, including the Incident Command System 

 Communications and Information Management 

 Preparedness 

 Resource Management 

 Supporting Technologies 

 Joint Information System (JIS) 

 NIMS Management and Maintenance 
 
The development of NIMS is a cooperative effort of all departments and offices with an 
emergency response role in Gila County. The Office of Emergency Management has the lead 
responsibility for NIMS development and planning with responsibilities for: 

 Communicating information within the County departments on NIMS requirements and 
guidelines 

 Coordinating NIMS development among division, departments, and offices 

 Identification of all departments and agencies involved in field level response 

 Coordinating with other local governments within the county on development of NIMS 

 Ensuring NIMS is incorporated into the Gila County Emergency Operations Plan and 
departmental procedures 

 Ensuring NIMS is incorporated into Gila County emergency ordinances, agreements, 
memoranda of understanding, etc. 

 Identification of non-governmental organizations that operate or provide services within 
the boundaries of Gila County.  The emergency response role of these organizations 
should be determined and provisions made for coordination during emergencies 

 Identification of local volunteer and private agencies that have an emergency response 
role.  Contacts should be made to develop arrangements for coordination in 
emergencies 

Incident Command System 
The NIMS requires emergency response departments and agencies to use the Incident 
Command System (ICS) for multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional incidents. The ICS is a 
standardized, on-scene, all-hazards incident management approach that:  

 Allows for the integration of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures, and 
communications operating within a common organizational structure  

 Enables a coordinated response among various jurisdictions and functional agencies, 
both public and private  

 Establishes common processes for planning and managing resources  
 
ICS is used by all levels of government—federal, state, tribal, and local—as well as by many 
non-governmental organizations and the private sector. ICS is also applicable across disciplines. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 17 Basic Plan 

It is structured to facilitate activities in five major functional areas: Command, Operations, 
Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and Finance/Administration. All of the functional areas may or 
may not be used depending on the needs of the incident. The Gila County Sheriff’s Office, local 
law enforcement, and local fire departments/districts across the county utilize the ICS during 
day-to-day responses, multi-agency response incidents, and emergencies or disasters.  

Direction, Control, and Coordination 

Field Response Level   
The field response level is where emergency response personnel and resources, under the 
command of an appropriate authority, carry out tactical decisions and activities in direct 
response to an incident or threat. The Gila County Sheriff’s Office conducts law enforcement 
within the County. The Constables (Globe and Payson Regional Offices) of Gila County provide 
services of mandated civil and criminal processes within the county. Numerous city and town 
police departments and fire districts throughout the county conduct law enforcement, fire, 
rescue, and emergency medical services within their jurisdictions.   
 
Additional departments assist the Sheriff’s Office, law enforcement, and fire 
departments/districts in emergency response including the Public Works Division, Division of 
Health and Emergency Management, the Medical Examiner, and numerous other supporting 
departments and offices. Utility companies, non-governmental organizations, private sector, 
and volunteers also support emergency response and operations. Use of ICS at the field level of 
a multi-agency or multi-jurisdictional incident is required by NIMS.   

Local Government Level 
The county and incorporated cities and towns are defined as local governments in emergency 
management. There are also three tribal governments within Gila County. The basic role of a 
local government is to manage and coordinate the overall emergency response and recovery 
activities within its jurisdiction. Gila County is responsible for coordinating with the field 
response level and other local governments, and for 
providing mutual aid and assistance within their 
capabilities. Gila County will conduct the following 
activities during emergencies: 

 Use NIMS when a local emergency is declared, or 
the County EOC is activated 

 Establish coordination and communications with 
Incident Commander(s) to the EOC, when 
activated 

 Use existing mutual aid systems for coordinating 
fire and law enforcement resources 

 Establish coordination and communications 
between the Gila County EOC when activated, and 
any state or local emergency response agency 

Federal  
Level

State 
Level

Local 
Government 

Level

Field Level



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 18 Basic Plan 

having jurisdiction at an incident within the County's boundaries 

 Use multi-agency or inter-agency coordination to facilitate decisions for overall local 
government level emergency response activities 

Multi/Inter-Agency Coordination 
Multi-agency or Inter-agency coordination is defined as the participation of agencies and 
disciplines working together in a coordinated effort to facilitate decisions for overall emergency 
response activities, including the sharing of critical resources and the prioritization of incidents.  

Unified Command 
Unified command allows agencies with responsibility for an incident, either geographical or 
functional, to manage an incident by establishing a common set of incident objectives and 
strategies. This is accomplished without losing or abdicating agency authority, autonomy, 
responsibility, or accountability. The Gila County Sheriff’s Office, local law enforcement, and fire 
departments/districts will implement or represent Gila County field operations in the Unified 
Command when the situation requires a Unified Command.  

State Level 
The State is responsible for providing support and coordination of adjoining jurisdictions to 
include cities and towns, counties, tribal nations, the State of Arizona, adjoining states, and 
federal resources in the event of an emergency or disaster that has overwhelmed the response 
capabilities of the local or county level resources.   
 
Emergency response operations are under the command of local jurisdictions. If an incident 
exceeds the response capabilities of the field level Incident Command (IC), a city, town, or the 
County level Emergency Operations Center (EOC) may be activated to support the on-scene IC. 
If the emergency exceeds the capabilities of the County EOC, the State Emergency Operations 
Center (SEOC) may be activated to assist the County. The State of Arizona’s response to state 
and federal level disasters are managed in the State Emergency Operations Center (SEOC).  
 
The Governor of Arizona may declare a disaster in a specific area of the state or across the 
entire state, and may request the President of the United States to declare a disaster on behalf 
of the state. The SEOC provides state-level support of County EOCs and the command functions 
of on-scene Incident Management Teams (IMT), if activated. Furthermore, the SEOC provides 
an environment wherein the Governor will direct State policy in a disaster response. The state 
level also serves as the coordination and communication link between the state and the federal 
disaster response system.  
 
DEMA is located at 5636 E McDowell Road, Phoenix, Arizona 85008. Phone: (602) 244-0504 or 
1-800-411-2336.  

Federal Level  
The U.S. Department of Homeland Security has designated the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) to serve as the main federal government agency during disasters 
and national security emergencies. In a disaster, different federal agencies may be involved in 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 19 Basic Plan 

the response and recovery operations. Federal disaster assistance is organized under the 
concept of Emergency Support Functions as defined in the National Response Framework.  All 
contact with FEMA and other federal agencies is made through the Counties to the State during 
the response phase. During the recovery phase, cities, or towns may have direct contact with 
FEMA and other federal agencies. 

Non-governmental, Volunteer, and Private Sector Organizations  
The Gila County EOC will establish communication with non-governmental, private sector, and 
volunteer organizations that provide emergency assistance and disaster services within the 
County. The Salvation Army, American Red Cross, North Gila County CERT volunteers, Amateur 
Radio volunteers, and civic organizations may play key roles assisting in the emergency 
response. The Chamber of Commerce and local businesses may also provide assistance during 
an emergency or disaster.  These organizations, if significantly involved in an incident, may 
assign a representative to the Gila County EOC as an Agency Representative. Some agencies 
may have several personnel participating in functional elements in the EOC, e.g., Red Cross 
personnel may be part of the staffing for the Care and Shelter Unit of the EOC.    
 
Volunteer agencies mobilize volunteers and other resources through their own systems. They 
also may identify resource needs that are not met within their own systems that would be 
requested through the mutual aid system. Volunteer agencies with extensive involvement in 
the emergency response should be represented in emergency operations centers.  
 
Some private organizations have established mutual aid arrangements to assist other private 
organizations within their functional area. For example, electric and gas utilities have mutual 
aid agreements within their industry and established procedures for coordinating with 
governmental emergency operations centers. 
 
In some functional areas, services are provided by a mix of municipal and private agencies. 
Mutual aid arrangements may include governmental, non-governmental, and private 
organizations. A liaison should be established between activated EOCs and private agencies 
involved in a response. Where there is a need for extensive coordination and information 
exchange, private agencies should be represented in activated EOCs. 

Emergency Operations Center  
This plan provides the framework for operations in the Emergency Operations Center during 
incidents that require the activation and use of the EOC. When an emergency or disaster 
exceeds the response capabilities of the on-scene Incident Command, the EOC may be 
activated. An EOC is the central physical location where key County staff will gather to 
coordinate and support the response to an emergency. The EOC is responsible for multi-
agency/ multi-jurisdictional coordination, policy implementation, information management and 
resource coordination to support Incident Commanders in the field.   
 
The following are priorities when conducting and coordinating disaster operations: 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 20 Basic Plan 

 Addressing rescue, evacuation, medical care, food, shelter, and the immediate public 
health and safety needs of the residents of Gila County. 

 Restoring the infrastructure including sanitation, water, electricity, gas, streets, or 
highways, essential to the health, safety, and welfare of residents. 

 Meeting the recovery needs of people including temporary housing, food stamps, 
employment, etc. 

 Providing for the recovery of the community to its pre-disaster state to the greatest 
extent possible. 

 

The EOC does not directly manage or command incidents.  Field level emergency responders, 
such as local Police, Fire, and Public Works departments are managed by on-scene Incident 
Commander(s). The role of the EOC is to collect, validate and organize emergency information 
and to provide for the overall coordination of resources required during response and recovery 
operations. 
 
The EOC may serve as a Multi-Agency Coordination Center (MACC) from which local 
governments can provide interagency coordination and executive decision making in support of 
incident response and recovery operations.  
 
The EOC is staffed by County personnel that are specially trained to perform the centralized 
coordination of emergency activities, e.g., emergency management, public information and 
warning, communications, and resource coordination. The EOC facility has specialized 
equipment, information systems, and various tools that aid in restoring critical functions. 
 
The EOC has three primary functions during an emergency:  

1. Develop and maintain a Common Operating Picture of the incident; 
2. Identifying and securing additional resources for emergency operations;   
3. Performing accounting and recordkeeping to track disaster costs.   

 
The EOC performs these tasks by communicating across departments, agencies and 
jurisdictions to relieve on-scene command of the burden of external coordination, resource 
allocation, and information collection, verification, and dissemination. The decisions made 
through the EOC are designed to be broad in scope and offer guidance on overall 
priorities.  Information is disseminated through the EOC Director and tactical decisions are 
coordinated by field response personnel.  
 
Day-to-day operations are conducted from departments and agencies dispersed throughout 
Gila County. When a major event or disaster occurs, centralized management is needed to 
facilitate a coordinated response by the County Emergency Management Director and/or role 
of EOC Director for Gila County. Field Incident Command Posts (ICPs) must establish 
communications with the EOC.  Additionally, the EOC must be capable of communicating 
appropriately with other EOCs during incidents, including city/town, tribal, state, federal, 
military, and private organizations. The effective coordination between EOCs and ICPs is a key 
enabler in the successful execution of emergency response operations.  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 21 Basic Plan 

The following additional tasks are also performed in the Gila County EOC: 

 Preparing situation reports and other reports as required; developing emergency 
policies and procedures; continuing analysis and evaluation of all data pertaining to 
emergency operations in order to maintain a common operating picture of the 
emergency or disaster situation    

 Collecting intelligence from and disseminating information to the various EOC 
representatives, and as appropriate, to city/town and tribal EOCs, and state agencies; 
receiving and disseminating warning information 

 Controlling and coordinating, within established policy, the operational and logistical 
support of department resources committed to the emergency; coordinating resource 
allocation priorities 

 Coordination of emergency management activities for Gila County 

 Providing emergency information and instructions to the public, making official releases 
to the news media and scheduling press conferences as necessary 

 
On behalf of Gila County, the Office of Emergency Management has overall responsibility for 
the following: 

 Developing response and recovery plans for the County and the unincorporated areas of 
the county 

 Organizing, determining staff for the EOC, and operating the Emergency Operations 
Center  

 Operating communications and warning systems 

 Providing information and guidance to the public and elected and appointed officials 

 Maintaining information on the status of resources, services, and operations 

 Directing overall operations 

 Obtaining support for Gila County and providing support to other jurisdictions as 
needed 

 Identifying and analyzing potential hazards and recommending appropriate counter-
measures 

 Collecting, evaluating and disseminating damage assessment and other essential 
information 

 
The Gila County Office of Emergency Management and County EOC is located at 5515 South 
Apache Avenue, Suite 400, Globe, AZ 85501 Office: 928-402-8767 

Mutual Aid 
When County resources and capabilities are overwhelmed, mutual aid agreements provide 
mechanisms to mobilize and employ resources from surrounding jurisdictions to support the 
incident command. When disasters are far reaching, mutual aid agreements provide for 
agencies from outside the affected area to provide resources and personnel to assist the 
municipalities in need. Jurisdictions in the State of Arizona will provide mutual aid in 
accordance with ARS 13-3872 Mutual Aid. This statute empowers municipalities (counties and 
cities) to establish policies regarding the rendering of aid to other jurisdictions. There are also 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 22 Basic Plan 

many mutual aid agreements established between tribal governments and municipalities within 
Gila County. The State of Arizona is signatory to various mutual aid agreements at several levels. 

Arizona Emergency Management Master Mutual Aid Agreement 
The Arizona Emergency Management Master Mutual Aid Agreement was signed on March 16, 
2004 between the state and all 15 counties. This agreement provides terms and procedures for 
the participating parties to execute mutual aid in times of emergencies. This mutual aid 
agreement has been implemented on numerous occasions in the years since its inception. 

Arizona Mutual Aid Compact (AZMAC) 
As of August 2015, Gila County is a signatory of the Arizona Mutual Aid Compact (AZMAC).  
AZMAC is a statewide mutual aid assistance agreement to provide resources amongst its 
signatory jurisdictions along with provisions for payment, reimbursement, insurance and 
liability clauses.  

Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) 
EMAC, a congressionally ratified organization that provides form, structure, and procedures for 
rendering emergency assistance between states, was established in 1996, and serves as the 
nation's mutual aid system. All 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, and the 
U.S. Virgin Islands have enacted legislation to become EMAC members. EMAC offers assistance 
during governor-declared states of emergency allowing unaffected states to send personnel, 
equipment, and commodities to help disaster relief efforts in other states. Once the conditions 
for providing assistance to a requesting state have been set, EMAC establishes a legally binding 
contractual agreement that makes affected states responsible for reimbursement. The EMAC 
legislation solves the problems of liability and responsibilities of cost and allows for credentials, 
licenses, and certifications to be honoured across state lines.  

Emergency Facilities used for Mutual Aid 
Incoming mutual aid resources may be received and processed at several types of facilities 
including marshaling areas, mobilization centers and incident facilities. Each type of facility is 
described briefly below. 

 Marshaling Area - Defined in the National Response Framework as an area used for the 
complete assemblage of personnel and other resources prior to their being sent directly 
to the disaster affected area.  

 Mobilization Center - Off-incident location at which emergency service personnel and 
equipment are temporarily located pending assignment, release or reassignment. For 
major area-wide disasters, mobilization centers may be located in or on the periphery of 
the disaster area. 

 Incident Facilities/Staging Areas - Incoming resources may be sent to staging areas, 
other incident facilities or directly to an incident, depending on the circumstances. 
Staging areas are temporary locations at an incident where personnel and equipment 
are kept while awaiting tactical assignments. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 23 Basic Plan 

Emergency Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities 
The Arizona Revised Statues, Chapter 2 Article 1, 26-308 require Gila County to manage and 
coordinate the overall emergency response and recovery activities within its jurisdiction. All 
departments and agencies will use the NIMS and ICS for emergency response and provide 
emergency related information to the County EOC. The Emergency Organization chart on the 
following page (Figure 1) shows the EOC organization for Gila County within the NIMS and ICS 
concept.    

  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 24 Basic Plan 

Figure 1 Gila County Emergency Organization 
  

 
  

EOC Manager

Operations Section

Fire/Rescue Branch  
(ESF # 4 & 9)

Public Health Branch       
( ESF #8)

Law Enforcement/ 
Coroner Branch          

(ESF # 13)

Public Works Branch 
(ESF # 3)

Care and Shelter  
Branch (ESF # 6)

Planning/Intelligence 
Section

Situation Unit

Resources Unit

Documentation Unit

Advanced Planning Unit

Deactivation Unit

Technical Specialist

Logistics Section

Service Branch 

Director

Communication Unit

Medical Unit

Food Unit

Support Branch 

Director

Supply Unit

Facilities Unit

Ground Support Unit

Cost Unit

Time Unit

Compensation/ Claims 
Unit

Procurement Unit

EOC Liaison
EOC Safety /         

Security Officer

EOC Public Information 
Officer

EOC Coordinator



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 25 Basic Plan 

Continuity of Government  
In an emergency, governmental response is an extraordinary extension of responsibility and 
action, coupled with normal day-to-day activities. Normal governmental duties must be 
maintained, with emergency operations carried out by those agencies assigned specific 
emergency functions. A major disaster or national security emergency could result in the death 
or injury of key government officials, or the partial or complete destruction of established seats 
of government and public and private records essential to continued operations of government.  
Government at all levels is responsible for providing continuity of effective leadership, 
authority, and adequate direction of emergency and recovery operations. Gila County is in the 
process of building a continuity of operations program to carry out essential functions and 
maintain government operations within the County during an emergency or disaster.  

Emergency Activation Levels  
The magnitude of the emergency will dictate Gila County’s response level. Response levels are 
used to describe the type of event, extent of coordination or assistance needed, and degree of 
participation from County departments.  

Level I – Minor Emergency – No EOC Activation Required 
Level I is a minor incident that can be managed by first responders and resources from within 
the County. The EOC typically will not be activated. Off-duty personnel may be recalled to back 
fill personnel assigned to the incident. County and/or mutual aid law enforcement, fire, public 
works, or medical responders use ICS procedures. 

Level II – Moderate Emergency – Potential EOC Activation  
Level II is a moderate to severe emergency in which Gila County resources are not adequate 
and mutual aid is required. Key management personnel from the involved departments will co-
locate to provide jurisdiction coordination. The Gila County EOC may be partially or fully 
activated based on the severity of the situation. Off-duty personnel will likely be recalled. A 
local emergency may be declared by the Board of Supervisors.  

Level III – Major Emergency - Full EOC Activation 
Level III is a major local or regional disaster wherein resources in or near the impacted area are 
overwhelmed and extensive county, state and/or federal resources are required. A 
proclamation of emergency will be made and communications and coordination with the State 
DEMA or SEOC will be maintained. The overall response and early recovery activities will be 
managed from the County EOC. Off-duty personnel will be recalled and long-term planning for 
human resources will be conducted.  

EOC Activations 
The EOC will be activated when one of the following individuals, or their appointed 
representatives, notifies the Emergency Management Director (or designee) to implement EOC 
activation:  

 County Manager (or designee)  

 County Sheriff (or designee)  

 Local Fire Chief (or designee) 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 26 Basic Plan 

 Health Director (or designee) 

 Deputy Town Manager, Town of Payson 
 
Indications that the EOC should be activated include:  

 If the incident has escalated due to the number of County departments or offices 
involved, or personnel and resources required where the coordination of the incident is 
not efficiently accomplished at the scene or at another location 

 Any of the persons authorized to activate the Gila County EOC determines that 
coordination of the response/recovery would be enhanced by multi-department or 
multiagency coordination in the EOC 

 When the level of request for varied resources from the County are received from 
adjacent cities, towns, or tribal governments, or the state to respond outside the city 
and coordination of these requests are better facilitated at one central point 

 If incidents are of such magnitude that coordination of the response to the incident is 
not possible (e.g., regional flooding, major fire, HAZMAT incident requiring presenting 
evacuation or rescue problems, or other mass casualty incident) 

 When the resources of Gila County to respond or recover from a disaster or other 
emergency are overwhelmed 

EOC Information Collection, Analysis, and Dissemination  
One of the most important functions is to collect, analyze, and properly disseminate situational 
information to general staff and ESF leaders in the EOC to achieve situational awareness. 
Development of a common operating picture facilitates collaborative planning and assists all 
levels of the emergency organization to make policy decisions, develop the EOC Action Plan, 
prioritize use of resources, approve purchase requests, etc., all of which are vital to the 
effective coordination of support for responders in the field. 
 
In order to obtain true and accurate situational information, all agencies and ESFs operating 
within the EOC must submit updates, damage assessments and resource status reports to the 
EOC Planning Section. An information management system called WebEOC is used as a tool to 
collect the information and disseminate the situation status across the EOC. Critical incident 
information can also be communicated through formal reporting channels within the ICS 
structure. 
 
Each ESF representative within the EOC must be able to reach out to personnel operating within 
the ESF at the field level as well as outward to other agencies when necessary to obtain the 
most accurate incident status. It is imperative that these personnel are aware of the roles and 
responsibilities of their particular ESF. 

 
The collection and organization of the incident situation and status information and the 
evaluation, analysis, dissemination, and display of that information is critical for use by all 
sections in the EOC. The Situation Status Unit in the Planning / Intelligence Section is the lead 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 27 Basic Plan 

for collecting, validating and consolidating the situation analysis, but each section is responsible 
for contributing to this task:   
 

EOC Section Roles and Responsibilities 

Management Staff Provides overall guidance, coordination and direction for intelligence 
collection; provides Status Reports to the EOC and other agencies on the 
status of the overall emergency operations. 

Operations Section Provides information on the status of field operations, updates on the 
nature and scope of the disaster, and requests for resources from on-scene 
command. 

Planning/ Intelligence                
Section 

Collects, verifies and combines input from other sections and agencies into 
the situation status; Develops GIS products when possible and disseminates 
Situation Reports via networked digital systems or hard-copy as required. 

Logistics Section Provides information on the status of available, committed and ordered 
resources; Relays status of support facilities and communications systems. 

Finance/Administration  
Section 

Provides information on costs, claims and damage assessments related to 
the emergency. 

 

 The Planning & Intelligence Section’s Situation Status and Resource Status Units are the 
primary EOC positions tasked with collecting, validating, and consolidating emergency-
related information into the common operating picture.  

 The Situation Status/Analysis Unit is the lead for compiling information regarding 
incident-related events and current emergency response operations in the EOC. The 
Situation Status/Analysis Unit will work with the Operations Section to capture and 
present field operations to the EOC. 

 The Resource Status Unit is the lead for compiling information regarding resource 
requests, allocation, and status in the EOC. The Resource Status Unit will work with the 
Logistics Section to capture and present resource allocation activities for the EOC. 

 If GIS is available, the production of maps and imagery of the incident will assist in 
identifying locations suitable for staging areas and incident command posts, and 
analyzing critical infrastructure (facilities essential for the operation and sustainability of 
health services, food services, and government operations) to help decision makers 
understand the scope of the damage. 

 
All EOC staff should be aware of the proper procedures for relaying information for inclusion in 
the common operating picture. The Planning/Intelligence Section will also post procedures for 
developing the common operating picture for reference during the process.  

  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 28 Basic Plan 

Communications 

Radio Systems 
Gila County Emergency Responder Radio Systems 
During emergencies, law enforcement officers, fire fighters and other emergency response 
personnel use portable radios to communicate. The County and numerous cities, towns and 
tribal governments have separate radio systems for the emergency responders to communicate 
on. Along with the radio system, there are communications centers with dispatchers that take 
calls for service, dispatch the calls, and support field emergency responders. Other 
departments, such as public works, building and safety, etc. may have radios for their personnel 
to communicate with management and between field level employees.  Gila County has 
communications plans and participates in interoperability of radio systems and available shared 
frequencies for multi-agency response. There are interoperable communications radio channels 
for use by public safety emergency responders.  
Refer to the Gila County Tactical Interoperable Communications Plan for specific information on 
systems and frequencies. 
 
Radio communications systems are serviced by individual contracts with private providers 
through Gila County. The Sheriff’s Office has a Communications Center to receive calls to assist 
citizens and people in need, serving as the vital link between the community and the emergency 
responders. Local cities and towns also have these capabilities for radio communications. The 
State of Arizona provides various communications systems, shared frequencies, and planning to 
assist the counties and cities in the state with their emergency communications needs.  

Alerting and Warning Systems 
Alert and warning is the process of alerting governmental forces and the general public to the 
threat of imminent extraordinary danger. Dependent upon the nature of the threat and the 
population group at risk, warning can originate at any level of government.  
 
Emergency Alert System (EAS)  
Success in saving lives and property is dependent upon timely dissemination of warning and 
emergency information to persons in threatened areas. Local government is responsible for 
warning the population within their jurisdiction. Government officials accomplish this through 
broadcast stations, cable and wireless cable systems. The EAS capabilities include: 

 Broadcast stations, cable systems, participating satellite companies, and other services 
are able to send and receive emergency information quickly and automatically, even 
when these facilities are unattended. 

 EAS is designed so that if one link in the dissemination of alert information is broken, 
the entire system does not fail. 

 The message automatically converts to any language used by the broadcast station or 
cable system.   

 Specially equipped consumer products, such as televisions, radios, pagers and other 
devices, can decode EAS messages. 

 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 29 Basic Plan 

National Weather Service (NWS) 
The National Weather Service Weather Radio All Hazards transmitters broadcast on one of 
seven VHF frequencies from 162.400 MHz to 162.550 MHz frequencies. The Weather Service 
can also access NAWAS to announce severe weather information. The Zone Area Forecast for 
Northwest and North Central Gila County are issued out of Phoenix. The Phoenix Weather 
Forecast Office is located at P.O. Box 52025, Phoenix, AZ 85072 Phone: (602) 275-0073.   
 
The Zone Area Forecast for South Central and Southeast Gila County are issued out of Tucson. 
The Tucson Weather Forecast Office is located at 520 North Park Ave, Suite 304, Tucson, AZ 
85719 Phone: (520) 670-6526.   
 
Amateur Radio 
During emergencies or disasters where communications systems may be degraded, volunteer 
amateur radio operators bring communications relief to local governments and the state. 
Amateur radio, often called Ham radio, utilizes non-public safety radio frequencies and 
networks that inherently operate well during emergencies.  Gila County had amateur radio 
volunteers associated with in two groups; Amateur Radio Emergency Services (ARES) and Radio 
Amateur Civil Emergency Services (RACES). RACES is sponsored by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), and operate according to Federal Communications Commission 
(FCC) rules (Part 97 Amateur Radio Service). It is a volunteer organization of licensed amateur 
radio operators who donate time, energy, skills, and use of personal equipment for public 
service. The Amateur Radio Emergency Service® (ARES) consists of licensed amateurs who have 
voluntarily registered their qualifications and equipment, with their local ARES leadership, for 
communications duty in the public service when disaster strikes. The Gila County Emergency 
Communications Group is currently inactive and undergoing a reorganization.  
 
Integrated Public Alert and Warning System (IPAWS) 
Established by Presidential Executive Order 13407, IPAWS brings together existing and new 
public alert and warning systems and technologies in order to provide all levels of government 
to alert and warn the public through a range of messaging options and communications 
pathways. IPAWS facilitates timely emergency alerts and warning information over more media 
to more people before, during, and after a disaster. IPAWS also provides a means for messaging 
people with disabilities and access and functional needs. Using IPAWS, Federal, State, local, 
tribal and territorial governments have the capability to integrate their alert and warning 
systems with the national alert and warning infrastructure. Through this, the IPAWS will 
increase resilience of local systems and provide additional means by which life-saving 
information is distributed during a crisis. 
 

Wireless Emergency Alerts (WEA) 
WEA are emergency messages sent by authorized government alerting authorities through your 
mobile carrier. Registered users will receive alerts about extreme weather, and other 
threatening emergencies in your area, AMBER alerts, and Presidential alerts during a national 
emergency. The National Weather Service (NWS) will send messages about tsunami warnings, 
tornado and flash flood warnings, and hurricane, typhoon, dust storm and extreme wind 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 30 Basic Plan 

warnings. The WEA message looks like a text message and will show any actions you should 
take, and the agency issuing the alert. When sent it uses a special tone and vibration, both 
repeated twice. WEA messages are not affected by network congestion and the system will still 
function during disasters.  
 
The Arizona Emergency Operations Center Network 
In 2004, Emergency Management partnered with the Arizona Public Service (APS) in an effort to 
build the Arizona EOC Network.  The network uses APS's 800 MHZ statewide system.  Currently, 
DEMA has installed radios in 14 of the 15 county EOC's, along with the State EOC, the Alternate 
State EOC, and six (6) communications vehicles.  Emergency Management also maintains a 
cache of portable radios on the Arizona EOC Network 

 

Arizona Interagency Radio System (AIRS)  
AIRS is a means of improving radio coverage in all counties by upgrading and providing inter-
connectivity of VHF, UHF and 800MHz repeaters. AIRS suites repeaters are installed in ten 
regions throughout Arizona and in all counties. The Arizona Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs and the Department of Public Safety were entrusted to establish the Statewide 
Interoperability Project Study to support the Governor’s 2003 Homeland Security Plan: Securing 
Arizona, to address the short and long-term strategy issues of radio system 
interoperability.   AIRS was designed to use the statewide and nationwide mutual aid channels 
throughout the State to help improve communications between all agencies.  Additional 
information is included in the Gila County Tactical Interoperable Communications Plan. 

 
Administration and Finance 
During a disaster, prompt implementation of a disaster accounting system is vital to supporting 
the response activities, vital record retention, and documentation of the emergency or disaster. 
The finance function is critical to the successful and efficient emergency response and recovery. 
All County principles, policies, procedures and regulations must be adhered to for the proper 
control and use of public funds, and to ensure there is no waste or abuse of County funds. The 
EOC Finance and Administration Section’s primary responsibility is to maintain to the greatest 
extent possible the financial systems necessary to keep the County functioning during a 
disaster. These systems include: 

 Payroll Payments Revenue collection 

 Claim processing 

 Cost analysis and recovery documentation 

 Revenue Collection 

 Documentation, timekeeping and tracking 
 
The Finance and Administration Section also supervises the negotiation and administration of 
vendor and supply contracts and procedures. The extent of the disaster/emergency will 
determine the extent to which the EOC Finance/Administration Section will mobilize.  
 
 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 31 Basic Plan 

The Finance and Administration Section performs the following tasks during a disaster:   

 Keeping the EOC Director informed about funding needs to carry out ESF, support or 
incident annex operations.  

 Maintain accounting of costs associated with response and recovery from 
emergencies and disasters 

 Recommending long-term economic recovery strategies to the Board of Supervisors 

and County Manager in concert with the Finance Department 

 As soon as possible, re-establish payroll for County employees 

 Establish account numbers and tracking for emergency expenditures in conjunction 
with Finance/Accounting 

Documentation  

A vital administrative function is the documentation used to create a legal and historical 
record of the response to and recovery from a disaster. Documentation is primarily conducted 
by the Documentation Unit in the Planning and Intelligence Section, but all positions, both in 
the field level and EOC are responsible for recording and documenting their actions and 
expenses using timecards, forms, purchase orders, messages, and cost receipts. Additional 
items such as incident command logs, cost recovery, damage assessment, personnel and 
resource logs, etc., provide vital information to record to record all actions of a jurisdiction 
during an emergency or disaster. Each ESF lead, section chief, or manager shall assure the 
following tasks are completed: 

 Ensure the implementation of a record keeping system to document all related costs, 
actions, decisions, and communications 

 Track equipment purchases, rentals, and usage, and personnel hours, including 
overtime or backfill.  

 Develop estimates of monetary loss, and identify possible funding sources for future 
needs 

 Maintain central database of County government damages/expenses 

 Authorize emergency spending when necessary 

 Ensure that all the records are properly maintained for the Finance and Administration 
Section 

Vital Records Preservation 
The preservation of vital records is critical to the County’s recovery from a disaster. In addition 
to the documentation and collection of information requirements of response and EOC 
positions, each response function has a record-keeping component. Although the principal 
focus of vital records preservation is to support recovery through reimbursement of disaster-
related costs, vital records also have a broader and arguably more important function. Vital 
records become vital because they help to describe a reasonably complete compilation of 
damage, death, physical or mental trauma, and allocation of public and private resources, 
making it possible to learn from the disaster experience. In Gila County, the Clerk of the Board 
is responsible for the preservation of vital records. The Clerk of the Board stores hardcopy 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 32 Basic Plan 

minutes, resolutions, deeds, and contracts regularly. In a disaster, these records create a legal 
and historical record of the County’s actions to respond and recover from the disaster.   

Requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Access to emergency services shall not be denied on the grounds of race, color, national origin, 
sex, age, or handicap. To ensure that this goal is met, Title II of the ADA requires state and local 
governments to make their programs and services accessible to persons with disabilities. This 
requirement extends not only to physical access at government facilities, programs, and events 
-- but also to policy changes that governmental entities must make to ensure that all people 
with disabilities can take part in, and benefit from, the programs and services of state and local 
governments. In addition, governmental entities must ensure effective communication -- 
including the provision of necessary auxiliary aids and services -- so that individuals with 
disabilities can participate in civic life. 
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) signed into law on July 26, 1990, by President 
George H. W. Bush, is a broad civil rights law that prohibits discrimination against people with 
disabilities, including but are not limited to mobility, vision, hearing, cognitive disorders, mental 
illnesses, and language barriers. In 2008, President George W. Bush signed an updated version 
of the ADA, which is known as the ADA Amendments Act (ADAAA). The revised law broadens 
the scope of the definition of what it means to have a disability. These changes went into effect 
January 1, 2009. These amendments make it easier for people with disabilities and others with 
access and functional needs to seek protection under the law.  

People with Disabilities and Others with Access and Functional Needs  
Populations may have members with additional needs before, during, and after an incident in 
functional areas which include but are not limited to maintaining independence, 
communication, transportation, supervision, and medical care. Individuals in need of additional 
response assistance may include those who have disabilities; who live in institutionalized 
settings; who are older adults; who are children; who are from diverse cultures; who have 
limited English proficiency or are non-English speaking; or who are transportation 
disadvantaged. In Arizona approximately 25.7% of the population has disabilities – equaling 
1,642,748 people. Lessons documented in recent disasters concerning the integration of people 
with disabilities into community living and the growing aging population has shown that the 
existing model of emergency planning and implementation is not meeting the needs of people 
with disabilities or access and functional needs. These lessons learned show three areas that 
are repeatedly identified as most important to people with disabilities and older adults: 
communications (alert, warning, and notification), evacuation (transportation), and sheltering. 
Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Management has the lead role in conducting 
planning and preparedness for people with disabilities and others with access and functional 
needs. There may also by Community Development Block Grants available for persons with 
disabilities who require special accommodations.   
 
Gila County will make every effort to address the needs of people with disabilities and others 
with access and functional needs. The priorities will be on alerting and warning, lifesaving 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 33 Basic Plan 

operations, evacuations and sheltering to address the issues related to communications, 
mobility, and accessibility. Included in the County’s planning efforts for those with disabilities 
and others with access and functional needs are:  

 Staff trained in Functional Assessment Service Teams (FAST)  

 ADA compliant access to County programs, services, and facilities and Red Cross shelter 
facilities  

 Assistance with animal services for evacuation of service dogs, and sheltering  

 Identified transportation assistance for those requiring physical assistance  

 Reverse telephone system for specific geographic areas  

 Notification and warning procedures 

 Interpretive services and translation of warnings, notifications, and directions 

 Evacuation considerations 

 Emergency transportation issues 

 Sheltering requirements 

 Accessibility to medications, refrigeration and back-up power 

Animal Care Considerations 
The PETS Act (Pets Evacuation and Transportation Standards Act of 2006) directs that state and 
local emergency preparedness plans address the needs of people with pets and service animals 
after a major disaster, including the rescue, care and sheltering of animals.  The PETS Act 
amended the Stafford Act, and requires evacuation plans to take into account the needs of 
individuals with household pets and service animals, prior to, during, and after a major disaster 
or emergency.  
 
Gila County will utilize County Animal Control to lead the effort to comply with the PETS Act in 
conjunction with the Sheriff’s Office and fire districts that are responsible for evacuations and 
rescue of trapped persons. Gila County Animal Control will provide for the coordination of 
evacuation and sheltering of household and service dogs in the event of a disaster.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 34 Basic Plan 

 

This page is intentionally blank 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 35 Recovery Operations 

RECOVERY OPERATIONS  

Post-disaster recovery planning can be considered as the blueprint for the restoration of a 
community after a disaster occurs. The recovery defines a community’s vision of how it would 
like to rebuild in the aftermath of a disaster.  This can be done through long and short-term 
strategies, which may include planning, policy changes, programs, projects, and other activities 
such as business continuity planning. Post-disaster recovery planning is a shared responsibility 
between individuals, private businesses and industries, state and local governments, and the 
federal government. 
 
Local jurisdictions (counties, incorporated cities and towns) have primary response and 
recovery obligations. The counties and the State provide supplemental support when 
requested. A county may determine that additional supplemental resources are needed and 
may request assistance from the State and Federal Government. 
 
If a community engages in post-disaster recovery planning prior to an event, it can more 
effectively direct outside redevelopment resources from federal, state or other regional 
authorities once a disaster occurs. As a result, community redevelopment and recovery can 
take place in a manner that is consistent with community values. 
  
The first phase of recovery planning is short term, which involves restoring the infrastructure in 
the affected area to meet immediate needs. Coordination from the response phase into the 
recovery phase is necessary to identify high priority areas such as resumption of utilities, 
liability concerns, financing, and recovery ordinances. Checklists for short-term recovery should 
be developed to ensure officials and governing boards are kept up-to-date, to identify potential 
areas of mitigation, and to improve preparedness and response planning. 
 
Long-term recovery consists of actions that will return the county back to pre-disaster levels of 
service. It is critical that the documentation function continues as response operations transfer 
to recovery. Checklists should be developed for recovery operations to ensure accountability. 
Failure to strictly account for damage documentation and personnel costs can result in loss of 
possible reimbursement.  

Recovery Organization 
Gila County will play a different role in recovery than in response. The County may act as an 
information and coordination point for its constituent jurisdictions. However, each local 
government is responsible for their community, and will work directly with state and federal 
recovery programs.  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors may convene to implement a Long Term Recovery Plan, 
and make recommendations on priorities, objectives, and issues to be addressed in the 
recovery plan. The recovery emergency organization will provide significant resources and 
information to support disaster recovery efforts. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 36 Recovery Operations 

Damage Assessment 
During the early phase of a disaster, the initial damage from the disaster is estimated due to 
time constraints related to the response. Procedures for conducting more detailed surveys 
should be developed to be used in disaster project applications once the recovery process 
begins. The procedures should include the following: 

Concerns for Public Safety 
Safety precautions that will contribute to recovery operations include: 

 Ensuring infrastructure such as gas, water, and sewer system are assessed 

 Confirm utilities are turned off in unsafe or damaged structures 

 Secure hazardous materials sites and develop a plan to clean up and remove 
contamination 

 Conduct safety assessment to evaluate damaged buildings and tag buildings with 
appropriate placards 

 Identify safety precautions to be undertaken by emergency workers 

Structural Damage 
Checklists and procedures for survey teams should include the following terms when describing 
damages, which are limited to the structure and not contents: 

 Destroyed - Cost of repair is more than 75% of value 

 Major Damage - Cost of repair is greater than 10% of value 

 Minor Damage - Cost of repair is less than 10% of value. 

Recovery Activities 
Common terms for recovery activities are listed below: 

 Category A: Debris Clearance - Clearance of debris, wreckage, demolition, and removal 
of buildings damaged beyond repair. 

 Category B: Protective Measures - Measures to eliminate or lessen immediate threats to 
life, public health, and safety. 

 Category C: Roads and Bridges - All non-emergency work and any that may require more 
time for decision-making, preparation of detailed design, construction plans, cost 
estimates, and schedules. 

 Category D: Water Control Facilities - Includes flood control, drainage, levees, dams, 
dikes, irrigation works, and bulkheads. 

 Category E: Public Buildings and Equipment - Buildings, vehicles or other equipment, 
transportation systems, fire stations, supplies or inventory, higher education facilities, 
libraries, and schools. 

 Category F: Utilities - Water supply systems, sanitary sewerage treatment plants, storm 
drainage, and light/power. 

 Category G: Other - Park facilities, public and private non-profit facilities, recreational 
facilities, and playground equipment. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 37 Recovery Operations 

List of Damages 
Once a Presidential Disaster Declaration has been made, a complete and comprehensive list of 
all the damage that has occurred needs to be completed by each jurisdiction and transmitted to 
the State (DEMA). The State will coordinate the damage information to determine if a 
declaration of emergency is warranted, and will in turn send the information to FEMA. 
Information should include: 

 Locations of action/damage - geographical location of damaged facility or emergency 
work 

 Description of action/damage - narrative description explaining the nature of the 
disaster related problem (engineering details are not needed) 

 Estimates of cost - a separate estimate for each facility or system affected 
 
The Damage Assessment Unit, typically within the Public Works Branch of the Operations 
Section, is responsible for conducting damage and safety assessments during the operations 
phase and the recovery phase.   

Recovery Reporting and Documentation 
Recovery documentation and reporting is the key to recovering eligible emergency response 
and recovery costs. Timely safety and damage assessments, documentation of all incident 
activities, and accurate reporting are critical in establishing the basis for eligibility of disaster 
assistance programs. The Documentation Unit of the EOC Planning and Intelligence Section is 
responsible for documenting recovery activities.   

Recovery Documentation 
The recovery documentation information should include the location and extent of damage, 
and estimates of costs for debris removal, emergency work, and repairing or replacing damaged 
facilities to a non-vulnerable and mitigated condition. The cost of compliance with building 
codes for new construction, repair, and restoration will also be documented. The cost of 
improving facilities may be provided under federal hazard mitigation grant programs. 
Documentation is the key to recovering expenditures related to emergency response and 
recovery operations. Documentation must begin at the field response level and continue as the 
disaster unfolds. Included in the EOC Planning/Intelligence Section is a Documentation Branch 
that will coordinate the collection of all incident documentation for dissemination and filing. 

After-Action Reporting 
FEMA and state regulations require jurisdictions to complete an After Action Report (AAR) 
within a specific time period after each emergency proclamation. Any federal, state, or local 
jurisdiction proclaiming or responding to a local emergency for which the governor has 
declared a State of Emergency or State of War Emergency shall complete and transmit an AAR 
to the state within 90 days of the close of the emergency period. FEMA requires the AAR to be 
completed prior to the closing of the Disaster Field Office in order to transition federal 
personnel to their normal duties.  
 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 38 Recovery Operations 

Upon completion of the AAR, corrective actions are identified to make recommendations for 
correcting problems noted in the response/recovery effort, or during exercises and training. 
Depending on the level of the AAR, corrective action may encompass anything from detailed 
recommendations for improving individual agency plans and procedures to broader system-
wide improvements. Priority corrective actions are assigned to relevant stakeholders and 
tracked to ensure the identified problem has been addressed. The Gila County Office of 
Emergency Management is responsible for preparing the After Action Report for any 
emergency or disaster that has been declared. 

Disaster Assistance 
There are two forms of disaster assistance: Individual and Public Assistance. Recovery plans 
should address both types of assistance, methods of acquiring help, restrictions, and other 
pertinent information. Individual assistance consists of services provided to individuals and 
private sector businesses, while public assistance consists of services provided to state and local 
governments and private non-profit organizations. 

Government Assistance to Individuals 
Individual assistance consists of services provided to individuals and private sector businesses. 

Federal Programs 
 Disaster Housing Assistance Program - This is a federal program administered by FEMA 

that provides temporary housing to disaster victims during presidentially declared 
disasters 

 Disaster Mortgage and Rental Assistance Program - This program provides grants for 
home related mortgage or rent payments to disaster victims, who as a result of a 
disaster have lost their job or business and face foreclosure or eviction from their 
homes. It is a federal program available under a presidentially declared disaster 

 Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Program - This program is offered to families 
that meet certain income guidelines and may provide a percentage of the rental cost for 
a limited period of time to disaster victims. It is also available under a presidentially 
declared disaster 

 Small Business Administration (SBA) - This program is automatically implemented 
following a presidential disaster declaration for Individual Assistance, or may be 
implemented at the request of the governor. It provides low interest loans to businesses 
and individuals who have suffered disaster losses 

 Individual and Family Grant Program (IFGP) - This is authorized only by a federal disaster 
declaration. It provides grants to disaster victims who are not eligible for SBA loans 

 Cora Brown Fund - This is authorized only by a federal disaster declaration. The fund 
provides disaster victims with assistance provided they are not eligible for any other 
disaster assistance award from the government or other organizations 

 
These are only a few federal programs that can be activated under a presidentially declared 
disaster. Disaster assistance may also be altered by legislation passed at the time of the event. 
Other types of assistance may also be made available depending on the disaster. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 39 Recovery Operations 

Non Profit Volunteer Charitable Organizations 
Volunteer charitable organizations, including the American Red Cross, Salvation Army, United 
Way, and others may provide assistance to individuals outside the scope of the Gila County 
Recovery Organization.  

Public Assistance 
Public assistance consists of various programs of disaster relief to the public and private non-
profit sectors. Public sector includes state and local government (cities and counties). Private 
non-profit includes certain eligible Private Nonprofits (PNP) or an Intermediary PNP applicant to 
receive state assistance for extraordinary costs incurred while providing assistance at the 
request of local agencies during a state disaster event.  

Federal – Robert T Stafford Disaster Relief Act of 1974 
The following is a brief overview of this program: 
 
A Presidential Declaration of Major Disaster or Emergency is required to activate the provisions 
of this law. Eligible Applicants Eligible applicants include the following: 

 State agencies 

 Counties 

 Cities 

 Special districts 

 Schools K-12 

 Colleges and institutions of higher education 

 Private non-profit organizations organized under § 501(c) 3 of the Internal Revenue 
Code 

 Utilities 

 Emergency agencies 

 Medical agencies 

 Custodial care organization 

 Government services such as: community centers, libraries, homeless shelters, senior 
citizen centers, and similar facilities open to the general public 

Joint Field Office 
Following a Presidential Declaration of a Major Disaster or Emergency, a Joint Field Office (JFO) 
will be established in the proximity of the disaster area. The JFO is a temporary Federal facility 
established locally where Federal, State, Tribal, and local executives with responsibility for 
incident management coordinate, oversee, and direct prevention, preparedness, response, and 
recovery activities.  
 
A JFO is established within an affected state following the presidential declaration of a disaster. 
The JFO is a temporary federal/state multiagency coordination center (as defined by the NIMS) 
established locally to facilitate field-level domestic incident management activities related to 
prevention, preparedness, response, and recovery. The JFO provides a central location for 
coordination of federal, state, local, tribal, nongovernmental, and private sector organizations. 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 40 Recovery Operations 

The JFO works to establish joint priorities and allocate resources, resolve agency policy issues, 
and provide strategic guidance to support federal incident management activities. The exact 
composition of the JFO is dependent on the nature and magnitude of the incident. 

Disaster Declaration Process 
When a county or city has suffered an emergency that has overwhelmed the capabilities of the 
government and is above and beyond their capability to recover without assistance from the 
State, the Governor may proclaim a state of emergency. A resolution stating that an emergency 
exists within their jurisdiction(s) must be passed prior to the State declaring an emergency on 
behalf of the county or city. The Governor may provide Public Assistance to the affected 
political subdivision(s) of the state (counties, cities, towns, state agencies). The Governor’s 
Emergency Fund is allocated $4 million dollars annually to cover the costs of emergencies and 
disasters. The DEMA Recovery Section administers this fund: 

 Emergency occurs 

 County/City/Town declares the incident is above and beyond their capability to recover 
from without outside assistance 

 County/City/Town requests state assistance 

 State (Recovery Branch) performs joint damage assessments with County/City/Town  
o The Preliminary Damage Assessment (PDA) is the first step performed to 

document the impact and magnitude of the disaster on individuals, families, 
businesses and public property and to gather information for disaster 
management purposes. The PDA is required to substantiate the disaster 
assistance requests, such as a declaration of emergency. 

o The PDA process begins at the local level where the disaster has occurred with 
the local government assessing their impacts. If the impacts document that 
assistance is needed, then the local government should request assistance from 
their county. The assistance request escalates one-level of government at a time. 
(City/town to county to state to federal) 

 Recovery Branch reviews damage assessment findings and advises the Emergency 
Management Director 

 Emergency Management Director advises the Director, Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs of damage assessment findings 

 Recommendation from the Director, Department of Emergency and Military Affairs is 
made to the Governor to declare or not to declare 

 If Governor declares, maximum of $200,000 can be allocated for Public Assistance; the 
State does not have a disaster survivor assistance fund at this time  

o A.R.S. § 35-192 (F)(2) 

 Recovery Branch administers the Public Assistance process for recovery  
o State obligation is 75% of eligible costs for political subdivisions and 100% for 

state agencies 

 If emergency requires more than $200,000, then the State Emergency Council is 
convened to allocate the additional funds  

o A.R.S. § 35-192 (F)(2) 

http://www.dem.azdema.gov/recovery/docs/forms/ib/AZPA204-2.pdf
http://www.dem.azdema.gov/formspubs.html#PDA_guide
http://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/35/00192.htm&Title=35&DocType=ARS
http://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc=/ars/35/00192.htm&Title=35&DocType=ARS


Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 41 Recovery Operations 

 If the emergency warrants a federal Presidential Emergency or Major Disaster 
declaration for either Public Assistance or Individual Assistance, Emergency 
Management prepares the letter of request for the Governor  

o FY14 Threshold for requesting a federal Public Assistance declaration is 
$1.39/capita based on 2010 census; $8,884,903.63 

o There is no pre-defined threshold for Individual Assistance; rather, a jurisdiction 
must demonstrate severity of the impact through several criteria 

 Emergency Management manages the Public Assistance process for recovery under 
Presidential Major Disaster declarations  

o Federal obligation for Public Assistance is not less than 75%, state obligation is 
15% and 10% for political subdivisions. The obligation for state agencies is 25% 

o Individual Assistance under a Federal Declaration is determined through the 
Case Management process. 

 
The recovery process for a single event is not complete until all project work has been 
completed, inspected, documentation audited and final payment disbursed. Once the recovery 
process for a single event is complete the declared disaster is terminated.  

Hazard Mitigation Grant Programs 
The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) activities are aimed at reducing or eliminating 
future damages. Activities include hazard mitigation plans approvable by FEMA and cost-
effective hazard mitigation projects. HMGP grants are provided on a cost-share of 75% federal 
share and 25% non-federal share.  
 
The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA2000) states that each jurisdiction (counties, cities, 
towns, and special districts) must have an approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) in 
order to be eligible for FEMA pre and post disaster mitigation funds. The objective of the LHMP 
is “to save lives, preserve property and protect the environment, during times of disaster.”  
 
Federal funding is provided under the Robert T. Stafford Emergency Assistance and Disaster 
relief Act (The Stafford Act) through FEMA and DEMA. DEMA is responsible for identifying 
program priorities, reviewing applications and forwarding recommendations for funding to 
FEMA. FEMA has final approval for activity eligibility and funding. The federal regulations 
governing the HMGP are found in Title 44 of Code of Federal Regulations (44CFR) Part 206 and 
Part 13.  
 
Federal obligation for Public Assistance is not less than 75%, state obligation is 15% and 10% for 
political subdivisions. The obligation for state agencies is 25% 

Mitigation 
This aspect of recovery operations is critical in reducing or eliminating disaster-related property 
damage and loss of lives from reoccurring. The immediate post-disaster period presents a rare 
opportunity for mitigation. During this time, officials and citizens are more responsive to 
mitigation recommendations, and unique opportunities to rebuild or redirect development may 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 42 Recovery Operations 

be available. Recovery plans would benefit from addressing mitigation planning as part of the 
recovery process. The following issues represent some information that would be useful in 
recovery sections of emergency plans: 

Forms of Mitigation 
 Changes in building codes 

 Variances or set-backs in construction 

 Zoning, to reduce types of construction in high hazard areas 

 Relocation or removal of structures from high hazard zones 

Reference Information 
FEMA procedures over the last few years have evolved and mitigation of disasters is becoming 
a key component of disaster recovery. The Internet provides the optimum method of obtaining 
up to date information relating to disaster response and Public Assistance Programs. FEMA 
procedures over the last few years have evolved and mitigation of disasters is becoming a key 
component of disaster recovery. The Internet provides the optimum method of obtaining up to 
date information relating to disaster response and Public Assistance Programs. Public 
Assistance Program Publications can be downloaded from the FEMA website at: 
www.fema.gov/ . 
 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 A-1 Appendix A: Acronyms 

APPENDIX A: ACRONYMS 

Acronym Definition 

AAR After Action Report 

ADA Americans With Disabilities Act 

ADAAA Americans With Disabilities Amendment Act 

AIRS Arizona Interagency Radio System 

APS Arizona Public Service 

ARES Amateur Radio Emergency Services 

ARS Arizona Revised Statutes 

AZMAC Arizona Mutual Aid Compact 

CAP Corrective Action Plan 

CERT Community Emergency Response Team 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

CPG101 Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101 

DEMA Department of Emergency and Military Affairs 

DOC Department Operations Center 

DPS Department of Public Safety 

EAS Emergency Alert System 

EMAC Emergency Management Assistance Compact 

EOC Emergency Operations Center 

EOP Emergency Operations Plan 

EPCRA Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 

ERRP Emergency Response and Recovery Plan 

ESF Emergency Support Function 

FAST Functional Assessment Service Teams 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FCC Federal Communications Commission 

GIS Geographic Information System 

HAZMAT Hazardous Materials 

HSEEP Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program 

HSPD Homeland Security Presidential Directive 

IC Incident Command 

ICP Incident Command Post 

ICS Incident Command System 

IMT Incident Management Team 

IPAWS Integrated Public Alert and Warning System 

JIS Joint Information System 

MACC Multi-Agency Coordination Center 

MHz Megahertz 

NAWAS National Warning System 

NIMS National Incident Management System 

NGO Non-Governmental Organization 



Gila County  
Emergency Operations Plan   

 

Revision 2016 2 Recovery Operations 

Acronym Definition 

NRF National Response Framework 

NWS National Weather Service 

OA Operational Area 

PCOEM Pinal County Office of Emergency Management 

PETS Pets Evacuation and Transportation Standards 

PPD Presidential Policy Directive 

PSIC Public Safety Interoperable Communications 

RACES Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Services 

SARA Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act 

SEOC State of Operations Center 

SOG Standard Operating Guideline 

SOP Standard Operating Procedure 

UHF Ultra High Frequency 

VHF Very High Frequency 

WEA Wireless Emergency Alerts 

 
 
 



   

ARF-3796     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Michael
O'Driscoll,
Director 

Submitted By: Josh Beck, EM, PHEP Manager

Department: Health & Emergency Management

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Community Wildfire Protection Plans for the northern and southern
regions of Gila County.

Background Information
The Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) - The Healthy Forests Restoration Act
(HFRA) provides communities with a tremendous opportunity to influence where and
how federal agencies implement fuel reduction projects on federal lands. A CWPP is the
most effective way to take advantage of this opportunity. Additionally, communities
with CWPPs in place will be given priority for funding of hazardous fuels reduction
projects carried out under the auspices of the HFRA.

In the context of the HFRA, a CWPP offers a variety of benefits to communities at risk
from wildland fire. Among those benefits is the opportunity to establish a localized
definition and boundary for the wildland–urban interface. In the absence of a CWPP,
the HFRA limits the wildland urban interface to within 1/2 mile of a community’s
boundary or within 1½ miles when mitigating circumstances exist, such as sustained
steep slopes or geographic features aiding in creating a fire break.  Fuels treatments
can occur along evacuation routes regardless of their distance from the community. 
The Emergency Management Department and regional fire chiefs and other fire
personnel, in conjunction with Willdan Homeland Solutions divided these plans into
northern and southern regions as each region contains different climate and fuels,
requiring different mitigation, response and protective measures. 

Evaluation
These Plans were developed through a multi-agency group of local, state and federal
response partners to ensure that all community preparedness recommendations were
met.  The adoption of the CWPPs in the northern and southern region of Gila County
provides regional fire districts the ability to identify resources and gap analysis and
future goals.  As a result, these plans identify gaps and strengths and potential future
projects that will enhance the Gila County preparedness and mitigation efforts to
enhance the overall safety of the citizens and property of Gila County. 

Conclusion
The adoption of the CWPPs, as updated by our regional partners, Gila County



The adoption of the CWPPs, as updated by our regional partners, Gila County
Emergency Management staff and contractor Willdan Homeland Solutions provides for
the mandated plan update. The Plans focus on the safety of the residents and
communities in relation to the boundary of the wildland-urban interface in accordance
with the Healthy Forest Restoration Act.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Health and Emergency Management
Division Director that the Board of Supervisors adopt the 2016 updates to the
Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan and the Southern Gila
County Community Wildfire Protection Plan.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the 2016 updates to the Northern Gila
County Community Wildfire Protection Plan and the Southern Gila County
Community Wildfire Protection Plan.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Northern CWPP
Southern CWPP



 

  

LAST UPDATED: 1/26/2016 



 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The purpose of this plan is to identify and prioritize fuel reduction opportunities across the 

landscape, to address structural ignitability, and to   address local preparedness and firefighting 

capabilities with stakeholders.  

 

 

 

  

                                                           
1 https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Map_of_Arizona_highlighting_Gila_County.svg 



 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Plan Approval  i | P a g e  

PLAN APPROVAL 

The Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) of 2003 requires that the following entities must 

mutually agree to the final contents of a CWPP: the applicable local government (i.e., counties or 

cities); the local fire districts/departments; and the state entity responsible for forest 

management.  The following entities have approved the 2015 Update to the Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan:  

 

Agency Signature Date 

Arizona State Forestry Department   

United States Forest Service   

Beaver Valley Fire District   

Christopher Kohls Fire District   

Gisela Fire District   

Hellsgate Fire District   

Houston Mesa Fire District   

Payson Fire Department   

Pine Strawberry Fire District   

Pleasant Valley Fire District   

Whispering Pines Fire District   

 

Final Approval by:  

 

Agency Signature Date 

Gila County Office of Emergency 
Management  

  

Gila County Board of Supervisors   

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Plan Approval  ii | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Table of Contents  iii | P a g e  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Plan Approval .................................................................................................................................... i 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................ iii 

Section I: Introduction .................................................................................................................... 1 

Section II. Community Assessment ................................................................................................. 9 

A. Beaver Valley Fire District .................................................................................................. 10 

B. Christopher-Kohls Fire District ........................................................................................... 11 

C. Gisela Fire District .............................................................................................................. 15 

D. Hellsgate Fire District ......................................................................................................... 16 

E. Houston Mesa Fire District ................................................................................................ 18 

F. Payson Fire Department .................................................................................................... 19 

G. Pine Strawberry Fire District .............................................................................................. 21 

H. Pleasant Valley Fire District ............................................................................................... 25 

I. Whispering Pines Fire District ............................................................................................ 26 

J. United States Forest Service (USFS): Tonto National Forest ............................................. 28 

K. American Red Cross Northern Arizona Chapter ................................................................ 35 

L. Arizona Department of Transportation ............................................................................. 36 

M. Arizona Public Service (APS) .............................................................................................. 37 

N. Arizona State Forestry Department ................................................................................... 38 

O. Gila County Office of Emergency Management ................................................................ 39 

P. Gila County Public Works Division, Road Maintenance Department ................................ 41 

Q. Gila County Sheriff’s Office-Northern Gila County (Payson) ............................................. 42 

R. North Gila County Community Emergency Response Team ............................................. 43 

S. Payson Police Department ................................................................................................. 44 

T. Salt River Project (SRP) ...................................................................................................... 45 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan ........................................................................................ 47 

A. Fuel Reducation Activities and Priorities ........................................................................... 47 

B. Prevention and Loss Mitigation ......................................................................................... 49 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Table of Contents  iv | P a g e  

C. Regional Agreements ......................................................................................................... 51 

Section IV: Northern Gila County CWPP Priorities: Recommended Actions and 

Implementation ............................................................................................................................ 53 

Section V: Northern Gila County CWPP Monitoring Plan ............................................................. 61 

Appendix A: Acronyms .................................................................................................................... 1 

Appendix B: Wildland Urban interface “watch-outs!” ................................................................... 1 

Appendix C: Agency updates .......................................................................................................... 1 

 

 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  1 | P a g e  

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION 

The Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) was originally developed 

in 2004, in response to the Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) of 2003 for at-risk 

communities and unincorporated areas of the Mogollon Rim of Arizona by a “Core Team” of 

stakeholders.  The original 2004 plan was referred to as the “Rim Country CWPP.”  As stated in 

the plan, “the goal of the Rim Country Community Wildfire Protection Plan since 2004 has been 

to provide for vital, healthy and dynamically stable human communities, built upon a similarly 

vital, healthy, and dynamically stable forest which is strongly resistant to wildfire, and wherein 

the positive role of fire is understood and managed for the benefit of all.2”  Another goal of the 

Northern Gila County CWPP is to help local governments, fire departments, and fire districts 

improve fire prevention and suppression activities, and assist in identifying funding needs and 

grant opportunities. The CWPP was also designed to help identify at-risk public and private lands 

and to protect those lands from severe wildfire threat.  

 

In 2006, the 2004 Rim Country CWPP was updated with continued input from Core Team 

members.  The intent of the 2006 update was to provide progress updates to the initial 2004 

CWPP with an emphasis on Fire Prevention, Public Education and Fire Protection actions and 

improvements.  In 2015, the Gila County Office of Emergency Management sponsored another 

update to the CWPP with the intention of updating the resources, funding, and training activities, 

as well as any significant changes to the agencies or the communities they serve.                                   

    

Acknowledging the geographic size of the county and diversity in land and fuels, Gila County also 

maintains a “Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan” to address the specific 

fuels, landscape, and stakeholders in the southern area.  The Northern Gila County CWPP covers 

the area north of Hellsgate Wilderness to the Verde River, south of the Mogollon Rim and 

Coconino and Apache-Sitgreaves National Forests, and west of the Fort Apache Indian 

Reservation. The Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) covers the 

remainder of Gila County. Federal lands within the Northern Gila County CWPP are administered 

by the US Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and the Bureau of Land Management. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

                                                           
2 2004 Rim Country CWPP 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  2 | P a g e  

Map 1.  Northern Gila County Boundary 

 
The Northern Gila County CWPP covers approximately 298,000 acres and is served by (8) fire 

districts and the Tonto National Forest (TNF). The population covered by the CWPP consists of 

approximately 24,000 residents living in over 88 defined communities, with holiday and weekend 

population increases of nearly 100% due to the recreational opportunities offered in the pine 

covered forests. With the large number of communities addressed by the plan, an important 

objective for the Northern County CWPP Core Team was to provide a method of accountability 

for mitigation measures undertaken.  Another component is to adopt future mitigation measures 

that provide a united defense for approaching wildfire rather than separate measures that 

address only one community.  

 

Within the Northern Gila County CWPP area, the Tonto National Forest (NF) Payson Ranger 

District (RD) provides fire suppression on the federal lands inside the forest boundaries. Forest 

fire suppression resources will also respond to areas where there is a potential for a fire to spread 

onto the National Forest. The Tonto NF also has personnel available to complete mitigation work 

on forest lands.  

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  3 | P a g e  

Identified team members for the Northern Gila County 2015 CWPP update include Beaver Valley 

Fire District,  Christopher-Kohls Fire District, Hellsgate Fire District, Houston Mesa Fire District, 

Pine Strawberry Fire District, Pleasant Valley Fire District, Payson Fire Department, and 

government agencies including the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), Arizona State 

Forestry Division (ASFD),  Arizona Department of Public Safety (DPS), the US Forest Service, Tonto 

NF, Gila County Office of Emergency Management, Gila County Sheriff’s Department, and the 

Payson Police Department.  

 

The 2015 update to the 2004 and 2006 Rim Country CWPPs focused on community preparedness, 

fire response improvements, forest fuel mitigation efforts and a review of risk management 

principles. The update also provided an opportunity for members of the Review   Team to 

reassess community fire preparedness activities including “Firewise” designations by the Arizona 

State Forestry Division and grant funding opportunities. The 2015 Review Team also reviewed 

infrastructure improvements made by utility companies serving Northern Gila Country.  High 

value assets identified within the forest boundaries include the Mt. Ord and the Diamond Point 

communication facilities. In 2013, forest personnel completed a 1,100 acre prescribed burn 

around the communication site on Mt. Ord where ponderosa pine and brush were consumed.  

 
Map 2. Northern Gila County Fires Since 2010 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  4 | P a g e  

The 2015 Review Team met and discussed the goals for fuels treatment projects, organizational 

changes, and community preparedness recommendations established in the original 2004 plan 

and during the 2006 CWPP update.   

 

The 2015 Review Team analyzed the reported wildfire ignitions in Northern Gila County and 

recognized that there have been over 1000 reported wildfire ignitions in the planning area since 

2010. The majority of the ignitions have occurred along roadways and Wildland Urban Interface 

(WUI) areas, and were human caused. The second leading source of ignitions has been lightning. 

Major fires have been occurring throughout Arizona with increased frequency following a 

continual drought and wildland fuel buildup.  Major fires that have occurred in Arizona since the 

2006 CWPP update was written include the Schultz, Horseshoe 2, Monument, Wallow, Gladiator, 

and Yarnell Hill fires. All but the Yarnell Hill fire were human caused. The Wallow Fire in 2011 is 

the largest fire in Arizona history and burned over 538,000 acres. The Yarnell Hill Fire in 2013 

took the lives of 19 firefighters and caused the loss of 129 homes and structures. The Yarnell Hill 

Fire was started by lightning.  

 
Map 3.  Gila County Fires 10 acres or larger since 2010

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  5 | P a g e  

Recent notable fires in Gila County include the Poco Fire in 2012 (north of Young), the Mistake 

Peak fire in 2012, the Bull Flat Fire, and the Tanner Fire in 2011 (south of Young). One of the 

critical elements in firefighter safety that poses an extreme hazard to personnel is the exposure 

of the firefighters to extreme environmental conditions. Two firefighters were transported by 

helicopter suffering from heat exhaustion after working shifts on the Mistake Peak and 257 fires 

in 2012. The 257 Fire was located in the Globe RD, south of Superior. Forest Service personnel 

began focusing their efforts on reducing heat related injuries to firefighting personnel on fires 

occurring in the region, state and nationally. These efforts include recognizing the operational 

challenges of managing an Incident-Within-An-Incident and the impacts on firefighter safety and 

operations.  

 

A. WUI Identification Process 

In 2009, the Arizona State Forestry Department, under the direction of the Governor of Arizona, 

issued an Arizona-Identified Communities at Risk rating for nearly 200 communities located 

throughout the State. These communities were given WUI ratings, with 39 communities located 

in Gila County. The ratings were based on the following criteria: 

1. Fire Behavior Potential  

2. Social, Cultural and Community Factors 

3. Fire Protection Capability 

Based on the three evaluation criteria, each community was given a Risk of Catastrophic Fire 

rating. Seventeen communities in the Northern Gila County CWPP coverage area were rated by 

the Arizona State Forestry Department. The chart below lists those communities, the associated 

WUI risk, and the Fire District/Department providing fire protection to the community. 

 

Table 1. Arizona Identified Communities-At-Risk 2009 

Community WUI Risk Fire District/Department 

Beaver Valley Low Beaver Valley Fire District 

Christopher Creek High Christopher Kohls Fire District 

Colcord Estates High Christopher Kohls Fire District 

Diamond Point Moderate Hellsgate Fire District 

East Verde Park Moderate Payson Fire Department 

Gordon Canyon Moderate Christopher Kohls Fire District 

Houston Mesa High Houston Mesa Fire District 

Kohls Ranch Moderate Christopher Kohls Fire District 

Ox Bow/Round Valley Moderate Payson Fire Department 

Payson High Payson Fire Department 

Pine High Pine Strawberry Fire District 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  6 | P a g e  

Community WUI Risk Fire District/Department 

Ponderosa Springs Moderate Christopher Kohls Fire District 

Star Valley Moderate Hellsgate Fire District 

Thompson Draw Moderate Hellsgate Fire District 

Tonto Village High Hellsgate Fire District 

Whispering Pines Moderate Whispering Pines Fire District 

Wonder Valley Low Houston Mesa Fire District 

Young/Pleasant Valley Moderate Pleasant Valley Fire District 

Strawberry High Pine Strawberry Fire District 

 
The task of the 2015 Review Team required members to consider community safety needs along 

with the requirements of the HFRA including the fuels condition class, fire regime, resource 

management plans and Federal Land exclusions including Wildnerness areas. The committee 

determined that no further areas or communities met the definitions of the HFRA. The Review 

Team did recommend moving the community of Young and the Pleasant Valley Fire District to 

the Northern Gila County CWPP planning area. The team also reviewed the Northern Gila County 

CWPP’s compliance with State, Bureau of Land Management (BLM), TNF, U.S. National Park 

Service (NPS) and tribal government objectives for the lands administered by each agency.  

 

B. Goals of the Northern Gila County CWPP 

The 2004 CWPP Core Team developed seven goals to assist in community and organizational 

planning. During the 2006 review, the Team revisited the established goals listed in the Rim 

Country CWPP and determined that the goals still reflected the needs of the communities and 

agencies providing fire protection and fuels management activities. These goals included:  

 Improve fire prevention and suppression, emphasizing firefighter and public safety 

 Reduce hazardous fuels, emphasizing public and private property protection;  

 Restore forest, rangeland, and riparian health;  

 Promote community involvement and provide for community protection;  

 Recommend measures to reduce structural ignitability in the WUI;  

 Encourage economic development in the communities from vegetative treatments;  

 Encourage communities, subdivisions, and developments that are not within a fire district 

to either be annexed by an existing fire district or create their own district for enhanced 

wildland fire protection;  

The 2015 Review Team consisted of members from federal and state agencies, local fire 

districts/departments, utility providers and community groups so that all community interests 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  7 | P a g e  

were represented in the review of the 2004 CWPP.  Review Team members include the following 

fire districts/departments and governmental agencies: Beaver Valley Fire District, Christopher-

Kohls Fire District, Hellsgate Fire District, Houston Mesa Fire District, Payson Fire Department, 

Pine Strawberry Fire District, Whispering Pines Fire District, Gila County Office of Emergency 

Management, Arizona Department of Transportation, Arizona State Forestry Department, 

Arizona Department of Public Safety, the US Forest Service, Tonto NF, Gila County Sheriff’s 

Department and the Payson Police Department.  

 

The 2015 Review Team agreed with the above goals, and added two additional goals for the 

CWPP: 

 Use the CWPP in conjunction with surrounding community and agency fire management 

plans. 

 Maintain qualification for grant funding. 

 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section I: Introduction  8 | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  9 | P a g e  

SECTION II. COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT 

The 2015 update to the Northern Gila County CWPP identified changes made in the preceding 

years in community values, local fire district/department and community preparedness, agency 

infrastructure, population trends, and structure density. Another item reviewed was changes in 

Fire Insurance Services Office (ISO) ratings, which is a countywide classification system used to 

reflect a community’s local fire protection agency’s ability to suppress fires.  

Each Fire District/Department and Agency is represented below in its own section.   

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  10 | P a g e  

A. Beaver Valley Fire District 

The Beaver Valley Subdivision and the surrounding area is located approximately 6 miles north 

of Payson on Houston Mesa Road. The tree lined East Verde River travels through the community 

providing river front access for home and property owners. Fire protection is provided by the 

Beaver Valley Fire District. The community of Beaver Valley was designated a Firewise 

community, one of the first in Gila County.  

The Beaver Valley Fire District currently has (3) chief officers and (6) volunteer firefighters. Three 

members are Firefighter I & II qualified and two members are Certified Emergency Paramedics. 

Fire protection in the community is provided by one Type I Engine and one Type II Water Tender. 

A new command vehicle was recently added to the District’s equipment roster. The Beaver Valley 

Fire District received a grant in 2012 that was used to purchase new turnout clothing, six new 

portable radios, and a local radio repeater. Firefighter and Fire Officer training and education, 

from introductory fire service education to wildland firefighting skills, is provided through the 

Gila County Community College located in Payson.  Improved fire protection and training of 

personnel has led to a decrease in ISO rating from 8a to a 7 since the 2006 CWPP. Fire and 

emergency dispatch is provided by the Payson Interagency Agreement. 

The Beaver Valley community has been very active in fire prevention efforts. The community 

completed its sixth year as a Firewise Community. The Fire District’s web site includes 

information on Firewise activities and brush pit locations. There is also a log sheet for community 

members to record Firewise work hours and project activities.  

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  11 | P a g e  

B. Christopher-Kohls Fire District 

The Christopher-Kohls Fire District (CKFD) provides fire, medical, and rescue services to over 1000 

acres and a 20 mile section of Highway 260. Communities served by the District include: Kohls 

Ranch, Mountain Meadows, See Canyon, Hunter Creek, Christopher Creek, Colcord Estates, 

Gordon Canyon, Tonto Creek Estates, Zane Grey Estates and Ponderosa Estates to the top of the 

Mogollon Rim. The District also provides contract Fire and EMS services to the Tontozona area, 

R-C Boy Scout Camp, Mountain Meadows Ranch Bible Camp, and Tonto Rim Bible Camp. Many 

of the communities are completely surrounded by Tonto National Forest lands. The population 

varies throughout the year, with a peak of approximately 10,000 people either residing or 

camping within the community (during summer and fall, particularly on the weekend for 

recreational activities), and dropping to hundreds of persons during winter months. 

Three fire stations spread 

throughout the community 

provide quick response 

times to emergencies. The 

CKFD is currently staffed 

with (2) full-time members 

at Fire Station 51.  Stations 

52 and 53 are staffed by 

volunteers. Management 

positions include (1) Fire 

Chief, (3) Fire Captains and 

a small number of 

volunteers. A call back 

system along with 

automatic and mutual aid 

provides for improved 

response capabilities to emergencies within the district. The CKFD has one Engine Boss qualified 

member through Incident Qualifications System (IQS), one Engine Boss Trainee, and six members 

are FFII qualified. Several of the members are also Faller and Ignition qualified. The Fire District 

is also using Nixel for communicating with both residents and visitors via text message or email. 

The CKFD provides emergency response using (1) Rescue Ambulance, (2) Type I Engines, (1) Type 

III Engine, (2) Type VI Engines, (1) Tactical Water Tender and (2) Support Water Tenders. With 

the increase in permanent staffing, decreased response times and improved apparatus 

capabilities, the District’s ISO rating dropped from a 6/8B to a 5 for the major portions of the 

community. Areas outside the service area are rated a 10.  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  12 | P a g e  

 

The members of the Christopher-Kohls Fire District participate in the communities they serve by 

providing advice on personal and home fire safety by presenting topics to the community such 

as defensible space around buildings, firewood storage, forest litter on rooftops, spark arrestors 

on chimneys, and placement of smoke detectors. Members also complete Firewise evaluations 

of properties within the District.  

 

The Christopher-Kohls Fire District has been active in seeking fuels modification projects to 

improve the safety of the district. Over 318 acres have been treated and the District is seeking a 

$200,000 grant to treat an additional 90 acres. The required matching funds have come from 

residents or the district.  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  13 | P a g e  

Map 4. Christopher Hunter Environmental Assessment Area 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  14 | P a g e  

Map 5. Lion Environmental Assessment Area 

 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  15 | P a g e  

C. Gisela Fire District 

Gisela is a small community of approximately 500 people located 17 miles 

south of Payson off of Highway 87, located nearby is the community of Rye. 

Recreation is one of the main attractions to Gisela including swimming on 

Tonto Creek and hiking canyon trails. The Fire District has one paid position, 

the Fire Chief, and up to 12 volunteer firefighters. Utilizing several fire 

apparatus including two water tenders, the District is limited in its fire 

suppression capabilities by the lack of a water source to fill up fire apparatus. A request was made 

to the County Road Department through the Board of Supervisors for the installation of a surplus 

military water bladder.  

The District serves the community from one central fire 

station, and has an ISO rating of 9. Emergency dispatch is 

provided by the County Sheriff’s Office. 

Firefighters are equipped with full wildland firefighting 

equipment and receive dispatches by handheld radio 

pagers. Training is an identified need for District 

personnel including access to Firefighter I and II courses. 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  16 | P a g e  

D. Hellsgate Fire District 

The Hellsgate Fire District was formed by the merger of the Diamond Star and Tonto Village Fire 

Districts in 2008. The combined District serves many communities including: Star Valley, Tonto 

Village, Meads Ranch, Zane Grey Meadows, Lion Springs, Diamond Point/Summer Homes, Ellison 

Creek/Summer Homes, and Thompson Draw, a total population of approximately 3500 people. 

In the middle of the Fire District service area is the Hellsgate Wilderness Area. The District 

provides emergency response from three fire stations; Station 21 is located in Star Valley, Station 

22 is located in Tonto Village and Station 23 is located in Meads Ranch.  

The Hellsgate Fire District permanent staffing includes a Fire Chief, a Battalion Chief, which is 

currently vacant, three full-time Captains and three full-time Engineers.  Station 21 is staffed with 

two full-time firefighters, one Captain and one Apparatus Engineer and one Reserve Firefighter. 

Station 22 is staffed with one full-time employee and one or two Reserve Firefighters. Station 23 

is covered by volunteers. District apparatus includes three Type I Engines, one Type III Engine, 

one Type VI Engine and two Water Tenders.  

The Fire District’s ISO rating was re-evaluated in the spring of 2015 and the rating dropped to a 4 

for the majority of the fire district with the increased availability of water in the communities and 

additional water tenders. The Bear Flats community is rated an 8B due to the distance from the 

closest fire station.  

Wildland training and certification is a major ongoing issue with the District. Hellsgate FD has 

applied for a SAFER (Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response) Grant from FEMA to 

assist with recruitment and retention of personnel. Recruitment and retention of Volunteer 

Firefighters has been a problem with the District as with most other small fire agencies. Currently, 

there are six certified Engine Bosses and one Engine Boss Trainee. Nearly all of the personnel are 

certified wildland firefighters. The District also has one qualified Dozer Boss and several qualified 

Fallers. Personnel receive annual Wildland Refresher Training (RT-130) through joint training with 

the Forest Service and local fire districts. Personnel also attend classes to maintain and improve 

their firefighting skills and certifications by attending the Arizona State Wildland Academy in 

Prescott. Personnel also are able to complete Incident Command System (ICS) classes through 

the Arizona Division of Emergency Management. 

Seven communities served by the Hellsgate Fire District, including Thompsons Draw I & II, Bear 

Flats, Summer Home and Pine Ridge have been certified by the Arizona State Department of 

Forestry as Firewise communities. The District has four certified personnel who conduct home 

assessments and present annual refresher messages at homeowners’ meetings. Emergency 

evacuation of the community is the responsibility of the Gila County Sheriff. Community shelter 

locations have been identified at the high school, the rodeo grounds, and the Moose Lodge which 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  17 | P a g e  

can feed and care for 150 people. Seven different horse arenas have been designated for horse 

evacuations for Northern Gila County.   

The main community hazard in addition to wildland fires is the highway transportation corridor, 

Highway 260E. Daily highway traffic includes numerous tractor-trailer trucks carrying hazardous 

materials. One high-value asset in the community is the power transfer station and high voltage 

power lines, owned by APS which is located in the District.  

Map 6. Myrtle Environmental Assessment Area 

 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  18 | P a g e  

E. Houston Mesa Fire District 

The Houston Mesa community is located northeast of the town of Payson. In addition to Houston 

Mesa, the District provides fire protection to the communities of Mesa del Caballo, Freedom 

Acres, and Wonder Valley. The Houston Mesa Fire District also covers islands of private land 

inside the Tonto National Forest boundary. Most of the Fire District sits atop Houston Mesa, a 

prominent plateau. Access to the community is mainly on Houston Mesa Road. Since the 2006 

CWPP update, the Insurance Service Office rating for the Fire District has dropped from an 8 to 

currently a 5 based on improvements in training and the community’s water supply.  

Staffing levels for the Fire District include (1) Fire Chief, (3) Captains, (7) firefighters, and (11) 

volunteer members. All personnel are wildland qualified and attend regional wildland fire 

training. The Fire District provides service utilizing (1) Type I Engine, (1) Type VI Engine, (1) Type 

III Support Water Tender purchased in 2009, and (1) chief officer vehicle. All apparatus are 

equipped with fully enclosed cabs to improve firefighter safety and crew communication. In 

March of 2015, dispatch levels have increased for all wildland fire reports utilizing regional aid 

automatic agreements.  

 

The communities of Freedom Acres and Wonder Valley have been designated by the Arizona 

State Forestry Department as Firewise communities, demonstrating the citizens’ concern for 

their community’s fire safety. Public education activities include “One Less Spark One Less Fire,” 

a campaign designed to provide constant reminders during the fire season to reduce the numbers 

of vehicle and equipment fires in addition to escaped campfires throughout the Houston Mesa 

Community.  

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  19 | P a g e  

F. Payson Fire Department 

The Town of Payson is located among the majestic mountains of the Mogollon Rim. The elevation 

of approximately 5,000 feet provides for a mild climate, with temperatures nearly 20 degrees 

cooler than Phoenix and surrounding valley areas.  From giant saguaros that march up the low 

hills to ponderosa pine covered forests cover at higher elevations, the Payson area provides a 

unique outdoor experience for residents and visitors. The Town of Payson is surrounded by the 

Tonto National Forest, a major recreational focus for outdoor enthusiasts. The 40-acre Green 

Valley Park is an excellent location for fishing, picnicking, and recreation activities. 

The Payson Fire Department (PFD) serves the Town of Payson, the Ox Bow/Round Valley and East 

Verde Fire Protection Districts providing fire, EMS, and rescue services from three fire stations. 

The PFD also provides emergency services to the Tonto Apache Reservation through an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). PFD provides all emergency services to the reservation with 

the exception of wildfire suppression which is the responsibility of the BIA office in Kingman. The 

Department does respond to wildfires on the Reservation and is working on an agreement with 

BIA for wildfire responses.  

Current staffing includes (3) 

full-time personnel at each 

station and (1) shift Battalion 

Chief. The Department also has 

(8) reserve firefighters. PFD 

provides annual refresher 

training for the neighboring fire 

agencies.  The Department has 

added (1) Type I engine, (1) 

Type VI engine, and (1) Type II 

Support Tender. All firefighters 

are Type II certified and three 

personnel are Engine Boss 

certified. All full-time personnel 

have been issued a portable 

radio and full wildland 

personnel protective equipment. Apparatus have also been equipped with Mobile Data 

Computers (MDC) and GPS units and are using an ESRI based Air National Guard Geo Integration 

Office (GIO) file for mapping. The ISO rating for Payson has dropped to a three from a five with 

the addition of a third fire station, an improved record management system and a sustained 

water supply and reservoir system for the community. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  20 | P a g e  

Payson has participated for about 10 years in fuels management programs. In 2001, the group 

“Regional Payson Area Project” was established as a mechanism to work on fuels reduction 

efforts around Payson.  This included the creation of five pits to allow free dumping fuels 

residents removed from their properties.  Currently this group still lacks structure, but has 

continued to staff two pits with volunteers, and with the assistance of the Forest Service to burn 

those pits, is still providing a valuable service to the area.  In 2008, the Town of Payson received 

a $50,000 Resource Advisory Committee Grant to construct fuel breaks on approximately 80 

acres of Forest System Lands. Currently, approximately 250 acres have been treated. A grant 

application has been submitted for 2015 with a planned treatment of an additional 60 acres.  The 

following communities currently are certified as Firewise or will shortly be designated Firewise: 

East Verde Park, Chaparral Pines, Rim Club, Elk Ridge and Manzanita Ranch. Several Firewise 

videos and information on preparing properties for wildfire are available in the community 

library. The Fire Department also provides links to Arizona State Forestry Department’s Firewise, 

“Ready Set Go,” and “Are You Prepared” information.   

Map 7. Payson Environmental Assessment Area 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  21 | P a g e  

G. Pine Strawberry Fire District 

The communities of Pine and Strawberry have taken a very proactive approach to wildfire 

protection in the past decade and are recognized for their wildfire prevention efforts in Gila 

County. The Fire District has received federal grants from 2005 through 2011 and conducted 

community-wide brush removal projects. A feature of the project included the assistance 

provided to private property owners who cleared brush on their property to Firewise standards. 

The cut brush was then picked up by the District and hauled to the Buckhead landfill site and 

burned.  

The Pine Strawberry NEPA has been completed and covers 72,447 acres. 17,105 acres have been 

designated for thinning and 40,927 acres for prescribed burning. Currently, 6,736 acres have 

been mechanically treated. In 2006, the Pine-Strawberry Fire District raised $78,000 in public 

donations to maintain the fuel breaks that were constructed in 2003 on federal lands. In 2008, 

the Pine/Strawberry Firewise community group raised $35,000 to purchase native grass seed to 

be planted on the fuel breaks surrounding their communities. Native grasses can be burned every 

few years eliminating the need for expensive hand crew and mechanical clearing.  

Pine Strawberry Fuels Reduction (PSFR) Inc., a 501-C3 was formed in 2007 to assist the Fire 

district in Firewise education and brush removal. In 2012 grant funding ended and PSFR has been 

operating with private sector funding. A 300 meter fuel break has been completed and twice, the 

fuel break has been thinned, the last in the spring of 2015. Within the two communities, nearly 

800 acres in high risk areas have received brush removal or been burned, with another 160 acres 

scheduled for pile burning on the south border of Pine when the weather permits. PSFR will again 

conduct brush removal and is projected to remove approximately 700 tons of material. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  22 | P a g e  

Map 9.  Pine Strawberry Environmental Analysis Area 

 

The small community of Arrowhead Estates which is located within the Fire District but five miles 

south of Pine, has had a 70 acre fuel break completed and an additional 25 acres within the 

community cleared of brush. The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints (LDS) Church Camp 

at Lomia Campground, having been designated by the Forest Service as an extremely high fire 

risk area, completed clearing 200 acres of brush.  

Pine Strawberry Fire District 

The Pine Strawberry Fire District staffs two fire stations 24 hour a day, one in each community. 

District staffing has increased since 2004 from 4 to currently 5 personnel on duty. The District 

also has added a part-time Fire Marshall. The number of fire apparatus has increased with the 

addition of (1) Type I and (1) Type III engines, for a total of (2) Type I engines. The District also 

has (2) Type II water tenders capable of transporting 5,150 gallons of water to incidents. 

Additional equipment added to the District includes a truck, trailer, and Bobcat purchased by 

grant funds and utilized in brush removal and disposal. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  23 | P a g e  

Dispatching for the Fire District is going to be transferred to the Payson Fire Department 

Communications Center, allowing for a greater sharing of radio frequencies and standardized 

communications and operations between agency personnel. Communication upgrades include 

the addition of radio repeaters and cell phone boosters. Programmable VHF portable radios have 

been purchased by the District. With the communications improvements, additional staffing and 

other actions, the Insurance Services Office (ISO) rating for the district has been lowered from a 

7 to a 5.  

Training and Incident Command System qualifications have been a focus of the Fire District. A 

designated Training Coordinator is responsible for an active training program. Working with the 

Northern Fire Chiefs Association (NFCA), the District adopted the unified task book to standardize 

training and qualifications. Currently, District personnel have attained IQS qualifications including 

Strike Team Leader Trainee (1), Engine Boss (4) and Trainee (2), Crew Boss trainee (2) and Faller 

class A-C (8). 25 firefighters are Red Carded wildland firefighters. Fire personnel have also had an 

opportunity to earn an associate of Arts degree in Fire Science through the Gila County 

Community College System. The NFCA has created a strong mutual aid system which provides for 

the sharing of firefighting resources at the local level. An Automatic Aid agreement was also 

created by the NFCA and is currently being adopted by fire districts/departments. The Arizona 

Fire Chiefs Association has created a statewide Mutual Aid agreement which will be implemented 

within the District once the dispatch function has been transferred to Payson Fire Department.  

Community notification and water systems improvements have been accomplished with the 

cooperation of the Pine Strawberry Water District. The Water District has an agreement in place 

with the Fire District which allows for the use of One Call Now, an automated notification system 

for emergency messages and community updates. Over 5,500 property owner phone numbers 

have been placed into a database allowing for automated phone calls. The water district has also 

installed seven pressurized hydrants on the Pine Creek Canyon Road with two additional hydrants 

in other areas of the community. Two separate drafting tanks as well as a drafting pond are 

maintained within the District. 

The Fire District has a designated public education coordinator that provides structural fire safety 

and Firewise information. The Pine Strawberry Fire District has received funding from the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighter grant program on two 

occasions, which has been used to create the “Billy the Bushwacker” child education program. 

The program is designed for children ages 8-11 and provides education on wildfire prevention 

principles. The program has been such a success that the “Billy the Bushwacker” program has 

been used throughout the State of Arizona and is available on the State Fire Prevention website. 

The district also has a public education trailer that is used at community events. Information on 

Firewise standards and fire safety education materials are given out to the public during these 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  24 | P a g e  

events. Firefighters are also trained in Firewise standards and can conduct Firewise assessments 

of private property and assist homeowners in brush removal planning.  

The District has also developed a wildfire safety information CD, “Protect Your Property from 

Wildfires,” with interagency cooperation and private sector funding. CDs were distributed to all 

property owners through a mass mailing. The CDs were reprinted in 2009 by Pine Strawberry Fuel 

Reduction, Inc. In 2006, Pine Strawberry, Inc. used private sector funds to purchase 20 metal 

Firewise signs that are posted along main access and egress routes in Pine and Strawberry. The 

Gila County Public Works Department assisted in installation of these signs.  

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  25 | P a g e  

H. Pleasant Valley Fire District 

The Pleasant Valley Fire District (PVFD) serves the community of Young and surrounding areas. 

Consisting of approximately 20 volunteers and two reserves, the District provides both fire and 

EMS response for the citizens. Personnel attend two fire training classes and two EMS training 

classes each month. Personnel include one Paramedic and one EMT while one firefighter is 

attending EMT class. Additional personnel are CPR and Basic Fire Aid certified.  Dispatching for 

the District is provided by six personnel who provide dispatching from their private residences 

working 12 hour shifts. Additional communications can be provided by the resident Gila County 

Sheriff’s Deputy when required. Available within the middle of Young is a fixed helicopter landing 

zone with several other landing zones identified throughout the area. Due to lengthy ground 

transport times, the availability of landing zones within the community is a valuable asset.  

The PVFD apparatus roster includes one Type I Engine, one Type III Engine, one Type IV Engine, 

and one Type VI Engine. Water is an important consideration for the District and shuttle 

operations can be accomplished using three Support Water Tenders, the largest has a capacity 

of 5,000 gallons of water. Rescue in the community is provided using two ford F-350 vehicles. All 

apparatus with the exception of Tender 3 and Engine 3 are equipped with radios. 

Firefighter training is a priority of the Pleasant Valley Fire District. Currently, four firefighters have 

completed the Arizona State Basic Structure Fire Training and two firefighters are currently 

attending the training class. Two of these firefighters have also completed Firefighter 1 and 2 

training and Hazardous Material Training. One firefighter has completed the US Forest Service 

Wildland Basic Firefighter Training. One Firefighter has completed the Arizona State Pump 

Operations Training. 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  26 | P a g e  

I. Whispering Pines Fire District 

Whispering Pines is a rural community located north of the town of Payson and east of the 

communities of Strawberry and Pine. The Fire District is comprised of the communities of 

Whispering Pines, Rim Trail, Washington Park, Geronimo Estates/Elusive Acres, Cowan Ranch 

Bonita Creek and portions of Verde Glen. In addition, the District provides services to Camp 

Geronimo and Camp Shadow Rim. Access to the communities and the Fire District are on either 

Houston Mesa Road or Control Road, FSR-64. Recent improvements to bridges on Houston Mesa 

Road at second and third crossings, which is one of the designated evacuation routes for the 

District, has led to a much safer and more reliable route of evacuation. 

The Whispering Pines Fire District (WPFD) currently staffs four fire stations. Station 71 is the 

primary and Administrative Office of the District, located in the community of Whispering Pine. 

This station is staffed 24 hours a day with one certified firefighter/EMT or FF/Paramedic.  A new 

fire station, #72, is currently under construction in the community of Rim Trail and will provide 

apparatus bays for three units. Station #72 is staffed by volunteer personnel. Station #73 is 

located in the community of Geronimo Estates/Elusive Acres and is also staffed with volunteer 

personnel. Station #74 is located in the community of Bonita Creek and is also staffed with 

volunteer personnel. Total staffing for the WPFD includes (2) chief officers, (2) fire captains, and 

(13) firefighters. All fulltime members are fully Incident Qualification System (IQS) FF Type I 

qualified, State certified structural FFII and either Paramedic or EMT certified.  Improvements in 

apparatus, training, water supply and personal protective equipment have led the District to seek 

ISO re-evaluation of their rating during May of 2015. 

The WPFD has been successful in obtaining Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) Program grant 

funding since 2009. These funds have been used to improve wildfire suppression capabilities. 

“The VFA grant, formerly known as the Rural Community Fire Protection, can provide Federal 

financial, technical, and other assistance to State Foresters and other appropriate officials to 

organize, train and equip fire departments in rural areas and rural communities to suppress 

fires.3”  

District fire apparatus includes (2) Type I engines, (2) Type VI engines, (1) Type VII engine, (2) 

Type III support water tenders, and (1) rescue unit. Five of the fire apparatus have mobile radio 

repeaters and all staff members have portable radios. Using VFA grant funding, all personnel have 

been provided wildland personal protective equipment including wildland packs and New 

Generation fire shelters. The WPFD operates under the Northern Gila County Automatic Aid 

Agreement which has increased fire dispatch response units and personnel.  

                                                           
3 http://www.fs.fed.us/fire/partners/vfa/ 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  27 | P a g e  

In 2014, the WPFD received grant funding from the ASFD to pay for 30% of the costs of installation 

of three 50,000 gallon water bladders. The bladders have been designated as a firefighting water 

supply and were purchased to improve the availability of water for both District and Forest 

Service usage. Gila County also added a 10,000 gallon dip tank at a dedicated water storage 

location in the District. A 600 GPM portable drafting pump was added to the District’s equipment 

inventory and is used to support water tender shuttle operations.  

Community activities include the successful designation of Bonita Creek as a Firewise Community 

in 2008. A fuel modification program designed to protect Bonita Creek has been completed. The 

District is active and annually presents fire prevention, Firewise and One Less Spark programs to 

the public. Using an extensive email campaign, property owners within the District are provided 

with information on activities in the surrounding area as well as fire activity updates and weather 

conditions. Area wide emergency notification will be conducted using the Gila County emergency 

notification system currently under development as of plan writing in January 2016.  

Map 11.  Verde Environmental Assessment Area 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  28 | P a g e  

J. United States Forest Service (USFS): Tonto National Forest 

The U.S. Forest Service (USFS) was a founding member during the writing of the Rim Country 

CWPP in 2004 and the writing of the 2006 update. The USFS continues to be a major participant 

in the development and review of the Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

in 2015. The mission of the Forest Service has been to provide strong leadership in the 

management of diverse ecosystems and heritage resources. With over 90% of all lands in Gila 

County administered by the Forest Service and other federal agencies and a directive to maintain 

and restore social, economic and ecological resources, Forest Service personnel coordinate their 

efforts with the local fire districts/departments and agencies.   

The Forest Service focuses on forming lasting partnerships with local agencies, communities and 

organizations. In order to be responsive to these community members, personnel have 

developed an integrated approach to restoring watersheds for economic and ecological health 

and improved water quality.  

Forest Updates 
The Forest Service currently has 15 engines covering the Tonto NF, 7 are Type III and 8 are Type 

VI. Additional staffing includes a Type III helicopter during the fire season May 1 to the middle of 

August. Three Interagency Hotshot Crews are also hosted on the forest at Payson, Mesa, and 

Globe. Fire management staffing includes 4 Division Chiefs, 6 Suppression Battalion Chiefs, and 

1 Fuels Battalion Chief.  

All firefighting personnel must meet the 1995 Federal Interagency Fire Program Management 

(IFPM) Qualifications. These changes were required following the South Canyon Fire in Colorado 

in 1994 where 14 wildland firefighters were killed. Under the 1995 Federal Wildland Fire Policy 

and Program Review, all Federal wildland fire agencies must “establish fire management 

qualifications standards to improve firefighter safety and increase professionalism in fire 

management programs.4” Local agency personnel who respond to incidents on forest lands must 

also meet the requirements of IFPM.  

Tonto NF has updated personnel and equipment within the past five years with the goal of 

improving firefighter safety. Examples of equipment Improvements include: the replacement of 

old fire shelters with the New Generation model, upgrading portable radios with new Bendix-

King VHF radios which have been provided to all fire crew members since 2010, and the addition 

of two Global Positioning System (GPS) units that have been placed on all apparatus. 

Regional improvements in fire suppression capabilities include the opening of the Phoenix 

Interagency Dispatch Center, located at the Mesa Gateway Airport. The new dispatch center has 

                                                           
4 http://www.ifpm.nifc.gov/fire/firemanagement.htm 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  29 | P a g e  

assumed the dispatching responsibilities for the Tonto NF along with the Bureau of Land 

Management, Pima Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) and San Carlos BIA.  A training and mobilization 

facility has been built at the Mesa facility to improve regional training of firefighters. The airport 

also hosts an air tanker reloading facility capable of loading the DC-10, a Very Large Air tanker 

(VLAT) which was designed to deliver up to 11,600 gallons of fire retardant. The Mesa facility is 

also capable of loading an additional 5 air tankers at the same time. 

Forest Service Grant Requirement 

All local government projects that receive grant funding must have met National Environmental 

Policy Act (NEPA) requirements. Proper documents must be in place prior to funding with clear 

boundary markers in place. Projects must also have an archeological survey completed and 

cleared for work to begin. Local communities must have a CWPP in place if treatments are 

proposed next to private lands in conjunction with private lands treatments. Grant funding has 

been reduced at the federal level 10% within the past several years due to federal budget cuts. 

Northern Gila County Non-Federal Land Grants 

   Fiscal Year 2009 Funding  $1,274,286.03 

   Fiscal Year 2010 Funding  $359,061.52 

   Fiscal Year 2011 Funding  $454,545.00 

   Fiscal Tear 2012 Funding  $0.00 

   Fiscal Year 2013 Funding  $133,278.00 

   2009-2013 Funding Total  $2,221,170.55 

 

Payson Ranger District Treatment Areas: 

Since 2001, the Payson Ranger District has been strategically planning on a landscape scale to 

address the restoration of fire-adapted ecosystems as well as treat high hazard areas 

immediately adjacent to communities at risk. Six planning areas have approved NEPA and 

represent a substantial work program for the District. The planning areas are:  

1. Verde Environmental Assessment Area covering 48,688 acres,  

2. Payson Environmental Assessment Area with 10,307 acres for thinning and 35,037 acres 

for prescribed burning,   

3. Pine/Strawberry Environmental Assessment Area which includes 72,447 acres,  

4. Christopher/Hunter Environmental Assessment Area covering 30,237 acres,  

5. Chamberlain Environmental Assessment area covering 3,403 acres for thinning 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  30 | P a g e  

6. Myrtle Environmental Assessment Area with 17,846 acres. The Myrtle Environmental 

Assessment Area was completed and signed in September of 2012. This area has provided 

the Payson RD with a completed landscape hazardous fuels analysis. In 2013, the Parallel 

RX was a treatment using broadcast burning. The cost per acre was $50.00 dollars per 

acre. The intended results were to provide for a reduced fuels loading on the treated 

areas for a ten year period.  

 

 

 

72,447

68,242

48,688

37,515
9,84730,23721,164

202,097

Enviromental Analysis Acres

Pine EA Payson EA Verde EA Myrtle EA

Lion EA Chris Hunter EA Chamberlain EA Tonto 4FRI Boundry



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  31 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Four Forest Restoration Initiative (4 FRI) 

Responding to the threat of high-intensity wildfires to Arizona communities, the Southwest 

Region National Forests, Apache Sitgreaves NF, Coconino NF, Kaibab NF and Tonto NF, have 

created the 4 Forest Restoration Initiative (4FRI) working with over 30 partners and stakeholders. 

The Statewide strategy for over 2.4 million acres will over a ten year period, restore the structure, 

pattern, composition, and health of fire-adapted ponderosa pine ecosystems; reduce fuels and 

9,940

10,480
18,638

452
5,074

8,696
4,0791,500

RX Burning Acres

Pine EA Payson EA Verde EA Myrtle EA

Lion EA Chris Hunter EA Chamberlain EA Tonto 4FRI Boundry

15,793

20,020
10,091

1,794
2,913

8,742
1,8921,500

Mechanical Treatment Acres

Pine EA Payson EA Verde EA Myrtle EA

Lion EA Chris Hunter EA Chamberlain EA Tonto 4FRI Boundry



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  32 | P a g e  

the risk of unnaturally severe wildfires; and provide for wildlife and plant diversity. The 

restoration-based work opportunities are expected to create a variety of jobs across northern 

Arizona. 

The project is consistent with the Tonto Land Management Plan for area 5D. Under Management 

Area 5D, “Activity fuels and natural fuels will be reduced to manageable levels. Fuels 

management activities may include fuel wood, harvest chipping, and piling and/or prescribed 

broadcast burning.5” 

 

Photo from http://www.fs.usda.gov/4fri 

 

4FRI Prescribed Fire Objectives 

Initial entry burns will use backing fire and strip head fire in Ponderosa Pine and Pinyon/Juniper 

stands to reduce: 

 Dead and down fuel loading from 15-20 tons per acre to 10-15 tons per acre  

 Understory vegetation by 25-60% 

 Slash fuels by 25-90% 

                                                           
5 TNF LRMP, P. 160, Amendment 25 08/2006 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  33 | P a g e  

 Over story by no more than 20%  

Maintenance burning in ponderosa pine will reduce dead and down fuel loadings to 3-5 tons per 

acre and reduce the understory vegetation by 35-90%. 

In continuous chaparral fuel stands, head fire use will reduce the over story density by 50-80% 

and achieve a mosaic burn pattern to create a range of age classes in brush stands. Chaparral will 

be managed on a 30 year prescribed fire rotation to achieve an improved water yield and forage 

production and allow for herbaceous species growth in areas from 1 to 200 acres in size. 

 

Map 10. Analysis Area 4 FRI EIS 

 

 

Desired Effects of Prescribed Fire 

The desired effects of the prescribed burning in the Ponderosa Pine and Pinyon/Juniper stands 

include: 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  34 | P a g e  

 Reduction of under story fuels 

 Reduction of dead and down fuels 

 Minimal reduction of over story fuels in ponderosa pine 

 Reduction of activity fuels 

 Reduction of over story fuels and dead component in chaparral 

 Reduction of piled fuels 

The range of the acceptable results, expressed in quantifiable terms in:  

 Ponderosa Pine/Pinyon/Juniper: 

o Reduction of Time Lag fuel loadings of 1, 10, 100, 1000 hour fuels by 40-85% 

o Reduction of under story fuels 35-90% 

o Retention or recruit a minimum of 1 snag per acre in areas with mature over story 

vegetation 

o 75-100% retention of desirable trees 

 Chaparral Burning: 

o Reduction in over story density by 50-80% 

o Creation of openings of 1-200 acres in size 

o Achievement of a mosaic burn pattern by varied ignition patterns 

o Reduction of 1 hour and 10 hour fuels by 1-5 tons per acre. 

Funding 

The projected cost of the 4FRI project is anticipated to be approximately $3,250,000 over a ten-

year period. The source of the funding will be Wildland Fire Hazardous Fuels (WFHF) 12 Fuels 

Reduction accounts with supplemental funding when available. 

 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  35 | P a g e  

K. American Red Cross Northern Arizona Chapter 

The American Red Cross Northern Arizona Chapter formerly known as the Grand Canyon Chapter 

serves approximately 76,000 square miles and 725,000 people throughout the Apache, Coconino, 

Gila, Mohave, Navajo, La Paz and Yavapai counties.  The American Red Cross (ARC or Red Cross) 

independently provides mass care to all disaster victims as part of the broad program of disaster 

relief, as outlined in the charter provisions enacted by the United States Congress Act of January 

5th, 1905 and the Disaster Relief Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-288 as amended by the Stafford Act of 

1988.) 

In partnership with Gila County agencies, the Northern Arizona Chapter’s initial response 

activities will focus on meeting the urgent needs of disaster victims i.e., providing emergency 

shelter. The provisions of the ARC disaster services will be considered based on the needs of 

disaster victims, the emergency/disaster situation, and available resources. Close coordination 

will be necessary between the ARC and local, state and federal government agencies.  

Another function of the Red Cross is to assist communities in preparation for natural and 

manmade disasters such as wildfires, floods, and earthquakes. The Red Cross also provides 

educational programs including the Home Fire Preparedness Campaign and Pillowcase Project 

which help community members before, during and after an emergency. 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  36 | P a g e  

L. Arizona Department of Transportation 

The Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) has an important role in fuel management 

activities along highways 87 and 260. Current fire activity maps demonstrate the need for fuels 

work along these roadways. ADOT crews have been active mowing along the right-of-way on 

both highways. The map below clearly shows the fires starting along the two major highways 

bisecting Northern Gila County and the importance of roadway maintenance. On Highway 260, a 

20-foot clearance is being maintained on both sides of the roadway. On Highway 188, the goal is 

to maintain annually the sections where the majority of fires are starting. The route was mowed 

in 2014, but funding is not available for 2015 for the project. Spraying of roadside vegetation is 

coordinated with the Arizona Natural Resources Department, for 2015 a treatment goal is 50% 

coverage of vegetation on Highway 188 from milepost 214 to milepost 276 is planned. All project 

work is accomplished through the Department’s annual budget. 

Map 8. Roadside Fire Starts in Northern Gila County Since 2010 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  37 | P a g e  

 

M. Arizona Public Service (APS) 

Arizona Public Service (APS) is Arizona’s largest and longest-serving electric company, founded in 

1886, 5 years after Tombstone’s gunfight at the OK Corral and nearly a quarter-century before 

Arizona became a state. The goal of APS is to create affordable and reliable electricity for more 

than 1.1 million retail and residential customers in 11 of Arizona’s 15 counties. The corporate 

vision is to create a sustainable energy future for Arizona.  

APS has added the position of Fire Mitigation Specialist, who will be participating with fire 

districts/departments in creating a safe energy supply. The Fire Mitigation Specialist (FMS) will 

be the point of contact for incidents either weather related or fires, when APS infrastructure is 

involved or threatened.  The role of the FMS will be one of working with Incident Management 

Teams (IMT) to ensure the safety of personnel and resources on the ground with both clear and 

timely information and oversight. Coordinating with the IMT will ensure that APS resources are 

considered in the planning and operations phases of incidents.  

The FMS will also work on the pole clearing project which will require significant communication 

and coordination with State, Local, and Federal agencies. The FMS will be supporting the 

integrated Vegetation Management (IVM) projects occurring throughout the State. A key 

function will be supporting ASF’s vegetation management efforts. Further cooperation with ASF 

and the USFS will include fire prevention activities as well as the possible use of prescribed fire 

to reduce fuel loading around company assets. 

APS is moving forward with an extensive pole clearing project in 2015 with the goal of clearing 

vegetation under approximately 75,000 poles on a three year cycle. On a yearly basis, APS will be 

clearing approximately 30,000 poles per year. APS is also researching the possibility of purchasing 

equipment that could be used to pre-treat poles in advance of a fire.  

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  38 | P a g e  

N. Arizona State Forestry Department 

The Arizona State Forestry Division (ASFD) provides resources for the prevention and suppression 

of wildland fires on over 22 million acres of State Trust Lands and private property located outside 

incorporated communities. ASFD provides services for fire prevention, urban and community 

forestry, forest stewardship, forest health, and has a wide variety of grants available6. Fire 

prevention efforts include helping communities learn about Firewise activities and youth 

education. Northern Gila County currently has eight communities that have been designated as 

“Firewise” with other communities in the adoption process. ASFD also hosts a two-day class on 

home safety assessments. Other fire prevention activities include granting funds to communities 

to reduce the hazardous fuels within and around communities and private lands and on State 

Trust Lands.  

 The State Forestry Department also acquires used fire apparatus and equipment, 

refurbishes the equipment and then transfers the title to rural fire districts/departments. 

 The Forest Stewardship program offers forest land owners guidance and assistance with 

management plans. 

The ASFD also provides grant opportunities to help communities reduce hazardous fuels, and 

acquire apparatus and supplies for firefighters including wildland personal protective equipment 

(PPE). The grant focus is on opportunities for cost sharing with urban communities. A high priority 

for grant funding includes the community adoption of Firewise standards and on projects that 

are “Community” focused rather than on individual projects that stand alone.  Due to the 

continued drought, reduced snowfall, and warmer than usual spring conditions in 2015, an 

increase in ignitions is again predicted. For 2015, State Forestry crews will possibly be located 

within Gila County for fuel mitigation activities. 

  

                                                           
6 https://azsf.az.gov/what-we-do-0 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  39 | P a g e  

O. Gila County Office of Emergency Management 

The Gila County Office of Emergency Management (GCOEM) 

centralizes the direction and control of the planning, coordination 

and management of disaster preparedness, mitigation, response 

and recovery. According to SARA (Superfund Amendments 

Reauthorization Act) Title II, emergency management agencies 

must develop emergency response plans for hazardous materials 

incidents. These requirements led the EM agencies to create 

response plans that deal with any type of emergency that might 

occur within their planning area. The GCOEM has developed or is 

the process of developing emergency response plans for activities including wildfires, floods, and 

hazardous materials spills. The goal of all response plans is to minimize the risk to the public.  

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) defines hazard mitigation as, “any 

sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from natural 

hazards.” Another way to understand hazard mitigation is as the prevention component of the 

emergency management process. 

 Preparedness activities are the emergency plans, training, drills, and exercises that 

individuals, communities and first responders participate in on almost daily basis. These 

are things done to get ready for an emergency or disaster before it happens. 

 Response is the short-term, emergency actions taken to address the immediate impacts 

of a hazard. 

 Recovery is the longer-term process of restoring the community back to normal or pre-

disaster conditions. 

 Mitigation activities are actions that will prevent or eliminate losses, even if an incident 

does occur. Mitigation can reduce or eliminate the need for an emergency response and 

greatly reduce the recovery period. 

The role of the GCOEM is to: 

 Act as the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) coordinator 

 Develop, review and update Emergency Response Plans 

 Serve as a Communications Specialist during EOC operations 

EOC Activation 

The Gila County Emergency Operations Center is activated based on information supplied to the 

Office of Emergency Management by Incident Commanders in the field. At the same time, 

information will be collected by emergency dispatch centers and relayed to the Emergency 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  40 | P a g e  

Management Office. The Director of Emergency Management will then determine the need to 

open the EOC based on the complexity and needs of field personnel. 

 

The role of the County EOC will be one of facilitating the orders from Incident Commanders. 

During an EOC activation, using the Web EOC platform, orders will be filled first from resources 

available from within the County. Neighboring Counties will be able to view the Web EOC event 

and the State will be notified. If the County is unable to fill a request from field personnel, 

neighboring Counties will be contacted. If orders are still unfilled from the neighboring Counties, 

the State will then attempt to fill orders from the field personnel.  

Other roles filled by the Office of Emergency Management include: 

 Serving as the Training Coordinator for First Responders in the county. 

 Developing and maintaining the Emergency Alert System (EAS), coordinating and 

monitoring countywide radio frequencies used for the EAS. 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  41 | P a g e  

P. Gila County Public Works Division, Road Maintenance Department 

The Gila County Public Works Division Road Maintenance Department is responsible for the 

improvement and maintenance of the County Maintained Road System. The Department’s 

primary goal is to provide a safe and accessible road system to move citizens and commodities 

around the county. The Department assists other agencies in responding to emergencies such as 

vegetation fires. The Road Maintenance Department maintains seven water tenders available for 

emergency water supplies during initial attack operations. The water tenders are also used to fill 

and maintain the water bladders placed throughout the county which are designated for 

emergency use only.  

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  42 | P a g e  

Q. Gila County Sheriff’s Office-Northern Gila County (Payson) 

The Gila County Sheriff’s Office supports programs and partnerships that assist the community 

and add to the security, as well as the enjoyment, of living in Gila County. The Sheriff’s Office 

monitors road conditions and is responsible for community evacuations during wildfires. The Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office of Volunteer Organizations may be utilized to assist in situations such as 

road closures during wildfires. The Sheriff’s Office maintains an up-to-date list of evacuations 

routes throughout the County. Currently, no changes in evacuation routes are planned.   

Volunteer Groups in the Gila County Sheriff’s Office include:  

 Payson Posse 

 Mounted Posse 

 Tonto Search and Rescue 

 Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  43 | P a g e  

R. North Gila County Community Emergency Response Team 

The North Gila County Community Emergency Response 

Team (NGCC) is a community based volunteer 

organization operating under the authority of the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office.  Made up of over 40 volunteers, 

NGCC provides information to citizens about local 

hazards. Volunteers are trained in basic skills to prepare 

their community and stay safe when professional 

responders are not available. NGCC members are able 

to help themselves and others before, during, and after 

a disaster.  

Vital services provided by NGCC include: 

 Responding to emergencies and providing much needed service and support to first 

responders and community members. 

 Members assist in the Emergency Operations Center by staffing the reception area, 

maintaining check-in/check-out of EOC personnel, and completing After Action Reports 

(AAR). 

 CERT members assist law enforcement in providing traffic control during high traffic 

conditions. 

 Light Search and Rescue along with basic first aid to community members. 

The North Gila County CERT recently received from the Gila County Emergency Management 

Office a refurbished command and control trailer equipped with multiple radio systems and a 

backup generator, enabling NGCC to utilize the trailer for various county emergencies and 

community events.  

NGCC also provides support to area hospital/health care facilities during evacuation and disaster 

exercises. 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  44 | P a g e  

S. Payson Police Department 

The Payson Police Department (PPD) is the primary law enforcement agency for the town of 

Payson and its 15,500 residents. The Payson Police Department is responsible for criminal and 

traffic enforcement duties within the Town of Payson. During wildfire emergencies, the PPD is 

responsible for community evacuations of residents in coordination with Payson Fire 

Department.  

Evacuation routes are pre-planned and permanently mapped and on file with the Town of 

Payson. These evacuation plans are incorporated in the Town’s Emergency Operation plan. 

Evacuation Centers are pre-determined and agreements are currently in place with the identified 

establishments. Yearly, the staff of the Payson Police Department is trained on the evacuation 

procedures and the plans are exercised. 

The Payson Police Department also works closely with the Gila County Sheriff’s Office and the 

Arizona Department of Public Safety with evacuation procedures and emergency traffic control 

resulting from a wildfire within various jurisdictions.  

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  45 | P a g e  

T. Salt River Project (SRP) 

The Salt River Project (SRP) is the oldest multipurpose federal reclamation project in the United 

States, serving central Arizona since 1903.  SRP is one of the nation's largest public power utilities, 

providing electricity and water to more than 2 million people in Central Arizona. The goal of SRP 

is to: “Develop working relationships with local residents, organizations and community leaders 

which helps SRP provide the infrastructure needed to meet service area power and water 

needs.7” SRP infrastructure in Gila County consists mainly of high-voltage transmission lines 

including   500kV, 230kV and 115kV lines. Each power line siting corridor is maintained for fire 

safety with various fuel modification work as required. 

The SRP has begun to recognize the need for a fuels modification program, especially around the 

C.C. Cragin Reservoir, to maintain a healthy forest which provides for clean water and a sustained 

source for electrical power generation. Since 2002, more than a quarter of SRP's watershed was 

burned by megafires such as the Rodeo-Chediski and Wallow fires. 

 
Four Forest Restoration Initiative 

The first efforts to address the issue on a widespread scale began with the signing of a 2011 

agreement that launched the Four Forest Restoration Initiative – a U.S. Forest Service-endorsed 

plan to thin 50,000 acres of forest annually for 20 years across the Tonto, Coconino, Apache-

Sitgreaves and Kaibab national forests. SRP is working with numerous groups including the 

                                                           
7 http://www.srpnet.com/menu/About/generalinformation.aspx 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  46 | P a g e  

National Forest Foundation, the U.S. Forest Service, the Ecological Restoration Institute at 

Northern Arizona University, the Nature Conservancy, the state Forestry Department and private 

industry to seek joint solutions. 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  47 | P a g e  

SECTION III: COMMUNITY MITIGATION PLAN  

This section of the NGCCWPP identifies a set of priorities for mitigating the threat of a major fire 

in Northern part of the County. The Review Team identified areas where wildland fuels 

treatments would reduce the threat of wildland fires in the WUI. The Team also attempted to 

create a list of completed fuels treatment projects. Other topics reviewed in this section include 

recommendations for improved wildland fire response, improved community safety, and 

educational and public information opportunities. 

The definition of mitigation used by the Team was adopted from a Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) publication. “The purpose of mitigation planning is to identify 

policies and actions that can be implemented over the long term to reduce risk and future 

losses. A Mitigation Plan forms the foundation for a community's long-term strategy to reduce 

disaster losses and break the cycle of disaster damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. 

The planning process is as important as the plan itself. It creates a framework for risk-based 

decision making to reduce damages to lives, property, and the economy from future disasters8.”    

A. Fuel Reducation Activities and Priorities 

A primary goal of the of the 2015 Review Team of the Northern Gila County CWPP (NGCCWPP) is 

to analyze the completed fuels mitigation treatments, determine areas where treatments are not 

continuous across property boundaries and develop methods of completing untreated fuels 

spaces in the various communities. Several communities and the Forest Service have been active 

in fuels treatment programs including large areas around Payson, Pine, Strawberry and 

Whispering Pines. The Forest Service has been active in planning Fuels Assessment Areas 

throughout the NGCCWPP planning area. A priority for utility providers is to develop and 

maintain safe utility corridors through public and private lands. Removing hazardous fuels from 

utility right-of-way improves the safety of the public, improved service reliability and decreased 

wildfire ignitions.  

Based on the completed fuels treatment projects, community risk assessment and fire history, 

the 2015 Review Team developed a set of priorities for further treatment projects. Factors 

considered in setting these priorities included: acreage, community involvement, cost, ability to 

tie-in uncompleted sections around communities and completed environmental assessments. 

Other factors considered include community infrastructure, high value assets, and historically 

significant resources. 

 

                                                           
8 https://www.fema.gov/multi-hazard-mitigation-planning   



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  48 | P a g e  

Completed Forest Service and Community Fuels Reduction Projects 

Myrtle AA Completed in 2012, 17,846 acres 

Parallel RX Area burned during Poce Fire during 2013. Mitigation work to begin in 2015 

 

Fuels Reduction Projects in Planning Stage 

The Tonto National Forest has completed the analysis work on seven separate analysis areas. The 

chart below lists the Analysis Area and proposed type of work and the communities affected by 

the project.  

Project Name Acreage 
Covered 

Burning 
Acres 

Mechanical 
Rx 

Community 

Verde EA 46,688 18,638 10,091 Whispering Pines, Rimtrail, Geronimo 
Estates, Shadow Rim GSA Camp, Washington 
Park, Geronimo BSA Camp  

Lion EA 9,847 5,074 2,913 Thompson Draw I, Bear flats, Kohls Ranch, 
Little Green Valley 

Chamberlain EA 21,164 4,000 1,890 Ponderosa Springs, Colcord Estates 

Christopher/ 
Hunter EA 

30,237 8,696 8,742 Hunter Ck., Christopher Ck., Gordon Canyon, 
Kohls Ranch 

Pine/ 
Strawberry EA 

72,447 9,940 15,793 Pine, Strawberry, Randell Place, Arrowhead 

Payson EA 68,242 10, 480 20,020 Payson, Bear Vly., Mesa del Cab, Flowing 
Springs, East Verde Estates, Oxbow, Round 
Valley, Gisela 

Myrtle EA 37,515 4,520 1794 Bonita Ck., Ellison Ck., La Cienga, Diamond 
Point, Summer Homes, Tonto Village, Long 
Ranch, Meade Ranch, Zane grey 

4FRI Boundary 4,000 
acres/year 

3,000  1,000 Will include all communities with the 
exception of Gisela 

 

Once the hazardous fuels have been reduced, the committee will determine the frequency of 

maintenance work required on the treatment areas. In addition, each treatment area will have 

recommended treatment methods. Developing a maintenance plan is a key to the long-term 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  49 | P a g e  

success of the treatment projects. Based on Code 550 of the National Conservation Practice 

Standards, mitigation work on completed firebreaks should be on a rotating 2- to -3 year interval, 

or as deemed necessary to ensure that the firebreak will continue to provide a measure of safety 

for the community. The regular removal of highly flammable grasses and light shrub material, 

will help maintain the fuelbreaks. The Pine Strawberry Fuels Reduction purchased native grass 

seed to replace invasive species reducing the cost of maintaining the firebreaks around their 

community. If no maintenance work is completed, fuels will return to their previous pre-treated 

condition endangering the safety of the public and firefighters.  

Community Treatment Areas/Projects 

Many of the communities in the Northern planning area have been able to complete fuels 

treatment projects using grant funds and locally provided funds.  

Community Project Discription Funding Year 

Pine Strawberry 
Brush Removal/Fuel Break 

Maint. 
Private Funds 2006 

Pine Strawberry Native Grass Seed Purchase Private Funds 2008 

Pine Strawberry Fuel Break Maintenance Private Funds 2015 

Arrowhead Estates 
70 acres fuel break constructed 

& 25 acres cleared 
  

Lomia Campground 200 acre brush clearance   

Beaver Valley Brush Pits  Ongoing 

Christopher Kohls 
318 acres treated/90 acres 

planned 
Grant Funds  

Payson 
80 acres treated/60 acres 

planned/ 250 total community 
Rx  

Resource Advisory 
Committee Grant 

2008 

Hellsgate 429 acres cleared of brush Grant Funds 2012 

 

B. Prevention and Loss Mitigation 

The Northern Gila County CWPP will continue to be used as a resource for preventing potential 

catastrophic wildfire events. Interagency coordination is essential and the CWPP will provide 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  50 | P a g e  

guidance in improving the safety of the at-risk communities in the planning area. The 2004 Core 

Team set several goals for wildland prevention and fireloss mitigation. The 2015 Review Team 

reviewed these initial measures and made the folowing recommendations: 

 Continue to improve fire suppression capabilities, including training, apparatus, and 

equipement,  creating safer firefighting conditions 

 Improve area-wide communications including dispatching of units, radio 

communications, cell-phone coverage and the use of mobile repeaters 

 Continue to promote community collaboration, involvement in individual and community 

fuels reduction projects 

 Preserve the aesthetics of the interface areas while improving wildlife habitat 

 Identify funding needs and opportunities, attempt regional approaches to grant funding 

requests where possible 

 Continue to inform the community on the safest means of protecting the property from 

the effects of wildfire 

The US Forest Service is making changes in wildfire suppression policy on Federal lands. Allowing 

naturally occurring fires to be monitored rather than immediately suppressed will allow the 

return of more natural fuel conditions and reducing suppression costs. Factors such as fire 

weather conditions, topography, fuel conditions and other fire suppression activities will help 

determine the response and actions taken on wildland ignitions. Human caused fires will 

continue to be suppressed at the lowest possible cost.  

When the Core Team addressed the safety of the communities covered by the old “Rim Country 

CWPP,” they set three Urban priorities: Fire Prevention, Fire Protection, and Evacuation of 

communities.  The adoption of Firewise standards and having landowners meet the standards 

listed in the Firewise Communities Program has improved the safety of many of the communities 

in Gila County.  “The Firewise Communities/USA Recognition Program is a process that 

empowers neighbors to work together in reducing their wildfire risk… taking action and 

ownership in preparing and protecting their homes against the threat of wildfire.9”  The Arizona 

State Forestry Department administers the Firewise certification program. The program 

encourages local solutions for wildfire safety by involving homeowners, community leaders, 

planners, developers, firefighters, and others. The 2015 CWPP Review Team was tasked creating 

a list of Firewise Communities and monitoring their activities. 

 

                                                           
9 http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  51 | P a g e  

Fire District/Department Firewise Community 

Beaver Valley Beaver Valley 

Hellsgate 
Bear Flats, Pine Ridge, Summer Home, Thompson 

Draw I & II 

Houston Mesa Freedom Acres, Wonder Valley 

Payson 
Chaparral Pines, East Verde Park, Elk Ridge, 

Manzanita Ranch, Rim Club 

Whispering Pines Bonita Creek 

 

Many of the fire departments and fire districts have been able to increase staffing, improve 

training and PPE supplies, and to decrease response times through mergers and the development 

of automatic and mutual aid agreements. Additional apparatus has been purchased, and water 

bladders have been filled and placed in strategic locations for firefighting purposes to improve 

firefighter resources and safety. Several of the fire districts/departments have been able to 

improve their ISO ratings which demonstrates their commitment to improving the level of service 

in these communities. Continued improvement in personnel qualifications and training, 

apparatus response levels, and other fire protection measures will be monitored by each agency 

and a report will be developed annually or as set by the Northern Gila County Fire Chiefs and 

other individuals. With input from utility providers, the members should also monitor 

improvements in utility corridor safety as the companies undertake specific safety measures. 

Each of these measures has helped with mitigating the risk of wildfire spreading into their 

communities and must be recorded and studied for future planning meetings. 

Community evacuation plans and routes are a key element in community 

safety. Communicating the location of shelter areas for humans and 

animals, evacuation routes and programs such as “Ready-Set-Go” are critical 

in protecting the community and its members. Methods of communicating 

with weekend and holiday visitors to each community must be developed. 

                                 10  

 

C. Regional Agreements 

Gila County Fire Agencies “Mutual Aid Agreement” 

The purpose of the Gila County Fire Agencies Mutual Aid agreement is to provide a mechanism 

for the dispatch of personnel and equipment from the area serviced by one agency to the area 

serviced by any other agency … “to provide additional fire, EMS, or other emergency services in 

the event of emergency situations in each part of the areas served by the Agencies.11” Agencies 

who signed the agreement did so with the understanding that agencies would not charge for 

                                                           
10 Safety-signs.compliance signs.com 
11 http://paysonaz.gov/Council/agendas/2010/04-15-10-A/G3-Res2546-GilaCoFireMutualAidAgmnt.pdf 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section II: Community Assessment  52 | P a g e  

their services, except for expendable supplies, and would be coordinated with the Arizona 

Department of Forestry and the U.S. Forest Service. Agencies would not be at fault for not being 

able to respond outside of the jurisdiction due to substantial reason including reduced response 

capabilities, staffing shortages and high call volume in their own area. 

Arizona “Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan” 
Signed by the Arizona Governor in 2010, the “Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan (FSMAP) is the initial 

activation and mobilization plan prior to a declaration of emergency. This plan is also intended 

to complement the State of Arizona Emergency Response and Recovery Plan (SERRP).” 

 

The Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan “supports the concepts of the National Incident Management 

System (NIMS) and multi-hazard response planning. Arizona’s fire service conducts emergency 

operations planning at four (4) levels: Local, Tribal, County and State.12” 

 

Phoenix Fire Department Regional Dispatch Center (PFDRDC) will act as the Intermediary and 

facilitator for resource requests and deployment documentation until the Incident City’s and/or 

County’s EOC is activated and operational. Once the local EOC is operational, all requests for 

resources will be processed through the applicable EOC. 

 
Payson Interagency Dispatch Agreement 

The Payson Public Safety Dispatch Center provides dispatch services for the Payson Police 

Department, Payson Fire Department and the Hellsgate Fire District. In addition, the 

Communications Center handles 911 and public calls for assistance. 

 

                                                           
12 https://www.iafc.org/files/mtlAid_StatePlanAZ.pdf’s 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 53 | P a g e  

SECTION IV: NORTHERN GILA COUNTY CWPP 

PRIORITIES: RECOMMENDED ACTIONS AND 

IMPLEMENTATION  

The 2015 Review Team monitored changes in wildfire suppression policy on Federal lands where 

Federal policy allows the return of natural fire to areas where fuel conditions have returned to a 

more normal fuel condition. Human caused fires will continue to be suppressed at the lowest 

possible cost while natural occuring fires may be monitored and managed with the goal of 

returning public lands to historic conditions where possible. Factors such as fire weather 

conditions, topography, fuel conditions and other fire suppression activities will help determine 

the response and actions taken on wildland ignitions. 

The 2015 Review Team set a goal for the private lands in the CWPP planning area to have 

landowners meet the standards listed in the Firewise Communities Program. “The Firewise 

Communities/USA Recognition Program is a process that empowers neighbors to work together 

in reducing their wildfire risk… taking action and ownership in preparing and protecting their 

homes against the threat of wildfire.”13   The Arizona State Forestry Department administers the 

Firewise certification program. “The program encourages local solutions for wildfire safety by 

involving homeowners, community leaders, planners, developers, firefighters, and others.”  

The 2015 CWPP Review Team was tasked with reviewing the action recommendations developed 

by the “Core Team” during the Northern Gila County CWPP writing process in 2004 and 2006 

update. The 2004 Core Team created a series of action recommendations with three main 

priorities: identify priority treatment areas, reduce structural ignitability and finally, promote 

community involvement. During the review process, the Review Team analyzed treatment areas, 

utility projects designed to reduce the potential of ignition, community programs and community 

response changes made by fire districts/departments, activities of both governmental agencies 

and community groups.  

Fire Districts, Fire Departments, and government agencies have been addressing the WUI issues 

in the Northern Gila County CWPP planning area for approximately 11 years. During this time, 

grants have been used to purchase equipment, fund local fuels mitigation projects and meet 

matching fund requirements of federal grants. Federal funds have been used to complete 

environmental assessments and completion of fuels mitigation projects. State funds have been 

used to improve the safety of communities throughout the Rim Country. Continued federal, state 

and local partnerships will be critical in improving the safety of the Wildland Urban Interface 

communities.  

                                                           
13 http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 54 | P a g e  

Recommendations: 

 Create an accounting method of grant funds received. 

 Create a method of tracking fuels mitigation projects. 

 Seek opportunities for regional grant funding requests. 

 Provide digitized maps to the community illustrating fuels mitigation projects. 

Public Education and Communications 

Fire districts, fire departments, government agencies, and community groups are involved with 

presenting fire safe programs in the community. Many communities have adopted Firewise 

suggestions and have been certified as Firewise communities. One of the common factors seen 

with public awareness is fatigue, when memory of recent local fires diminishes, public awareness 

and focus on preventing wildfires and structural ignitions becomes less important in members 

daily lives. Providing a standard message to all communities involved would be invaluable. A 

message that combines the values of community life, property value, the importance of the 

ecosystem they live in and the need for fire safety will greatly increase the acceptance of the 

message. 

Recommendations: 

Communicate the CWPP report to all members of the community through the: 

 Continued use of home surveys with recommended mitigation measures. 

 Define levels of risk and hazards for community members and visitors. 

 Emphasize the value of fuel reduction programs. 

 Creation of fire suppression capabilities in all communities. 

 Value to the environment and wildlife in the use of prescribed fires and fuels 

management programs. 

 Use of Firewise and related educational materials to increase homeowner acceptance 

of homeowner preparedness. 

 Complete activation of community alert system. 

 Utilize community resources to communicate messages in day-to-day and emergency 

activities. 

 Create links to Arizona State Lands Department, Arizona Fish and Game Department, 

USDA Forest Service, Firewise, Gila County Office of Emergency Management, APS 

and SRP, Red Cross, and other relevant agency homepages. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 55 | P a g e  

Fire District/Department Response Functions 

The Fire Departments and Fire Districts within the Northern Gila County Community Wildfire 

Protection Plan coverage area are involved with wildfire suppression and provide automatic and 

mutual aid to neighboring districts/departments and the US Forest Service. The departments 

provide structural firefighting, EMS, rescue in addition to wildland firefighting. Personnel should 

be trained to meet the qualification as required by the Federal Interagency Fire Program 

Management (IFPM) and NWCG. 

Recommendations: 

Basic Level Training: 

 S-130/190 

 S-215 Fire in the Interface 

 I-200 Basic ICS 

Burn Boss: 

Having a qualified Burn Boss will address the need for local communities who are 

required to have a qualified Burn Boss for community projects that require burning. 

 Rx 319 

 Rx 341 

 Rx 410 

 RxB2 

Supervisory Training: 

 S-290 Intermediate Wildland Fire behavior 

 I-300 Intermediate ICS 

Specialized Training: 

 Firewise 

 Fire Prevention and Education 

 US Forest Service should continue to facilitate the training of local fire 

district/department members. Joint pre-planning and pre-season training should 

be held on weekends to facilitate attendance by volunteer firefighters. 

 Possible weekend prescribed fire events: 

o Increased opportunities for fire district/department participation in 

training  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 56 | P a g e  

o Require adherence to National Wildfire Coordinating Group (NWCG) 

standards 

o Encourage the use of task books to facilitate position certification, provide 

Training Tech/Specialist to increase opportunities 

o Expand firefighting opportunities to local firefighters beyond structural 

defense and protection activities 

Arizona State Forestry Training: 

 Develop relationship with State Forester, and acquaint Forester with community 

hazards and needs. 

 Improve local and state-wide funding for training 

 Improve access to State training classes 

Countywide Communications System 

Currently in the County, there are several communication centers providing emergency dispatch 

to local fire agencies. Agencies may be dispatched by the County Sheriff’s Office Communications 

Center, Payson Police and Fire Dispatch Center, and/or Globe Dispatch Center, while federal and 

State agencies utilize their own communications centers.  

Recommendations: 

Dispatching of emergency responders to emergencies should be accomplished so that all 

units respond to emergencies in the quickest and safest manner. The continued use and 

development of Regional Communications Centers will eliminate much of the delay and 

confusion caused by having more than one Communication Center involved with dispatching 

units to the same emergency call. 

Equipment 

Firefighters are equipped with specialized structural firefighting personal protective equipment 

(PPE) which is not functional in the wildland firefighting environment. Personnel must carry both 

structural and wildland PPE on their assigned apparatus so that they are wearing the safest and 

most appropriate PPE. 

Recommendations: 

1. All PPE must meet the specifications listed in NFPA® 1977, Standard on Protective 

Clothing and Equipment for Wildland Fire Fighting, 2011 Edition. The standard 

establishes requirements for protective clothing and equipment to protect against the 

adverse environmental effects encountered by personnel performing wildland 

firefighting operations. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 57 | P a g e  

 Equipment covered in the standard includes garments, helmets, gloves, 

footwear, goggles, chainsaw protection and load carrying equipment.  

 

2. Adoption of standardized hose and water supply fittings will enable the usage of 

equipment from all apparatus improving the safety of firefighters on the fireline. Hose 

and fittings that do not meet the adopted standards will need to purchase adapters 

which can be permanently placed on needed hose and appliances to meet national 

standards. Once standards are adopted and all fire districts/departments meet the 

standards, a Zone or Regional fire cache of standardized hose, appliances and 

equipment could be established at a central location. 

 Increases the opportunity to catch fires in the initial attack phase of 

operations. 

 Improves firefighter safety by decreasing time on the firelines where water is 

not available. 

Community Evacuation Management 

Many of the communities in the study area are at an increased risk due to the limited ingress and 

egress routes. There are several communities in the NGCCWPP area that have only one primary 

road in and out of the community. Other areas have roads with limited width and bridges with 

limited carrying capacity. With limited access, a critical delay in emergency vehicles making 

access to the community while members attempt to evacuate will delay resources entering and 

increasing the risk to community members and their homes.  

Fuels management projects along community roads may not be feasible due to limited easement 

right-of-way. Mowing of fuels along these critical roadways may be possible and provide an 

increased measure of safety.  

Community Staging Areas 

With limited means of access and egress to several communities, the location and use of 

Temporary Shelter Areas (TSA) should be considered. TSA are designed for the use of the public 

only and do not meet the requirements of Safety Zones which are required for firefighting 

personnel. These TSA are pre-designated community locations large enough to accommodate a 

number of citizens. Livestock should be moved to other pre-designated location such as rodeo 

arenas. Signs should be placed in the community directing community members and visitors to 

the TSA. Evacuation routes should be marked with standardized signs. Local fire 

districts/departments and land owners should meet and determine the most suitable location in 

their communities for TSA.  
  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 58 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Recommendations: 

 Signs and placards should be posted throughout the community 

making evacuation corridors and TSA locations. This will provide 

a constant message to community members and during an 

evacuation or sheltering emergency, reduce confusion. For 

visitors to Rim Country communities, signage and radio 

messages will provide a means of communicating lifesaving messages. 14 

 Signs should be mounted on non-flammable posts.  

 Fuels in sheltering locations should be maintained by mowing, plowing or other 

methods. 

Ready! Set! Go! 

Wildfire Education Campaign 
Ready! Set! Go! (RSG)15 is a public safety message designed to educate Gila County residents 

about the threat of wildfire.  The Ready Set Go public education program seeks to gain active 

public involvement in reducing life and property loss caused by wildfires.  This program is 

presented in three steps: 

           Ready!   Prepare yourself, your family and your property. 
           Set!   Monitor fire weather / Activity and prepare to evacuate. 
           Go!   Leave early when directed to by public safety officials. 

Ready:  

Begins with a house that firefighters can defend, Defensible Space, and a home or business that 

has been hardened to resist the ember wash that follows a wildfire. 

 Defensible space is an area provided around a home or other structure which provides 

firefighters with space or room to protect the structure from direct flame contact and 

reduces the potential of ember wash over the structure. 

 A hardened home is a structure where measures have been taken to reduce the impact of 

wildfire and blowing members. Measures such as covering gable vents, lowering roof 

ventilation opening to a minimum profile, enclosing soffits and in extreme cases, providing 

ember protection walls around a property. 

                                                           
14 Safety-signs.compliancesigns.com 
15 http://www.sbcfire.com/wp-content/uploads/2012/06/Ready_Set_Go.pdf 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 59 | P a g e  

 

Set: 

Requires homeowners to develop an evacuation plan, prepare the family for evacuation and 

understanding what to do when a fire approaches. 

Go Early: 

Making an evacuation kit helps prepare residents in leaving early. It helps identify key safety 

items including: 

 When to leave 

 Where to go 

 How to get there 

 What to take  

Shelter in Place 

Shelter in-place (SIP) means to remain inside a home, business, or other permanent building. 

Shelter in-place may be recommended when there is not enough time to evacuate. It is 

imperative that structures be mitigated to provide this option.  

Note: Shelter–In-Place is not a widely recommended strategy, however, a few communities may 

require Shelter-In-Place due to limited egress, location of fire and the fire situation may dictate 

consideration of SIP as a possible tactic. 

Recommendations: 

The following is suggested public education elements to be provided to all potential "shelter 

in-place" communities:  

• If you are outdoors, go inside immediately.  

• Bring pets inside if possible but do not risk your safety for your pets.  

• Turn on a local Emergency Alert System radio or television station for official 

information. 

• Close all windows, doors, and vents.  

• Turn off heaters, air conditioners, and exhaust fans.  

• Close as many internal doors as possible and move to the most central, windowless, 

above-ground room in the building. 

• Wet towels, plastic sheeting, or an airtight material can be used to seal gaps where 

smoke could enter the room.  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section IV: Recommended Actions and Implementation 60 | P a g e  

• Do not attempt to pick up children from school or day care until directed to do so. 

School officials plan to care for children in emergencies, and they may already be 

evacuated, or sheltered. (Before an emergency occurs, learn about emergency plans 

at schools or day care centers.)  

• Stay inside until officials say it is safe to leave. 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section V: Monitoring Plan  61 | P a g e  
 

SECTION V: NORTHERN GILA COUNTY CWPP 

MONITORING PLAN  

Public meetings and a public comment period were incorporated into the 2004 Rim County CWPP 

process to provide the opportunity for wide-spread participation and input. Comments and input 

were solicited from stakeholders. The final draft of the 2004 CWPP was formally adopted by the 

Core Team, comprised of representatives from the local fire districts/departments, Gila County, 

USDA Forest Service, Arizona State Forestry Department and several community groups. 

The HFRA requires adoption of a CWPP, as does the FEMA Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. With 

formal adoption of this plan by the 2004 Core Team, the Town of Payson and the communities 

of Northern Gila County were eligible for hazardous fuels and non-fuels mitigation funding that 

could assist with plan implementation. Furthermore, adoption of this plan highlighted the 

partnerships among fire stations, local government, community-based organizations, and public 

agencies. 

The success of any CWPP hinges on effective and long-term implementation of identified 

mitigation practices. It was recommended in the 2004 CWPP that the Core Team identify a Team 

to coordinate the recommendations of the CWPP. In 2006, a Review Team met and discussed the 

two-year implementation process of the CWPP. When the Review Team met in 2015, it was clear 

that a team would be needed to maintain accurate records of grant funding, projects, community 

changes and emergency resources. The magnitude of the wildfire risks and hazards facing 

Northern Gila County is significant and any effective reduction requires on-going commitment 

and collaboration to implement the treatments recommended in this CWPP. 

“Monitoring is an extremely difficult component of the CWPP process to maintain. It is crucial to 

determining which methods and initiatives are successful. For monitoring, a simple series of 

annual photographs from designated photo points may prove helpful. If larger treatments are 

undertaken, a more formal protocol of pretreatment and post-treatment measurements should 

be adopted. All projects should be recorded and records kept in a single designated location.16” 

In addition to coordinating the recommended actions in the CWPP, the involved stakeholders 

should coordinate the monitoring efforts to evaluate the efficacy of treatments. Specific 

monitoring duties can be delegated by the Review Team. The CWPP should be reexamined on an 

annual or regular basis to ensure its relevance. This may be accomplished through meetings 

which include the local fire districts/departments, governmental agencies, homeowner groups, 

and other stakeholders. 

                                                           
16 http://www.cityofgolden.net/media/pdf_719.pdf 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Section V: Monitoring Plan  62 | P a g e  

For the 2015 Northern Gila County CWPP, the Review Team agrees: 

 The following group(s) should maintain the document and record of projects and 

initiatives: Gila County Office of Emergency Management and the Northern Gila County 

Fire Chief Association. 

 The CWPP will be reviewed on an annual basis during the annual wildfire pre-season 

meeting held each year during the spring. 

 The Gila County Office of Emergency Management will facilitate a website based 

recording method for fire districts/departments and agencies. Each fire 

district/department or agency will record changes in items such as: 

o Staffing 

o Stations 

o Apparatus 

o Training 

o Grant funds applied for and obtained 

o Mitigation projects completed and treatment type/activities  

 Each fire district/department or agency will enter specific data on their own spreadsheet 

and at the designated meeting, discuss identified changes. 

 The Gila County Office of Emergency Management will collate the data and add as an 

addendum to the CWPP each year’s area-wide changes.  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX A: ACRONYMS 

Acronym Term 

4FRI 4 Forest Restoration Initiative 

AAR After Action Report 

ADOT Arizona Department of Transportation 

APS Arizona Public Services 

ARC American Red Cross 

ASFD Arizona State Forestry Division 

BIA Bureau of Indian Affairs 

BLM United States Bureau of Land Management 

CERT Community Emergency Response Team 

CKFD Christopher-Kohls Fire District 

CPR Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 

CWPP Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

DEMA (Arizona) Division of Emergency Management 

DPS (Arizona) Department of Safety 

EA Environmental Assessment 

EAS Emergency Alert System 

EIS Environmental Impact Statement 

EM Emergency Management 

EMS Emergency Medical Service 

EMT Emergency Management Training 

EOC Emergency Operations Center 

ESRI Environmental Systems Research Institute 

FD Fire District/Department 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FF Fire Fighter 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-2 | P a g e  

FMS Fire Mitigation Specialist  

FSMAP Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan 

GCOEM Gila County Office of Emergency Management 

GIO Air National Guard Geo Integration Office 

GIS Geographic Information System 

GPS Global Positioning System 

HFRA Healthy Forests Restoration Act 

ICS Incident Command System 

IFPM (Federal) Interagency Fire Program Management 

IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 

IMS Incident Management System 

IMT Incident Management Team 

IQS Incident Qualification System 

IRPG Incident Response Pocket Guide 

ISO Insurance Services Office 

IVM Integrated Vegetation Management 

LDS Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints 

MDC Mobile Data Computers 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NF National Forest 

NFCA Northern Fire Chiefs Association 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NFCA Northern Fire Chiefs Association 

NFPA National Fire Protection Association 

NGCC Northern Gila County Community Response Team 

NGCCWPP Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

NIMS National Incident Management System 

NPS U.S. National Park Service 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-3 | P a g e  

NWCG National Wildfire Coordinating Group 

PFD Payson Fire Department 

PFDRDC Phoenix Fire Department Regional Dispatch Center 

PPD Payson Police Department 

PPE Personal Protective Equipment 

PSFR Pine Strawberry Fuels Reduction 

PVFD Pleasant Valley Fire District 

RD (Payson) Ranger District 

RSG Ready! Set! Go! 

SAFER Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 

SARA Superfund Amendments Reauthorization Act 

SERRP State of Arizona Emergency Response and Recovery Plan 

SIP Shelter In Place 

SRP Salt River Project 

TNF Tonto National Forest 

TSA Temporary Shelter Area 

USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

USFS United States Forest Service 

VFA Volunteer Fire Assistance 

VHF Very High Frequency 

VLAT Very Large Air Tanker 

WFHF Wildland Fire Hazardous Fuels Grant 

WPFD Whispering Pines Fire District 

WUI Wildland Urban Interface 

 

  



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-4 | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix B: WUI “Watch-Outs!”  B-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX B: WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE 

“WATCH-OUTS!” 

Structure defense adds a whole new dimension to wildland firefighting. The Incident Response 

Pocket Guide (IRPG) provides an additional list of “Watch-outs!” designed specifically for the 

tactical challenges confronting firefighting personnel in the wildland urban interface (WUI). The 

WUI “Watch-outs!” include:  

 Poor roads  

 Bridge load limits  

 Wooden construction and wood shake roofs  

 Power lines  

 Propane tanks and HazMat threat  

 Inadequate water supply  

 Natural fuels within 30 ft. (9 m) or closer to structures  

 Structures in chimneys, box canyons, narrow canyons, or on steep slopes  

 Extreme fire behavior  

 Strong winds  

 Panic during an evacuation 17 

 

  

                                                           
17 http://training.nwcg.gov/classes/s130/508%20Files/071231_s130_m11_508.pdf 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Appendix B: WUI “Watch-Outs!”  B-2 | P a g e  

  

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix C: Agency Updates     C-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX C: AGENCY UPDATES 

As decided by the 2015 Northern Gila County CWPP Review Team, each participating Fire District/Department or Agency should 

maintain the following spreadsheet on a regular basis (recommended monthly).  At the annual CWPP review, each participating 

Department or Agency should provide the current spreadsheet to be included in the CWPP updates.  

District/Department/ 
Agency 

Month/Year Contact Information Training/Activity/ 
Qualifications  

Grants Staffing 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

(Continued) 

District/Department/ 
Agency 

Month/Year Apparatus Fuel Maintenance 
Projects  

Communications/ 
Dispatch 

Aid Agreements 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

 

 



 

Northern Gila County 
Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

 

Appendix C: Agency Updates     C-2 | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

LAST UPDATED: 

11/23/2015 



 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Plan Approval  i | P a g e  

PLAN APPROVAL 

The Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) of 2003 requires that the following entities must 

mutually agree to the final contents of a CWPP: the applicable local government (i.e., counties or 

cities); the local fire department(s); and the state entity responsible for forest management.  

The following entities have approved the 2015 Update to the Southern Gila County Community 

Wildfire Protection Plan:  

Agency Signature Date 

Arizona State Forestry Department   

United States Forest Service   

Globe Fire Department   

Tonto Basin Fire Department   

Tri-City Fire Department   

San Carlos Apache Fire Department   

 

Final Approval by:  

Agency Signature Date 

Gila County Office of Emergency 
Management  

  

Gila County Board of Supervisors   

 

 

 

 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Plan Approval  ii | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Table of Contents  iii | P a g e  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Plan Approval ................................................................................................................................... i 

Section I: Introduction .................................................................................................................... 1 

Section II: Community Assessment ................................................................................................. 9 

A. Canyon Fire Department ......................................................................................................... 10 

B. City of Globe and Globe Fire Department ............................................................................ 11 

C. Hayden Community and the Hayden Fire Department ...................................................... 13 

D. San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation and the San Carlos Apache Fire Department .... 14 

E. The Miami Fire Department ................................................................................................... 15 

F. American Red Cross, Northern Arizona Chapter ................................................................. 16 

G. Arizona Department of Transportation ................................................................................. 17 

H. Arizona Public Service (APS) ................................................................................................... 18 

I. Arizona State Forestry Department ....................................................................................... 19 

J. Community of Tonto Basin and the Tonto Basin Fire District ............................................ 20 

K. Community Emergency Response Team ............................................................................... 22 

L. Gila County Office of Emergency Management ................................................................... 23 

M. Gila County Public Works Division, Road Maintenance Department ............................... 26 

N. Gila County Sheriff’s Office-Globe ......................................................................................... 27 

O. Salt River Project ...................................................................................................................... 28 

P. Tri-City Fire District .................................................................................................................. 29 

Q. United States Forest Service (USFS): Tonto National Forest .............................................. 31 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan ........................................................................................ 38 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP Priorities: Action Recommendations and 

Implementation ............................................................................................................................ 43 

Section V: Monitoring Plan ........................................................................................................... 49 

Appendix A: Acronyms ................................................................................................................. A-1 

Appendix B: Wildland Urban interface “watch-outs!” ................................................................ B-1 

Appendix C: Agency updates ....................................................................................................... C-1 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Table of Contents  iv | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  1 | P a g e  

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION 

The Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) was originally developed 

in 2010 in response to the Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) of 2003 for at-risk cities and 

communities in Southern Gila County, Arizona. The Healthy Forests Restoration Act (HFRA) of 

2003 points to increased federal emphasis on reducing wildfire hazards on federal lands and 

promoting actions to protect Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) communities1. HFRA established 

incentives for communities to develop comprehensive wildfire protection plans in a 

collaborative, inclusive process. The HFRA legislation also directs the United States Forest Service 

(USFS) and Bureau of Land Management (BLM) to address local community priorities in fuel 

reduction treatments. The cities and communities in Southern Gila County are located around 

public lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM), Tonto National Forest 

(TNF), and National Park Service (NPS) Tonto National Monument.  

The HFRA requires federal agencies to collaborate with communities in developing hazardous 

fuel reduction projects and places a priority on treating areas covered by a CWPP.  Completing 

a CWPP required the development and agreement of local government, local fire departments, 

and districts, federal agencies, and the state agency responsible for forest management.  In 

Arizona, that state agency is the Arizona State Forestry Division (ASFD). For the initial 2010 CWPP 

to remain current, Gila County Department of Emergency Management (GCDHES) initiated a 

process of reviewing and updating the 2010 CWPP.  A “Review Team” of key stakeholders was 

engaged in the spring of 2015 to begin the review and update process.   

A. Background 

The 2010 Southern Gila County CWPP was developed by a “Core Team” of members of local fire 

departments and districts, local governmental agencies, BLM, TNF, NPS, ASFD and interested 

community members. The Gila County Department of Emergency Management (GCDHES) was 

designated the lead agency and was responsible for maintaining records and mitigation action 

results. The 2010 CWPP incorporated all at-risk communities in southern Gila County, and 

defined and located interface and intermix communities in the planning area.  

The primary objectives of the 2015 Update to the Southern Gila County CWPP are to: identify any 

at-risk communities or areas that were not identified in the initial Southern Gila County wildfire 

assessment, to document changes in community hazards and values at risk, and to recognize 

community activities related to reducing the threat of wildfire and efforts to improve public and 

firefighter safety. The CWPP review was completed by a “Review Team” with representatives 

from several of the Southern Gila County communities identified in the original CWPP. The 

                                                           
1 Terry Haines, Cheryl Renner, Margaret Reams, and James Granskog. The National Wildfire Mitigation Programs 
Database: State, County, and Local Efforts to Reduce Wildfire Risk.    



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  2 | P a g e  

“Review Team” also included representatives from local fire departments, government agencies 

and community groups including Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) 

The 2015 Review Team met and discussed the goals for fuels treatment projects, potential fire 

department and agency improvements, and community preparedness recommendations 

established in 2010.  Another critical element for the Review Team was to determine if the fuels 

treatment and readiness project priorities remained the same as when they were established in 

2010. 

The 2015 Review Team analyzed the reported wildfire ignitions in Southern Gila County and 

determined that there have been over 1028 reported wildfire ignitions in Southern Gila County 

CWPP area in the 5-year period following the completion of the Southern Gila County CWPP in 

2010. The majority of the ignitions have occurred along roadways and the WUI areas, and were 

human caused. The second leading source of ignitions is lightning. Major fires have been 

occurring throughout Arizona with increased frequency following a continual drought and 

wildland fuel buildup.  Major fires that have occurred in Arizona since the 2010 CWPP was 

written include the Schultz, Horseshoe 2, Monument, Wallow, Gladiator, and Yarnell Hill fires. All 

but the Yarnell Hill fire were human caused. The Wallow Fire in 2011 is the largest fire in Arizona 

history and burned over 538,000 acres. The Yarnell Hill Fire in 2013 took the lives of 19 firefighters 

and caused the loss of 129 homes and structures. The Yarnell Hill Fire was started by lightning.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  3 | P a g e  

Map 1. Southern Gila County Fires Since 2010 

Recent notable fires in Gila County include the Poco Fire in 2012 north of Young, the Mistake 

Peak fire in 2012, the Bull Flat Fire, and the Tanner Fire south of Young in 2011. One of the critical 

elements in firefighter safety that poses an extreme hazard to personnel is the exposure of the 

firefighters to extreme environmental conditions. Two firefighters were transported by 

helicopter suffering from heat exhaustion after working shifts on the Mistake Peak and 257 fires 

in Gila County. Forest Service personnel began focusing their efforts on reducing heat related 

injuries to firefighting personnel on fires occurring in the region, state and nationally. These 

efforts include recognizing the operational challenges of managing an Incident-Within-An-

Incident and the impacts on firefighter safety and operations.  

The map above was developed from Tonto Basin fire statistics and further demonstrates the high 

risk of fires along the Highway 188 corridor. Recognizing the danger, ongoing development of 

wildfire mitigation measures along the highway will continue to be a major area of emphasis for 

the Forest Service and Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  4 | P a g e  

Map 2.Large Scale Fires in Southern Gila County  

Table 1. Gila County Major Wildland Fires 

Incident Name Year Location Acreage 

Poco 2012 N. of Young 11,897 

Mistake Peak 2012 N. of Punkin Center 5,216 

Bull Flat 2012 N. of Young 1,573 

Tanner 2011 N. of Roosevelt Lake 5,455 

Frio 2011 S. Of Miami 3,965 

Source US Forest Service 

 

B. WUI Identification Process 

In 2009, the Arizona State Forestry Department under the direction of the Governor of Arizona, 

issued an Arizona-Identified Communities at Risk rating for nearly 200 communities located 

throughout the State. These communities were given WUI ratings, with 39 communities located 

in Gila County. The ratings were based on the following criteria: 

 Fire Behavior Potential,  

 Social, Cultural and Community Factors,  

 Fire Protection Capability 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  5 | P a g e  

Based on the three evaluation criteria, each community was given a Risk of Catastrophic Fire 

rating. The 2010 Core Team further evaluated communities in Southern Gila County and added 

an additional 8 communities that were at-risk of wildfire devastation to the Southern Gila County 

CWPP Communities At-Risk.  

The task of the 2015 Review Team required members to consider community safety needs along 

with the requirements of the HFRA including the fuels condition class, fire regime, resource 

management plans, and Federal Land exclusions, including Wilderness areas. The committee 

determined that no further areas or communities met the definitions of the HFRA. The Review 

Team did recommend moving the community of Young and the Pleasant Valley Fire department 

to the Northern Gila County CWPP planning area. The team also reviewed the Gila County CWPP’s 

compliance with State, BLM, TNF, NPS and tribal government objectives for the lands 

administered by each agency.  

 Table 2. Southern Gila County Communities at Risk 

Community WUI Risk Fire District/Department 

Claypool Moderate Tri-City Fire Department 

Cutter Moderate San Carlos Reservation Fire Department 

Dripping Springs Low None 

El Capitan High None 

Globe Moderate Globe Fire department 

Haigler Canyon Moderate None 

Hayden Low Hayden Fire Department 

Miami Moderate Miami Fire Department 

Nail Ranch Moderate None 

Rose Creek-YMCA High None 

San Carlos High San Carlos Reservation Fire Department 

Tonto Basin-Roosevelt Moderate Tonto Basin Fire Department 

Top of the World₁ High None 

Winkelman Moderate Winkelman Fire Department 
 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  6 | P a g e  

The 2015 Review Team monitored changes in wildfire 

suppression policy on Federal lands where Federal policy 

allows the return of natural fire to areas where fuel 

conditions have returned to a more normal fuel 

condition. Human caused fires will continue to be 

suppressed at the lowest possible cost while natural 

occurring fires may be monitored and managed with the 

goal of returning public lands to historic conditions where 

possible. Factors such as fire weather conditions, 

topography, fuel conditions and other fire suppression 

activities will help determine the response and actions taken on wildland ignitions. 

The 2015 Review Team set a goal for the private lands in the CWPP planning area to have 

landowners meet the standards listed in the Firewise Communities Program. “The Firewise 

Communities/USA Recognition Program is a process that empowers neighbors to work together 

in reducing their wildfire risk… taking action and ownership in preparing and protecting their 

homes against the threat of wildfire.2”  The Arizona State Forestry Department administers the 

Firewise certification program “The Firewise Communities approach emphasizes community 

responsibility for planning in the design of a safe community as well as effective emergency 

response, and individual responsibility for safer home construction and design, landscaping and 

maintenance.3” The Review Team was tasked with monitoring the approval process for obtaining 

Firewise status in the planning area.  

C. Goals of the Southern Gila CWPP 

The 2010 CWPP Core Team developed nine goals to assist in community and organizational 

planning. These goals were approved by the 2015 Review Team.  

 Improve fire prevention and suppression, emphasizing firefighter and public safety 

 Reduce hazardous fuels, emphasizing public and private property protection;  

 Restore forest, rangeland, and riparian health;  

 Promote community involvement and provide for community protection;  

 Recommend measures to reduce structural ignitability in the WUI;  

 Encourage economic development in the communities from vegetative treatments;  

                                                           
2 http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0 
3 Firewise Communities®- A Use Guide to the Firewise Community/USA Recognition Program 

http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0


    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  7 | P a g e  

 Encourage communities, subdivisions, and developments that are not within a fire district 

to either be annexed by an existing fire district or create their own district for enhanced 

wildland fire protection;  

 Use the CWPP in conjunction with surrounding community and agency fire management 

plans.4 

 Maintain qualification for grant funding.  

The 2015 Review Team consisted of members from federal and state agencies, local fire 

departments, utility providers and community groups so that all community interests were 

represented in the review of the 2010 CWPP.  Review Team members include the following fire 

departments and governmental agencies: Globe FD, Tri-City FD, Hayden FD, Miami FD, San Carlos 

Apache Fire Department, Gila County Department of Emergency Management, Arizona 

Department of Transportation, Arizona State Forestry Department, Arizona Department of Public 

Safety, the US Forest Service, Tonto NF, Gila County Sheriff’s Department and the Payson Police 

Department. 

Acknowledging the geographic size of the county and diversity in land and fuels, Gila County also 

maintains a “Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan” to address the specific 

fuels, landscape, and stakeholders in the northern area.  The Northern Gila County CWPP covers 

the area north of Hellsgate Wilderness to the Verde River, south of the Mogollon Rim and 

Coconino and Apache-Sitgreaves National Forests, and west of the Fort Apache Indian 

Reservation. The Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) covers the 

remainder of Gila County.  

Within the Southern Gila County CWPP area, the Tonto National Forest, Globe and Tonto Basin 

Ranger Districts provide fire suppression on the federal lands inside the forest boundaries. Forest 

fire suppression resources will also respond to areas where there is a potential for a fire to spread 

onto the National Forest. The Tonto NF also has personnel available to complete mitigation work 

on forest lands. 

  

                                                           
4 http://agenda.gilacountyaz.gov/docs/2012/WORKSESS/20120424_102/101_AGENDApacket.pdf; 

https://azsf.az.gov/grants/training-equipment/fepp  

 

http://agenda.gilacountyaz.gov/docs/2012/WORKSESS/20120424_102/101_AGENDApacket.pdf
https://azsf.az.gov/grants/training-equipment/fepp


    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section I: Introduction  8 | P a g e  

Map 3. Southern Gila County CWPP Boundary  

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  9 | P a g e  

SECTION II: COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT  

The 2015 update to the Southern Gila County CWPP reviewed changes made in the preceding 

five years in community values, local fire department and community preparedness, agency 

infrastructure, population trends and structure density. Another item reviewed was changes in 

Fire Insurance Services Office (ISO) ratings which is a countywide classification system used to 

reflect a community’s local fire protection agency’s ability to suppress fires.  

Each Fire Department/District and Agency is represented below in its own section.   

 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  10 | P a g e  

A. Canyon Fire Department 

The Canyon Fire Department as of July 2015 has completed a consolidation agreement with the 

Tri-City Fire Protection District. Information on Canyon FD will be included under the Tri-City FD 

resource heading, Section P. 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  11 | P a g e  

B. City of Globe and Globe Fire Department 

Globe, a city of approximately 7500 people located along the Historic Old West Highway, US 

Highway 60, serves as seat of Government for Gila County. The City is served by the Globe Fire 

Department which provides fire, EMS, and rescue services to the community. The Department 

operates from one fire station and has (19) career Firefighters and (20) reserve Firefighters. The 

administrative staff consists of the Fire Chief, a Deputy Fire Chief and three Captains. The Reserve 

Firefighter, when hired, must have or obtain Firefighter II and EMT certifications from the State 

of Arizona. The Globe Fire Department recently underwent an ISO re-evaluation and the 

Department’s rating was reduced from a 5 to a 4.  City of Globe Dispatch is handled through the 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office.   

The Globe Fire Department has currently available for emergency response one Type I Engine, 

one Type III Engine, one Type VI Engine and one Truck. All Globe firefighters must be IQS Red 

Carded Wildland Firefighters. Classwork including S-130, S-190, and Incident Management 

System (IMS) 100 must be completed prior to obtaining certification. Annually, all firefighting 

personnel must complete Refresher Training (RT) 130 each year which includes a minimum of 

eight hours of study. The Department has (3) firefighters Red Carded for Engine Boss. By 

maintaining their wildland qualifications, Globe FD is able to bill the Arizona State Land 

Department for fees associated with their response to incidents such as wildland fires, 

hurricanes, and floods. 

 

 

Globe Fire Department Type I Engine 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  12 | P a g e  

Fuel treatment projects completed in the Globe 

treatment areas identified in the 2010 CWPP include 

the Six Shooter Canyon and Pinal Creek drainage. 

Fuels treatments had been identified as G1, G2, and G3 in the 2010 CWPP. Hazardous fuels were 

removed along approximately eight miles of the creek drainage.  Along with debris removal, 

most of the work was located in area GP1, with some work in GP2 and GP3.   

The Globe FD is active in Public Education in the community. Their focus is on educating the 

community on programs such as fire extinguisher training and Youth Fire Setter Intervention. 

Programs are delivered by the Fire Marshall when requested. The Fire Marshal has an accelerant 

detecting dog which has been successfully used on several fire investigations. 

  

Globe Fire Department Type VI Engine 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  13 | P a g e  

C. Hayden Community and the Hayden Fire Department 

The Hayden Community and the Hayden Fire Department fall within the boundaries of the 

Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan, but the Hayden Fire Department did 

not provide information or participate in the 2015 CWPP Update. 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  14 | P a g e  

D. San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation and the San Carlos Apache Fire 

Department 

The community of San Carlos, the largest community on the San Carlos Reservation with nearly 

3700 people, serves as the seat of the Tribal Government. Located approximately 25 miles east 

of Globe, San Carlos is located on Arizona Highway 170. Fire and Emergency Medical Services are 

the responsibility of the San Carlos Apache Fire Department. Currently, the Department operates 

out of two fire stations each staffed with two firefighters who are also trained as Emergency 

Medical Technicians and Paramedics. Two new fire stations, one located in Bylas and the other 

near the Cutter Casino, are planned. Located in new Public Safety facilities, each will be staffed 

24 hours a day. Personnel will cover an engine and ambulance. Tribal Police and the Dispatch 

Center will also be located in one of the facilities.  

Apparatus includes (3) Type III Structural Engines, and (2) Type VI Engines. Current plans call for 

the addition of (1) Type II Urban Interface Engine with pump-and-roll capabilities for mobile 

attack of vegetation fires. Seven sets of new structural Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) were 

purchased and the Department will be addressing wildland PPE. The Insurance Services Office 

rating for the community is a 9. The Department is working with the four separate Tribal Water 

Districts on a hydrant location program to improve water delivery. 

Personnel have a varied amount of wildland experience; three firefighters are IQS Red Carded for 

wildland firefighting. Funding is limited at this time for increased wildland training. The 

Department is seeking grant funding to improve fire department operations. Mapping for the 

SCFD has been upgraded through the use of a GIS server. Several members of the Department 

have been trained on the Firewise program and plans are being developed for use on the 

Reservation. 

San Carlos Apache FD units are dispatched through a digital radio system. Current plans call for a 

911 system to be integrated with the dispatch functions. San Carlos Apache FD is also working on 

Mutual Aid agreements with the neighboring fire departments including Globe, Tri-City and 

Canyon. The primary shelter locations for the community have been established at the Apache 

Gold Casino for displaced members of the community. Emergency notifications to the community 

are made through the San Carlos Apache Police Department, apparatus PA systems and a local 

radio station. 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  15 | P a g e  

E. The Miami Fire Department 

The Miami FD currently has no qualified personnel and the Tri-City FD responds to calls in the 

community under a per-call fee basis. 

 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  16 | P a g e  

F. American Red Cross, Northern Arizona Chapter 

The American Red Cross Northern Arizona Chapter formerly known as the Grand Canyon Chapter 

serves approximately 76,000 square miles and 725,000 people throughout the Apache, Coconino, 

Gila, Mohave, Navajo, La Paz and Yavapai counties.  The American Red Cross (ARC or Red Cross) 

independently provides mass care to all disaster victims as part of the broad program of disaster 

relief, as outlined in the charter provisions enacted by the United States Congress Act of January 

5th, 1905 and the Disaster Relief Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-288 as amended by the Stafford Act of 

1988.) 

In partnership with Gila County agencies, the Northern Arizona Chapter’s initial response 

activities will focus on meeting the urgent needs of disaster victims i.e., providing emergency 

shelter. The provisions of the ARC disaster services will be considered based on the needs of 

disaster victims, the emergency/disaster situation, and available resources. Close coordination 

will be necessary between the ARC and local, state and federal government agencies.  

Another function of the Red Cross is to assist communities in preparation for natural and 

manmade disasters such as wildfires, floods, and earthquakes. The Red Cross also provides 

educational programs including the Home Fire Preparedness Campaign and Pillowcase Project 

which help community members before, during and after an emergency. 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  17 | P a g e  

G. Arizona Department of Transportation 

The Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) has an important role in fuel management 

activities along Highways 87 and 260. Current fire activity maps demonstrate the need for fuels 

work along these roadways. ADOT crews have been active mowing along the right-of-way on 

both highways. The map below clearly shows the fires starting along the two major highways 

bisecting Southern Gila County and the importance of roadway maintenance. On Highway 60, a 

20 foot clearance is being maintained on both sides of the roadway. On Highway 188, the goal is 

to maintain annually the sections where the majority of fires are starting. The route was mowed 

in 2014, but funding is not available for 2015 for the project. Spraying of roadside vegetation is 

coordinated with the Arizona Natural Resources Department. Spraying of roadside vegetation in 

2015 will be at a rate of 50% vegetation coverage rate along Highway 188 from Milepost 214 to 

Milepost 276. All project work is accomplished through the department’s annual budget. 

Map 4. Southern Gila County Fires since 2010 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  18 | P a g e  

H. Arizona Public Service (APS) 

Arizona Public Service (APS) is Arizona’s largest and longest-serving electric company, founded in 

1886, 5 years after Tombstone’s gunfight at the OK Corral and nearly a quarter-century before 

Arizona became a state. The goal of APS is to create affordable and reliable electricity for more 

than 1.1 million retail and residential customers in 11 of Arizona’s 15 counties. The corporate 

vision is to create a sustainable energy future for Arizona.  

APS has added the position of Fire Mitigation Specialist, who will be participating with 

departments and districts in creating a safe energy supply. The Fire Mitigation Specialist (FMS) 

will be the point of contact for incidents either weather related or fires, when APS infrastructure 

is involved or threatened.  The role of the FMS will be one of working with Incident 

Management Teams (IMT) to ensure the safety of personnel and resources on the ground with 

both clear and timely information and oversight. Coordinating with the IMT will ensure that APS 

resources are considered in the planning and operations phases of incidents.  

The FMS will also work on the pole clearing project which will require significant communication 

and coordination with State, Local, and Federal agencies. The FMS will be supporting the 

Integrated Vegetation Management (IVM) projects occurring throughout the State. A key 

function will be supporting ASF’s vegetation management efforts. Further cooperation with ASF 

and the USFS will include fire prevention activities as well as the possible use of prescribed fire 

to reduce fuel loading around company assets. 

APS is moving forward with an extensive pole clearing project in 2015 with the goal of clearing 

vegetation under approximately 75,000 poles on a three year cycle. On a yearly basis, APS will be 

clearing approximately 30,000 poles per year. APS is also researching the possibility of purchasing 

equipment that could be used to pre-treat poles in advance of a fire.  

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  19 | P a g e  

I. Arizona State Forestry Department 

The Arizona State Forestry Department (ASFD) provides resources for the prevention and 

suppression of wildland fires on over 22 million acres of State Trust Lands and private property 

located outside incorporated communities. ASFD provides services for fire prevention, urban and 

community forestry, forest stewardship, forest health and has a wide variety of grants available.5 

Fire prevention efforts include helping communities learn about Firewise activities and youth 

education. ASFD encourages and supports the development and adoption of Firewise community 

standards. ASFD also hosts a two-day class on home safety assessments. Other fire prevention 

activities include granting funds to communities to reduce the hazardous fuels within and around 

communities and private lands and on State Trust Lands.  

 The State Forestry Department acquires used fire apparatus and equipment, refurbishes 

the equipment, and then transfers the title to rural fire departments. 

 The Forest Stewardship program offers forest land owners guidance and assistance with 

management plans. 

The ASFD also provides grant opportunities to help communities reduce hazardous fuels, and to 

acquire apparatus and supplies for firefighters including wildland personal protective equipment 

(PPE). The grant focus is on opportunities for cost share with urban communities. A high priority 

for grant funding includes the community adoption of Firewise standards and on projects that 

are “Community” focused rather than on individual projects that stand alone.  Due to the 

continued drought, reduced snowfall, and warmer than usual spring conditions in 2015, an 

increase in ignitions is again predicted. For 2015, State Forestry crews will possibly be located 

within Gila County for fuel mitigation activities. 

                                                           
5 https://Azsf.az.gov 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  20 | P a g e  

J. Community of Tonto Basin and the Tonto Basin Fire District 

Tonto Basin is a census-designated location in 

Central Gila County. According to the 2000 

census, the population was 4000 residents. 

Within the Tonto Basin is the community of 

Punkin Center. The Tonto Basin covers the 

main drainage of Tonto Creek on the 

Southwest end of the Mogollon Rim. The 

creek and its tributaries flow through 

Hellsgate Wilderness area and eventually into 

the Salt River at the Reservoir Lake. Should 

Tonto Creek flood, the east side of the fire 

district will be isolated with no road access. In 

good weather, helicopters may be used for emergency transport of medical emergencies. In poor 

weather, a boat must be taken across the lake. Arizona Highway 188 traverses the lower end of 

the Basin with State Route 87 and proceeds to Payson. 

Tonto Basin Fire District 

The Tonto Basin Fire District (TBFD) covers nearly 85 square miles and includes the communities 

of Tonto Basin, Roosevelt and Jakes Corner. TBFD also provides fire protection by contract to the 

to the 11 megawatt generator at Roosevelt Dam owned by SRP. The department was established 

in 1989 and provides emergency services from four fire stations. Station 1 in Punkin Center and 

Station 6 in Roosevelt are staffed with full-time firefighters from 0700 until 1800. Station 2 on 

the east side of Tonto Creek and Station 5 in Jake’s Creek are covered by volunteer personnel 

only. The department employs 8 Full-time personnel, four Firefighters are Paramedics and four 

Firefighters are EMTs. Department staffing also includes 18 Reserve Firefighters. Approximately 

82% of emergency calls involved medical emergencies. Recent response history shows three 

drowning’s in the District. Medical transport fees supplement the Fire Department’s budget. 

Emergency dispatch is provided by the Gila County Sheriff’s Office in Payson.  

Fire Apparatus acquired by the District includes three Type I engines, one Pumper/Tender with 

3,500 gallon tank and a 1,000 gallon per minute pump, two Type III engines located at Stations 2 

and 5, three Support Water Tenders located at Stations 1, 5, and 6, and two Type VI engines 

located at Stations 1 and 6. A first alarm response in the District includes one Engine, one Water 

Tender and a staff officer. The Forest Service and State Forestry are notified of any fires in the 

District and respond when units are available. 

Water supply in the District is limited to several fire hydrants in the community of Punkin Center. 

Other areas require water shuttle operations using water tenders. The County Road Department 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  21 | P a g e  

has placed a 10,000 gallon water bladder next to Fire Station 6. Fire Station 1 is located on School 

District property. 

Several firefighters are FF2 qualified, one firefighter is FF1 qualified and is working on an Engine 

Boss task book. District training includes Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation, First Aid, Emergency 

Driving and firefighting. The District just completed the purchase of new SCBA, a new air 

compressor and cascade air system with funds in excess of 220,000 from a FEMA grant. Previous 

grants have included grant funding through the Volunteer Fire Assistance program and the US 

Forest Service. Several of the grants have required 50/50 matching community funds with the 

federal dollars granted to the District. 

Public education opportunities are very limited in the three communities. There is no daily local 

newspaper, no local radio station, and cell phone service is very limited. A weekly newspaper is 

available in the community. The only meeting location in the District is at the small elementary 

school. With such limited communication opportunities, the possibility of establishing a Firewise 

community is very unlikely. Several homeowners have maintained the property in a safe 

condition while others have not provided for a defensible space around their home.   



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  22 | P a g e  

K. Community Emergency Response Team 

The Southern Gila County area is developing a Community Emergency Response Team (CERT). 

The organization currently has three certified members and is actively soliciting interest from 

community members. The mission of CERT is to put together a community outreach program to 

increase public awareness of wildfire preparedness for the local community. CERT will be able to 

assist local agencies in communicating important messages and during emergencies, help the 

agencies in support roles. 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  23 | P a g e  

L. Gila County Office of Emergency Management  

The Gila County Office of Emergency Management (GCOEM) 

centralizes the direction and control of the planning, coordination 

and management of disaster preparedness, mitigation, response 

and recovery. According to SARA (Superfund Amendments 

Reauthorization Act) Title II, emergency management agencies 

must develop emergency response plans for hazardous materials 

incidents. These requirements led the EM agencies to create 

response plans that deal with any type of emergency that might 

occur within their planning area. The GCOEM has developed or is 

the process of developing emergency response plans for activities including wildfires, floods, and 

hazardous materials spills. The goal of all response plans is to minimize the risk to the public.  

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) defines hazard mitigation as, “any 

sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from natural 

hazards.” Another way to understand hazard mitigation is as the prevention component of the 

emergency management process. 

 Preparedness activities are the emergency plans, training, drills, and exercises that 

individuals, communities and first responders participate in on almost daily basis. These 

are things done to get ready for an emergency or disaster before it happens. 

 Response is the short-term, emergency actions taken to address the immediate impacts 

of a hazard. 

 Recovery is the longer-term process of restoring the community back to normal or pre-

disaster conditions. 

 Mitigation activities are actions that will prevent or eliminate losses, even if an incident 

does occur. Mitigation can reduce or eliminate the need for an emergency response and 

greatly reduce the recovery period. 

The role of the GCOEM is to: 

 Act as the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) coordinator 

 Develop, review and update Emergency Response Plans 

 Serve as a Communications Specialist during EOC operations 

 

 

EOC Activation 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  24 | P a g e  

The Gila County Emergency Operations Center is activated based on information supplied to the 

Department of Emergency Management by Incident Commanders in the field. At the same time, 

information will be collected by emergency dispatch centers and relayed to the Emergency 

Management Office. The Director of Emergency Management will then determine the need to 

open the EOC based on the complexity and needs of field personnel. 

The role of the County EOC will be one of facilitating the orders from Incident Commanders. 

During an EOC activation, using the Web EOC platform, orders will be filled first from resources 

available from within the County. Neighboring Counties will be able to view the Web EOC event 

and the State will be notified. If the County is unable to fill a request from field personnel, 

neighboring Counties will be contacted. If orders are still unfilled from the neighboring Counties, 

the State will then attempt to fill orders from the field personnel.  

 

 

Other roles filled by the Office of Emergency Management include: 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  25 | P a g e  

 Serving as the Training Coordinator for First responders in the county. 

 Developing and maintaining the Emergency Alert System (EAS), coordinating and 

monitoring countywide radio frequencies used for the EAS.  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  26 | P a g e  

M. Gila County Public Works Division, Road Maintenance Department 

The Gila County Public Works Division Road Maintenance Department is responsible for the 

improvement and maintenance of the County Maintained Road System. The Department’s 

primary goal is to provide a safe and accessible road system to move citizens and commodities 

around the county. The Department assists other agencies in responding to emergencies such as 

vegetation fires. The Road Maintenance Department maintains seven water tenders available for 

emergency water supplies during initial attack operations. The water tenders are also used to fill 

and maintain the water bladders placed throughout the county which are designated for 

emergency use only.   



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  27 | P a g e  

N. Gila County Sheriff’s Office-Globe 

The Gila County Sheriff’s Office supports programs and partnerships that assist the community 

and add to the security, as well as the enjoyment, of living in Gila County. The Sheriff’s Office 

monitors road conditions and is responsible for community evacuations during wildfires. The Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office of Volunteer Organizations may be utilized to assist in situations such as 

road closures during wildfires. The Sheriff’s Office maintains an up-to-date list of evacuations 

routes throughout the County. Currently, no changes in evacuation routes are planned.   

Volunteer Groups in the Gila County Sheriff’s Office 

 Gila County Sheriff’s Posse 

 Gila County Sheriff’s Search and Rescue 

 Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  28 | P a g e  

O. Salt River Project 

The Salt River Project (SRP) is the oldest multipurpose federal reclamation project in the United 

States, serving central Arizona since 1903. SRP is one of the nation's largest public power utilities, 

providing electricity and water to more than 2 million people in Central Arizona. The goal of SRP 

is to: “Develop working relationships with local residents, organizations and community leaders 

which helps SRP provide the infrastructure needed to meet service area power and water needs.6 

SRP infrastructure in Gila County consists mainly of high-voltage transmission lines including 

500kV, 230kV and 115kV lines. Each power line siting corridor is maintained for fire safety with 

various fuel modification work as required. 

The SRP has begun to recognize the need for a fuels modification program, especially around the 

C.C. Cragin Reservoir, to maintain a healthy forest which provides for clean water and a sustained 

source for electrical power generation. Since 2002, more than a quarter of SRP's watershed was 

burned by megafires such as the Rodeo-Chediski and Wallow fires. 

 

 

  

                                                           
6 http://www.srpnet.com/menu/About/environment.aspx 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  29 | P a g e  

P. Tri-City Fire District 

The Tri-City Fire District provides fire protection to the communities of Central Heights, Claypool, 

and Wheatfields. The District also provides administrative support for the former Canyon Fire 

Protection District as of July, 2015 through a consolidation agreement.  Tri-City serves over 

10,000 people living in an area of approximately 20 square miles and serves additional 

communities of Si-Shooter Canyon, Ice Horse Canyon and Keller. The District also provides 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to the communities and most of the Southern Gila County 

area covering over 800 square miles. Tri-City Fire District is comprised of four stations.  Station 

1 is staffed by seven full-time fire fighters.  Station 2 is the administration facility and covered 

by volunteer personnel. Station 3 is a fully volunteer site, and currently under construction. Four 

personnel work during the day and are available for emergency call-back. Station 4 is staffed with 

five personnel. 

The Tri-City Fire District was the recipient of a 2009 Department of Homeland Security Grant for 

the purchase of two mobile fire-training structures. The two units allow for live structural fire 

training, SCBA crawl through, confined space, and high angle rescue training. A 12,000 gallon 

water tank was purchased, along with (2) diesel fire pumps donated by the Town of Payson Fire 

Department. The training center will allow fire fighters from the local community fire 

departments many training opportunities. The District’s goal is to be able to bring in fire 

departments from around the state for training.  

In 2015, approximately 60-70 firefighters received their annual Wildland Firefighter Refresher 

Training which is required for personnel to respond to vegetation fires. Participating agencies 

included personnel from the Tri-City and Globe Fire Departments, the US Forest Service and the  

Arizona State Forestry Department. The District management staff is also fully qualified through 

IQS, NWCG and the Arizona State SOG 804. Red Card certifications are monitored and approved 

by the State Red Card Committee. All members are at a minimum FF-2 qualified. One firefighter 

is Operations Section Chief qualified, one is ICT IV and one is ICT III qualified. The department 

also has one Strike Team Engine qualified firefighter, two Dozer Boss Trainees, two are Engine 

Boss qualified and five are Engine Boss Trainees. 

The Tri-City Fire District purchased a new ambulance in 2013 with the goal of four new 

ambulances to modernize the fleet. A new Type III engine was delivered in the fall of 2010. The 

department has 3-Type I Engines, 2-Type III Engines, 3-Type IV Engines, 1-Tactical Water Tender 

and 1 Support Water Tender along with a total of four ambulances. 

The Tri-City Fire District received a State Forestry Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) grant in 2014 

to purchase sprinkler kits which may be placed in an interface trailer. Along with pumps, pump 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  30 | P a g e  

kits, hose and Fold-A-Tanks, these kits will be made available to communities threatened by 

wildfire. 

 

 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  31 | P a g e  

Q. United States Forest Service (USFS): Tonto National Forest 

The U.S. Forest Service was a founding member during the writing of the Southern Gila County 

CWPP in 2010 and continued participation throughout the development and review of the 

Southern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan in 2015. The mission of the Forest 

Service has been to provide strong leadership in the management of diverse ecosystems and 

heritage resources. With over 90% of all lands in Gila County administered by the Forest Service 

and other federal agencies and a directive to maintain and restore social, economic and 

ecological resources, Forest Service personnel coordinate their efforts with the local fire 

departments and agencies.     

The Forest Service focuses on forming lasting partnerships with local agencies, communities and 

organizations. In order to be responsive to these community members, personnel have 

developed an integrated approach to restoring watersheds for economic and ecological health 

and improved water quality.  

Forest Updates 

The Tonto National Forest (TNF), the 5th largest urban forest, encompasses nearly three million 

acres of land. Forest boundaries are Phoenix to the south, the Mogollon Rim to the north, and 

the San Carlos and Fort Apache Indian reservations to the east. Eight wilderness areas are 

managed within the forest. Portions of the Verde River have been designated by Congress as a 

Wild and Scenic River Area. The Tonto National Forest was initially established to protect the 

watershed around six reservoirs. Currently, a small amount of timber production along with 

cattle grazing and mining are the primary resource management activities.  

The critical fire season on the TNF usually ranges from May through mid-July. Human-caused and 

lightning are the primary causes of over 330 wildfires a year. The Forest Service currently has (15) 

engines covering the Tonto NF, (7) are Type III and (8) are Type VI. Additional staffing includes a 

Type III helicopter during the fire season May 1 to the middle of August. Three Interagency 

Hotshot Crews are also hosted on the forest at Payson, Mesa, and Globe. Fire management 

staffing includes (4) Division Chiefs, (6) Suppression Battalion Chiefs, and (1) Fuels Battalion Chief.  

All firefighting personnel must meet the 1995 Federal Interagency Fire Program Management 

(IFPM) Qualifications. These changes were required following the South Canyon Fire in Colorado 

in 1994 where 14 wildland firefighters were killed. Under the 1995 Federal Wildland Fire Policy 

and Program Review, all “Federal wildland fire agencies to establish fire management 

qualifications standards to improve firefighter safety and increase professionalism in fire 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  32 | P a g e  

management programs.7” Local agency personnel who respond to incidents on forest lands must 

also meet the requirements of IFPM.  

Tonto NF has updated personnel and equipment within the past five years with the goal of 

improving firefighter safety. Examples of equipment Improvements include: the replacement of 

old fire shelters with the New Generation model, upgrading portable radios with new Bendix-

King VHF radios which have been provided to all fire crew members since 2010, and the addition 

of two Global Positioning System (GPS) units that have been placed on all apparatus. 

Regional improvements in fire suppression capabilities include the opening of the Phoenix 

Interagency Dispatch Center, located at the Mesa Gateway Airport. The new dispatch center has 

assumed the dispatching responsibilities for the Tonto NF along with the Bureau of Land 

Management, Pima Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) and San Carlos BIA.  A training and 

mobilization facility has been built at the Mesa facility to improve regional training of firefighters. 

The airport also hosts an air tanker reloading facility capable of loading the DC-10, a Very Large 

Air Tanker (VLAT) which was designed to deliver up to 11,600 gallons of fire retardant. The Mesa 

facility is also capable of loading an additional 5 air tankers at the same time. 

Forest Service Grant Requirements 

All local government projects that receive grant funding must have met National Environmental 

Policy Act (NEPA) requirements. Proper documents must be in place prior to funding with clear 

boundary markers in place. Projects must also have an archeological survey completed and 

cleared for work to begin. Local communities must have a CWPP in place if treatments are 

proposed next to private lands in conjunction with private lands treatments. Grant funding has 

been reduced at the federal level 10% within the past several years due to federal budget cuts. 

Tonto Basin Ranger District 

The Tonto Basin Ranger District (RD) covers approximately 530,000 acres of National Forest lands. 

These lands surround several communities listed in the 2010 CWPP as either at a high or 

moderate risk of catastrophic wildland fire (ASFD, 2009). Other High Value Community resources 

include communications towers on Mt. Ord and a 345 kV power line owned by Arizona Public 

Service (APS) that runs through the highway 188/87 corridor. The Salt River Project (SRP) also 

owns a powerline that runs from Roosevelt Dam heading southeast along Highway 188 into 

Globe. Twin 500 kV lines owned by APS and SRP power companies cross into Pleasant Valley, 

through Globe and the Tonto Basin District into the Valley. Roosevelt Lake and Apache Lake are 

popular recreational destinations. 

The District staffs (1) Type III engine and (2) Type VI engines. Management staffing includes a 

combination of full time and seasonal firefighters. One Division Chief and two Battalion Chiefs 

                                                           
7 http://www.ifpm.nifc.gov/fire/firemanagement.htm 

http://www.ifpm.nifc.gov/fire/firemanagement.htm


    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  33 | P a g e  

serve the Central Zone of the Tonto NF which includes both the Tonto RD and the Globe RD. 

There are three International Hotshot Crews on the TNF, the nearest is stationed on the Globe 

RD. All personnel are equipped with full wildland PPE and radios. Future equipment purchases 

will include iPads for all company officers. Current radio frequencies are changing as the Federal 

Communication Commission reconfigures radio frequencies throughout the country. This change 

will affect the availability of Command and Tactical frequencies used on emergencies. The Tonto 

Basin District also requests “Severity Funding” from the Regional Office when high fire danger 

occurs to increase staffing hours and resources. Once the fuels, weather conditions, and fire 

activity increases, firefighters from other National Forests within the Region are assigned to the 

Tonto NF. An important element in the increased staffing levels is the addition of Fire Prevention 

Officers, who patrol campsites and check for compliance with fire restrictions. The Patrol unit 

also covers the Globe RD.   

The Tonto Basin RD is providing training opportunities with the Tonto Basin Fire Department. 

They have successfully completed Wildland Firefighter Refresher Training (RT-130) and (RT-212) 

in 2015 together. They have also offered the pack test to the Tonto Basin FD. District personnel 

also inform fire department personnel of future training classes being held locally.  A major 

project under development is the co-location of the Tonto Basin FD station to Forest Service 

Facilities. A change in community infrastructure will require the fire department to move from 

their current location and the co-location will provide benefits to both organizations and the 

community. 

The District maintains two green waste disposal sites for wildfire prevention and community 

clearance. One site is located at the junction of Highway 188 and the 83 Road. The second site is 

across from the Transfer Station in Punkin Center. Forest personnel plan on improving the Punkin 

Center site so it will be able to handle more material. 

The District is very active in the community presenting Firewise programs and information to the 

public. Three demonstration fuel reduction projects involving pruning and fuel reduction 

techniques described in Firewise brochures were completed adjacent to private properties. 

Personnel are working on communicating the changing message concerning controlled burns. 

The concept of allowing naturally occurring fires to progress without direct suppression when 

conditions allow is new to community members who have grown up with the traditional message 

of total fire suppression.  

 

 

Map 5. Mt. Ord Treatment Area 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  34 | P a g e  

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  35 | P a g e  

An important program for the Tonto Basin District is fuels management. During the winter of 

2013, a major fuels treatment project on Mount Ord was completed. The goal was to reduce the 

fuel loading and lesson the potential of a catastrophic wildfire by burning brush. As part of a 

forest health maintenace program, prescribed burning will restore the forest to a more natural 

fire regime. A total of 1100 acres was burned to provide a buffer around a major communication 

facility on the mountain. A multi-layered approach was taken with the goal of removing 50-70 

percent of the chaparral in concentric rings on top of the mountain. The fuels consisted of 

ponderosa pine and brush.  District personnel have planned on a fuels treatment in the Picture 

Mountain Area, eight miles northeast of Punkin Center. The project consists of 2000 acres for 

fuels treatment.  

The next major fuels modification project, The Maverick Project, will consist of over 7,600 acres. 

Located north of the Tonto Basin and south of Pleasant Valley, the project will consist of mostly 

grass, juniper, and chaparral. In the higher elevations of the project, there are Ponderosa Pine 

stands that will also be treated. The goal of the project is to reduce the fuel loading and lesson 

the chance of a catastrophic wildfire. The project will improve animal habitat and forage for 

wildlife. The Maverick Project will also help to maintain and improve watershed conditions in the 

area. 

Map 6. Maverick Project Vicinity Map 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  36 | P a g e  

Map 7. Maverick Project Boundary 

 

Globe Ranger District 

The Globe Ranger District (RD) covers nearly 450,000 acreas of National Forest lands in Southern 

Gila County. The cities, towns, and communities of Southern Gila County are nearly surrounded 

by federal lands including the National Forest and the San Carlos Reservation to the east. Several 

of the communities are rated as having a high risk of catastrophic wildfire, either from fires 

moving into the interface, or structure fires spreading into the forest lands.   

The Globe RD supports (1) Hotshot Crew, the Globe 

Interagency Hotshot Crew, (1) Type III Engine, and (1) 

Type VI Engine. The District has a working mutual aid 

agreement with the Globe, Canyon, Tri-City, and 

Superior Fire Departments. Two Suppression Batallion 

Chief positions are  shared with the Tonto RD as part 

of the Central Zone. 

Recreation and mining are the principle activities on 

the District. There is a heavy use of camping facilities in 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section II: Community Assessment  37 | P a g e  

the summer causing a major population increase. Fire Prevention Officers routinely provide One-

Less-Spark and other fire prevention messages to visitors and residents during contact 

opportunities. The District is also involved with State Forestry at the District level with the 

Firewise Progam in the Top Of The World Community. Other assets located on the District include 

major power transmission lines belonging to APS and SRP power companies. 

 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan  38 | P a g e  

SECTION III: COMMUNITY MITIGATION PLAN 

The 2010 South Gila County CWPP outlined treatment management units in the communities 

covered by the SGCCWPP. The Core Team proposed priorities for wildland fire mitigation projects 

including residential treatments, firebreaks and fuel mitigation treatments on undeveloped lands 

based on wildland fuels, fire history and community values. One of the primary goals of the 2010 

CWPP was to complete continuous treatments as a means of providing greater protection from 

wildfires for entire communities. 

The definition of mitigation used by the 2015 Review Team was adopted from a Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) publication. “The purpose of mitigation planning is to 

identify policies and actions that can be implemented over the long term to reduce risk and future 

losses. A Mitigation Plan forms the foundation for a community's long-term strategy to reduce 

disaster losses and break the cycle of disaster damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. 

The planning process is as important as the plan itself. It creates a framework for risk-based 

decision making to reduce damages to lives, property, and the economy from future disasters.8”   

A current definition used defines wildfire mitigation as Actions taken to reduce the likelihood of 

loss due to wildfire. The Core Team, understanding the importance of mitigation, developed 

approaches that included methods such as: reducing hazardous fuels, creating defensible space 

around individual homes and subdivisions, enhancing emergency preparedness and response 

capabilities, upgrading current infrastructure, and applying programs that foster community 

awareness and neighborhood activism.  Implementing these actions will significantly reduce 

the risk of loss due to wildfire to an individual home, and on a larger implementation scale, to an 

entire community. The task of the Review Team was to review fuels treatment programs, 

prevention and loss mitigation efforts, community preparedness activities and programs 

developed to utilize woody material produced by the fuels treatment programs. The Review 

Team also reviewed fire activity in the planning area to ensure that the majority of wildfires were 

within identified planning areas.  

A. Fuel Reduction Activities and Priorities 

A primary goal of the Review Team was to document completed fuels treatment programs and 

determine areas needing further work to complete continuous boundaries around communities. 

Members of the Review Team reported on fuels mitigation projects completed in their 

jurisdiction since the CWPP was adopted in 2010.  

 

                                                           
8 https://www.fema.gov/multi-hazard-mitigation-planning   



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan  39 | P a g e  

Completed Forest Service, Agency and Community Mitigation Projects 

Agency Location Activity Work Type Scope 

Tonto NF Mt. Ord Burning 
Reduce Fuel 

Loading 
1,579 acres 

Tonto NF Maverick Project Treatment Fuels Reduction 7,600 acres 

Tonto NF 4FRI Thinning   

APS Area wide 
Pole 

Replacement 

Wood to Steel 
Pole 

Replacement 
 

APS Area wide 
Fuels 

Maintenance 

Vegetation 
Clearing 

underneath 
poles 

5,000 poles for 
2015, 30,000 

annually 

T.N.F., Tri-City, 
ASFD 

CP1, Canyons 
Riparian Habitat 

Treatment 
 3,000 acres 

Tonto NF Hobbs 1 Fuels Reduction 
Treatment 

Burning 
2,500 acres 

Tonto NF Pinal Mountain 
Fuel Break 

Const/Maint 
Burning, Fuels 

Reduction 
600 acres 

Globe G1 
Fuels 

Maintenance 

Creek Basin Fuel 
& Debris 
Removal 

8 Miles of Creek 
Drainage 

 

Fuels Reduction Projects in the Planning Stage 

The Tonto National Forest has completed the environmental analysis work on several treatment 

areas. The majority of the projects are in the Northern Gila County CWPP area, but the Maverick 

project will have a major impact on reducing the threat of a major wildfire on the southern 

planning area. APS is beginning the planning stages of an area-wide pole clearing project 

designed to reduce the fuels under power pole right-of-way. In additon, APS will be removing 

wood poles and replacing them with steel poles as replacement is required.  

One of the key elements in fuels treatment programs is maintaining the work that has been 

accomplished. The Review Team will determine a maintenance schedule for treated areas and 

possible treatment methods. Based on Code 550 of the National Conservancy Practice Standards, 

mitigation maintenance on fuelbreaks should be on a 2-to-3 year basis or as deemed necessary 

to ensure the fuelbreaks will provide the safety anticipated when originally constructed. The cost 

per acre to maintain a recently treated fuelbreak is considerable less than the original treatment 

cost per acre. If no maintenace work is completed, fuels will eventually return to their previous 

condition, increasing the risk of catastrophic wildfires. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan  40 | P a g e  

Future Mitigation Projects 

Agency Location Activity Scope 

Tonto NF, Private 
Land Owners, Mining 

Companies 
Wheatfields 

Fuels Burning, Brush 
Removal 

1,000 acres 

Tonto NF, Tri-City FD Canyons 
Brush Removal, 

Burning 
1,000 acres 

Tonto Basin Fire 
District 

Tonto Basin Private 
Land 

Defensible space 
Activities 

Districtwide 

 

B. Prevention and Loss Mitigation 

The Southern Gila County CWPP will continue to be used as a model for preventing future 

catastrophic wildfires. Interagency coordination is essential and the SGCCWPP will provide 

guidance in improving the safety of the at-risk communities in the planning area. The Core Team 

developed several goals for wildland fire prevention and fire-loss mitigation. The review team 

made the following recommendations based on the initial goals set in 2010: 

 Continue to improve fire suppression capabilities, including training, apparatus and 

equipment, and emergency response plans 

 Improve area-wide communications including dispatching of units, radio 

communications, cell-phone coverage, and the use of mobile repeaters 

 Continue to promote community collaberation, involvement in individual and community 

fuels reduction projects 

 Preserve the aesthetics of the interface areas while improving wildlife habitat 

 Identifying funding needs and opportunities, attempt regional approaches to grant 

funding requests where feasible 

 Continue to inform the community on the safest means of protecting property from the 

effects of wildfire 

Many of the fire departments and fire districts have been able to increase staffing levels, improve 

training and PPE wh, and decreasing response times through department mergers and the 

development of automatic and mutual aid agreements. Continued monitoring fire department 

capabilities will enhance community safety. Regional training opportunities will provide an 

increased level of training at a significant cost savings. Regional training also provides the benefit 

of personnel becoming acquanted with different agency equipment and procedures. Other fire 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan  41 | P a g e  

department activities include the use of GIS for mapping, water source siting and safety zone 

locations. An improtant function wil be maintaining an strong community education program. 

The Southern CWPP planning area has limited means of communication is several areas. The 

development and improvement of regional communication methods will increase community 

and firefighter safety. Regional communcation agreements will reduce cost of dispatching 

emergency units, reduce respose times, and improve scene communications. Using a regional 

approach may improve the potential for grant funding success.  

The 2010 Core Team adopted the standards listed in the Firewise Communities Program to help 

inform the public on measures to improve home construction safety, the importance of creating 

a defensible space around their homes, and coordinate with neighbors creating a natural 

boundary around communities. The adoption of the Firewise program with the direction of the 

ASFD increased the safety of many communities. “The Firewise Communities/USA Recognition 

Program is a process that empowers neighbors to work together in reducing their wildfire risk… 

taking action and ownership in preparing and protecting their homes against the threat of 

wildfire. 9 ”  The Arizona State Forestry Department administers the community Firewise 

certification program. “The program encourages local solutions for wildfire safety by involving 

homeowners, community leaders, planners, developers, firefighters, and others.  

Community evacuation plans and escape routes is an important element in community safety 

planning. The Review Team identified several measures for mitigating the risks to community 

during a community emergency. These measures included: 

 Improving hazardous conditions along primary and secondary access routes 

 Creating and improving secondary means of access/egress 

 Treatment of fuels along primary and secondary evacuation routes 

 The establishment of Temporary Shelter Areas (TSA) for community members and 

visitors, including fuels treatments in TSA locations 

 Adopt standard evacuation route signs 

C. Regional Agreements   

Gila County Fire Agencies “Mutual Aid Agreement” 

The purpose of the Gila County Fire Agencies Mutual Aid agreement is to provide a mechanism 

for the dispatch of personnel and equipment from the area serviced by one agency to the area 

serviced by any other agency … “to provide additional fire, EMS, or other emergency services in 

                                                           
9 http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0 

http://firewise.org/usa-recognition-program.aspx?sso=0


    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section III: Community Mitigation Plan  42 | P a g e  

the event of emergency situations in each part of the areas served by the Agencies.10” Agencies 

who signed the agreement did so with the understanding that agencies would not charge for 

their services, except for expendable supplies, and would be coordinated with the Arizona 

Department of Forestry and the U.S. Forest Service. Agencies would not be at fault for not being 

able to respond outside of the jurisdiction due to substantial reason including reduced response 

capabilities, staffing shortages and high call volume in their own area. 

Arizona “Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan” 

Signed by the Arizona Governor in 2010, the “Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan (FSMAP) is the initial 

activation and mobilization plan prior to a declaration of emergency. This plan is also intended 

to complement the State of Arizona Emergency Response and Recovery Plan (SERRP).” 

The Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan “supports the concepts of the National Incident Management 

System (NIMS) and multi-hazard response planning. Arizona’s fire service conducts emergency 

operations planning at four (4) levels: Local, Tribal, County and State.11” 

Phoenix Fire Department Regional Dispatch Center (PFDRDC) will act as the Intermediary and 

facilitator for resource requests and deployment documentation until the Incident City’s and/or 

County’s EOC is activated and operational. Once the local EOC is operational, all requests for 

resources will be processed through the applicable EOC. 

 

 

  

                                                           
10 http://paysonaz.gov/Council/agendas/2010/04-15-10-A/G3-Res2546-GilaCoFireMutualAidAgmnt.pdf 
11 https://www.iafc.org/files/mtlAid_StatePlanAZ.pdf’s 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  43 | P a g e  

SECTION IV: SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY CWPP 

PRIORITIES: ACTION RECOMMENDATIONS 

AND IMPLEMENTATION 

The 2015 CWPP Review Team was tasked with reviewing the action recommendations developed 

by the “Core Team” during the Southern Gila County CWPP writing process. The 2010 Core Team 

created a series of action recommendations with three main priorities: identify priority treatment 

areas, reduce structural ignitability and finally, promote community involvement. During the 

review process, the Review Team analyzed treatment areas, utility projects designed to reduce 

the potential of ignition, community programs and community response changes made by fire 

departments, activities of both governmental agencies and community groups.  

2015 CWPP Review Team reviewed fuel management activities that had taken place in the units. 

The review team also determined if the priorities established in 2010 remained the same for each 

management unit. Team members also looked at the recent 5-year fire history to determine the 

effectiveness of fuels treatment areas where fires had occurred. 

Fire Districts, Fire Departments and Government agencies have been addressing the WUI issues 

in the Northern Gila County CWPP planning area for approximately 11 years. During this time, 

grants have been used to purchase equipment, fund local fuels mitigation projects and meet 

matching fund requirements of federal grants. Federal funds have been used to complete 

environmental assessments and completion of fuels mitigation projects. State funds have been 

used to improve the safety of communities throughout the Rim Country. Continued federal, state 

and local partnerships will be critical in improving the safety of the Wildland Urban Interface 

communities.  

Recommendations: 

 Create an accounting method of grant funds received. 

 Create a method of tracking fuels mitigation projects. 

 Seek opportunities for regional grant funding requests. 

 Provide digitized maps to the community illustrating fuels mitigation projects. 

Public Education and Communications 

The fire departments and fire protection districts, government agencies and community groups 

are involved with the community in presenting fire safe programs. Many communities have 

adopted Firewise suggestions and have been certified as Firewise communities. One of the 

common factors seen with public awareness is fatigue, when memory of recent local fires 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  44 | P a g e  

diminishes, public awareness and focus on preventing wildfires and structural ignitions becomes 

less important in members daily lives. Providing a standard message to all communities involved 

would be invaluable. A message that combines the values of community life, property value, the 

importance of the ecosystem they live in and the need for fire safety will greatly increase the 

acceptance of the message. 

Recommendations: 

Communicate the CWPP report to all members of the community through the: 

 Continued use of home surveys with recommended mitigation measures. 

 Define levels of risk and hazards for community members and visitors. 

 Emphasize the value of fuel reduction programs. 

 Creation of fire suppression capabilities in all communities. 

 Value to the environment and wildlife in the use of prescribed fires and fuels 

management programs. 

 Use of Firewise and related educational materials to increase homeowner acceptance 

of homeowner preparedness. 

 Complete activation of community alert system. 

 Utilize community resources to communicate messages in day-to-day and emergency 

activities. 

 Create links to Arizona State Lands Department, Arizona Fish and Game Department, 

USDA Forest Service, Firewise, Gila County Department of Emergency Services, APS 

and SRV, Red Cross and other department’s homepages. 

Fire Department Response Functions 

The Fire Departments and Fire Districts within the Northern Gila County Community Wildfire 

Protection Plan coverage area are involved with wildfire suppression and provide automatic and 

mutual aid to neighboring departments and the US Forest Service. The departments provide 

structural firefighting, EMS, rescue in addition to wildland firefighting. Personnel should be 

trained to meet the qualification as required by the Federal Interagency Fire Program 

Management (IFPM) and NWCG. 

Recommendations: 

Basic Level Training: 

 S-130/190 

 S-215 Fire in the Interface 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  45 | P a g e  

 I-200 Basic ICS 

Supervisory Training: 

 S-290 Intermediate Wildland Fire behavior 

 I-300 Intermediate ICS 

Burn Boss: 

 Rx 319 

 Rx 341 

 Rx 410 

 RxB2 

Having a qualified Burn Boss will address the need for local communities who are 

required to have a qualified Burn Boss for community projects that require burning. 

Specialized Training: 

 Firewise 

 Fire Prevention and Education 

 US Forest Service should continue to facilitate the training of local fire department 

members. Joint preplanning and pre-season training should be held on weekends 

to facilitate attendance by volunteer firefighters 

 Possible weekend prescribed fire events: 

o Increased opportunities for Fire Department participation in training  

o Require adherence to NWCG standards 

o Encourage the use of task books to facilitate position certification, provide 

Training Tech/Specialist to increase opportunities 

o Expand firefighting opportunities to local firefighters beyond structural 

defense and protection activities 

Arizona State Fire Training: 

 Conduct statewide and regional NWCG certified training courses to assist local fire 

agencies develop qualified wildland firefighters and obtain required certifications. 

 

Equipment 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  46 | P a g e  

Firefighters are equipped with specialized structural firefighting personal protective equipment 

(PPE) which is not functional in the wildland firefighting environment. Personnel must carry both 

structural and wildland PPE on their assigned apparatus so that they are wearing the safest and 

most appropriate PPE. 

Recommendations: 

All PPE must meet the specifications listed in NFPA® 1977, Standard on Protective Clothing 

and Equipment for Wildland Fire Fighting, 2011 Edition. The standard establishes 

requirements for protective clothing and equipment to protect against the adverse 

environmental effects encountered by personnel performing wildland firefighting 

operations. 

 Equipment covered in the standard includes garments, helmets, gloves, footwear, 

goggles, chainsaw protection and load carrying equipment 

Adoption of standardizes hose and water supply fittings will enable the usage of equipment 

from all apparatus improving the safety of firefighters on the fireline. Hose and fittings that 

do not meet the adopted standards will need to purchase adapters which can be permanently 

placed on needed hose and appliances to meet national standards. Once standards are 

adopted and all departments meet the standards, a Zone or Regional fire cache of 

standardized hose, appliances and equipment could be established at a central location. 

 Increases the opportunity to catch fires in the initial attack phase of operations 

 Improves firefighter safety by decreasing time on the firelines where water is not 

available 

Community Evacuation Management 

Many of the communities in the study area are at a risk due to the limited ingress and egress 

routes. Numerous communities have only one means of egress which requires first responders 

to quickly determine the need for community evacuation. Other areas have roads with limited 

width and bridges with limited carrying capacity. With limited access, a critical delay in 

emergency vehicles making access to the community while members attempt to evacuate will 

delay resources entering and increasing the risk to community members and their homes. The 

Gila County Sherriff’s Office is responsible for developing and maintaining community evacuation 

plans. 

Fuels management projects along community roads may not be feasible due to limited easement 

right-of-way. Mowing of fuels along these critical roadways may be possible and provide an 

increased measure of safety.  

Community Staging Areas 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  47 | P a g e  

With limited means of access and egress to several communities, the location and use of 

Temporary Shelter Areas (TSA) should be considered. TSA are designed for the use of the public 

only and do not meet the requirements of Safety Zones which are required for firefighting 

personnel. These TSA are pre-designated community locations large enough to accommodate a 

number of citizens. Livestock should be moved to other pre-designated location such as rodeo 

arenas. Signs should be placed in the community directing community members and visitors to 

the TSA. Evacuation routes should be marked with standardized signs. Local fire departments and 

land owners should meet and determine the most suitable location in their communities for TSA. 

Recommendations: 

1. Signs and placards should be posted throughout the community making evacuation 

corridors and TSA locations. This will provide a constant message to community 

members and during an evacuation or sheltering emergency, reduce confusion. For 

visitors to Rim Country communities, signage and radio messages will provide a means 

of communicating lifesaving messages.  

2. Signs should be mounted on non-flammable posts.  

3. Fuels in sheltering locations should be maintained be mowing, plowing or other 

methods. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section IV: Southern Gila County CWPP  48 | P a g e  

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section V: Monitoring Plan  49 | P a g e  

SECTION V: MONITORING PLAN 

The Core Team in 2010 recommended that the CWPP Working Group create a method of 

monitoring the successful implementation of the recommendations outlined in Section IV of the 

2010 CWPP. The Working Group would also monitor the success in securing grants for 

implementation of the action items. The Working Group would also be responsible for collecting 

information on successful grant applications and documenting project activities and completion 

of  

Following the meeting in 2015 of the CWPP Review Team, members recognized that there had 

not been a common location for collecting information on successful grants applications, project 

activities and work progress. Information gathered by the review team required individual 

agencies to review their 5-year work plans and grant history to obtain data.   

The HFRA requires adoption of a CWPP, as does the FEMA Disaster – Mitigation Act of 2000. With 

formal adoption of this plan by the Core Team, the Town of Payson and the communities of 

Northern Gila County were eligible for hazardous fuels and non-fuels mitigation funding that 

could assist with plan implementation. Furthermore, adoption of this plan highlighted the 

partnerships among fire stations, local government, community-based organizations, and public 

agencies. 

The success of any CWPP hinges on effective and long-term implementation of identified 

mitigation practices. It was recommend in the 2004 CWPP that the Core Team identify a Team to 

coordinate the recommendations of the CWPP. In 2006, a Review Team met and discussed the 

two-year implementation process of the CWPP. When the Review Team met in 2015, it was clear 

that an Implementation Team would be needed to maintain accurate records of grant funding, 

projects, community changes and emergency resources. The magnitude of the wildfire risks and 

hazards facing Northern Gila County is significant and any effective reduction requires on-going 

commitment and collaboration to implement the treatments recommended in this CWPP. 

“Monitoring is an extremely difficult component of the CWPP process to maintain. It is crucial to 

determining which methods and initiatives are successful. For monitoring, a simple series of 

annual photographs from designated photo points may prove helpful. If larger treatments are 

undertaken, a more formal protocol of pretreatment and post-treatment measurements should 

be adopted. All projects should be recorded and records kept in a single designated location.12” 

In addition to coordinating the recommended actions in the CWPP, the involved stakeholders 

should coordinate the monitoring efforts to evaluate the efficacy of treatments. Specific 

monitoring duties can be delegated by the Review Team. The CWPP should be reexamined on an 

                                                           
12 http://www.cityofgolden.net/media/pdf_719.pdf 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Section V: Monitoring Plan  50 | P a g e  

annual or regular basis to ensure its relevance. This may be accomplished through meetings 

which include the local fire departments, governmental agencies, homeowner groups, and other 

stakeholders.             

Plan Maintenance 

For the 2015 Southern Gila County CWPP, the Review Team agrees: 

1. The following group(s) should maintain the document and record of projects and 
initiatives: Gila County Office of Emergency Management, in coordination with the 
Southern Gila County Fire Chiefs 

2. The CWPP will be reviewed on an annual basis during the annual wildfire pre-season 
meeting held each year during the spring. 

3. Each Department/Agency is responsible for recording department updates. A blank 
spreadsheet will be provided as an appendix to each printed document (see Appendix 
C).  Each department or agency will record changes in items such as: 

o Staffing 
o Stations 
o Apparatus 
o Training 
o grant funds applied for and obtained 
o mitigation projects completed and treatment type/activities 

4. Each Department will enter and maintain specific data on their own spreadsheet and at 
the announced meeting, discuss department changes.  

5. The Gila County Office of Emergency Management will collate the data and add as an 
appendix to the CWPP each year during the document review and update.  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX A: ACRONYMS 

Acronym Term 

4FRI 4 Forest Restoration Initiative 

AAR After Action Report 

ADOT Arizona Department of Transportation 

APS Arizona Public Services 

ARC American Red Cross 

ASFD Arizona State Forestry Division 

BIA Bureau of Indian Affairs 

BLM PG 6 

CERT Community Emergency Response Team 

CKFD Christopher-Kohls Fire Department 

CPR Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 

CWPP Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

DPS (Arizona) Department of Safety 

EA Environmental Assessment 

EAS Emergency Alert System 

EIS Environmental Impact Statement 

EM Emergency Management 

EMS Emergency Medical Service 

EMT Emergency Management Training 

EOC Emergency Operations Center 

ESRI Environmental Systems Research Institute 

FD Fire Department 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FF Fire Fighter 

FMS Fire Mitigation Specialist  



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-2 | P a g e  

Acronym Term 

FSMAP Fire Service Mutual Aid Plan 

GCOEM Gila County Office of Emergency Management 

GIO PG 18 

GIS Geographic Information System 

GPS Global Positioning System 

HFRA Healthy Forests Restoration Act 

ICS Incident Command System 

IFPM (Federal) Interagency Fire Program Management 

IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 

IMS Incident Management System 

IMT Incident Management Team 

IQS Incident Qualification System 

IRPG Incident Response Pocket Guide 

ISO Insurance Services Office 

IVM Integrated Vegetation Management 

LDS PG 28 

MDC Mobile Data Computers 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NF National Forest 

NFCA Northern Fire Chiefs Association 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NFCA Northern Fire Chiefs Association 

NFPA National Fire Protection Association 

NGCC Northern Gila County Community Response Team 

NGCCWPP Northern Gila County Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

NIMS National Incident Management System 

NPS PG 6 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-3 | P a g e  

Acronym Term 

NWCG PG 49 

PFD Payson Fire Department 

PFDRDC Phoenix Fire Department Regional Dispatch Center 

PPD Payson Police Department 

PPE Personal Protective Equipment 

PSFR Pine Strawberry Fuels Reduction 

PVFD Pleasant Valley Fire Department 

RD (Payson) Ranger District 

RSG Ready! Set! Go! 

SAFER Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 

SARA Superfund Amendments Reauthorization Act 

SERRP State of Arizona Emergency Response and Recovery Plan 

SIP Shelter In Place 

SRP Salt River Project 

TNF Tonto National Forest 

TSA Temporary Shelter Area 

USDA United States Department of Agriculture 

USFS United States Forest Service 

VFA Volunteer Fire Assistance 

VHF Very High Frequency 

VLAT Very Large Air Tanker 

WFHF PG 38 

WPFD Whispering Pines Fire District 

WUI Wildland Urban Interface 

 

 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix A: Acronyms  A-4 | P a g e  

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix B: WUI “Watch-Outs!”  B-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX B: WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE 

“WATCH-OUTS!” 

Structure defense adds a whole new dimension to wildland firefighting. The Incident Response 

Pocket Guide (IRPG) provides an additional list of “Watch-outs!” designed specifically for the 

tactical challenges confronting firefighting personnel in the wildland urban interface (WUI). The 

WUI “Watch-outs!” include:  

 Poor roads  

 Bridge load limits  

 Wooden construction and wood shake roofs  

 Power lines  

 Propane tanks and HazMat threat  

 Inadequate water supply  

 Natural fuels within 30 ft. (9 m) or closer to structures  

 Structures in chimneys, box canyons, narrow canyons, or on steep slopes  

 Extreme fire behavior  

 Strong winds  

 Panic during an evacuation13 

 

  

                                                           
13 http://training.nwcg.gov/classes/s130/508%20Files/071231_s130_m11_508.pdf 

http://training.nwcg.gov/classes/s130/508%20Files/071231_s130_m11_508.pdf


    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix B: WUI “Watch-Outs!”  B-2 | P a g e  

  

This page intentionally left blank. 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix C: Agency Updates  C-1 | P a g e  

APPENDIX C: AGENCY UPDATES 

As decided by the 2015 Southern Gila County CWPP Review Team, each participating Department or Agency should maintain the 

following spreadsheet on a regular basis (recommended monthly).  At the annual CWPP review, each participating Department 

or Agency should provide the current spreadsheet to be included in the CWPP updates.  

Department/Agency Month/Year Contact Information Training/Activity/ 
Qualifications  

Grants Staffing 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

(Continued) 

Department/Agency Month/Year Apparatus Fuel Maintenance 
Projects  

Communications/ 
Dispatch 

Aid Agreements 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

 

 



    

Southern Gila County 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 

Appendix C: Agency Updates  C-2 | P a g e  

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 



   

ARF-3823     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Director 

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of an Order to Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers for the
August 30, 2016 Primary Election.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §16-411 provides that the Board of Supervisors shall
designate polling places for each election precinct.

Arizona Revised Statute §16-531 provides that the Board of Supervisors shall appoint
poll workers and election board workers.

Evaluation
Arizona Revised Statutes §16-411 and §16-531 require the Board of Supervisors to
take official action to designate polling places for each election precinct and to appoint
poll workers and election board workers for the Primary Election to be held on August
30, 2016, of which it is being requested that the Board adopt the Order, which
contains all of the related information.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to adopt the Order attached to this agenda item to
designate polling places within each election precinct and to appoint poll workers and
the election board workers within Gila County for the August 30, 2016, Primary
Election.

Recommendation
The Elections Department Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
this Order.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt an Order designating polling places within
each election precinct and appointing poll workers and election board workers for the
purpose of conducting the Primary Election to be held on August 30, 2016.  (Eric
Mariscal)

Attachments
Order



Arizona Revised Statute 16-411
Arizona Revised Statute 16-531



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 1 of 8 

 
 

 
 

 

ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DESIGNATING POLLING PLACES WITHIN EACH ELECTION 

PRECINCT AND APPOINTING POLL WORKERS AND ELECTION 

BOARD WORKERS FOR THE PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 

AUGUST 30, 2016. 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-411(B) states, “Not less than twenty days before a general or primary 

election, and at least ten days before a special election, the board shall designate one polling 

place within each precinct where the election shall be held, except that: 

1. On a specific finding of the board, included in the order or resolution designating polling 

places pursuant to this subsection, that no suitable polling place is available within a precinct, a 

polling place for that precinct may be designated within an adjacent precinct. 

2. Adjacent precincts may be combined if boundaries so established are included in election 

districts prescribed by law for state elected officials and political subdivisions including 

community college districts but not including elected officials prescribed by titles 30 and 48. The 

officer in charge of elections may also split a precinct for administrative purposes. The polling 

places shall be listed in separate sections of the order or resolution. 

3. On a specific finding of the board that the number of persons who are listed as permanent 

early voters pursuant to section 16-544 is likely to substantially reduce the number of voters 

appearing at one or more specific polling places at that election, adjacent precincts may be 

consolidated by combining polling places and precinct boards for that election. The board of 

supervisors shall ensure that a reasonable and adequate number of polling places will be 

designated for that election. Any consolidated polling places shall be listed in separate sections 

of the order or resolution of the board.”; 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-531(A) states, “When an election is ordered, and not less than twenty 

days before a general or primary election, the board of supervisors shall appoint for each 

election precinct one inspector, one marshal, two judges and as many clerks of election as 

deemed necessary. The inspector, marshal, judges and clerks shall be qualified voters of the 

precinct for which appointed, unless there is not a sufficient number of persons available to 

provide the number of appointments required. The inspector, marshal and judges shall not have 

changed their political party affiliation or their no party preference affiliation since the last 

preceding general election, and if they are members of the two political parties that cast the 

highest number of votes in the state at the last preceding general election, they shall be divided 

equally between these two parties. There shall be an equal number of inspectors in the various 

precincts in the county who are members of the two largest political parties. In each precinct 

where the inspector is a member of one of the two largest political parties, the marshal in that 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 2 of 8 

 
 

precinct shall be a member of the other of the two largest political parties. Whenever possible, 

any person appointed as an inspector shall have had previous experience as an inspector, judge, 

marshal or clerk of elections. If there is no qualified person in a given precinct, the appointment 

of an inspector may be made from names provided by the county party chairman. If not less than 

ninety days before the election the chairman of the county committee of either of the parties 

designates qualified voters of the precinct, or of another precinct if there are not sufficient 

members of his party available in the precinct to provide the necessary representation on the 

election board as judge, such designated qualified voters shall be appointed. The judges, 

together with the inspector, shall constitute the board of elections. Any registered voter in the 

election precinct, or in another election precinct if there are not sufficient persons available in 

the election precinct for which the clerks are being appointed, may be appointed as clerk.”;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

hereby designate polling places within each election precinct and appoints poll workers and 

election board workers for the Primary Election to be held on August 30, 2016, as shown on 

Attachments A, B and C of this Order.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of July 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 3 of 8 

 
 

 

 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT A 

 

GILA COUNTY POLLING PLACES AND VOTE CENTER LOCATIONS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §16-411(B), the following locations have been 

designated as polling places or vote centers for 2016 elections held in Gila County. 

 

Vote Center – A polling location in which any voter may receive an appropriate ballot for 

that voter on Election Day and lawfully cast their ballot. 

 Gila County has 5 vote centers.  ANY registered voter may vote at any of the vote 

centers. 

 Gila County has 11 precinct specific polling sites; voters must be registered in those 

precincts in order to cast a valid ballot. 

 Polling place/vote centers are open from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Election Day. 

 

Polling Place or Vote Center Location of Election Precinct or Vote Center 

Globe Vote Center Pinal Mountain AZ #2809 Elks Lodge, 1910 E Maple 

Street, Globe 

Miami Vote Center Miami High School, 4635 E Ragus Road, Miami 

Payson Vote Center #1 Expedition Church, 302 S Ash Street, Payson 

Payson Vote Center #2 Church of the Nazarene, 200 E Tyler Parkway, Payson 

Star Valley Vote Center Star Valley Baptist Church, 4180 E Hwy. 260, Star 

Valley 

Copper Basin Hayden-Winkelman School District Office, 824 Thorne 

Ave, Winkelman 

Gisela Gisela Community Center, 136 S Tatum Trail, Gisela 

Pine-Strawberry East &  

Pine-Strawberry West 

First Baptist Church of Pine, 4039 N hwy. 87, Pine 

Roosevelt & Sierra Ancha Roosevelt Baptist Church, 18659 Hwy. 188, Roosevelt 

Tonto Basin Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce, 45675 Hwy. 188, 

Tonto Basin 

Whispering Pines East Verde Baptist Church, 11209 N Houston Mesa 

Road, Whispering Pines 

Young Pleasant Valley Community Center, Hwy. 288, Young 

Zane Grey Christopher Creek Bible Fellowship Church, 1036 E 

Christopher Creek Loop, Christopher Creek 

Canyon Day  Canyon Day Jr. High School Library, 4621 S 9
th

 

Street, Cedar Creek 

Carrizo Carrizo Assembly of God Church, V-10 Road, Carrizo 

San Carlos Rice Elementary School Gym, Mohave Avenue and 

Yavapai Street, San Carlos 

 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 4 of 8 

 
 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT B 

 

GILA  COUNTY POLLING PLACES AND APPOINTED POLL 

WORKERS AND ELECTION BOARD WORKERS FOR THE PRIMARY 

ELECTION TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 30, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

Polling Place or Vote 

Center 

Name of Poll Worker or  

Election Board Worker 

Position of Poll Worker or 

Election Board Worker 

Globe Vote Center Cook, Janice Inspector 

Globe Vote Center Alexander, Dan I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Globe Vote Center Nancarrow, Pearl I.D. Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Woods, Bev Provisional Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Miller, Sheldon Marshal 

Globe Vote Center Belarde, Estelle Ballot Judge 

Globe Vote Center Hicks, Shane Provisional Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Beaver, Larry  Ballot Judge 

Miami Vote Center Dutcher, Leneve Inspector 

Miami Vote Center Dutcher, Jim Ballot Judge 

Miami Vote Center Weishaar, Pam I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Miami Vote Center Peek Luann I.D. Clerk 

Miami Vote Center Sabre, Natalie Provisional Clerk 

Miami Vote Center Norton, Amber Provisional Clerk 

Miami Vote Center Allwood, Laura Ballot Judge  

Miami Vote Center Rasmussen, James Marshal 

Tonto Basin Jackson, Barbara Inspector 

Tonto Basin Hardy, Linda Ballot Judge 

Tonto Basin Cunningham, Debbi Marshal 

Tonto Basin Gassaway, Nancy I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Tonto Basin Randall, Christyne Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Wilson, John Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #1 Albritton, Patricia G. Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #1 Pate, William I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Payson Vote Center #1 Caldwell, Robert Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Lootans, Jean Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #1 Miller, Barbara Co-Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #1 Budinak, Thomas Marshal 

Payson Vote Center #1 Scott, Elizabeth Marshal 

Payson Vote Center #1 Collins, Nobel I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 McClary, Sandy Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Shulman, Vicki Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #2 Thompson, Becky Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #2 Underwood, Barbara I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 5 of 8 

 
 

Payson Vote Center #2 Caldwell, Luella Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #2 Holmes, Margaret I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Shafferkoetter, Judy Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Sturgis, Margie Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Silver, Mary Jane Marshal 

Star Valley Vote Center Stevens, Terri Inspector 

Star Valley Vote Center Anderson, Ellie Ballot Judge 

Star Valley Vote Center Burreson, Aleah Provisional Clerk 

Star Valley Vote Center Fischer, Barbara I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Star Valley Vote Center Fischer, Ron Provisional Clerk 

Star Valley Vote Center Stevens, John Marshal 

Star Valley Vote Center Furst, Bob I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Pine-Strawberry Prins, Lee Inspector 

Pine-Strawberry Andersen, Rita I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Pine-Strawberry Brandt, Barbara Marshal 

Pine-Strawberry Bridges, James Provisional Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Bob, Arlene Provisional Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Wills, Ernestine Ballot Judge 

Pine-Strawberry Neumann, Marge Ballot Judge 

Zane Grey Daniels, Jeff Inspector 

Zane Grey Daniels, Diane Ballot Judge 

Zane Grey Sundra, Steve I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Young Cortez, Curtis Inspector 

Young Dilley, Carolyn Ballot Judge 

Young Bilberry, Ruth Signature Judge 

Young Freegard, Marylin I.D. Clerk 

Young Loehr, Nancy Provisional Clerk 

Young Dilley, Barry Marshal 

Whispering Pines Jones, Lois Inspector 

Whispering Pines Jones, Darrel Ballot Judge 

Whispering Pines  I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Gisela Kirch, Mark Inspector 

Gisela Demack, George Ballot Judge 

Gisela Mathis, Sharon Kay Provisional Clerk 

Gisela Johnson, Brenda I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Gisela Jacobs, Marilyn Provisional Clerk 

Gisela Orear, Fran Marshal 

Gisela Loehr, Raymond I.D. Clerk 

Copper Basin Olmos, Judas Inspector 

Copper Basin Greenwood, Gwynette Ballot Judge 

Copper Basin  Lagunas, David O.  Marshal 

Copper Basin  I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Canyon Day Burnette, Sr., Vino Inspector 

Canyon Day Altaha, Virginia Ballot Judge 

Canyon Day Burnette, Brenda I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 6 of 8 

 
 

Canyon Day Altaha, Delbert I.D. Clerk 

Canyon Day Thompson, Lee Provisional Clerk 

Canyon Day Fall, Angelina Provisional Clerk 

Canyon Day Thompson, Sr., Elton Marshal 

Carrizo Gooday, Rosie-Anna Inspector 

Carrizo Truax, Larue Ballot Judge 

Carrizo Altaha, Clarinda I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Carrizo Foster, Rosie Poll List Clerk 

San Carlos Pennell, Yodonna Inspector 

San Carlos Stevens, Esther Co-Inspector 

San Carlos Belvado, Anthony Ballot Judge 

San Carlos Castro, Angelica Signature Judge 

San Carlos McIntosh, Emmett I.D. Clerk 

San Carlos Ortega, Luke Signature Judge 

San Carlos Dude, Ailene M.  Marshal 

San Carlos Shorten, Flora Provisional Clerk 

San Carlos Clark, Rose Ballot Judge 

San Carlos Martin, Karen I.D. Clerk 

San Carlos Victor, April Marshal 

San Carlos Aday, Kim Marshal 

San Carlos Gilson, Richard Provisional Clerk 

San Carlos Johnson, Jeramiah D. Provisional Clerk 

San Carlos Omaohoya, Salina Ballot Judge 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha Burruel, Pam Inspector 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha Livingston, Micky I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha Stromberg, Shirly Ballot Judge 

 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 7 of 8 

 
 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT C 

 

ELECTION WORKERS 

 

 

Election Responsibility Name 

Accuracy & Certification Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Accuracy & Certification Hawkins, Beverly 

Accuracy & Certification Mariscal, Eric 

Audit/Hand Count Alvarez, Alfonso 

Audit/Hand Count Gore, Cate 

Audit/Hand Count Mariscal, Eric 

Audit/Hand Count Rogers, David 

Data Processing Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Data Processing Gore, Cate 

Data Processing Hawkins, Beverly 

Data Processing Mariscal, Eric 

Early Board Barefoot, Janine 

Early Board Gonzales, Cecilia 

Early Board Moorehead, Judy 

Early Board Moorehead, Sam 

Early Board Mundy, Dixie 

Early Board Skamel, Joseph 

Early Board Stemm, John R.  

Early Board Stemm, Mary 

Early Board Woods, Beverly 

Interpreters Sanchez, Victoria 

Interpreters Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Night Board Sluyter, Cheryl 

Night Board Floyd, Christine 

Night Board Gregovich-Benton, Francine 

Night Board Sanders, Jacque 

Night Board Guthrey, Debbie 

Night Board Rogers, Olga 

Night Board Stemm, John R.  

Night Board Stemm, Mary  

Night Board Wakelin, John 

Pick-up Transportation Boyer, Roland 

Pick-up Transportation Brooks, Claudia 

Pick-up Transportation Brooks, Donald 

Pick-up Transportation Joy, Calvin 

Pick-up Transportation O’Donnell, Heather 

Pick-up Transportation O’Donnell, Steve 

Pick-up Transportation Romero, Brittany 

Pick-up Transportation Romero, Ricky 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 8 of 8 

 
 

Pick-up Transportation Speer, Jack 

Pick-up Transportation Stemm, John 

Pick-up Transportation Stemm, Mary 

Pick-up Transportation Valenzuela, Beverly 

Pick-up Transportation Valenzuela, Eddie 

Pick-up Transportation Williams, Steve 

Snag Dalton, Jeff 

Snag Mariscal, Eric 

Snag McDaniel, Don  

Trouble Shooters Alvarez, Alfonso 

Trouble Shooters Baer, Jeff 

Trouble Shooters Hawkins, Beverly 

Trouble Shooters Modglin, Lisa 

Trouble Shooters Mariscal, Eric 

 











   
ARF-3798     Regular Agenda Item      3. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted For: John Marcanti, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 16-07-01 regarding the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service's (USFWS) finalized changes to the Mexican Wolf Experimental
Population Rule in Arizona and New Mexico.

Background Information
For the past couple of years, the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS)
has been very involved in the ongoing process regarding the USFWS's
proposed revision to the Nonessential Experimental Population of the
Mexican Wolf and the implementation of a management plan. 
Throughout the process, the BOS has submitted letters to officials at the
U.S. Department of the Interior and USFWS regarding their concerns
because Gila County has been included as one of the areas for the release
of Mexican wolves.

In January 2015, the USFWS finalized changes to the Mexican Wolf
Experimental Population Rule in Arizona and New Mexico providing for a
fourfold expansion of the area where Mexican wolves primarily are
expected to occur, and a tenfold increase in the area where Mexican
wolves can initial be released from captivity.

Evaluation
Previous documents and current rulings prepared by the USFWS and
Arizona Game and Fish Department show the intent to introduce more
wolves into Gila County and surrounding areas. 

The cooperation and or participation with the USFWS and other federal
and state management agencies has not been sufficient thus far to
adequately address the health, safety and welfare needs of human
settlements, households, residents, domesticated animals and livestock in
Gila County; therefore, the BOS will continue to make efforts to bring
attention to this matter by declaring its obligation and intention to direct



its elected officials and appointed department heads acting within their
statutory authority to take appropriate action to properly protect County
residents, domesticated animals and livestock from the potential  harm by
predatory animals, included introduced, experimental and managed
species.  Further, the BOS will strongly recommend that the USFWS
undertake its legal obligation to fully consult with Gila County and the
Arizona Game and Fish Department on any proposal to expand the wolf
recovery area in the County and to coordinate any such efforts with the
County law enforcement, environmental protection, and land planning
officials.

Conclusion
Supervisor Marcanti is recommending that the BOS adopt Resolution No.
16-07-01 to declare the need to address governmental cooperation and
protective measures regarding predatory animals, including introduced,
experimental and managed species, interaction with humans,
domesticated animals, and livestock.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No.
16-07-01.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-07-01
whereby the Board of Supervisors is declaring the need to address
governmental cooperation and protective measures regarding predatory
animals, including introduced, experimental and managed species,
interaction with humans, domesticated animals, and livestock as a result
of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's recent finalized changes to the
Mexican Wolf Experimental Population Rule in Arizona and New Mexico;
and further that this Resolution be provided immediately to Arizona
Governor Doug Ducey, Arizona Game and Fish Department, United States
Fish and Wildlife Service, Arizona Congressional Delegation and the
Arizona Legislature.  (John Marcanti)

Attachments
Resolution No. 16-07-01



Resolution No.  16-07-01                                                                                                                           Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-07-01 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY DECLARING THE NEED TO ADDRESS 

GOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AND PROTECTIVE 

MEASURES REGARDING PREDATORY ANIMALS, INCLUDING 

INTRODUCED, EXPERIMENTAL AND MANAGED SPECIES, 

INTERACTION WITH HUMANS, DOMESTICATED ANIMALS, 

AND LIVESTOCK 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors finds and determines that predatory 

animals, including introduced, experimental and managed species, including the Mexican 

wolf, may pose serious threats to human settlements, family households, expose children to 

health and safety risks, and threaten the economic well-being of families, ranches and 

businesses within the County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is concerned that increased pressure 

from predatory animals, including introduced, experimental and managed species, has 

already and will continue to lead to drastic and negative impacts on big game animals 

throughout the western U.S.; and, 

 

WHEREAS, many experts on introduced, experimental and managed predators, including 

Mexican gray wolves, indicate that habituated predators may cause greater danger to 

people and domesticated animals because these predators may have lost their fear of 

humans; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in January 2015, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) finalized 

changes to the Mexican Wolf Experimental Population Rule in Arizona and New Mexico, 

providing for a fourfold expansion of the area where Mexican wolves primarily are 

expected to occur, and a tenfold increase in the area where Mexican wolves can initially be 

released from captivity; and,  

 

WHEREAS, previous documents and current rulings prepared by the USFWS and 

Arizona Game and Fish Department show the intent to introduce more wolves into Gila 

County and surrounding areas; and,  

 

 



Resolution No.  16-07-01                                                                                                                           Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is concerned the risk of wolf and other 

predator attacks on humans has become more likely as predator-human incidents will 

increase with the expansion of wolf populations in Arizona, and that certain measures are 

necessary to avoid human suffering, possible loss of life, loss of income, loss and damage 

to private property, and disruption of the normal functioning of government and 

communities in Gila County; and recognize the importance to further define clear 

objectives to avoid harms and inconsistencies in emergency response to resident requests 

concerning threatening predators, including wolves; understand public education is critical 

to initial response, and therefore desire to provide information to all Gila County residents, 

including but not limited to this data provided by the USFWS:  1) Wolves are adept at 

determining prey vulnerability and the human victims of predatory attacks tend to be 

mainly children, 2) Wolves may attack a dog even when people are present and a wolf 

excited by the presence of a dog may be more likely to act aggressively toward people, and 

3) Aggressive behaviors by wolves are often associated with habituation and food 

conditioning, and the wolves to be released through the USFWS wolf population 

expansion may be either from a facility where they are raised or from established packs; 

and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors desires to increase its ability to protect 

humans, the general well-being of humans, livestock and domesticated animals from 

predatory animals, including introduced, experimental and managed species; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the cooperation and/or participation with the USFWS and other federal and 

state management agencies has not been sufficient thus far to adequately address the 

health, safety, and welfare needs of human settlements, households, residents, 

domesticated animals and livestock in Gila County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has a fiduciary responsibility under its 

statutory police powers to protect the health, safety and welfare of its residents; and, the 

County reserves the right to take whatever actions necessary to do so; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

declares its obligation and intention to direct its elected officials and appointed department 

heads acting within their statutory authority to take appropriate action to properly protect 

County residents, domesticated animals and livestock from the potential harm by predatory 

animals, including introduced, experimental, and managed species; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be called immediately to the attention of 

Arizona Governor Doug Ducey, the Arizona Game and Fish Department, United States Fish 

and Wildlife Service, Arizona Congressional Delegation and the Arizona Legislature, and that 

meetings, as needed, be coordinated as soon as possible; and,  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Gila County strongly 

recommends that the USFWS undertake its legal obligation to fully consult with Gila 

County and the Arizona Game and Fish Department on any proposal to expand the wolf 

recovery area in the County and to coordinate any such efforts with the County law 



Resolution No.  16-07-01                                                                                                                           Page 3 of 3 

enforcement, environmental protection, and land planning officials.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of July 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.  

 

ATTEST:                                 GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 



   

ARF-3812     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016
through June
30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant
Agreement for FY2017 Award Cycle 30 (ACJC #DC-17-004). 

Background Information
On March 18, 2016, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a grant
application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $708,778 in
order to provide continued funding for the salaries and benefits of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force. On April 19, 2015, the
Board of Supervisors authorized the electronic submission of the grant application to
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $708,778.

Evaluation
On June 3, 2016, the Gila County Sheriff's Office received written notification from the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission that the grant application in the requested
amount of $708,778 that was submitted to the ACJC on March 18, 2016 by the
Sheriff's Office has been awarded in the amount of $318,376.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has been awarded the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime
Control Grant Agreement (FY2017 Award Cycle 30-ACJC Grant No. DC-17-004) from
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $318,376 ($130,534 in
federal funds, $108,248 in state funds and $79,594 in matching funds from the
County's General Fund) to provide continued funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang,
and Violent Crimes Task Force for the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve the Grant Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $318,376 for fiscal year 2017. 

Suggested Motion



Approval of the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (FY2017
Award Cycle 30-Grant No. DC-17-004) between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $318,376 ($130,534 in
federal funds, $108,248 in state funds and $79,594 in matching funds from the
County's General Fund) to provide continued funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang,
and Violent Crimes Task Force for the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

Attachments
Grant Agreement No. DC-17-004
Award Letter
Grant Reference Manual 
Websites referenced in Grant Agreement



ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT CRIME CONTROL 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number 16.738  

 
This Grant Agreement is made this 7th day of June, 2016, by and between the ARIZONA CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE COMMISSION hereinafter called “COMMISSION” and GILA COUNTY, through GILA COUNTY 
SHERIFF'S OFFICE hereinafter called “GRANTEE”.  The COMMISSION enters into this Agreement 
pursuant to its authority under the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-2405 (B)(6), and having satisfied itself as 
to the qualification of GRANTEE; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties as follows: 

 
1. This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2016 and terminate on June 30, 2017.  This Agreement 

expires at the end of the award period unless prior written approval for an extension has been 
obtained from the COMMISSION.  A request for an extension must be received by the 
COMMISSION sixty (60) days prior to the end of the award period.  The COMMISSION in its sole 
discretion may approve an extension that furthers the goals and objectives of the program and 
shall determine the length of any extension. 

 
2. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds will be used in accordance with applicable program rules, 

guidelines and special conditions. 
 

3. The COMMISSION will monitor GRANTEE performance against program goals and performance 
standards and those outlined in the grant application.  Substandard performance as determined 
by the COMMISSION will constitute noncompliance with this Agreement.  If the COMMISSION 
finds noncompliance, the GRANTEE will receive a written notice which identifies the area of 
noncompliance, and the appropriate corrective action to be taken.  If the GRANTEE does not 
respond within thirty (30) calendar days to this notice, and does not provide sufficient 
information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct the problem, the COMMISSION 
may suspend funding, permanently terminate this Agreement or revoke the grant.  
 

4. Any deviation or failure to comply with the purpose and/or conditions of this Agreement without 
prior written COMMISSION approval may constitute sufficient reason for the COMMISSION to 
terminate this Agreement, revoke the grant, require the return of all unspent funds, perform an 
audit of expended funds, and require the return of any previously spent funds which are deemed 
to have been spent in violation of the purpose or conditions of this grant. 

 
5. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by the Executive Director 

or by persons authorized by the Executive Director on behalf of the COMMISSION and GRANTEE.  
Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be considered to have 
been given when actually received by the following addressee or their agents or employees: 

A. If to the COMMISSION: 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attn: Program Manager 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 2 
 

B. If to the GRANTEE: 
Gila County Sheriff's Office 

PO Box 311 
Globe, Arizona 85502 

Attn: Sheriff John Shepherd 
 

6. For grant awards above $100,000, GRANTEE may make budget adjustments of up to ten (10) 
percent of the total grant within any approved budget category excluding equipment.  Written 
approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required if GRANTEE wishes to make adjustments 
or reprogram in excess of ten (10) percent or if GRANTEE wishes to purchase equipment not 
previously approved.  
 
For grant awards less than $100,000, the GRANTEE may make budget adjustments within 
approved categories excluding equipment as long as there are no changes to the purpose or 
scope of the project.  If GRANTEE wishes to purchase equipment not previously approved, 
written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required.   
 

APPROVED LINE ITEM PROGRAM BUDGET 
Personnel: 
              Salaries 
              Fringe Benefits (for salaries/overtime)* 
              Overtime  
Professional & Outside/Consultant & Contractual Services 
Travel In-State 
Travel Out-of-State 
Confidential Funds 
Operating Expenses: 
             Supplies 
             Registration/Training 
             Other  
Equipment  
             Capital 
             Noncapital 
TOTAL 

 
$196,396.00 
$121,980.00 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
$318,376.00 

Positions Funded: 
Commander (0.94 FTE), Sergeant (1.00 FTE), Detective (1.25 FTE)  
Equipment Type: NOT APPROVED 

 
*Reference the ACJC Grant Management Manual for definition of approved Fringe Benefit 
 

7. The total to be paid by the COMMISSION under this Agreement shall not exceed $130,534.00 in 
federal funds awarded to the COMMISSION by the U.S. Department of Justice (USDOJ), Office 
of Justice Programs (OJP) and $108,248.00 in State Funds.  If this grant has a matching 
requirement GRANTEE understands that other federal grant funds cannot be used as a match 
for this grant. The matching amount for this award is $79,594.00.   

 
8. Every payment obligation of the COMMISSION under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 

availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the COMMISSION.  No liability shall accrue to the COMMISSION in the event this 
provision is exercised, and the COMMISSION shall not be obligated or liable for any future 
payments or for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 3 
 

9. GRANTEE agrees that if it currently has an open award of federal funds or if it receives an award 
of federal funds other than this award, and those award funds have been, are being or are to 
be used, in whole or in part, for one or more of the identical cost items for which funds are being 
provided under this award, GRANTEE will promptly notify, in writing, the COMMISSION, and if 
so requested by the COMMISSION, seek a budget modification or change-of-project-scope grant 
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.  
 

10. GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, files and other records, (paper and/or 
electronic) relating to this Agreement and the performance of this Agreement for no less than 
five (5) years from the last financial report submitted to the COMMISSION. All such documents 
shall be subject to inspection and audit at reasonable times, including such records of any 
subgrantee, contractor, or subcontractor. GRANTEE also understands and agrees that USDOJ 
and the United States General Accounting Office (USGAO) are authorized to interview any officer 
or employee of the GRANTEE (or of any subgrantee, contractor, or subcontractor) regarding 
transactions related to this award. 
 

11. GRANTEE agrees that activities funded under this award will be closely coordinated with related 
activities supported with Office of Justice Programs (OJP), State, local or tribal funds.  Grant 
funds may only be used for the purposes in the GRANTEE’s approved application.  GRANTEE 
shall not undertake any work or activities not described in the grant application, including staff, 
equipment, or other goods or services without prior approval from the COMMISSION.  
 

12. GRANTEE agrees to track, account for, and report on all funds (including specific outcomes and 
benefits) separately from all other funds for the same or similar purposes or programs.  
 
Accordingly, the accounting systems of GRANTEE and all subgrantees must ensure that funds 
from this award are not commingled with funds from any other source.   

 
13. GRANTEE agrees to abide by Federal and State laws and provide accounting, auditing and 

monitoring procedures to safeguard grant funds and keep such records to assure proper fiscal 
controls, management and the efficient disbursement of grant funds.   

 
14. For the purpose of this grant, a capital expenditure is $5,000 or above.  If GRANTEE’S policy 

defines a capital expenditure as less than $5,000, GRANTEE will use its own policy. 
 

15. GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant funds and 
perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least every two years or 
more frequently based on GRANTEE policy.  GRANTEE agrees that funds will not be used for the 
construction of new facilities. 
 

16. GRANTEE agrees to follow equipment disposition policies outlined in OMB Circulars A-102 or 2 
CFR, Part 215 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements as 
codified in (1) 28 CFR, Part 66 or (2) 28 CFR, Part 70 when the equipment is no longer needed 
for the grant program.   
Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 

 
17. GRANTEE agrees that all salaried personnel (including subgrantee personnel) whose activities 

are to be charged to the award will maintain timesheets or certifications to document hours 
worked for activities related to this award and non-award related activities. GRANTEE agrees to 
keep time and attendance sheets for hourly employees signed by the employee and supervisory 
official having firsthand knowledge of the work performed by the grant-funded employees.  
 

18. GRANTEE agrees that it will submit financial and activity reports to the COMMISSION in a format 
provided by the COMMISSION, documenting the activities supported by these grant funds and 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 4 
 

providing an assessment of the impact of these activities which may include documentation of 
project milestones. In the event reports are not received on or before the indicated date(s), 
funding may be suspended until such time as delinquent report(s) are received.   
 

19. These reports are to be submitted according to the following schedule(s): 
 

ACTIVITY REPORTS   
Report Period:  Due Date: 
July 1 to September 30 
October 1 to December 31 
January 1 to March 31 
April 1 to June 30 

 October 15 
January 15 
April 15 
July 15 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS       
Report Period: Due Date: Report Period: Due Date: 
July 1 – July 31 August 25 January 1 – January 31 February 25 
August 1 – August 31 September 25 February 1 – February 29 March 25 
September 1 – September 30 October 25 March 1 – March 31 April 25 
October 1 – October 31 November 25 April 1 – April 30 May 25 
November 1 – November 30 December 25 May 1 – May 31 June 25 
December 1 – December 31 January 25 June 1 – June 30 July 25 

 
Additional reporting requirements may be required for GRANTEES who are considered high 
risk. 

 
20. GRANTEE understands that financial reports are required as an accounting of expenditures for 

either reimbursement or COMMISSION-approved advance payments.  
  

21. The final request for reimbursement of grant funds must be received by the COMMISSION no 
later than sixty (60) days after the last day of the award period.    
 

22. All goods and services must be received or have reasonable expectations thereof and placed in 
service by GRANTEE by the expiration of this award.   

 
23. GRANTEE agrees that all encumbered funds must be expended and that goods and services 

must be paid by GRANTEE within sixty (60) days of the expiration of this award.  
 

24. GRANTEE agrees to remit all unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION within thirty (30) 
days of written request from the COMMISSION.   

 
25. GRANTEE agrees to account for interest earned on federal grant funds and shall remit interest 

earned in excess of the allowable amount as indicated in the Office of Justice Programs Financial 
Guide.  
Link: OJP Financial Guide http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/ 

 
26. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval for all sole source procurements in 

excess of $150,000. 
 

27. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval prior to the expenditure of grant funds 
for consultant fees in excess of $650 per day.  

 
28. GRANTEE agrees to not use federal grant funds to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) 

to any employee paid by the grant at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 5 
 

payable to a member of the federal government’s Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency 
with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for that year. (An award recipient may 
compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this compensation 
limitation is paid with non-federal funds.) Unless otherwise noted in the grant solicitation. 
 

29. GRANTEE agrees not to use grant funds for food and/or beverage unless explicitly approved in 
writing by the COMMISSION. 

 
30. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and guidance (including 

specific cost limits, prior approvals and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the 
use of grant funds for expenses related to conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events, 
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such events, and costs of attendance at such 
events unless explicitly approved in writing by the COMMISSION. Information on pertinent laws, 
regulations, policies, and guidance is available in the OJP Financial Guide Conference Cost 
Chapter. 

 
31. No funds shall be used to supplant federal, state, county or local funds that would otherwise be 

made available for such purposes.  Supplanting means the deliberate reduction of state or local 
funds because of the existence of any grant funds. 

 
32. GRANTEE assigns to the COMMISSION any claim for overcharges resulting from antitrust 

violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services applied by third parties 
to GRANTEE in exchange for grant funds provided under this Agreement. 

 
33. The parties agree to use arbitration in the event of disputes in accordance with the provisions of 

A.R.S. § 12-1501-12-1518. The laws of the State of Arizona apply to questions arising under this 
Agreement and any litigation regarding this Agreement must be maintained in Arizona courts, 
except as pertaining to disputes which are subject to arbitration.  

 
34. GRANTEE understands that grant funds may not be released until all delinquent reports and 

reversion of funds from prior grants are submitted to the COMMISSION.  
 

35. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any indirect costs that may be 
incurred by GRANTEE for administering these funds unless explicitly approved in writing by the 
COMMISSION.  This may include, but is not limited to, costs for services such as accounting, 
payroll, data processing, purchasing, personnel, and building use which may have been incurred 
by the GRANTEE. 

 
36. Each party (as “Indemnitor”) agrees to  defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party 

(as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses, 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising out 
of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that 
such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are caused by the act, 
omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indeminitor, its officers, officials, agents, 
employees, or volunteers.  If the GRANTEE is a State agency, board, commission, or university 
of the State of Arizona, this paragraph shall not apply. 
 

37. Should GRANTEE utilize a contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) the indemnification clause between 
GRANTEE and its contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) shall include the following: 
 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify,  and hold harmless the GRANTEE and the State of Arizona, 
and any jurisdiction or agency issuing any permits for any work arising out of this Agreement, 
and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and 
employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 6 
 

processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or 
personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, 
or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
contractor or any of the directors, officers, agents, or employees or subcontractors of such 
contractor.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the 
Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any 
federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific 
intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely 
from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by such 
contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that such contractor will be 
responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification 
is applicable.  Additionally on all applicable insurance policies, contractor and its subcontractors 
shall name the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 
universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as an additional insured and also include 
a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. Insurance requirements for any contractor used by 
GRANTEE are incorporated herein by this reference and attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
“A”. 
 
 

38. GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that the project 
official is replaced during the award period. 
 

39. No rights or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by GRANTEE without prior written 
approval of the COMMISSION. 
 

40. GRANTEE will comply with the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and provide the COMMISSION with the audit report 
and any findings within 90 days of receipt of such finding. If the report contains no findings, the 
GRANTEE must provide notification that the audit was completed. 
Link: OMB Circulars: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 
 

41. GRANTEE certifies that it will comply with OMB Circulars A-102 and 2 CFR, Part 215 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements as codified in (1) 28 CFR, 
Part 66.32 or (2) 28 CFR, Part 70.34 and Cost Principles (1) 2 CFR, Part 225, (2) 2 CFR, Part 220 
or (3) 2 CFR, Part 230, the OJP Financial Guide and the most current version of the ACJC Grant 
Management Reference Manual.  
Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 
 OJP Financial guide: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/ 
 ACJC Grant Management Reference Manual: 
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/home/021104_Manual_GrantReferenceManual.pdf 
 

42. GRANTEE agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly or indirectly, in support of 
any contract or sub award to either the Association of Community Organizations for Reform Now 
(ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without the express written approval of the Office of Justice 
Programs through the COMMISSION.  
 

43. GRANTEE understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of penalties, 
including suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from federal grants, 
recoupment of monies provided under an award, and civil and/or criminal penalties. 

 
44. GRANTEE agrees not to do business with any individual, agency, company or corporation listed 

in the Excluded Parties Listing Service.   
Link: System for Award Management https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/ 
 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/home/021104_Manual_GrantReferenceManual.pdf
https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 7 
 

45. GRANTEE agrees to ensure that, no later than the due date of the GRANTEE’s first financial 
report after the award is made, GRANTEE and any subgrantees have a valid DUNS profile and 
active registration with the System for Award Management (SAM) database.  

 
46. GRANTEE certifies that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire any financial 

interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of services required under this Agreement. 
 

47. GRANTEE understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or delivered 
with funding provided under this award must adhere to the OJP Training Guide Principles for 
Grantees and Subgrantees. 
Link: OJP Training Guide Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees  
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/funding/ojptrainingguidingprinciples.htm 
 

48. GRANTEE agrees to cooperate and participate with any and all assessments, evaluation efforts 
or information and data collection requests, and acknowledges that the federal or state grantor 
agency has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish or use data provided under this award and 
may authorize others to receive and use such information. 

 
49. GRANTEE shall provide the COMMISSION with a copy of all interim and final reports and 

proposed publications (including those prepared for conferences and other presentations) 
resulting from this Agreement.  Submission of such materials must be prior to or simultaneous 
with their public release. 
 

50. GRANTEE agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) excluding press releases and 
newsletters, whether published at the GRANTEE’S or COMMISSION’S expense, shall contain the 
following statement: 

 
“This was supported by Award No. 2014-DJ-BX-1020 and 2015-DJ-BX-1070 awarded by the 
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.  The 
opinions findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this 
publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views 
of the Department of Justice.” 
 

51. GRANTEE agrees to comply with the non-discrimination requirements of the Omnibus Crime 
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 USC §3789d(c)(1); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, 42 USC §2000d; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC § 794; Subtitle A, 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC § 12132; Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, 20 USC § 1681; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 USC § 6102; the 
Department of Justice implementing regulations, 28 CFR pt. 42, subpts. C, D, E, G, and I, 28 
CFR pt. 35, and 28 CFR pt. 54; all applicable state laws of A.R.S. § 41-1463; and Executive Order 
2009-9.  The above-referenced federal laws prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex, disability, and national origin (including limited English proficiency) in the delivery 
of services and employment practices, and prohibit discrimination on the basis of age in the 
delivery of services.  If in the three years prior to the date of the grant award a Federal or State 
Court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due 
process hearing against GRANTEE, GRANTEE will forward a copy of the findings to the Office for 
Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs and the COMMISSION. 

  
“Applicants must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to the 
services under this program(s).  National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the 
basis of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI and the Safe Street 
Act, the applicant is required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to programs.  Meaningful access may entail providing language assistance 
services, including oral and written translation when necessary.” 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/funding/ojptrainingguidingprinciples.htm


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 8 
 

Link: Limited English Proficiency A Federal Interagency Website   http://www.LEP.gov 
 

52. GRANTEE agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 CFR Part 38, the Department 
of Justice regulation governing "Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations" (the "Equal 
Treatment Regulation"). The Equal Treatment Regulation provides in part that Department of 
Justice financial assistance may not be used to fund any inherently religious activities, such as 
worship, religious instruction, or proselytization.  Recipients of Department of Justice financial 
assistance may still engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities must be separate 
in time or place from the Department of Justice funded program, and participation in such 
activities by individuals receiving services from GRANTEE must be voluntary.  The Equal 
Treatment Regulation also makes clear that organizations participating in programs receiving 
financial assistance from the Department of Justice are not permitted to discriminate in the 
provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary’s religion.  Notwithstanding any other special 
condition of this award, faith-based organizations may, in some circumstances, consider religion 
as a basis for employment.  
Link:  http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/equal_fbo.htm 

 
53. GRANTEE should be mindful that the misuse of arrest or conviction records to screen either 

applicants for employment or employees for retention or promotion may have a disparate impact 
based on race or national origin, resulting in unlawful employment discrimination. As of June 
2013 OJP has issued an advisory that grantees should consult local counsel in reviewing their 
employment practices. If warranted, grantees should also incorporate an analysis of the use of 
arrest and conviction records in their Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP). See Advisory 
for Recipients of Financial Assistance from the U.S. Department of Justice on the U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission’s Enforcement Guidance: Consideration of Arrest and 
Conviction Records in Employment Decisions Under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (June 
2013), available at http://www.ojp.gov/about/ocr/pdfs/UseofConviction_Advisory.pdf.  
 

54. GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding privacy during the 
course of the award.  All information relating to clients is to be treated with confidentiality in 
accordance with 42 USC section 3789g or 42 USC 14132(b)(3) that are applicable to the 
collection, disclosure, use and revelation of data information.  GRANTEE further agrees to submit 
a privacy Certificate that is in accordance with requirements of 28 CFR Part 22 if applicable to 
the program. 

 
55. GRANTEE agrees to formulate and keep on file an EEOP (if GRANTEE is required pursuant to 28 

CFR 42.302).  GRANTEE certifies that they have forwarded to the Office for Civil Rights, Office 
of Justice Programs the EEOP, or certifications that they have prepared and have on file an EEOP, 
or that they are exempt from EEOP requirements.  Failure to comply may result in suspension of 
grant funds.  Copies of all submissions such as certifications to or correspondence with the Office 
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs regarding this requirement must be provided to the 
COMMISSION by GRANTEE. In the event a federal or state court or federal or state administrative 
agency makes an adverse finding of discrimination against GRANTEE after a due process hearing, 
on the ground of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex, GRANTEE will forward a copy of 
the findings to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs and the COMMISSION.  
 

56. GRANTEE agrees to participate in any required civil rights related training to ensure compliance 
with all federal and state civil rights laws. GRANTEE will inform the COMMISSION of the position 
responsible for civil rights compliance and will inform the COMMISSION of change in personnel 
responsible for civil rights compliance within ten days. 
Link: http://azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Grants/civilrights/default.aspx  

 
57. To support public safety and justice information sharing, GRANTEE, if a governmental 

subdivision, shall use the National Information Exchange Model (NIEM) specifications and 
guidelines for this grant.  GRANTEE shall publish and make available without restrictions all 

http://www.lep.gov/
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/equal_fbo.htm
http://www.ojp.gov/about/ocr/pdfs/UseofConviction_Advisory.pdf
http://azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Grants/civilrights/default.aspx


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 9 
 

schemas generated as a result of this grant to the component registry as specified in the 
guidelines.  
Link:  https://www.niem.gov/aboutniem/grant-funding/Pages/implementation-guide.aspx 
 

58. In order to promote information sharing and enable interoperability among disparate systems 
across the justice and public safety community, OJP requires the grantee to comply with DOJ’s 
Global Justice Information Sharing Initiative (DOJ’s Global) guidelines and recommendations for 
this particular grant. Grantee shall conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all 
constituent elements, where applicable, as described at:  

       Link: http://www.it.ojp.gov/gsp_grantcondition.  
 

      Grantee shall document planned approaches to information sharing and describe compliance   
      to the GSP and appropriate privacy policy that protects shared information, or provide detailed  
      justification for why an alternative approach is recommended. 

 
59. To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives for law enforcement 

information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between jurisdictions, such 
systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the communication backbone 
to achieve interstate connectivity, unless GRANTEE can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the 
COMMISSION that this requirement would not be cost beneficial or would impair the functionality 
of an existing or proposed IT system. 
 

60. If GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE should, to the extent possible 
and practical; share criminal justice information with other authorized criminal justice agencies.  
The process control number (PCN) shall be used in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1750 when 
sharing data with other criminal justice agencies as electronic data systems are developed or 
improved.  

 
61. If GRANTEE is a state agency and the award is for the development of information technology 

projects for more than $25,000, GRANTEE must complete a Project Investment Justification (PIJ) 
and submit the justification to the Arizona Department of Administration (ADOA), with a copy to 
the COMMISSION.  GRANTEE agrees to submit required project status reports to ADOA by the 
due dates and submit copies to the COMMISSION.  

 
If GRANTEE is not a state agency and the award is for the development of information technology 
projects, GRANTEE will follow local technology policies and guidelines. 

 
62. GRANTEE must promptly refer to the COMMISSION any credible evidence that a principal, 

employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, or other person has either 1) submitted a false claim 
for grant funds under the False Claims Act; or 2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws 
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant 
funds.  The COMMISSION shall forward the referral to the Department of Justice, Office of the 
Inspector General. 

 
63. The COMMISSION encourages GRANTEE to establish workplace safety policies and conduct 

education, awareness and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, 
including adopting and enforcing policies banning employees from text messaging while driving 
any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this grant. Executive Order 13513, 
“Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,” 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 
2009). 
 

64. GRANTEE certifies to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented in 28 
CFR Part 83, Subpart F, for grantees, as defined in 28 CFR, Part 83 Sections 83.620 and 83.650.  

 

https://www.niem.gov/aboutniem/grant-funding/Pages/implementation-guide.aspx
http://www.it.ojp.gov/gsp_grantcondition


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 10 
 

65. GRANTEE agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, Immigration and Naturalization 
Form (I-9).  This form is to be used by recipients to verify that persons are eligible to work in 
the United States. Additionally GRANTEE ensures compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401 federal 
immigration laws by state employers and contractors. 

 
66. GRANTEE acknowledges that immigration laws require them to register and participate with the 

E-Verify program (employment verification program administered by the United States 
Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any successor 
program) as they both employ one or more employees in this state.  GRANTEE warrants that 
they have registered with and participate with E-Verify. If the GRANTOR later determines that 
the GRANTEE has not complied with E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant GRANTEE by 
certified mail of the determination and of the right to appeal the determination. 

 
67. GRANTEE certifies that no federal funds will be paid, by or on behalf of, to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and for the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement.  If any funds other than Federal funds are paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal award, grant loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the GRANTEE will complete and submit to the COMMISSION Standard 
Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions. 

 
68. GRANTEE understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly or 

indirectly, in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation 
or policy at any level of government, without the express prior written approval of the 
Commission.  

 
69. GRANTEE agrees that no funds provided, or personnel employed under this Agreement shall be 

in any way, or to any extent, engaged in conduct of political activities in violation of USC Title 5, 
Part II, Chapter 15, section 1502. 
 

70. GRANTEE understands and agrees that award funds may not be used to discriminate against or 
denigrate the religious or moral beliefs of students who participate in programs for which 
financial assistance is provided from those funds, or of the parents or legal guardians of such 
students.  

 
71. GRANTEE understands and agrees that- (a) no award funds may be used to maintain or establish 

a computer network unless such network blocks the viewing, downloading and exchanging or 
pornography, and (b) nothing in subsection (a) limits the use of funds necessary for any Federal, 
State, tribal or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal 
investigations, prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 
72. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations 

applicable to the development and implementation of activities to be funded under this award.  
Additional requirements may be found in Grant Agreement Continuation Sheet.  
  

73. GRANTEE agrees that all income generated as a direct result of this award shall be deemed 
program income. All program income must be accounted for and used for the purpose under the 
conditions applicable for the use of funds under this award, including the effective edition of the 
OJP Financial Guide and, as applicable, either (1) 28 CFR part 66 or (2) 28 CFR part 70 and OMB 
Circular A-102 & 2 CFR 215. 

 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 11 
 

74. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. § 38-511. This 
Agreement may also be cancelled at the COMMISSION’S discretion if not returned with 
authorized signatures to the COMMISSION within 90 days of commencement of the award. 

 
75. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
 

76. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all Special Condition(s) included with this Agreement on the 
Grant Agreement Continuation Sheet. 
 

77. GRANTEE understands that grant funds may not be released until GRANTEE is compliant with all 
requirements of grant agreement. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 12 
 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT CRIME CONTROL 
GRANT AGREEMENT CONTINUATION SHEET 

SPECIAL CONDITION(S)   
 

 
1. GRANTEE must verify Agency Point of Contact (APOC), Financial Point of Contact (FPOC), 

Program Point of Contact (PPOC), and Authorized Official contact information in the Grants 
Management System (GMS), including telephone number and e-mail address. If any 
information is incorrect or has changed, a Grant Adjustment Notice (GAN) must be submitted 
via the GMS to document changes. In addition the FPOC and PPOC must be assigned by the 
APOC prior to payments being made.  
 

2. GRANTEE agrees that within 120 days of award, for any law enforcement task force funded 
with these funds, the task force commander, agency executive, task force officers and other 
task force members of equivalent rank, will complete required online (internet-based) task 
force training to be provided free of charge through BJA’s Center for Task Force Integrity 
and Leadership (www.ctfli.org). Task force members need only take the training once every 
four years. GRANTEE will compile and maintain a task force personnel roster and course 
completion certificates.  
 

3. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the ACJC Subgrantee Self-Assessment Questionnaire 
within 45 days of the start date of this award.  
 

4. GRANTEE agrees that within 45 days of award, for any agency that receives income as a 
result of grant-funded activities, it will complete the ACJC Program Income Worksheet.  
 

5. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the Benchmarks Worksheet within 45 days of award.  
 

6. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the Budget Detail Worksheet reflecting the overall 
budget within 45 days of award. 

 
7. GRANTEE assures if they are a state agency that the State Information Technology Point of 

Contact receive written notification regarding any information technology project funded by 
this grant.  GRANTEE agrees to keep on file documentation showing that it has met this 
requirement.  
 

8. GRANTEE agrees and understands that funded activities may require the preparation of an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) as defined by the Council of Environmental Quality’s 
Regulations for implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA), found at 40 CFR Part 1500. 
 

9. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws and 
regulations applicable to the development and implementation of activities to be funded 
under this award.  The GRANTEE agrees and understands that complying with NEPA may 
require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact 
Statement, as directed by BJA.  The GRANTEE further understands and agrees to 
requirements for implementation of a Mitigation Plan, as detailed at 
http://www.ojp.usdog.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html for programs relating to 
methamphetamine laboratory operations.  

 
10. GRANTEE agrees that any information technology system developed or supported by funds 

will comply with 28 CFR Part 23, Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP 
determines this regulation be applicable. Should OJP determine 28 CFR Part 23 to be 
applicable, OJP may at its discretion, perform audits of the system, as per 28 CFR 23.20(g).  

http://www.ctfli.org/
http://www.ojp.usdog.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html


Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 13 
 

Should any violation of 28 CFR Part 23 occur, GRANTEE may be fined as per 42 USC 3789g(c)-
(d). GRANTEE may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds.   

 
11. GRANTEE agrees that no JAG funds may be expended on unmanned aircraft, unmanned 

aircraft systems, or aerial vehicles (US, UAS, or UAV) without prior express written approval 
from Commission.  
 

12. Grant funds shall be used to reduce drug crimes in support of the Arizona 2016-2019 Drug, 
Gang, and Violent Crime Control State Strategy. 
 

 
 

 
 

Authorized Official Initials:_______ 
 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed the Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

FOR GRANTEE: 

Authorized Signatory Date 

Printed Name and Title 

Approved as to form and authority to enter into Agreement: 

Legal counsel for GRANTEE Date 

Printed Name and Title 

Statutory or other legal authority to enter into Agreement: 

Appropriate A.R.S., ordinance, or charter reference 

FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION: 

John A. Blackburn Jr., Executive Director Date 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

Revised 12/1/2015 

Michael  A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisor

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief

A.R.S. 11-251 et. seg. and A.R.S. 11-441 et. seg.



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 15 
 

 
ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Insurance Requirements for Governmental Parties to a Grant Agreement: 

None. 
 
Insurance Requirements for Any Contractors Used by a Party to the Grant Agreement: 

(Note: this applies only to Contractors used by a governmental entity, not to the governmental entity itself.) 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements and in no way limit the indemnity covenants 
contained in the Intergovernmental Agreement.  The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the minimum 
limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the governmental entity or Contractor from liabilities that 
might arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by the Contractor, his agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Contractor and the governmental entity are free to 
purchase additional insurance.   
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits 

of liability not less than those stated below. 
 
 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, and broad form contractual 
liability. 
• General Aggregate $2,000,000 
• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
• Fire Legal Liability      $50,000 
• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to include 
the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 
universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as additional insureds 
with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf 
of the Contractor. 

(Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own list 
of persons to be insured.)  

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this 
written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 
   

 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 16 
 

Exhibit “A” Page 2 

2. Business Automobile Liability 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned vehicles 

used in the performance of this Contract. 

Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to include 
the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 
universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as additional insureds with 
respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of, the 
Contractor involving automobiles owned, hired and/or non-owned by the 
Contractor. 

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement as required by this 
written agreement in favor of  the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities,  officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 (Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own list 
of persons to be insured.)  

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $1,000,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $1,000,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit                                                   $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this 
written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities, its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 
b.   
 This requirement shall not apply to each contractor or subcontractor that is 

exempt under A.R.S. § 23-901, and when such contractor or subcontractor 
executes the appropriate waiver form (Sole Proprietor or Independent 
Contractor). 

 
Additional Insurance Requirements: 
 
The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, as required by this written agreement, the following 
provisions: 
 
The Contractor's policies shall stipulate that the insurance afforded the Contractor shall be primary and 
that any insurance carried by the Department, its agents, officials, employees or the State of Arizona 
shall be excess and not contributory insurance, as provided by A.R.S. § 41-621 (E). 
 
Insurance provided by the Contractor shall not limit the Contractor’s liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: 
For each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract, the Contractor must 
provide to the State of Arizona, within two (2) business days of receipt, a notice if a policy is suspended, 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-17-004 Page 17 
 

voided, or cancelled for any reason. Such notice shall be mailed, emailed, hand delivered or sent by 
facsimile transmission to (Enter Contracting Agency Representative’s Name, Address, and Fax Number 
Here). 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: 
Contractor’s insurance shall be placed with companies licensed in the State of Arizona or hold approved 
non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of Insurance List of Qualified Unauthorized Insurers. 
Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than A- VII. The State of Arizona in no way warrants 
that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential 
insurer insolvency. 
 
Verification of Coverage: 
Contractor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of insurance (valid ACORD form or 
equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) as required by this Contract. An authorized representative 
of the insurer shall sign the certificates. 
 
All certificates and endorsements, as required by this written agreement, are to be received and 
approved by the State of Arizona before work commences. Each insurance policy required by this 
Contract must be in effect at, or prior to, commencement of work under this Contract. Failure to maintain 
the insurance policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach 
of contract. 
 
All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to the Department. The State of Arizona 
project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance. The State 
of Arizona reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract 
at any time. 
 
Subcontractors: 
Contractor’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or Contractor shall 
be responsible for ensuring and/or verifying that all subcontractors have valid and collectable insurance 
as evidenced by the certificates of insurance and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for 
subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum Insurance Requirements identified above. The 
Department reserves the right to require, at any time throughout the life of the Contract, proof from the 
Contractor that its subcontractors have the required coverage. 
 
Approval and Modifications: 
The Contracting Agency, in consultation with State Risk, reserves the right to review or make 
modifications to the insurance limits, required coverages, or endorsements throughout the life of this 
contract, as deemed necessary. Such action will not require a formal Contract amendment but may be 
made by administrative action. 
 
Exceptions: 
In the event the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the Insurance Requirements 
shall not apply. Such public entity shall provide a certificate of self-insurance. If the Contractor or 
subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, commission, or university, none of the above 
shall apply.



Our mission is to sustain and enhance the coordination, cohesiveness, productivity  
and effectiveness of the Criminal Justice System in Arizona 

 
 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
Chairperson 
SEAN DUGGAN, Chief 
Chandler Police Agency 
 
Vice-Chairperson 
SHEILA POLK 
Yavapai County Attorney 
 
JOSEPH ARPAIO 
Maricopa County Sheriff 
 
MARK BRNOVICH 
Attorney General 
 
JOE R. BRUGMAN, Chief 
Safford Police Department 
 
DAVID K. BYERS, Director 
Administrative Office of the Courts 
 
KELLY “KC” CLARK 
Navajo County Sheriff 
 
DAVE COLE 
Former Judge 
 
CHRIS GIBBS, Mayor 
City of Safford 
 
DREW JOHN 
Graham County Supervisor 
 
ELLEN KIRSCHBAUM, Chairperson 
Board of Executive Clemency 
 
BARBARA LAWALL 
Pima County Attorney 
 
FRANK MILSTEAD, Director 
Agency of Public Safety 
 
BILL MONTGOMERY 
Maricopa County Attorney 
 
CHARLES RYAN, Director  
Agency of Corrections 
 
DAVID SANDERS 
Pima County Chief Probation Officer 
 
DANIEL SHARP, Chief 
Oro Valley Police Department 
 
HESTON SILBERT 
Law Enforcement Leader 
 
VACANT 
Sheriff 
 
 
 
Executive Director 
John A. Blackburn, Jr. 
 
1110 West Washington, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007 
PHONE: (602) 364-1146 
FAX:(602) 364-1175 
www.azcjc.gov 
 

 
 
June 3, 2016 
 
Sheriff John Shepherd 
Gila County Sheriff's Office 
PO Box 311 
Globe, AZ 85502 
 
Re: Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control (DGVCC) FY 2017 Cycle 30 Award, 
DC-17-004 
 
Dear Sheriff John Shepherd: 
 
On behalf of the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission, it is my pleasure to inform you that 
your agency’s application has been approved for funding under the Cycle 30, FY 2017 
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program. 
 
Paragraphs six and seven of the enclosed agreement provide the amount of funding 
awarded to your agency and the specific positions that have been funded. Below, please 
find additional information that will assist in the administration of your agency’s grant 
award.  
 
Grant Agreement and Other Required Documents: Please review the attached 
agreement and accompanying documentation as revisions or new requirements may have 
been included. Please return the Grant Agreement in its entirety with authorized signatures 
to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission office. Agreements not returned within 90 days 
of the award date with authorized signatures may be cancelled. Additionally, please refer to 
the Special Conditions section of the grant agreement for a listing of other required 
documents, as applicable. Required document forms can be accessed at this link: DGVCC 
Reporting Forms. 
 
Administrative and Financial Requirements: In addition to applicable uniform 
administrative requirements and cost principles, award recipients are required to adhere to 
grant specific program requirements as defined in the grant agreement. 
 
Reporting: Activity and financial reports are required for this grant and the reporting 
schedules are contained in the agreement. Activity report forms can be accessed at this 
link: DGVCC Reporting Forms. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Michelle Neitch at mneitch@azcjc.gov or 602-
364-1557. Our office looks forward to the continued partnership. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Tony Vidale, Program Manager 
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Program 

http://www.azcjc.gov/
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Byrne/ReportingForms.aspx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Byrne/ReportingForms.aspx
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Byrne/ReportingForms.aspx
mailto:mneitch@azcjc.gov


Grant Management

Reference Manual

2004
February

Our mission is to sustain and enhance the coordination, cohesiveness, productivity and effectiveness of the Criminal Justice System in Arizona

Ar izona  Cr imina l  Jus t i ce  Commiss ion

Publication of the Office of the Executive Director



ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION  
 

 
 
 

Chairperson 
RALPH OGDEN 

Yuma County Sheriff 
 
 
 

 Vice-Chairperson 
DENNIS GARRETT 

Department of Public Safety 
Director 

 

JOSEPH ARPAIO 
Maricopa County Sheriff 

 
 

DUANE BELCHER 
Board of Executive Clemency 

Chairperson 
 
 

JIM BOLES 
City of Winslow Mayor 

 

DAVID K. BYERS 
Administrative Office of the 

Courts Director 
 

RON CHRISTENSEN 
Gila County Board  

of Supervisors 

CLARENCE DUPNIK 
Pima County Sheriff 

TONY ESTRADA  
Santa Cruz County Sheriff 

 

TERRY GODDARD 
Attorney General 

BARBARA LAWALL 
Pima County Attorney 

ROD MARQUARDT 
Mohave County Chief Probation 

Officer 

J.T. McCANN 
Flagstaff Police Department  

Chief 

RICHARD MIRANDA  
Tucson Police Department 

Chief 
 
 

ROBERT CARTER OLSON 
Pinal County Attorney 

 

RICHARD M. ROMLEY 
Maricopa County Attorney 

 
 

DORA SCHRIRO 
Department of Corrections  

Director 
 

CHRISTOPHER SKELLY 
Judge, Retired 

 RICHARD YOST 
El Mirage Police Department 

Chief 

   
 MICHAEL BRANHAM 

Executive Director 
 

 



1/14/04 i  

Introduction 
 
 
This Grant Management Reference Manual has been prepared as a reference guide for 
questions arising in the administration of Federal and State grants awarded through the 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission.  Content includes financial management policies, 
grant agreement, and procedures required of grantee organizations to ensure the 
establishment of sound and effective business management systems.  Such procedures 
will ensure that funds are properly safeguarded and used only for the purposes for 
which they were awarded. By following the required reporting procedures, grantees will 
ensure a trouble-free process and compliance with Federal and State requirements. 
  
The manual is provided as a quick reference guide for day-to-day use by grantees.  The 
manual is not inclusive and is not intended to be the only document utilized by sub-
grantees when administering a grant.  Grantees are still required to comply with all 
applicable rules, regulations, and guidelines. 
 
Grantees are encouraged to contact their grant program manager or coordinator at the 
Commission office whenever questions arise not covered in this manual. 
 
Our goal is to facilitate the grant management process while ensuring reporting 
requirements are met. In short, we want your project to succeed! 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1/14/04 ii  

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
 
 

OVERVIEW 
 
 

Mission: “To sustain and enhance the coordination, 
cohesiveness, productivity and effectiveness of the 
Criminal Justice System in Arizona.” 
 
 
The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission is a statutorily authorized entity mandated to 
carry out various coordinating, monitoring and reporting functions regarding the 
administration and management of criminal justice programs in Arizona.  In accordance 
with statutory guidelines, the Commission is comprised of 19 members who represent 
various areas of the criminal justice system.  Five of the 19 commission members are 
state agency directors, and the remaining 14 members are appointed by the Governor 
to serve a two year term. 
 
 
The Commission was created in 1982, defined by A.R.S. § 41-2401 through § 41-2420 
to serve as a resource and service organization for Arizona’s 480 criminal justice 
agencies on a myriad of issues ranging from drugs, gangs, victim compensation and 
assistance to criminal record improvement initiatives.  The Commission works on behalf 
of the criminal justice agencies in Arizona to facilitate information and data exchange 
among statewide agencies by establishing and maintaining criminal justice information 
archives, monitoring new and continuing legislation relating to criminal justice issues 
and gathering information and researching existing criminal justice programs. 
 
 
The six program areas which support the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission are: 
Crime Victim Services, Criminal Justice Records and Integration, Drug Control and 
System Improvements, Finance and Administration, Legislation and Policy, and the 
Statistical Analysis Center.   
 
 
For detailed program information, visit our website: www.acjc@state.az.us 

www.acjc.state.az.us


1/14/04 iii  

Grant Management Reference Manual 
Table of Contents 

 
Chapter 1: CONDITIONS OF AWARD AND ACCEPTANCE 
  Grant Agreement        1 
  Required Signatures        1 
  Elements of the Grant Agreement      2 
 
Chapter 2: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
  Financial Report        4 
  Changes to Financial Reports      4 
  Activity or Progress Reports      4 
  Other Reports        4 
 
Chapter 3: OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) CIRCULARS 
  Overview         5 
  Terminology         5 
  Circular A -21 Cost Principles for Educational Institutions  6 
  Circular A -87 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal 
     Governments       6 

Circular A -102 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants  
           and Cooperative Agreements to State and  
           Local Governments       6 
Circular A -110 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants 
   and Cooperative Agreements to Institutions of Higher  
            Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations 6 
Circular A -122 Cost Principles for Private Non-Profit Organizations 6 
Circular A -133 Audits of States, Local Governments and Non- 
   Profit Organizations      7 

 
Chapter 4: PAYMENTS 
 Payment Methods        8 

Commission Cash Management Policy     8 
Interest Earned        9 
Withholding Funds        9 

 
Chapter 5: MATCH OR COST SHARING 
  In-kind Match or Cost Sharing      10 
  Cash Match         10 
  Records of Match        11 
  Supplanting         11 
 
Chapter 6: PROGRAM INCOME 
  Examples of Program Income      12 
  Accounting for Program Income      13 



1/14/04 iv  

Grant Management Reference Manual 
Table of Contents (Continued) 

 
Chapter 7: ALLOWABLE COSTS 
  Allowable Costs        15 
  Costs Requiring Prior Approval      16 
  Indirect Costs        17 
 
Chapter 8: TIME AND ATTENDANCE 
  Time and Attendance       18 
 
Chapter 9: GRANT ADJUSTMENTS 
  Budget Modifications       20 
  Budget Modification Request for Equipment    21 
 
Chapter 10: PROCUREMENT 
  Competition         22 
  Federal Funds        22 
  Debarment and Suspension      22 
  Acquisition of Property and Equipment     22 
  Management of Property and Equipment     23 
  Disposition of Property and Equipment     23 
 
Chapter 11: MANAGING CONFIDENTIAL FUNDS 
  Confidential Funds        25 
  Allocation of Funds        25 
  Confidential Funds Certifications      25 
  Written Procedures        26 
  Informant Files        28 
  Accounting and Control Procedures     31 
 
Chapter 12: STANDARDS FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 
  Accounting System        33 
  Total Cost Budgeting and Accounting     34 
  Commingling of Funds       34 
 
Chapter 13: ON-SITE MONITORING AND ASSISTANCE VISITS 
  On-site Monitoring and Assistance Visits     35 
  Financial Review        35 
  Programmatic Review       36 
 
Chapter 14: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN 
  Plan Purpose         37 
  Criteria         37 
  Plan Acceptability        37 



1/14/04 v  

 
APPENDICES 

 
Appendix A Grant Agreement Sample        
 
Appendix B Financial Report Sample        
 
Appendix C Budget Category Guidelines        
 
Appendix D Crime Victim Assistance Financial Report Sample     
 
Appendix D1 Crime Victim Assistance Financial Report Definitions/Guidelines   
 
Appendix E Computer Hardware and Software Guidelines     
 
Appendix F Accounting System and Financial Capability Questionnaire    
 
 
Appendices G  through L can be found on the Office of Management and 
Budget Web Site. The address for each site is directly below the Circular title. 
 
Appendix G Circular A -21 Cost Principles for Educational Institutions 
  http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a021/a021.html 
 
Appendix H Circular A -87 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal 

Governments 
 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a087-all.html 
 
Appendix I Circular A -102 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and 

Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments 
 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a102/a102.html 
   
Appendix J Circular A -110 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and 

Cooperative Agreements to Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals and 
other Non-Profit Organizations  

 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a110/a110.html 
      
Appendix K Circular A 122 Cost Principles for Private Non-Profit Organizations 
 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a122/a122.html 
   
Appendix L Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments and No-Profit    

Organizations 
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a133/a133.html 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a021/a021.html
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a087-all.html
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a102/a102.html
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a110/a110.html
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a122/a122.html
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a133/a133.html


1/14/04 1  

 
CHAPTER 1 

Condition of Award and Acceptance 
 
Congratulations, you have a received a grant award!  What comes next?   
There will be several documents mailed to you after you receive an award, called the 
“grant award package.” 
 
1.0 Grant Agreement or Conditions of Award 
 
When a Grantee is awarded money for a project or program, a Grant Agreement must 
be executed between the grantee and the Commission. This grant agreement contains 
information such as the award amount, required match if any, budget, record retention, 
report schedule and rules that you have to abide by for the grant award period. These 
rules may extend beyond the grant period if there is equipment involved. A sample 
Grant Agreement is provided for your information in Appendix A to this manual. The 
conditions of the grant are to satisfy federal and state statutes, as well as special 
conditions required by the Justice Department. 
 
 
1.1 Required Signatures 
 
This agreement must be signed by the individual authorized to enter into agreements 
for your governmental subdivision or non-profit agency: 
 

• County offices, the Chairman of the County Board of Supervisors; 
 
• City offices, the Mayor or City Manager; and 

 
• State Agencies and Non-Profit Institutions, the Director or Chief Executive 

Officer of the Agency.  
 

If someone else is designated to sign the agreement, enclose a copy of the authorizing 
resolution signed by the Clerk of the Board/Council.  If the Council/Board requires an 
attestment or certification of signature by the Clerk, it may be included anywhere it is 
convenient on the signature page. 
 
Counties and Cities must also provide a copy of the Council/Board approved agenda or 
resolution listing the Grant Agreement on the agenda. 
 
For State, County and City agencies, legal counsel needs to attest that the body has the 
legal authority to enter into agreements and has the legal authority to perform the 
agreed upon activities.  The governing body legal authority to enter into an agreement 
must also be included. 
 



1/14/04 2  

The signed document must be returned to the Commission office for final execution. A 
copy or original (if more than one is provided) will be returned to you.  No money can 
be reimbursed or forwarded to you until this document is received by the Commission, 
approved by the Attorney General, and signed by the Commission’s Executive Director. 
 
1.2 Elements of the Grant Agreement 
 
Some of the essential elements included in the Grant Agreement are listed below. This 
list is only a sampling and it is not meant to be all inclusive: 
 

• Grant funds must be used to provide services specific to each program as 
stated in the grant application. 

 
• The Commission staff will monitor the performance of the grantee against 

the performance standards outlined in the grant; non-compliance will 
result in notification and, in extreme cases, suspension or termination of 
the agreement. 

 
• Financial reports are required for reimbursement of expenditures. For 

those grants that are reimbursable, see the agreement for details. 
 

• The grantee must comply with all applicable Office of Management and 
Budget Circulars (see Chapter 3). 

 
• All grant files, reports, and account records relating to the agreement 

must be kept by public agencies in accordance with the approved record 
retention policy mandated by the Arizona State Library, Archives and 
Public Records Management Division; in no event less than three (3) 
years. Non-profit agencies must keep all such records for five (5) years 
after the program was created or money received. 

 
• Financial and Activity/Progress Reports must be submitted to the 

Commission in accordance with the schedule provided in the grant 
agreement.  Funds may be suspended if reports are delinquent. 

 
• Commission staff approval must be received, in advance, for all sole-

source procurements in excess of $100,000 . 
 

• All computer hardware and software purchases must comply with the 
guidelines in Appendix E. 

 
• Grant funding can not be used to supplant Federal, State, or local funds 

that would otherwise be available for the project. Supplanting means 
reducing State or local funds because of the existence of Federal funds. 

 



1/14/04 3  

Example: State funds are appropriated for a stated purpose and 
Federal funds are awarded for that same purpose. The State 
replaces its State funds with Federal funds, thereby reducing the 
total amount available for the stated purpose. 

 
• Criminal justice records systems should, to the extent possible, integrate 

with other criminal justice records systems in the state, in order to 
enhance the overall effectiveness of the Arizona Criminal Justice Records 
System. 

 
• Grantees must notify the grant Program Manager in writing within ten 

(10) days anytime the project official is replaced. 
 

• The Grant Agreement will be cancelled if not returned to the Commission 
with authorized signatures within 90 days of commencement of award. 



1/14/04 4  

CHAPTER 2 
Reporting Requirements 

 
2.0 Financial Report  
 
A financial report form will be included in the grant package.  Please make copies of this 
report as you will submit one either monthly or quarterly depending upon the 
requirement of your grant.  If you need additional copies of the financial report form, 
please contact the Commission staff and one can be emailed or faxed to you. 
 
Several financial reports are used by the Commission. These reports are grant-specific. 
See Appendix B and D for samples of financial reports. 
 
To develop consistent reporting, the Budget Category Guidelines on page 15 provide 
definition of line items on the financial report. 
 
2.1 Changes on Financial Reports 
 
Grant programs administered by the Commission are either reimbursed or paid in 
advance.  
 
If a program is paid in advance, financial reports may be amended and resubmitted to 
the Commission with authorized signatures.  
 
If a program is reimbursed, financial reports may not be amended.  Corrections must 
be included with the next monthly or quarterly report.  Corrections may be documented 
on the following financial report and financial records that are kept in your office to be 
made available for financial reviews. 
 
2.2 Activity or Progress Report 
 
A copy of the activity report or progress report will be included with the grant package. 
Please make copies of this report as you will submit one either monthly, quarterly or 
annually depending upon the requirement of your grant. If you need additional copies 
of the Activity/Progress report, please contact the Commission staff and one can be 
emailed or faxed to you. 
 
2.3 Other Reports 
 
Other documents may be included as required by each grant. 



1/14/04 5  

CHAPTER 3 
Office of Management and Budget Circulars 

 
3.0 Overview - Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars 
 
This chapter provides a listing and brief summary of the Office of Management and 
Budget Circulars (OMB) all grantees should review. It is meant to serve as a guide, not 
a substitute, in locating the complete OMB Circulars and relevant text. The full circulars 
can be found at  www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/ : 
 

A-21:  Cost Principles for Educational Institutions 
 

A-87:  Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments  
 

A-102:   Grants and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local 
Governments 

 
A-110:  Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements 

with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-
Profit Organizations 

 
A-122:   Cost Principles for Private Non-Profit Organizations 

 
A-133:   Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations 

 
3.1 Terminology 
 
Circulars - Provide minimal guidance to Federal agencies.  Circulars guide the agencies 
in their implementation of the common rules, which must be followed by the recipients.  
Circulars provide basic information such as purpose, authority, and action required, 
responsibilities of OMB, effective date, and termination review date. 
 
Common Rule – Provide language agencies are to adopt in their regulations.  Common 
rules set standards for acceptable financial and management systems.  Common rules 
are structured to follow the grant process: 
 

• Pre-award 
 
• Post-award 
 

ü Financial System 
ü Property Management 
ü Required Reports & Records 
ü Termination & Enforcement of Award 
 

www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/


1/14/04 6  

• After the close of the grant 
 
3.2 Circular A -21   Cost Principles for Educational Institutions  
 
Purpose:  This Circular establishes principles for determining costs applicable to grants, 
contracts, and other agreements with education institutions.  The principles deal with 
cost determination.   
 
All State agencies that sponsor research and development, training, and other work at 
educational institutions shall apply the provisions of this Circular in determining the 
costs incurred for such work.  The principles shall be used as a guide in the pricing of 
fixed price and lump sum agreements.(see Appendix G) 
 
3.3 Circular A -87   Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments 
 
Purpose:  This Circular establishes principles and standards for determining costs for 
Federal awards carried out through grants, cost reimbursement contracts, and other 
agreements with State and local governments, and federally-recognized Indian tribal 
governments.(see Appendix H) 
 
3.4 Circular A -102   Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative  

Agreements to State and Local Governments 
 
Purpose:  This Circular establishes consistency and uniformity among Federal agencies 
in the management of grants and cooperative agreements with State, local, and 
federally recognized Indian tribal governments.(see Appendix I) 
 
3.5 Circular A -110   Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative                                                                                                         
                                    Agreements to Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals,                    
                                    and Other Non-Profit Organizations 
 
Purpose:  This Circular sets forth standards for obtaining consistency and uniformity 
among Federal agencies in the administration of grants and agreements with 
institutions of higher education, hospitals, and other non-profit organizations.(see 
Appendix J) 
 
3.6 Circular A -122   Cost Principles for Private Non-Profit Organizations 
 
Purpose:  This Circular establishes principles for determining costs of grants, contracts 
and other agreements with non-profit organizations. (see Appendix K) 
 
 
 
 
 



1/14/04 7  

 
 
3.7 Circular A -133   Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profits   
                                     Organizations 
 
Purpose:  This Circular describes the non-Federal entity’s responsibilities for managing 
Federal assistance programs and the auditor’s responsibility with respect to the scope of 
the audit.  Auditors are required to follow the provisions of Circular A-133.(see 
Appendix L) 
 
  

a.  Non-Federal entities that expend $300,000 ($500,000 for fiscal years 
ending after December 31, 2003) or more in Federal funds (from all 
sources including pass-though subawards) in the organization fiscal year 
(12-month turnaround reporting period) shall have a single organization-
wide audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-
133.  

 
b. Non-Federal entities that expend less than $300,000 a year ($500,000 for 

fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003) in Federal awards are 
exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year. Records must be 
available for review or audit by appropriate officials including the Federal 
agency, pass-though entity, and General Accounting Office  

  (GAO). 
 
Further Information:  Further information concerning this Circular may be obtained by 
contacting the Office of Federal Financial Management, Office of Management and 
Budget, Washington, DC 20503, telephone (202)395-3993 or the Federal Domestic 
Assistance Catalog Division, General Services Administration, Room 4032, 1800 F 
Street, NW, Washington DC 20405, Telephone (202) 208-1582. 
Note:  To keep up to date, check the Federal Register: www.access.gpo.gov 
or OMB’s grant management page: www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/index.html 

www.access.gpo.gov
www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/index.html


1/14/04 8  

Chapter 4 
Payments 

 
4.0 Payment  Methods 
 
The Commission uses two payment methods, reimbursement and installments. To 
determine which method is used for your grant program, refer to your Grant 
Agreement. 
 
The reimbursement method is the most commonly used method for the Commission 
grant programs.  The grant funds are reimbursed based on the expenditure reported on 
the financial report submitted to the Commission.  These reimbursements are either 
monthly or quarterly based on the reporting requirement for the grant.   
 
Reimbursements can not be sent unless a financial report is filed with the Commission. 
 
The installment method is used for service type programs, such as Victim Compensation 
and Victim Assistance.  The total award is divided into 12 equal installments and paid 
over the term of the award.  All Commission reports must be current prior to the 
disbursement of grant funds. 
 
For grants that are paid in allotments, it is important to check the rate of expenditure 
periodically during the grant period to ensure that expenditures are on track so funds 
can be reallocated or reverted if necessary. 
 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants (LLEBG) are disbursed at the beginning of the 
grant period. 
 
4.1 Commission Cash Management Policy 
 
All Federal grants administered by the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission, when 
permissible and allowable, will be paid on a reimbursement basis.  This will bring the 
Commission and its grantees into compliance with the requirements of Public Law 101-
453, Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990 (CMIA). 
 
Confidential Funds, if awarded by the Commission, may be paid in advance if no other 
sources of funds are available for such purposes.  Each request will be reviewed and 
considered on an individual basis. 
 
If the grantee should determine that the reimbursement method is unacceptable, the 
project official must submit a letter from the authorized unit of government, i.e. State 
Agency, County Board of Supervisors or City/Town Council, to the grant Program 
Manager. The letter must contain a detailed explanation of why this method is 
unacceptable. If a large equipment purchase expense is involved, a “notice of bid 



1/14/04 9  

awarded” or other such document must be included.  Each request will be reviewed and 
considered for an exception to this policy on an individual basis. 
 
Grantees who have received an exception to the reimbursement policy must time the 
cash advance request as close as administratively feasible to the time of disbursement, 
preferably within three (3) days of receipt. 
 
4.2 Interest Earned 
 
All grantees are required to and shall account for interest earned on Federal funds.  
 
Government units may keep interest earned on Federal grant funds up to $100 per 
federal fiscal year.  This limit is not per award.  It is inclusive of all interest earned as a 
result of all Federal grant program funds received per year. 
 
Non-profit organizations may keep interest earned on Federal grant funds up to $250 
per federal fiscal year.  This limit is not per award it is inclusive of all interest earned as 
a result of all Federal grant program funds received per year. 
 
Interest earned on Local Law Enforcement Block Grants (LLEBG) must be accounted for 
and reported as program income, and used on the program. 
 
4.3 Withholding  Funds 
 
The Commission will withhold funds if the grantee demonstrates any of the following: 
 

• Failure to submit accurate and/or timely reports. 
 
• Failure to demonstrate effort or ability to attain program or project goals. 

 
A grantee may be required to finance its operation with its own working funds until 
such time as the grantee is in compliance with its award requirements. 
 
 
Reference: 
Office of Justice Programs, 
Office of the Comptroller, Financial Guide 2002 



1/14/04 10  

Chapter 5 
Match or Cost Sharing 

 
5.0 Match / Cost Sharing 
 
Some grant programs require the recipient agency to provide cost sharing or matching 
funds to supplement the grant award. There is a difference between cost sharing and 
cash match.  
 
Funds provided as match must be used to support the Federally funded project and 
must be in addition to, and therefore supplement, funds that would otherwise be made 
available for the program purpose the federal funds are supporting. Match is restricted 
to the same use of funds as allowed for the Federal funds. 
 
5.1 In-Kind Match (Cost Sharing) 
 
In-kind match (soft) includes, but is not limited to, the valuation of in-kind services. It is 
the value of something received or provided that does not have a cost associated with 
it. For example, if in-kind match is permitted by law, then the value of donated services 
could be used to comply with the match requirement. Also, third party in-kind 
contributions may count toward satisfying match requirements provided the grantee 
receiving the contributions expend them as allowable costs. 
 
In-kind match, or cost sharing, does not require a cash outlay by your agency, yet  it 
must represent real dollars. If you had to pay for services rendered, for example, time 
contributed by volunteers who did not donate their services, you would have paid 
someone else to perform those same services. Personnel services are the most common 
form of cost sharing, since they can include salaries, fringe benefits, and associated 
indirect costs.  
 
5.2 Cash Match 
 
Cash match occurs when “hard dollars” are contributed toward your project.   
For example, if your agency was awarded a $100,000 grant with a 25% cash match 
requirement, your actual award will consist of $75,000 federal funds and $25,000 local 
cash matching funds. Depending on the terms and conditions of the award, your 
agency may either be required to submit a check to the Commission for the match 
portion or absorb the match by receiving a reduced reimbursement throughout the 
award period. 
  
Matching contributions need not be applied at the exact time or in proportion to the 
obligation of the Federal funds. However, the full matching share must be obligated by 
the end of the grant period.  
 
 



1/14/04 11  

 
5.3 Records of  Match 
 
Grantees must maintain records which clearly show the source, the amount, and the 
timing of all matching contributions. In addition, if a program or project has included 
within its approved budget contributions which exceed the required matching portion, 
the grantee must maintain records of the excess match  in the same manner as the 
required match funds.  
 
For all block/formula funds, the Commission has the primary responsibility for the 
grantee compliance with the match requirements. For all discretionary funds, the 
Commission and grantee have shared responsibility for ensuring compliance with the 
requirements regarding matching funds. 
 
Reference:  
OMB Circular A-102 §__.24 (State and Local Units of Government) or A-110 §__.23 
(Education Institutions, Hospitals and Non-Profits).  
 
5.4 Supplanting 
 
Grant funds can not be used to supplant Federal, State, or local funds that would 
otherwise be available for the project. Supplanting means the deliberate reduction of 
State or local funds because of the existence of Federal funds. 
 

Example: State funds are appropriated for a stated purpose and Federal funds 
are awarded for that same purpose. The State replaces its State funds with 
Federal funds, thereby reducing the total amount available for the stated 
purpose. 

 



1/14/04 12  

Chapter 6 
Program Income 

 
6.0 Program Income 
 
Grantees who generate program income as a direct  result of  Federal grant funds for a 
project must report program income and program expenditures. Example: Byrne and 
interest on LLEBG Block Grant. 
 
Program income means income received by the grantee directly generated by a grant-
supported activity, or “earned” as a result of the grant during the grant period.  “During 
the grant period” is the time between the effective date of the award and the ending 
date of the award reflected in the final financial report. 
 
6.1 Examples of Program Income: 
 

• Income from fees for services performed; 
 
• Income from the use or rental of real or personal property acquired with 

grant funds; 
 
• Income from the sale of commodities or items fabricated under a grant; 
 
• Proceeds from the sale of property or equipment; 
 
• Income from royalties and license fees for copyright materials, patents  

and inventions developed by the grantee; 
 

• Income received from a court ordered award of attorney’s fees or cost, to 
the extent that it represents a reimbursement for attorney’s fees and 
costs originally paid under the award; 

 
• Reimbursement received from the IRS if award funds were used in the 

information and investigation leading to the recovery of Federal taxes 
imposed with respect to illegal drug-related activities or money laundering 
in connection with such activities. 

 
• Income received from asset seizures and forfeitures is considered 

“earned” when the property has been adjudicated to the benefit of the 
law enforcement agency. 

 
 
 
 
 



1/14/04 13  

6.2 Use of Program Income 
 
Program income may be used to supplement or reduce project costs, or may be 
refunded to the Federal government.  Program income may only be used for allowable 
program costs and must be expended prior to federal grant funds.  
  
Program income shall be added to the funds committed in the Grant Agreement, known 
as the “Addition Method” and used by the grantee for any purpose that furthers the 
objectives of the legislation under which the award was made. 
 
The following policies apply to program income from asset seizures and forfeitures: 
The “Addition Method” shall be followed unless an alternate method is designated by 
the Commission. Program income may be retained by the agency earning the program 
income or used by the grantee for any purpose that furthers the objectives of the 
legislation under which the grant was made.   
 
Program income may be used as matching funds when assets are adjudicated by the 
State, County, or Local Court in accordance with State law.  In addition, cash received 
under the equitable sharing program may also be used as matching funds. 
 
6.3 Accounting for Program Income 
 
Program income must be accounted for up to the same ratio or percent as Federal 
dollars provided to the project. 
 
For example: 
 

• A project funded with 100 percent Federal funds must account for and 
report on 100 percent of the total program income earned.  If the total 
program income earned was $20,000, the recipient must account for and 
report the $20,000 as program income on the Financial Report. 

 
• If a project was funded with 75 percent Federal funds and 25 percent 

non-Federal funds (match) and the total program income earned by the 
grant was $100,000, $75,000 must be accounted for and reported, by the 
recipient, as program income on the Financial Report. 

  
Program income received is line I, page 1, on the Financial Report.  
Program income expenditures  is on the second page of the Financial Report. (see 
Appendix B) 
 
 
 
 
 



1/14/04 14  

Reference: 
Uniform Administrative Requirements 
OMB Circular A102 §___.25 - State and Local Governments 
OMB Circular A110 §___.24 – Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other 
Non Profit Organizations. 
Department of Justice Codified: 28CFR Part 66.25 – State and Local Governments 



1/14/04 15  

Chapter 7 
Allowable Costs 

 
7.0 Allowable Costs 
 
To be considered an allowable cost, the expenditure must meet the criteria specified in 
the appropriate and applicable cost principle. It is important to note that each set of 
cost principles will vary in its definitions of allowable costs. The examples below were 
taken from OMB Circular A-87, which contains the most stringent criteria. To meet 
Federal standards for allowability, a cost must meet the following general criteria: 
 

• Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and 
administration of Federal awards; 

 
• Be allocable to Federal awards; 

 
• Be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws or regulations; 

 
• Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the appropriate cost 

principle, Federal laws, terms and conditions of the Federal award, or 
other governing regulations as to types or amounts of cost items; 

 
• Be consistent with policies, regulations and procedures that apply 

uniformly to both Federal awards and other activities of the governmental 
unit; 

 
• Be accorded consistent treatment. A cost may not be assigned to a 

Federal award as a direct cost if any other cost incurred for the same 
purpose in like circumstances has been allocated to the Federal award as 
an indirect cost; 

 
• Except as otherwise provided in the circular, be determined to be in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP); 
 

• Not be included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching 
requirements of any other Federal award in either the current or prior 
period, except as specifically provided by Federal law or regulation; 

 
• Be the net of all applicable credits; 

 
• Be adequately documented. 

 
 



1/14/04 16  

While most of the items on this page are quite self explanatory, there are two elements 
that may require further explanation; the notion of allocability and the term “net of 
applicable credits”.  
 
To be considered allocable, an expense must be treated consistently with other 
allowable costs incurred for the same general purpose in similar situations and it must: 
 

• Be incurred specifically and totally (100%) for the award; 
 
• Be chargeable or assignable to cost objectives in reasonable proportion to 

the benefits received; or 
 

• Is necessary to the overall operation of the organization, although a 
direct relationship to a particular cost objective cannot be shown.  

 
To be an allowable cost, the expense must be the net of applicable credits, which are 
reductions in expense items allocable to a Federal award such as purchase discounts, 
rebates and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. Should the agency 
receive such credits relating to allowable costs, the Federal award must be credited as a 
cost reduction or a cash refund.  
 
7.1 Costs Requiring Prior Approval  
 
Changes to your project scope and/or budget after an award has been made require 
prior written approval from the grant Program Manager. Due to the extensive financial 
and program impact on the grant if changes were permitted without approval, written 
consent is required.  
 
Some examples of expenditures and changes requiring prior approval for state, local 
and Indian governments are: 
 

• Capital equipment (use the more stringent policy to determine capital 
equipment); 

 
• Cost of membership in civic and community, social organizations; 

 
• Pre-award costs; 

 
• Direct costs for preparing proposals for potential Federal awards; 

 
All requests for prior approval must be submitted in writing (email is acceptable) to the 
Program Manager identified in your award letter. Be sure to keep your budget 
adjustment request in the same format as your original budget as identified in your 
Grant Agreement. A budget adjustment request must be accompanied by a narrative 
description of the reason the change is necessary.  



1/14/04 17  

 
Upon receipt and review of the request, a decision will be provided in writing. A Grant 
Adjustment Notice (GAN) will be sent to your agency upon the approval of the grant 
Program Manager. Verbal approval is considered non-binding. Failure by the grantee to 
obtain prior approval may result in the disallowance of costs. 
 
7.2 Indirect Costs 
 
Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular 
project and are difficult to allocate. Indirect costs are commonly referred to as 
“overhead.” 
 
Examples: 
 

• Payroll Processing 
 
• Utilities 

 
• Maintenance Costs 

 
• Administrative Salaries 

 
• Depreciation 

 
 
The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission does not award grant funds for indirect costs.  
Even if the grantee has an approved indirect cost rate, these expenses are unallowable 
in Commission funded projects. 
 
 



1/14/04 18  

Chapter 8 
Time and Attendance 

 
8.0 Time and Attendance 
 
For personnel systems, the primary documentation concern is employee time and effort 
reporting. It is important to keep track of which employee  is doing what task in order 
to avoid cost disallowances.  
 
The chart on the next two pages shows the documentation standards for two OMB 
circulars. If agency requirements are greater then OMB Circulars, Agency requirements 
will take precedence. 
 

 
 
 
 C

ircu
lar 

OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for 
State, Local, and Indian Tribal 
Governments 
Attachment B. §11  
 

OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for 
Nonprofit Organizations 
Attachment B. §7 
 

Activity R
eports 

• Any employee involved in multiple 
activities or cost objectives must have a 
personnel activity report maintained. 

• The report must be prepared monthly 
and must coincide with one or more pay 
periods. 

• Reports reflecting distribution  of the 
activity of each employee must be 
maintained. Each report must account 
for the total activity for which an 
employee is compensated. The report 
must reflect a reasonable estimate of 
actual work performances. 

• Nonprofessional employees fall under 
the same regulations as professional 
staff; however, additional information 
regarding how many hours per day was 
worked is also required. 

• The report must be prepared at least 
monthly and must coincide with one or 
more pay periods. 

Verification of Tim
e W

orked
 

• The employee must sign the report 
which outlines the activities for which 
he/she is being compensated. 

• Documentation must be signed by the 
employee or responsible official having 
first hand knowledge of the activities 
performed by the employee. 



1/14/04 19  

Single Federal aw
ard or  

cost objective 

• Where employees are expected to work 
solely on a single Federal award or cost 
objective, charges for their salaries and 
wages will be supported by periodic 
certifications that the employees worked 
solely on that program for the period 
covered by the certification. These 
certifications will be prepared at least 
semi-annually and will be signed by the 
employee or supervisory official having 
first hand knowledge of the work 
performed by the employee.  

• No reference 

Budget Estim
ations 

• Budget estimations determined before 
services are performed do not qualify as 
support for charges for federal awards. 

• Budget estimations do not qualify as 
support for charges to awards. 

 



1/14/04 20  

Chapter 9 
Grant Adjustments 

 
9.0 Grant Adjustments 
 
The grant Program Manager can authorize changes in a grant through a Grant 
Adjustment Notice (GAN).  A GAN officially modifies the grant award and is just as 
binding as the Grant Agreement issued with the initial award.  Examples of 
circumstances under which the GAN are completed include: 
 

• A deviation from the approved budget, a budget adjustment. 
 
• Grant extension, this extends the time for the project to be completed. 

Requests for extensions must be submitted 60 calendar days before the 
award is scheduled to end. 

 
• Additional money is added to the project. 

 
• Change in the scope of the project. 

 
The grant Program Manager carefully reviews requests for changes to a grant to make 
sure they are in compliance with the OMB Circulars and to ensure that the grant 
program’s goals and objectives are addressed.  Changes are officially recognized once 
the GAN is issued with a date and number.  You will receive a copy of the approved 
GAN for your grant file. 
 
9.1 Budget Modifications 
 
Please refer to your Grant Agreement to check if your program allows you to make 
budget adjustments. 
 
If an award is less than $100,000 and the scope of the project does not change, prior 
approval to modify your budget is not required.  However, you still need to contact 
your program manager to inform him or her of the proposed changes and make sure 
that these changes are allowed under the grant program. 
 
If an award exceeds $100,000 and the cumulative changes between the approved 
budget categories exceed ten (10) percent of the total grant amount or change the 
scope of the project, you are required to get prior approval from your program 
manager.  Please check the Grant Agreement or any subsequent Grant Adjustment 
Notices (GAN), if the budget was revised after the award was made.  The Grant 
Agreement will show the amount of money in each approved budget category 
(personnel, fringe benefits, consultants/contracts, travel, equipment and operating 
expenses). 
 



1/14/04 21  

The ten (10) percent rule applies to awards that exceed $100,000 or any award that 
has a change in scope. 
 
To obtain a budget modification, you must submit a written (mail, fax or email) request 
to your program manager.  The request should explain the reason for the budget 
modification and clearly indicate how the money is being reallocated and for what it will 
be used.  It should also include a chart that shows the new budget.  The chart should 
have four columns. 
 
Example: 

Budget Category 
 
Personnel Expenses 
Overtime 
Employee Related Expenses 
Consultants/Contractual 
Travel In-State 
Travel Out -of-State 
Operating Expenses 
Equipment  
TOTAL 

Current 
Budget  

 
$40,000 
$6,000 

$15,000 
$20,000 
$15,000 

Not Approved 
$1,500 
$2,500 

$100,000 

Change 
(+/-

) 
$0 

($4,000) 
$0 

$10,000 
($10,000) 

$0 
$1,500 
$2,500 

Revised 
Budget  

 
$40,000 
$2,000 

$15,000 
$30,000 
$5,000 

$0 
$3,000 
$5,000 

$100,000 

 
This example requires the grantee to seek prior approval because the change exceeds 
ten (10) percent. The cumulative change amount for this example equals $14,000, 
therefore prior approval is required. 
 
If your budget modification request is approved, you will receive a Grant Adjustment 
Notice (GAN) that shows the new approved budget for the grant.  The grantee agency 
must be current with all programmatic and financial reports for the budget modification 
to be approved. 
 
9.2 Budget Modification Request for Equipment 
 
The Grant Agreement may contain a statement indicating that prior approval is required 
for the purchase of equipment.  Request for equipment must be made in writing (mail, 
fax or email) to your program manager. The request must include the type of 
equipment to be purchased, how it will be used, the cost, what budget category the 
money will come from and why the money is no longer needed in that category.  It is 
important to note that equipment must be placed into service and used during the 
award period purchased.  
 
 
Reference: 
Office of the Comptroller Financial Guide 



1/14/04 22  

Chapter 10 
Procurement 

 
10.0 Procurement 
 
Subgrantees shall follow the same policies and procedures for Commission funds as 
used for procurement from other sources. It is strongly recommended that the grantee 
contact their procurement department prior to expenditure of funds from any 
Commission grant to ensure all expenditures are in accordance with approved polices 
and procedures. 
 
10.1 Competition 
 
All procurement transactions, whether negotiated or competitively bid and without 
regard to dollar value or funding source, shall be conducted in a manner so as to 
provide maximum open and free competition.  All sole-source procurements in excess 
of $100,000 must receive prior approval of  the grant Program Manager. 
 
10.2 Federal Funds 
 
Grantees receiving federal funds shall follow the appropriate OMB Circular that pertains 
to their agency to determine allowable and unallowable costs.  Please refer to Circulars 
A-21, A-87, and A-122. 

 
10.3 Debarment and Suspension 
 
Per the Commission Grant Agreement and the OJP Financial Guide, subgrantees are 
prohibited from conducting business with vendors who have been placed on the 
Suspension and Disbarment List.  Prior to making a transaction with a vendor, the 
grantee must ensure the vendor is in good standing with the Federal government.   
 
A current listing of suspended and disbarred vendors can be located at  
http://epls.arnet.gov 
 
10.4 Acquisition of Property and Equipment 
 
Subgrantees are required to be prudent in the acquisition and management of property 
purchased with Commission grant funds whether federal or state funded.  Careful 
screening should take place before acquiring property in order to ensure that it is 
needed.  All equipment purchases not previously approved in the Grant Agreement  
must be pre-approved in writing by the grant Program Manager prior to the expenditure 
of grant funds. 
 
Grantees are advised to work with their procurement departments prior to any purchase 
of property or equipment.  For hardware and software guidelines see Appendix E. 

http://epls.arnet.gov


1/14/04 23  

Commission grant funds CANNOT be used for land acquisition. 

10.5 Management of Property and Equipment 

Capital Outlays are determined to be equipment purchases of $5,000 or more with a 
useful life of more than one year.  If an agency has a lower capital policy, the agency 
policy will govern. 

Property records must be maintained and include the following information: 

• Description of the property;  
• Serial number or other identification number;  
• Source of the property;  
• Identification of title holder;  
• Acquisition date;  
• Cost of the property;  
• Percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property;  
• Location of the property;  
• Use and condition of the property; and  
• Disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price. 

A physical inventory of the property must be taken, and the results reconciled with the 
agency’s property records, at least once every two years. 

A control system must exist to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage or 
theft of property.  Subgrantees are responsible for replacing or repairing the property 
which is willfully or negligently lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed. Any loss, damage, 
or theft of the property must be investigated and fully documented and made part of 
the official project records. 

Adequate maintenance procedures must exist to keep the property in good condition.  

Records for equipment shall be retained for a period of five years from the date of the 
disposition. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the five-
year period, the records shall be retained until all litigations, claims, or audit findings 
involving the records have been resolved. 

10.6 Disposition of Property and Equipment 

Items with a current per unit fair market value of less than $5,000 may be retained, 
sold, or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the Commission.  Disposal of 
equipment must be in accordance with the State procedures. 

When the fair market value is more than $5,000 at the time of disposal, please contact 
your grant Program Manager for further instruction. 



1/14/04 24  

In addition to the Commission Grant Agreement, grantees receiving federal funds must 
follow the guidelines set forth in the OJP Financial Guide. 

Grantees must also follow their own established policies and procedures when acquiring 
property and equipment. 

 

 
 



1/14/04 25  

Chapter 11 
Confidential Funds 

 
11.0 Confidential Funds 
 
Confidential funds are those monies allocated to: 
 

a. Purchase of Services (P/S). This category includes travel or transportation 
of a non-Federal officer or an informant; the lease of an apartment, 
business front, luxury-type automobiles, aircraft or boat, or similar effects 
to create or establish the appearance of affluence; and/or meals, 
beverages, entertainment, and similar expenses (including buy money 
and flash rolls, etc.) for undercover purposes, within reasonable limits. 

 
b. Purchase of Evidence (P/E). This category is for the purchase of evidence 

and/or contraband, such as narcotics and dangerous drugs, firearms, 
stolen property, counterfeit tax stamps etc., required to determine the 
existence of a crime or to establish the identity of a participant in a crime. 

 
c. Purchase of Specific Information (P/I). This category includes the 

payment of monies to an informant for specific information. All other 
informant expenses would be classified under P/S and charged 
accordingly.  

11.1 Allocation of Funds 

These funds should only be allocated when: 

a. The particular merits of a program/investigation warrant the expenditure 
of these funds. 

b. Requesting agencies are unable to obtain these funds from other sources. 

Confidential funds are subject to prior approval by the Commission as indicated in the 
Grant Agreement. Such approval will be based on a finding that they are a reasonable 
and necessary element of project operations. In this regard, the approving agency must 
also ensure that the controls over disbursement of confidential funds are adequate to 
safeguard against the misuse of such funds. 

11.2 Confidential Funds Certification 

A signed certification that the Project Director has read, understands, and agrees to 
abide by these provisions is required from all projects that are involved with confidential 
funds from either Federal or matching funds. The signed certification must be submitted 
at the time of grant application.  



1/14/04 26  

11.3 Written Procedures 
 
Each project agency authorized to disburse confidential funds must develop and follow 
internal procedures which incorporate the elements listed below. Deviations from these 
elements require prior approval of the grant Program Manager. 
 

a. Imprest Fund. The funds authorized will be established in an imprest fund 
which is controlled by a bonded cashier. 

 
b. Advance of Funds. The supervisor of the unit to which the imprest fund is 

assigned must authorize all advances of funds for the purchase of 
information. Such authorization must specify the information to be 
received, the amount of expenditures, and the assumed name of 
informant. 

 
c. Informant Files. Information files are confidential files of the true names, 

assumed names, and signatures of all informants to whom payments of 
confidential expenditures have been made. To the extent possible, 
pictures and/or fingerprints of the information payee should also be 
maintained. In the Regional Information Sharing System (RISS) program, 
the informant files are to be maintained at the member agencies only. 
Project Headquarters may maintain case files. 

 
d. Cash Receipts. 

 
1. The cashier shall receive from the agent or officer authorized to 

make a confidential payment a receipt for cash advanced to 
him/her for such purposes. 

 
2. The agent or officer shall receive from the information payee a 

receipt for cash paid to him/her. 
 

e. Receipt for Purchase of Information. An information payee receipt shall 
identify the exact amount paid to and received by the information payee 
on the date executed. Cumulative or anticipatory receipts are not 
permitted. Once the receipt has been completed, no alteration is 
allowed. The agent shall prepare an information payee receipt containing 
the following information: 

 
1. The jurisdiction initiating the payment; 
 
2. A description of the information/evidence received; 



1/14/04 27  

3. The amount of payment, both in numerical and word form; 
 
4. The date on which the payment was made; 
 
5. The signature of the informant payee; 
 
6. The signature of the case agent or officer making payment; 
 
7. The signature of at least one other officer witnessing the payment; 
 
8. The signature of the first line supervisor authorizing and certifying 

the payment. 
 

f. Review and Certification. The signed receipt from the informant payee 
with a memorandum detailing the information received shall be forwarded 
to the agent or officer in charge. The agent or officer in charge shall 
compare the signatures. He/she shall also evaluate the information 
received in relation to the expense incurred and his/her evaluation 
remarks in the report of the agency or officer who made the expenditure 
from the imprest fund. The certification will be witnessed by the agent or 
officer in charge on the basis of the report and information payee’s 
receipt. 

 
g. Reporting of Funds. Each project shall prepare a reconciliation report on 

the imprest fund on a quarterly basis. Information to be included in the 
reconciliation report will be the assumed name of the informant given and 
to what extent this informant contributed to the investigation. Grantee 
shall retain the reconciliation report in their files and have it available for 
review unless the Commission staff requests that the report be submitted 
to them on a quarterly basis. 

 
h. Record and Audit Provisions. Each project and member agency must 

maintain specific records of each confidential fund transaction. At a 
minimum, these records must consist of all documentation concerning the 
request for funds, process (should include the review and 
approval/disapproval), modification, closure or impact material, and 
receipts and /or other documentation necessary to justify and track all 
expenditures. Refer to the documentation under “Informant Files” below 
for a list of documents which should be in the informant files. In projects 
where grant funds are used for confidential expenditures, it will be 
understood that all of the above records are subject to the record 
retention requirements and audit provisions of the awarding agency and 
program legislation. However, only under extraordinary and rare 
circumstances would such access include a review of the true name of 
confidential informants. When access to the true name of confidential 



1/14/04 28  

informants is necessary, appropriate steps to protect this sensitive 
information must and will be taken by the recipient, awarding agency, 
and auditing agency. Any such access, other than under a court order or 
subpoena pursuant to a bona fide confidential investigation, must be 
approved by both the OJP program office head and the Comptroller. 

 
11.4 Informant Files 

 
a. Security. A separate file should be established for each informant for 

accounting purposes. Informant files should be kept in a separate and 
secure storage facility, segregated from any other files, and under the 
exclusive control of the office head or an employee designated by 
him/her. The facility should be locked at all times when unattended. 
Access to these files should be limited to those employees who have a 
necessary legitimate need. An informant file should not leave the 
immediate area, except for review by a management official or the 
handling agent, and should be returned prior to the close of business 
hours. Sign-out logs should be kept indicating the date, information 
number, time in and out, and the signature of the person reviewing the 
file. 

 
b. Documentation. Each file should include the following information: 

 
1. Informant Payment Record, kept on top of the file. This record 

provides a summary of informant payments. 
 

2. Informant Establishment Record, including complete identifying and 
locating data, plus any other documents connected with the 
informant’s establishment. 

 
3. Current photograph and fingerprint card (or FBI/State Criminal 

Identification Number). 
 
4. Agreement with cooperating individual. 

 
5. Receipt for Purchase of Information. 
 
6. Copies of all debriefing reports (except for the headquarters case 

file). 
 

7. Copies of case initiation reports bearing on the utilization of the 
informant (except for the Headquarters case file). 

 
8. Copies of statements signed by the informant (unsigned copies will 

be placed in appropriate investigative files). 



1/14/04 29  

 
9. Any administrative correspondence pertaining to the informant, 

including documentation of any representation made on his behalf 
or any other non-monetary considerations furnished. 

 
10. Any deactivation report or declaration of an unsatisfactory 

informant.  
 
 

c. Informant Management and Utilization. All persons who will be utilized as 
informants should be established as such. The specific procedures 
required in establishing a person as an informant may vary from 
jurisdiction to jurisdiction but, at a minimum, should include the 
following: 

 
1. Assignment of an informant code name to protect the informant’s 

identity. 
 

2. Creation of an informant code book controlled by the office head or 
his/her designee containing: 

 
• Informant’s code name; 
• Type of informant (i.e., informant, defendant/informant, 

restricted-use informant); 
• Informant’s true name; 
• Name of establishing law enforcement officer; 
• Date the establishment is approved; and 
• Date of deactivation. 

 
3. Establishment of each informant file in accordance with 

Documentation, under 11.4.b (Informant Files)  
 

4. Review of all active status informant files on a quarterly basis to 
assure they contain all relevant and current information. Where 
MATERIAL fact that was earlier reported on the Establishment 
Record is no longer correct (e.g., a change in criminal status, 
means of locating him/her, etc.), a supplemental establishing 
report should be submitted with the correct entry. 

 
5. A search of all available criminal indices for informants being 

established. If a verified FBI number is available, request a copy of 
the criminal  records from the FBI. Where a verified FBI number is 
not available, the  informant should be fingerprinted, with a copy 
sent to the FBI and appropriate State authorities for analysis. The 



1/14/04 30  

informant may be utilized on a provisional basis while awaiting a 
response from the FBI.  

 
d. Payment to Informants 
 

1. Any person who is to receive payments charged against PE/PI 
funds should be established as an informant. This includes persons 
who may otherwise be categorized as sources of information or 
informants under the control of another agency. The amount of 
payments should be commensurate with the value of services 
and/or information provided and should be based on the following 
factors: 

 
• The level of the targeted individual, organization, or 

operation; 
• The amount of the actual or potential seizure; and 
• The significance of the contribution made by the informant 

to the desired objectives. 
 

2. There are various circumstances in which payments to informants 
may be made: 

 
•  Payments for Information and/or Active Participation. When 

an informant assists in developing an investigation, either 
through supplying information or actively participating in it, 
he/she may be paid for his/her service either in a lump sum 
or in staggered payments. Payments for information leading 
to a seizure, with no defendants, should be held to a 
minimum. 

• Payment for Informant Protection. When an informant needs 
protection, law enforcement agencies may absorb the 
expenses of relocation. These expenses may include travel 
for the informant and his/her immediate family, movement 
and/or storage of household goods, and living expenses at 
the new location for a specific period of time (not to exceed 
six months). Payments for these expenses may be either 
lump sum or as they occur and should not exceed the 
amounts authorized by law enforcement employees for these 
activities. 

 
• Payments to Informants of Another Agency. To use or pay 

another agency’s informant, he/she should be established as 
an informant. These payments should not be a duplication of 
a payment from another agency; however, sharing a 
payment is acceptable. 



1/14/04 31  

 
3. Documentation of payments to informants is critical and should be 

accomplished on a receipt for purchase of information. Payment 
should be made and witnessed by two law enforcement officers 
and authorized payment amounts should be established and 
reviewed by a least the first line supervisory level. In unusual 
circumstances, a non-officer employee or an office of another law 
enforcement agency may serve as a witness. In all instances, the 
original receipt must be submitted to the Project Director for review 
and recordkeeping. 

 
11.5 Accounting and Control Procedures 
 
Special accounting and control procedures should govern the use and handling of 
confidential expenditures as described below: 
 

a. It is important that expenditures which conceptually should be charged to  
PE/PI/PS are in fact so charged. It is only in this manner that these funds 
may be properly managed at all levels and accurate forecasts of projected 
needs be made. 

b. Each law enforcement entity should apportion its PE/PI/PS allowance 
throughout its jurisdiction. 

c. Headquarters management should establish guidelines authorizing 
officers to spend up to a predetermined limit of their total allowance on 
any one investigation.  

d. In exercising his/her authority to approve these expenditures, the 
supervisor should consider: 

 
• The significance of the investigation; 
• The need for this expenditure to further that investigation; and 
• Anticipated expenditures in other investigations. Funds for PE/PI/PS 

expenditures should be advanced to the officer for a specific 
purpose. If they are not expended for that purpose, they should be 
returned to the cashier. They should not be used for another 
purpose without first returning them and repeating the 
authorization and advance process based on the new purpose. 

 
e. Funds for PE/PI/PS expenditure should be advanced to the officer on a 

suitable receipt form. A receipt for purchase of information or a voucher 
for purchase of evidence should be completed to document funds used in 
the purchase of evidence or funds paid or advanced to an informant. 

 
f. For security purposes, there should be a 48-hour limit on the amount of 

time funds advance for PE/PI/PS expenditure may be held outstanding. If 
it becomes apparent at any point within the 48-hour period that the 



1/14/04 32  

expenditure will not materialize, then the funds should be returned to the 
advancing cashier as soon as possible. An extension to the 48-hour limit 
may be granted by the level of management that approved the advance. 
Factors to consider in granting such an extension are the amount of funds 
involved, the degree of security under which the funds are being held, 
how long an extension is required, and the significance of the 
expenditure. Such extensions are generally limited to 48 hours.  

 
Recipients should consult with the program office prior to determining the 
final course of action. Beyond this, the funds should be returned and re-
advanced, if necessary. Regardless of circumstances, within 48 hours of 
the advance, the fund cashier should be presented with either the 
unexpended funds, an executed voucher for payment for information or 
purchase of evidence, or written notification by management that an 
extension has been granted. 

 
g. Purchase of Services (P/S) expenditures, when not endangering the safety 

of the officer or informant, need to be supported by canceled tickets, 
receipts, lease agreements, etc. If not available, the office head, or 
his/her immediate subordinate, must certify that the expenditures were 
necessary and justify why supporting documents were not obtained.  

 
 



1/14/04 33  

Chapter 12 
Standards for Financial Management Systems 

 
12.0 Standards for Financial Management Systems 
 
The financial responsibility of grantees must be such that the grantee can properly 
discharge the public trust which accompanies the authority to expend public funds.  
All recipients are required to establish and maintain accounting systems and financial 
records to accurately account for funds awarded to them.  These records shall include 
both grant funds and matching funds of state, local and private organizations when 
applicable. 
 
12.1 Accounting System 
 
 An efficient accounting system should meet the following criteria: 
 

a. Accounting records should provide information needed to adequately 
identify the receipt of funds under each grant awarded and the 
expenditure of funds for each grant. 

 
b. Entries in accounting records should refer to subsidiary records and/or 

documentation which support the entry and which can be readily located. 
 

c. The accounting system should provide accurate and current financial 
reporting information. 

 
d. The accounting system should be integrated with an adequate system of 

internal controls to safeguard the funds and assets covered, check the 
accuracy and reliability of accounting data, promote operational efficiency 
and encourage adherence to prescribed management policies. 

 
e. Presents and classifies projected historical cost of the grant as required 

for budgetary and evaluation purposes. 
 

f. Provides financial data for planning, control, measurement and evaluation 
of direct and indirect costs. The Commission does not award grant funds 
for indirect costs.  Even if the grantee has an approved indirect cost rate, 
these expenses are unallowable in Commission funded projects. 

 
g. New Commission Grantees will be required to complete the Accounting 

System and Financial Capability Questionnaire in Appendix F 
 

 
 
 



1/14/04 34  

 
12.2 Total Cost Budgeting and Accounting 
 
Accounting for all funds awarded by the granting agency shall be structured and 
executed on a “total program cost” basis.  That is, total program costs, including 
federal, state and local matching shares and any other fund sources included in the 
approved project budget or received as program income shall be the foundation for 
fiscal administration and accounting. 
 
12.3 Commingling of Funds 
 
The accounting system must ensure that agency funds are not commingled with grant 
funds.  Each grant award must be accounted for separately. Grantees are prohibited 
from commingling funds on either a program-by-program or project-by-project basis. 
 
Funds specifically budgeted and/or received for one project may not be used to support 
another. 



1/14/04 35  

Chapter 13 
On-site Monitoring and Assistance Visits 

 
13.0 On-site Monitoring and Assistance Visits 
 
Pass-through entities, such as the Commission, are responsible for monitoring grants 
and providing reasonable assurance that: 
 

a. Grant funds are expended in ways that meet provisions of pertinent 
statutes, regulations, agency administrative requirements, relevant Office 
of Management and Budget (OMB) circulars and the term of the award 
notice. 

 
b. Adequate progress is being made toward achieving the projects goals and 

objectives. 
 
The purpose of an on-site monitoring and assistance visit is to ensure the success of a 
project and to identify problems before they become serious, and to document changes 
and trends in conditions and strategies related to grant-funded activities. 
 
The Commission has developed two different types of site visits.  One is a financial 
review and the other is a programmatic review. 
 
13.1 Financial Review 
 
The financial review will consist of an analysis and evaluation of your office’s accounting 
system to ensure that it provides full accountability for revenues, expenditures, assets 
and liabilities. The Commission staff will check to make certain that there is proper 
segregation of duties.  
 
A review of all expenditures will be performed and evaluated to ensure they were made 
only for allowable services and were within the proper time period.  There will also be 
an examination of prepared financial reports to ensure they contain accurate and 
reliable financial information and are presented in accordance with the terms of the 
Grant Agreement. 
 
The following financial reports, as well as all original documents must be made available 
for review for the time period requested: 
 

a. Detailed revenue, expenditure and encumbrance reports; 
 
b. General ledger; 
 
c. Task force records for confidential fund expenditures; 
 



1/14/04 36  

d. Agency reconciliation reports; 
 
e. Payroll – list of employees paid by the grant, timesheets, etc.; and 
 
f. Check register, bank statements and cancelled checks if any. 

 
13.2 Programmatic Review 
 
The programmatic review will consist of questions that deal with the administrative 
functions as well as questions that relate to activities that are supported by the grant 
funds.   There are certain questions that will be consistent between all programs such 
as: 
 

a. Do the project goals, objectives, activities and services continue to reflect 
those proposed in the grant application; 

 
b. Are the objectives time bound, observable, measurable, activity related; 
 
c. What kind of agency evaluation is being done that shows progress toward 

the goals and objectives of the program; 
 
d. If changes have been made, have they had prior approval of the 

Commission; 
 
e. Are performance or activity and financial reports submitted on time; 
 
f. Does the agency have a written code of conduct regarding the 
 performance of employees regarding conflict of interest; 
 
g. What type of information is included in property records and is a physical 

inventory of equipment taken and how often; 
 
h. What precautions have been taken so that there is no business being 

done with a suspended or debarred party; and 
 
i. How can the Commission staff assist you in the management of the grant. 

 
Additional program specific questions will be asked.  This list indicates what types of 
administrative questions may be expected during a site visit. 



1/14/04 37  

Chapter 14 
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan 

 
14.0 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan 
 
The purpose of an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) is to ensure full and 
equal participation of men and women in the workplace of the recipient agency, 
regardless of race, color or national origin.  A recipient agency is defined as any State 
or local unit of government or agency thereof, and any private entity, institution, or 
organization, to which Office of Justice Programs (OJP) financial assistance is extended 
directly or through a government entity such as the Commission.  
 
14.1 Criteria 
 
Recipient agencies that meet all the following criteria are required to maintain an EEOP 
on file for review by OJP, if requested.  (See 28 CFR §42.301 et seq.): 
 

a. have 50 or more employees, and 
 
b. received a total of $25,000 or more in grants or sub-grants; and 
 
c. have 3 percent or more minorities in service population (however, if less 

that 3 percent minorities in service population, and EEOP must be 
prepared, but must focus on employment practices affecting women 
only). 

 
Grantees that meet criteria (a) and (c), and that receive over $500,000 (or $1 million 
during an 18 month period) are required to submit an EEOP to the Office of Justice 
Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, 810 7th Street N.W., 
Washington  D.C. 20531  for review. 
 
14.2 Plan Acceptability 
 
Comprehensive guidelines for developing an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan can be 
found at 28 CFR § 42.301 et seq. For more information and a guide to the design and 
development of an Equal Employment Opportunity plan consult the Office for Civil 
Rights (OCR) website at www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr 
 
An EEOP must be developed by each grantee with 50 or more employees that receives 
an award of $25,000 or more either directly from the Office of Justice Programs (OJP) 
or as a sub-grant from a state planning agency such as the Commission.  Exceptions:  
Regardless of the amount of funding or number of employees, if the recipient agency is 
an educational institution, non profit organization, Indian tribe or medical institution, it 
is exempt and is not required to develop an EEOP. 
 

www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr


1/14/04 38  

Submissions of the EEOP vary depending on the entity type, number of employees and 
funding level of a grantee agency.  The following guidelines should be used to 
determine what information, if any must be submitted to Office for Civil Rights (OCR). 
 
An agency does not need to return any EEOP related information to OCR if it is a non-
profit organization, educational institution, Indian tribe or medical institution or is not 
receiving a signed grant or sub-grant award of at least $25,000. 
 
An agency must submit a Certification to OCR if it is receiving a single award for at 
least $25,000, but has less than 50 employees or has 50 or more employees and is 
receiving a single award for at least $25,000, but less than $500,000. 
 
An agency must submit a copy of its EEOP or EEOP Short Form to OCR if it is 
receiving a single grant award of $500,000 or more or an aggregate of grant awards for 
$1,000,000 or more during an 18 moth period and has 50 or more employees. 
 
All grantees must forward to OCR a copy of any finding for discrimination 
made against their agency after a due process hearing (within the past five 
years) within 30 days of such finding. 
 
 



1/14/04 39  

CERTIFICATION 
 
Grant Title: 
 
Grantee Name:     Contact Person:  Tel#: 
 
Address:      Award Amount: 
 
Grant Number: 
 
Date and effective duration of EEOP: 
 
Policy Statement: 
 

CERTIFICATION (EEOP ON FILE) 
 
Certification Statement: 
 
 I,________________________ (executive officer), certify that the 
___________________________(organization) has formulated an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan in accordance with 28 CFR 42.301 et seq., subpart E, that it has been 
signed into effect by the proper authority and disseminated to all employees, and that it 
is on file in the Office of _______________________ (name),_____________________ 
_______________________________________(address)________________________
________________________________________(title), for review or audit by officials 
of the cognizant State planning agency or the Office for Civil Rights,  Office of Justice 
Programs as required by relevant laws and regulations. 
 
 
    (signature)                      (title)     (date) 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
-  
  

CERTIFICATION (NO EEOP REQUIRED) 
 
I HERBY CERTIFY THA THE FUNDED ENTITY HAS LESS THAN 50 EMPLYEES AND 
THERFORE IS NOT REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN AN EEOP, PURSUANT TO 28 CFR 41.301, 
et seq. 
 
 
    (signature)                      (title)     (date) 
 



1/14/04 40  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
Grant Agreement



 

 

ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
GRANT PROGRAM 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

ACJC Grant Number (number) 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number  

 
This Grant Agreement is made this 1ST day of July, 2004, by and between the ARIZONA 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION hereinafter called “COMMISSION” and NAME OF 
JURISDICTION, through NAME OF AGENCY hereinafter called “GRANTEE”.  The 
COMMISSION enters into this Agreement pursuant to its authority under the provisions of 
A.R.S. § 41-2405 (B)(6), and having satisfied itself as to the qualification of GRANTEE; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties as follows: 
 

1. This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2004 and terminate on June 30, 2005.  This 
Agreement expires at the end of the award period unless prior written approval for an 
extension has been obtained from the COMMISSION sixty (60) days prior to the end of 
the award period. 

 
2. The GRANTEE agrees that grant funds will be used to provide services specific to each 

program as stated in the grant application. 
 

3. The COMMISSION will monitor the performance of the GRANTEE against goals and 
performance standards outlined in the grant application.  Sub-standard performance as 
determined by the COMMISSION will constitute non-compliance with this Agreement.  
The GRANTEE shall operate in a manner consistent with and in compliance with the 
provisions and stipulations of the approved grant application and this Agreement.  If the 
COMMISSION finds non-compliance, the GRANTEE will receive a written notice which 
identifies the area of non-compliance, and the appropriate corrective action to be taken.  
If the GRANTEE does not respond within thirty calendar days to this notice, and does 
not provide sufficient information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct 
the problem, the COMMISSION may suspend funding or permanently terminate this 
Agreement or revoke the grant.  Any deviation or failure to comply with the purpose 
and/or conditions of this Agreement without prior written COMMISSION approval may 
constitute sufficient reason for the COMMISSION to terminate this Agreement, revoke 
the grant, require the return of all unspent funds, perform an audit of expended funds, 
and require the return of any previously spent funds which are deemed to have been 
spent in violation of the purpose or conditions of this grant. 

 
4. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by the Executive 

Director or by persons authorized by the Executive Director on behalf of the 
COMMISSION and GRANTEE.  Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be considered to have been given when actually received by the 
following addressee or their agents or employees: 

A. If to the COMMISSION: 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attn: Program Manager 



 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)        Page 2 
 

 B. If to the GRANTEE: 
Address Block 

Attn: Title, First Name, Last Name 
 

5. For grant awards above $100,000, the GRANTEE may make budget adjustments of up 
to ten (10) percent of the total grant within any approved budget category excluding 
equipment.  If the GRANTEE wishes to make adjustments or reprogram in excess of ten 
(10) percent or purchase equipment, written approval from the COMMISSION in 
advance is required.  For grant awards less than $100,000, the GRANTEE may make 
budget adjustments within approved categories excluding equipment as long as there 
are no changes to the purpose or scope of the project.  If the GRANTEE wishes to 
purchase equipment, written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required.  

APPROVED LINE ITEM PROGRAM BUDGET 
Personnel Expenses 
Overtime 
Employee Related Expenses (ERE) 
Consultant/Contractual 
Travel In-State 
Travel Out-of-State 
Operating Expenses (Type: expense) 
Equipment (Type: name equipment) 
TOTAL 

 

Personnel Positions Funded: 
Position 1, Position 2, etc 

 
6. It is agreed and understood that the total to be paid by the COMMISSION under this 

Agreement shall not exceed ($) in Federal funds awarded to the COMMISSION by the 
U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, and/or ($) in State funds.  ($) 
in local cash/in-kind matching funds representing twenty-five/ten (#) percent of 
the total award will be supplied by the GRANTEE from the source.  

 
7. The GRANTEE understands that financial reports are required for reimbursement of 

expenditures.  OR The GRANTEE understands that grant funds will be paid in monthly 
allotments through the grant period of award. (NOTE: varies by program) 

 
8. Every payment obligation of the COMMISSION under this Agreement is conditioned 

upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such 
obligation.  If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this 
Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the COMMISSION.  No liability shall 
accrue to the COMMISSION in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
COMMISSION shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any 
damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)       Page 3 

 
9. The GRANTEE certifies that it will comply with OMB Circular A-102 Uniform 

Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments as codified in 28 CFR Part 66 and OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles for 
State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments. (Federal programs) OR The GRANTEE 
agrees to abide by State laws and provide accounting, auditing and monitoring 
procedures to safeguard grant funds and keep such records to assure proper fiscal 
controls, management and the efficient disbursement of grant funds. (State 
programs) 

Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html 
 

10. The GRANTEE  agrees to account for interest earned on Federal grant funds and shall 
remit interest earned in excess of the allowable amount as indicated in the Office of 
Justice Programs Financial Guide  and all unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION 
within 30 days of written request received from the COMMISSION.  The GRANTEE 
agrees to expend all encumbered funds within 90 days of expiration of this award. 
(Most Federal Programs except LLEBG) OR The GRANTEE agrees to remit all 
unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION within 30 days of written request received 
from the COMMISSION.  The GRANTEE agrees to expend all encumbered funds within 
90 days of expiration of this award. (State Programs) 

Link: OJP Financial Guide http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/ 
 

11. The GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, files and other records, 
(paper and/or electronic) relating to this Agreement and the performance of this 
Agreement as required pursuant to the approved record retention policy as mandated 
by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records Management Division in no 
event less than three (3) years.  All such documents shall be subject to inspection and 
audit at reasonable times. OR The GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, 
files and other records, (paper and/or electronic) relating to this Agreement and the 
performance of this Agreement for a period of five (5) years after fiscal year created or 
received.  All such documents shall be subject to inspection and audit at reasonable 
times pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214. (Victim Non-Profits) 

Link: Records, Retention and Disposition Manuals  http://www.lib.az.us/records/forms.cfm 
  
12. For the purpose of this grant, a capital expenditure is $5,000 or above.  If the 

GRANTEE’S policy defines a capital expenditure as less than $5,000, the GRANTEE will 
use its own policy. 

 
13. The GRANTEE agrees to follow equipment disposition policies outlined in OMB Circular 

A-102 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to 
State and Local Governments as codified in 28 CFR, Part 66.32 (e) (1-3) when the 
equipment is no longer needed for the grant program.  (Federal Programs) OR The 
GRANTEE agrees to follow its own agency equipment disposition policies when the 
equipment is no longer needed for the grant program. If the GRANTEE has no policy, 
reference the Uniform Accounting Manual for Arizona Counties authorized by the Auditor 
General for disposition guidelines and guideline development. (State Programs) 

Link: Uniform Accounting Manual for Arizona Counties http://www.auditorgen.state.az.us 
Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/
http://www.lib.az.us/records/forms.cfm
http://www.auditorgen.state.az.us
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html


 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)      Page 4 
 

14. The GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant 
funds and perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least 
every two years or more frequently based on GRANTEE policy. 

 
15. The GRANTEE agrees to keep time and attendance sheets signed by the employee and 

supervisory official having first hand knowledge of the work performed by the grant 
funded employees. 

 
16. The GRANTEE will comply with the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits of 

States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and provide the COMMISSION 
with the audit report and any findings within 90 days of receipt of such finding. If the 
report contains no findings, the GRANTEE must provide notification that the audit was 
completed.(Federal program) 

Link: OMB Circular A-133 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html 
 

17. The GRANTEE agrees that it will submit financial and activity reports to the 
COMMISSION on forms/format provided by the COMMISSION, documenting the 
activities supported by these grant funds and providing an assessment of the impact of 
these activities.  In the event reports are not received on or before the indicated 
date(s), funding will be suspended until such time as delinquent report(s) are received.  
These reports are submitted according to the following schedule: ( Some due 
monthly) 
Report Period: Due Date: 
July 1, 2004 to September 30, 2004 
October 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004 
January 1, 2005 to March 31, 2005 
April 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 

October date, 2004 
January date, 2004 
April date, 2005 
July date, 2005 

 More frequent reports may be required for GRANTEES who are considered high risk. 
 
18. The GRANTEE assures that it will collect and maintain information on victim services 

provided by ethnic ity, sex, age and disability. (Victim Assistance program) 
 
19. All goods and services must be received by the GRANTEE within 60 days of the 

expiration of this award. 
 
20. The GRANTEE agrees to obtain COMMISSION approval for all sole -source procurements 

in excess of $100,000.  
 

21. The GRANTEE agrees to obtain COMMISSION approval prior to the expenditure of grant 
funds for consultant fees in excess of $450 per day.  

 
22. The GRANTEE agrees to check the U.S. General Service Administration (GSA) Excluded 

Parties Listing Service as required by Executive Order 12549, as defined in 28 CFR Part 
67.510 for individuals, agencies, companies and corporations debarred or suspended 
from doing business with recipients receiving Federal funds.  The GRANTEE agrees not 
to do business with any individual, agency, company or corporation listed in the 
Excluded Parties Listing Service. (Federal program) 

Link: Excluded Parties Listing System http://epls.arnet.gov 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/index.html
http://epls.arnet.gov


 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)      Page 5
 

23. The GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Computer Hardware and Software Vendor Guidelines 
distributed by the COMMISSION when purchasing hardware and software with grant 
funds. 

 
24. The GRANTEE agrees not to use grant funds for food and/or beverage unless explicitly 

approved in writing by the COMMISSION. 
 

25. No funds shall be used to supplant Federal, State, county or local funds that would 
otherwise be made available for such purposes. 

 
26. The GRANTEE agrees that it is acting as an independent contractor and agrees to hold 

the COMMISSION harmless for the actions of the GRANTEE’S employees. 
 

27. The GRANTEE assigns to the COMMISSION any claim for overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services 
applied by third parties to the GRANTEE in exchange for grant funds provided under this 
Agreement. 

 
28. The parties agree to use arbitration in the event of disputes in accordance with the 

provisions of A.R.S. § 12-1501 et seq. 
 

29. The laws of the State of Arizona apply to questions arising under this Agreement and 
any litigation regarding this Agreement must be maintained in Arizona courts, except as 
provided in paragraph 28 of this Agreement pertaining to disputes which are subject to 
arbitration.  

 
30. The GRANTEE understands that grant funds will not be released until all required 

reports and reversion of funds from the prior year grant are submitted to the 
COMMISSION. 

 
31. The GRANTEE agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any indirect costs that 

may be incurred by GRANTEE for administering these funds.  This may include, but is 
not limited to, costs for services such as accounting, payroll, data processing, 
purchasing, personnel, and building use which may have been incurred by the 
GRANTEE. 

 
32. The GRANTEE agrees to comply  with the applicable laws and provisions of the (Cite 

Program Rules) program administered by the COMMISSION. 
 

33. The GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Data Dictionary, approved and distributed by the 
COMMISSION, as the data entry standard for information systems when improving or 
updating an existing Information System.  The GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Data 
Dictionary as the data entry standard in any new system or when an existing 
Information System is replaced. (government programs only) 

Link: Data Dictionary http://www.acjc.state.az.us  (Currently not available on-line. Call for 
copy, we will email.) 
 

http://www.acjc.state.az.us


 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)      Page 6
 

34. The GRANTEE should, to the extent possible and practical integrate their criminal justice 
records system with other criminal justice agency record systems in the state.  This will 
enhance the overall effectiveness of the Arizona Criminal Justice Records System.  
(government programs only) 

 
35. The GRANTEE should, to the extent possible and practical share criminal justice 

information with other authorized criminal justice agencies.  The process control number 
(PCN) shall be used in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1750 when sharing data with other 
criminal justice agencies as electronic data systems are developed or improved. 
(government programs only) 

 
36. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with all Federal Civil Rights Laws, including Title VI of 

the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended.  All applicable state laws of A.R.S. § 41-1463, 
and Executive Orders 1999-4 and 2000-4.  These laws prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex and national origin including Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP) in the delivery of service.  In the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or 
State administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process 
hearing against the GRANTEE, the GRANTEE will forward a copy of the findings to the 
COMMISSION. 

 
37. The GRANTEE agrees to submit an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan to 

the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs (OJP) (if grantee is required 
to submit one pursuant to 28 CFR 42.302), that is approved by the Office of Civil Rights.  
Failure to comply may result in suspension of the receipt of grant funds.  Copies of all 
submissions to or correspondence with OJP regarding this requirement must be 
provided to the COMMISSION by GRANTEE. (Federal programs) 

 
38. The GRANTEE certifies to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 

implemented in 28 CFR Part 67, Subpart F, for grantees, as defined in 28 CFR, Part 67 
Sections 67.615 and 67.620. (Federal programs) 

 
39. The GRANTEE agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, Immigration and 

Naturalization Form (I-9).  This form is to be used by recipients to verify that persons 
are eligible to work in the United States. (Federal programs) 

 
40. The GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that 

the project official is replaced during the award period. 
 
41. No rights or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by GRANTEE without prior 

written approval of the COMMISSION. 
 

42. The GRANTEE agrees that no funds provided, or personnel employed under this 
Agreement shall be in any way or to any extent engaged in conduct of political activities 
in violation of U.S.C. Title 5, Part II, Chapter 15, Section 1502. 

 
43. The GRANTEE certifies that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire 

any financial interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of service required under this Agreement. 



 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)      Page 7
 

44. The GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding 
privacy during the course of the award.  All information relating to clients is to be 
treated with confidentiality.  (Victim Assistance program) 

 
45. The Grantee certifies that no federal funds will be paid, by or on behalf of, to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into any 
cooperative agreement, and for the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.  If any 
funds other than Federal funds are paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal award, grant loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the GRANTEE will complete and submit to the COMMISSION Standard Form-
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.  (Federal 
Programs) 

 
Reserved for Federal Special Conditions per award 

46. Special Condition 1 
 

 
47. Special Condition 2 
 

 
48. Special Condition 3 
 

 
49. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 

 
50. This Agreement will be cancelled if not returned with authorized signatures to the 

COMMISSION within 90 days of commencement of the award. 
 
51. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid the remainder of the Agreement shall 

not be affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall be in full force and 
effect. 

  



 

 

Grant Program ACJC Grant Number (number)      Page 8
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed the Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

 
 

FOR GRANTEE: 
 
 

 
Authorized Signature        Date 

 
Note:  If applicable, the Agreement must be approved by the appropriate county 
supervisory board or municipal council and appropriate local counsel (i.e. county or city 
attorney).  Furthermore, if applicable, resolutions and meeting minutes must be forwarded 
to the Commission with the signed Agreement. 

 
Approved as to form and authority to enter into Agreement: 

 
 

 
Legal counsel for GRANTEE       Date 

 
 

Statutory or other legal authority to enter into Agreement: 
 
 

 
Appropriate A.R.S., ordinance, or charter reference 

 
 

FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION: 
 
 

 
Michael D. Branham, Executive Director      Date 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
Financial Report



 

 

 

 
 
 ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
 FINANCIAL REPORT 

Grant Number:«GrantNumber» 

Report Period: ___________________________________  

Name of Agency Submitting Report:  «Agency»                                                                                    

Task Force/Project Title: ________________________________________________________________ 
Please round to the nearest dollar. 

 Line #  Status of Funds  Current Period 

 A Total Outlays Previously Reported (Prior Report 
Line C) 

 $ 

 B Total Outlays this Period (From Page 2)  $ 

 C Total Outlays to Date (Line A+B)  $ 

 D Total Outstanding Obligations (From Page 2)  $ 

 E Total Outlays and Unpaid Obligations (Line C+D)  $ 

 F Total Grant Award Authorized  «TotalAward»   

 G Unobligated Funds (Line F-E)  $ 

H Interest Earned this Period**  $ 

 I Program Income Received This Period***  $ 
        Please round to the nearest dollar. 
 All interest, if earned, must be reported for all programs receiving federal monies.  

Amounts over$100.00 must be reverted to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission at 
the end of the grant period. Refer to Part III, Chapter 1; Page 33-34 OJP Financial Guide, 
2002.  The current version of the OJP Financial Guide is available at 
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/ to check if a vendor/contractor have a debarment or 
suspension as required in the Grant Agreement check the Excluded Parties Listing 
System web site at http://epls.arnet.gov  

 
CERTIFICATION:  I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this report is correct 
and complete and that all outlays and unpaid obligations are for the purposes set forth in the 
grant award documents. 
Prepared by:  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
    Typed Name/Date/Telephone/Fax Number 
 
Certified by:  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
   Signature of Authorized Official    Date  

 
ACJC- DCSI 6/03 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/
http://epls.arnet.gov


 

 

 
CURRENT REPORT PERIOD FINANCIAL DETAIL 

Name of Agency Submitting Report: «Agency»                                                                        

Report Period:_________________________________ 
Please round to the nearest dollar. 

 Expenditure Category  Period 
 Expenses 

 Outstanding  
 Obligations 

Personnel/Salaries $ $ 

Personnel/Overtime $ $ 

Employee Related Expenses (ERE) $ $ 

Professional/Outside Services(list below) $ $ 

In-State Travel $ $ 

Out-of-State Travel $ $ 

Confidential Expenses $ $ 

Other Operating Expenses $ $ 

Equipment: (See Budget Category Guidelines for definitions)   

               Capital  (List Below) $ $ 

               Non-Capital  (List Below) $ $ 

Total Period Expenses (Enter on Page 1, Line B) $  

Total Outstanding Obligations (Enter on Page 1, Line D)  $ 

Program Income Expenditures*** $ $ 

Total $ $ 
      Please round all line items to the nearest dollar. 
***Refer to Part III Chapter 4: Program Income; OJP Financial Guide, 2002 for explanation of Program Income. 

Type of Equipment Purchased: List Each Item Included Above 
(Written Approval is Required) 

Quantity Amount Each ($) 

v         
Capital 

?  
?  
?  
?  

Non- 
Capital     

?  
?  
?  
?  

 
Type of Equipment 

_____________________________________
___________________________ 
______________________________ 
___________________________________ 

 
 
_____________ 
_____________ 
_____________ 
_____________ 

 
 
______________ 
______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C 
Budget Category Guidelines



 

 

 
Budget Category Guidelines 

 
These budget category explanations and guidelines are to be used with the Commission 
financial report in the previous page. 
 

a. Personnel/ Salaries 
 

Regular Base Pay including  On-Call; Incentive Pay; High Risk (Hazardous) 
Duty; Shift Differential; Annual Leave; Sick Leave; Military Leave; Other 
Compensated Leave (Jury Duty, etc.). 

 
b. Personnel/Overtime 

 
Some grants do not allow for overtime. Charges for any time worked 
which is in excess of normally set limits (either straight or time and one-
half pay) including compensation time. 

 
c. Employee Related Expenditures (ERE) 

 
ERE includes insurance (FICA Taxes, Medical Insurance, Basic Life, Long 
Term Disability, Unemployment compensation, Dental Insurance, Workers 
Compensation); Retirement Plan; Uniform Allowance; Other Employee 
Related Expenditures. 

 
d. Professional / Outside Services 

 
Consultant Fees including Expenses; Education and Training (Payments to 
companies or individuals providing education and training services); Legal 
Services (Charges provided by lawyers); Engineering and Design 
(Engineering costs incurred prior to the construction phase). 

 
e. In-State Travel 

 
This category includes Airfare; Mileage-Private Vehicle; Motor Pool 
Charges; Lodging; Per Diem (Meals and Incidental Expenses); Other 
Miscellaneous In-State Travel. 

 
f. Out-of State Travel 

 
The out-of-state travel category includes Airfare; Car Rental; Lodging; Per 
Diem (Meals and Incidental Expenses); Other Miscellaneous Out-of-State 
Travel. 

 
 
 



 

 

 
g. Confidential Funds 

 
Confidential Funds are those monies allocated to the categories listed 
below. Some grant programs do not allow confidential funds. 

 
1. Purchase of Services (P/S)- Travel or transportation of an 

informant; the lease of an apartment, business front; luxury-type 
automobiles; aircraft or boat used to create or establish the 
appearance of affluence; and/or meals, beverages, entertainment 
(including buy money and flash rolls, etc.) For undercover 
purposes, within reasonable limits. 

 
2. Purchase of Evidence (P/E)- This is the purchase of evidence 

and/or contraband, such as narcotics and dangerous drugs, 
firearms, stolen property, counterfeit tax stamps, etc., required to 
determine the existence of a crime or to establish the identity of 
participant in a crime. 

 
3. Purchase of Specific Information (P/I)- This is the payment of 

monies to an informant for specific information.   All other 
informant expenses would be classified under P/S and charged 
accordingly.  

 
Confidential funds are awarded only if the merits of a program/investigation warrant the 
expenditure of these funds and requesting agencies are unable to obtain these funds 
from other sources.   Adequate controls over disbursement of confidential funds must 
be established to safeguard against the misuse of such funds, consistent with the Office 
of Justice Programs Financial Guide.  An approved Confidential Funds policy must be 
submitted to the Commission office. 
 
Web Link: Office of Justice Programs Financial Guide  
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/ 
 
 

h. Other Operating Expenses 
 

This category includes Insurance & Related Charges (Risk Management, 
General Liability); Information Technology including rental charges 
(Computer Equipment); Communications including rental charges 
(Telephone, Pager, Cellular); Utilities; Rent of Land and or Buildings; 
Repair and Maintenance (Buildings, Vehicles, Information Technology; 
Operating Supplies (Office, Data Processing, Fuel and Lubricants, 
Publications); Training Registration; Dues; and Other Miscellaneous 
Operating.  

 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/


 

 

To check if a vendor or contractor has a debarment or suspension from doing business 
with federal funds as required in the Grant Agreement check the Excluded Parties 
Listing System. This is important so you do not use a debarred vendor. 
 
Web Link: Excluded Parties Listing System  http://epls.arnet.gov 
 

i. Equipment 
 

Equipment is the cost associated with the purchase of vehicles, furniture 
telecommunications, computers, etc.   

 
1. Non-Capital Equipment: $1,000 - $4,999 and Technology 

Equipment $0-4,999 with a useful life of 1 yr or more. 
 

2. Capital Equipment: $5,000 or above, If the grantee policy defines 
capital equipment as less than $5,000 then the grantee must use 
its own policy. 

 
j. Program Income  

 
All income generated as a direct result of an agency funded project is 
program income. Program income should be used as earned and 
expended as soon as possible.  This includes but is not limited to sale of 
seized and forfeited assets and money. State and local units of 
government may use program income funds from seized and forfeiture 
assets as match. For additional information see the OJP Financial Guide 
Chapter 4: Program Income, and Chapter 10 in this manual. 

 
1. Program Income Earned this Period: Income received from the sale 

of seized and forfeited assets (personal or real property) or from 
seized and forfeited money. 

 
2. Program Income Expenditures: Program income shall be used by 

the grantee for any purpose that furthers the broad objectives of 
the legislation under which the award was made (i.e., expanding 
the project or program, continuing the project or program that 
furthers the objectives, obtaining equipment or other assets 
needed for the project or program, or for other activities that 
further the statutes’ objectives). 

 
Other Federal Grant Program materials that should be referenced are the OMB Circulars 
These, along with the Grant Agreement, will give guidance to manage your grant 
program. 
 
 
 

http://epls.arnet.gov


 

 

Web Link: OMB circular A-87 Cost Principles for Governments, A-122 Cost Principles 
for Non-Profit Organizations, A-102 Uniform Administrative Requirements for 
Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments and Indian 
Tribes, A-110 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements 
with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit 
Organizations. A-133 Audit of Federal Grants and Cooperative Agreements. 
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/ 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D 
Crime Victim Assistance  
Financial Report Sample



 

 

 
  

 

 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

Crime Victim Assistance Program 
 Fiscal Year 04/05  

Program Name: Victim Assistance    ACJC Grant #: _________ 
 
Agency Name: ________________________________________ 
 
Address:             
 
Contact Person:            
 
Telephone Number:      FAX Number:     
 
E-Mail: 
 
Quarterly Financial Report 
 
Report Period (Check appropriate box): 

q First Quarter  Jul 1, 2004 thru Sep 30, 2004 due 10/31/04 
 

q Second Quarter Oct 1, 2004 thru Dec 31, 2004 due 01/31/05 
 

q Third Quarter Jan 1, 2005 thru Mar 31, 2005 due 04/30/05 
 

q Fourth Quarter Apr 1, 2005 thru Jun 30, 2005 due 08/15/05 
 
Prepared by:             
    Signature of Person Completing Report   Date 
 
 
              
    Typed Name and Title 
 
 
Certified by:             
    Signature of Authorized Official    Date 
 
 
              
    Typed Name and Title 

(5/03) 
 



 

 

 
PART I - FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
 
PROGRAM NAME:__________________________ACJC GRANT   
  
    Provide budgetary information as requested below  
A. ACJC FUNDS     
 

 
 

Status of Funds 
 

Current Period 
 

1. 
 
Total Outlays Previously Reported (From Line 3 
previous quarters report) 

 
$ 

 
2. 

 
Total Outlays this Period (from pg 2) 

 
$ 

 
3. 

 
Total Outlays to Date (Line 1 + 2) 

 
$ 

 
4. 

 
Total Outstanding Obligations (from pg 2) 

 
$ 

 
5. 

 
Total Outlays and Unpaid Obligations (Line 3 + 
4) 

 
$ 

 
6. 

 
Total Grant Award Authorized 

 
$ 

 
7. 

 
Unobligated Funds (Line 6 - 5) 

 
$ 

 
B. FUNDS REQUIRED AS MATCH TO GRANT   
 (Report match up the required amount only.  Include value of in-kind 
 contributions, if applicable see note.) 

NOTE:  In-kind contributions are allowable as match for NEW programs only.  A 
NEW program is defined as an agency that began providing victim services on or 
after June 30, 2001.  

 
 

 
Status of Funds 

 
Current Period 

 
1. 

 
Total Outlays Previously Reported (From Line 3 
previous quarters report) 

 
$ 

 
2. 

 
Total Outlays this Period (from pg 2) 

 
$ 

 
3. 

 
Total Outlays to Date (Line 1 + 2) 

 
$ 

 
4. 

 
Total Match Funds Required 

 
$ 

 
5. 

 
Unobligated Funds (Line 4 -3) 

 
$ 

  
 
 



 

 

 
PART II - FINANCIAL DETAIL  

 Provide the following DETAILED Budget information.  
A. ACJC FUNDS   Round to the nearest whole dollar 
 

Category 
 

Period 
Expenses 

 
Outstanding 
Obligations 

 
Personnel 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
Employee Related Expenses 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
Professional/Outside Services 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
Travel 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
Other Operating Expenses 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
Equipment 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
SUB TOTAL 
 

 
$                        
Enter:  Pg 1, Line # 
A 2 

 
$                        
Enter: Pg 1, Line # 
A 4 

B. FUNDS REQUIRED AS MATCH  TO GRANT: 
(Report match up the required amount only. Round to the nearest whole dollar) 

 
Category 

 
Period Expenses 

 
Personnel 

 
$ 

 
Employee Related Expenses 

 
$ 

 
Professional/Outside Services 

 
$ 

 
Travel 

 
$ 

 
Other Operating Expenses 

 
$ 

 
Equipment * 

 
$ 

 
SUB TOTAL 

 
$                             
Enter: Pg 1, Line #  B 
2 

*Equipment Expenditure Detail 

Type of Equipment v  
Capital 

Non- 
Capital 

 
Amount 

    
$ 

    
$ 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Appendix D-1 

Crime Victim Assistance 
Financial Report Definitions / Guidelines



 

 
 
 

Financial Report Instructions/Definitions and Guidelines 
 
Each agency receiving victim assistance funds from the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission Victim Assistance Fund is required to complete the Financial Report at the 
end of every quarter.  Please ensure that the information provided includes only that 
part or percentage of your program which is funded by the Commission Victim 
Assistance Grant, and the funds required as match to be used in the program according 
to your Grant Agreement paragraph 6. 
 

• Respond to all sections of the Report. 
 
• Use a zero (0) in any space requiring a numerical response wherever no 

data exists. 
 

• Cover Page - Check the appropriate box to identify the time period for 
which this report is being submitted.  Note the due date of each quarterly 
report.   

 
• A completed report must be received on or before the due date listed. 

 
Definitions 
 
“Encumbrance” is an obligation in the form of a purchase order, contract, or other 
commitment which is chargeable to an appropriation or other authorized fund source 
and for which a part of such fund source is reserved.  It ceases to be an encumbrance 
when paid or canceled. 
 
“New Program” is an agency that began providing victim services on or after June 30, 
2001. 
 
“Matching Funds” are the amount of funds, other than Commission funds, required to 
be spent in the program as a condition of the Commission award.  Do not report above 
the required amount. 
 
“Non-Capital Equipment” is equipment with a value of $1,000 - $4,999, and technology 
equipment $0- $4,999 with a useful life of 1 year or more. 
 
“Capital Equipment” is equipment with a value of $5,000 or above. If the grantee policy 
defines capital equipment less than $5,000, then the grantee must use its own policy. 



 

 

Budget Category Guidelines 
 
Section A, ACJC Funds (Part I Financial Summary), requests information on the 
disbursement of ACJC Crime Victim Assistance funds only.  (Arizona Administrative 
Code, Title 10, Chapter 4, Section  R10-4-203) 
 

a. Line #1 - Total Outlays Previously Reported  
 

If this is the first reporting period, this line should be zero (0).  In 
all subsequent reporting periods, this amount will equal line 3 of 
Section A on Page 1 of your prior Quarterly Financial Report. 

 
a. Line #2 - Total Outlays This Period 

 
This information is the sub-total of "Period Expenses" of the current 
Financial Detail form SUB TOTAL (page 2). 

 
b. Line #3 - Total Outlays to Date 

 
Add line 1 and line 2 and enter results. 

 
c. Line #4 - Total Outstanding Obligations 

 
This information is the sub-total of the Outstanding Obligations 
column of the current Financial Detail form (page 2). 

 
d. Line #5 - Total Outlays and Unpaid Obligations 

 
This amount equals your total ACJC award amount.  The award amount is 
in paragraph 6 of your Grant Agreement. 

 
e. Line #7 - Unobligated Funds 

 
Subtract line 6 from line 5 and enter results. 

 
 
Section B, Part I, requires the grantee to list the funds used as the match and requests 
information on the disbursement of "Matching Funds”.  
 

a. Line #1 - Total Outlays Previously Reported 
 

If this is the first reporting period, this line should be zero (0).  In all 
subsequent reporting periods (in a given fiscal year) this amount would 
equal line 3, Section B, Page 1 of the previous Quarterly Financial Report. 

 
b. Line #2 - Total Outlays this Period   
 



 

 

This information is the sub-total of Section Period Expenses" as reported 
on the current Financial Detail, Section B, SUB TOTAL (page 2). 

 
c. Line #3 - Total Outlays to Date 
 

Add line 1 and line 2 and enter results. 
 

d. Line #4 - Total Other Funds Required 
 

Enter the total amount of "Match" required to be used.  The match 
amount is in paragraph 6 of your Grant Agreement. 
 

e. Line #5 - Unobligated Funds 
 

Subtract line "4" from line "3" and enter results. 
 

Section A, ACJC Funds (Part II Financial Summary), requests an accounting of expenses 
and encumbrances within each budgetary category of ACJC funds.  
 

a. Personnel 
 

Charges for time worked by regular employees paid through your payroll 
system. 

 
b. Employee Related Expenses 
 

Charges for payment of the employers' portion of FICA, health and 
accident insurance, retirement, etc. 

 
c. Professional/Outside Services 

 
Charges for outside services for non-employees to provide services.  
Example: audit costs, contract labor, etc. 

 
d. Travel 

 
In-State- This category includes Airfare; Mileage-Private Vehicle; Motor 
Pool Charges; Lodging; Per Diem (Meals and Incidental Expenses); Other 
Miscellaneous In-State Travel. 

 
Out-of State- The out-of-state travel category includes Airfare; Car Rental; 
Lodging; Per Diem (Meals and Incidental Expenses); Other Miscellaneous 
Out-of-State Travel. 

  
e. Other Operating Expenses 
 



 

 

Supplies, maintenance costs, operating leases, postage, etc.  Only those 
operating expenses approved in paragraph 5 of your Grant Agreement are 
to be included. 

 
f. Equipment 
 

Cost associated with the purchase of equipment such as furniture, 
computers, etc.  Enter the detailed information on equipment purchases in 
the box provided, check Non-Capital or Capital (see definition).  Do Not 
charge lease costs of equipment to this line.   

 
g. SUB-TOTAL - Period Expenses  column 
 

Add lines Personnel through Equipment and enter here.   
Note: This figure will reflect actual ACJC funds spent this reporting period. 

 
h. SUB-TOTAL -Outstanding Obligations column 
 

Add lines Personnel through Equipment and enter here. 
Note: This figure will reflect ACJC funds obligated (encumbered) for this 
reporting period. 

 
Section B, ACJC Funds (Part II Financial Summary), requests an accounting of expenses 
within each budgetary category of "Matching Funds" (R10-4-203 of the Crime Victim 
Assistance Program Rules). 
 
Note: Line definitions for Personnel through Equipment are the same as Section A, Part 
II on previous page. 
 

i. SUB-TOTAL -  
 

Add lines Personnel through Equipment and enter here.  This figure will 
reflect actual "Matching Funds" spent this reporting period. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix E 
Computer Hardware and  

Software Guidelines 



 

 

Computer Hardware 
 
In contracting with any computer hardware vendor, ACJC requires that the following 
guidelines be applied to your selection process if grant funds are used to purchase: 
 
• If the vendor is not a local company, please ensure they have a toll free 1-800 

telephone support number for you to call in problems. Ensure that their support 
hours cover your regular business day at minimum. 

 
• The vendor as part of their service should provide minimum 3 years parts and labor 

warranty. 
 
• An ISO9000 and/or current ISO vendor certification will ensure that the vendor has 

high quality standards 
 
• If you have PC hardware repair issues, ensure that the vendor has A+ certified 

technician on staff. 
 
• Use the guidelines provided by the Government Information Technology Agency 

(GITA) from the State of Arizona.  The guideline for Platform Architecture (P720) 
and Platform Infrastructure (S102) can be obtained from their website at 
www.gita.state.az.us in the category of Polices/Standards along with other helpful 
articles. Please note that in the GITA documents listed above, PC’s are referred to as 
Clients. 

 
• Purchase higher end PCs to avoid having obsolete machines prior to 3 years. 
 
• Assume your PCs as well as other computer equipment has only a 3-year life cycle 

at best. 
 
• The vendor should provide you with their own Internet Website to obtain 

information and product support. 
 
• The Vendor should be able to provide a 4-hour response time to emergency repair 

issues if there is an existing maintenance/support contract. 
 
• Whenever possible, work with vendors who have been in continuous business for at 

least 5-years and are showing a profit. 
Computer Software 
 
In contracting with any computer software vendor, ACJC requires that the following 
guidelines be applied to your selection process if grant funds are used to purchase: 
 
• The Vendor should have Microsoft Certified Systems Engineers (MCSE), Product 

Specialists (MCPS), or Certified Novell Administrators (C.N.A.), or certified UNIX 
Administrators to answer operating system, software products, and network 
questions. 

www.gita.state.az.us


 

 

 
• If the vendor is not a local company, please ensure they have a toll free 1-800 

telephone support number for you to call in problems. Ensure that their support 
hours cover your regular business day at minimum. 

 
• An ISO9000 and/or current ISO vendor certification will ensure that the vendor has 

high quality standards 
 
• The vendor should provide you with their own Internet Website to obtain 

information and product support. 
 
• The Vendor should be able to provide a 4-hour response time to emergency 

software issues if there is an existing maintenance/support contract. 
 
• Whenever possible, work with vendors who have been in continuous business for at 

least 5-years and are showing a profit. 
 
• Whenever possible, contract with vendor to obtain the source code for any custom 

software in case the vendor declares bankruptcy or becomes in any way insolvent. 
 
• Make sure that any vendor provides you with the hardcopy documentation as well 

as all proper licensing. 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix F 
Accounting System and Financial 

Capability Questionnaire 



 

 

 
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 

 AND FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 
 QUESTIONNAIRE 

1. If your agency or organization publishes a general information pamphlet setting forth the history, purpose and 
organizational structure of your business, please provide this office with a copy, complete the following items: 

1. When was the agency/organization 
founded/incorporated (month,day,year) 

 
c. Employer Identification Number 
 
d. Number of Employees 
Full Time:                Part Time: 

b. Principal Officers                           Titles 
 
 
 

 

 
 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM INFORMATION 
1. Has any Government Agency rendered an official written opinion concerning the adequacy of the accounting 

system for the collection, identification and allocation of costs under Federal contracts/grants?                       
?   Yes             ?  No 

 
a. If yes, provide name and address of Agency performing review: 
b. Attach a copy of the latest review and any subsequent  
Correspondence, clearance documents, etc. 
2. Which of the following best describes the 

accounting system> 
?  Manual  ?  Automatic   ?  Combination 

3. Does the agency/organization use a double-
entry system in accounting for program funds?  

 

 
 ?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

4. Does the accounting system identify the receipt 
and expenditures of program funds separately 
for each grant? 

 

 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

5. Does the accounting system provide for the 
recording of expenditures for each grant by 
component project and budget cost categories 
shown in the approved budget? 

 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

6. Are time distribution records maintained for an 
employee when his/her effort can be specifically 
identifies to particular cost objective?                                                         

 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

7. If the organization proposes an overhead rate, 
does the accounting system provide for the 
segregation of direct and indirect expenses?                           

 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

8. Does the accounting/financial system include budgetary controls to preclude incurring obligations in excess 
of: 

a. Total funds available for a grant?                                            
b. Total funds available for a budget cost 

category (e.g. Personnel, Travel, etc.)? 

?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  
 
  ?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure 

9. Is the agency/organization familiar with the 
existing regulations and guidelines pertaining to 
the cost principles and procedures for 
determination and allowance of costs in 
connection with Federal grants? 

 
 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

 



 

 

 
 

FUND CONTROL 
1. Is a separate bank account maintained for 

grant funds?                                        
 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

2. If a grant funds are commingled with 
agency/organizations funds, can the grant 
funds and related costs and expenses be 
readily identified? 

 
 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

3. Are the officials of the agency/organization 
bonded? 

 
?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1. Did an independent certified public accountant 

(CFA) ever examine the financial statements? 
 
        ?  Yes       ?  No      ?  Not Sure  

2. If an independent CPA review was performed 
please provide this office with a copy of their 
latest report and any management letters 
issued 

 
 
        ?  Enclosed       ?  Not Any 

3. If an independent CPA was engaged to perform a review and no report was issued, please provide details 
and an explanation below: 

 
 
 

4. If an independent CPA has never examined your financial statements, please develop and provide this office 
with a copy of the following financial statements: 

a. A detailed “Balance Sheet” for the most current and previous year; and 
b. A detailed “Income Statement” for the most current and previous year. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
1. Use this space for any additional information (indicate section and item number if a continuation). 

 
 
 
 
 

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION 
 
I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 
 
Signature  
 
 
 
 
Title 
 
 

Agency/Organization Name, Address and Telephone 
Number 
 
 
 
 

CPA CERTIFICATION 
The purpose of the CPA certification is to assure the Commission that the recipient can establish fiscal controls 
and accounting procedures which assure that grant funds available for the conduct of the grant programs and 
projects are disbursed and accounted for properly. 
Signature  
 
 
 
 
 
Title 
 
 
 

Agency/Organization/Firm Name, Address and 
Telephone Number 
 
 
 
 































































   

ARF-3822     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016-June
30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Independent Contractor Agreement 2016-17 Utility Assistance Programs (Contract No. 07012016-17)
with Arizona Community Action Association.

Background Information
This contract has been in existence between the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and the
Gila County Community Services Division, Community Action Program (CAP) for the past 8 years.

ACAA is a 501 (c) (3) non profit agency created in 1967 to address poverty across Arizona.  Through a
collaboration of nearly 300 organizations and individuals, ACAA develops and implements strategies to
address and ultimately eliminate poverty.

The Community Action Program was launched in 1964 as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson's
Economic Opportunity Act to fight poverty by empowering the poor.

Evaluation
Contract No. 07012016-17 will administer energy program funding from ACAA in the amount of
$102,341 to Gila County CAP to be used to provide weatherization services, utility repair and
replacement, utility deposits and bill assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this contract, Gila County CAP program will receive funding to
be used to provide eligible citizens residing in Gila County with services that promote economic self
sufficiency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this contract.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. 07012016-17) between the Arizona
Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila County Community Services Division, Community
Action Program (CAP), whereby ACAA will administer funding in the amount of $102,341, which will be
used to provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement, utility deposits and bill
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30,
2017.

Attachments



Contract No. 07012016-17 Revised
Exhibit A - Policy Manual
Exhibit B - FY17 Federal Poverty Guidelines























Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 

Arizona Community Action Association 
Home Energy Assistance Fund  

Policy Manual 
 

FY 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Table of Contents 

Mission ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

Purpose and Principles ................................................................................................................ 1 

Fund Sources Currently In Distribution ........................................................................................ 1 

Target Population ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Intake and Application ................................................................................................................ 1 

Grants Management System (GMS) ........................................................................................... 2 

Household Eligibility ................................................................................................................... 2 
Frequency of Assistance ...................................................................................................................... 2 
Household Members ........................................................................................................................... 2 
Household Income .............................................................................................................................. 2 
Income Eligibility ................................................................................................................................. 3 
Condition of Crisis ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Applicable crisis reasons ................................................................................................................. 3 

Document Verification ................................................................................................................ 3 
Identity Verification............................................................................................................................. 3 

Identity Verification Documents ...................................................................................................... 3 
Citizenship Verification (URRD and HEAF only) .................................................................................... 4 
Income Verification ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Countable Income Sources .............................................................................................................. 4 
Excludable Income Sources ............................................................................................................. 5 
Steps to Calculate and Verify Household Income ............................................................................. 5 

Payment Guarantee Process ....................................................................................................... 5 
Information Included in Payment Guarantee Requests .................................................................... 5 

Record Keeping .......................................................................................................................... 6 
Case Files ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

Documents Included in Case Files .................................................................................................... 6 
Maintaining Records ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Agency Reimbursement Process ................................................................................................. 7 

Payments Made to Ineligible Households .................................................................................... 7 

Fraudulent Information and Conflict of Interest .......................................................................... 7 
Relatives of Applicants ........................................................................................................................ 7 
Agency Employees .............................................................................................................................. 7 

Policy Changes and Clarifications ................................................................................................ 7 

Distributing Funds and Monitoring Balances .............................................................................. 8 

Monitoring/Audit Process .......................................................................................................... 8 

Cooperation ............................................................................................................................... 8 



Confidentiality............................................................................................................................ 8 

Non-Discrimination Policy .......................................................................................................... 9 

Appeals Policy ............................................................................................................................ 9 

Appendix A: URRD ..................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix B: HEAF ...................................................................................................................... 12 

Appendix C: Countable and Excludable Income ......................................................................... 13 

Appendix D: Instructions for Verifying Citizenship and Non-Citizen Legal Permanent Resident 
(LPR) Status ............................................................................................................................... 21 

ATTACHMENT 1:  PAYMENT GUARANTEE PROCESS ................................................................... 34 

ATTACHMENT 2:  PROGRAM SUMMARIES ................................................................................ 36 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

Mission 
 
The Home Energy Assistance Fund (HEAF) at ACAA develops and coordinates resources through 
education, advocacy, financial assistance, and local partnerships throughout the state of 
Arizona to help families meet their basic energy needs and move toward economic stability.  
 

Purpose and Principles 
 
This fund has been established to provide assistance to Arizona households needing assistance 
in managing their energy burdens.  The purposes of the fund include: 
 

 Alleviate crisis situations by preventing disconnection and/or facilitating 
reconnection of utility services 

 Supplement currently existing energy assistance resources 

 Identify new/additional sources of support 
 

Fund Sources Currently In Distribution 
 

 APS Crisis 

 SRP Bill Assistance 

 Southwest Gas LIEC 

 Southwest Gas Energy Share 

 Global Water LIRT 

 TEP Bill Assistance 

 UNS Gas & Electric Warm Spirit 
Fund 

 Utility Repair, Replacement and 
Deposit 

 Home Energy Assistance Fund 

 

Target Population 
 
Individuals and families throughout the state of Arizona, who find themselves in a position of 
economic crisis, are encouraged to seek assistance from a community partner organization with 
access to these funds.   
 
Local organizations under contract with ACAA to distribute these funds are encouraged to 
provide outreach services to increase awareness of this program among the target population 
who reside within the borders of their service area, including Native Americans living on tribal 
reservations.   
 

Intake and Application 
 
Local partner agencies should utilize efficient and accessible intake processes while serving 
clients at sites that are geographically accessible to all households in their service areas.   An 
appropriate intake/application form is recommended for use in the intake process to facilitate 
prescreening and client data gathering.  
 



 2 

Agencies should also provide low-income individuals who are physically infirm the means to 
submit an application without leaving their residences. 
 

Grants Management System (GMS) 
 
Appropriate data provided by clients in the application process must be entered into the Grants 
Management System (GMS) at the time of application or on a monthly basis by way of the GMS 
data integration portal (see the GMS User Manual).   
 

Household Eligibility 
 
Specific eligibility requirements for utility assistance vary by fund source.  Comprehensive 
outlines for these fund sources can be found in the Program Summaries attached to the end of 
this document (see Attachment 2).  The following eligibility topics apply to all fund sources. 
 
Frequency of Assistance 
 
Each household may only receive assistance from a particular fund source once in a 12-month 
period.  Clients may return within that timeframe to seek additional assistance, but are not 
eligible to receive assistance from the same fund source more than once in a 12-month period.   
 
Household Members 
 
Each person living in the home is considered a household member.  Income level and eligibility 
will be determined based on the entire household, including roommates.  Boarders, not related 
by blood or law to the homeowner, are not considered household members for purposes of 
eligibility determination.   
 
For clarification, boarders pay rent to someone living in the same home, while roommates pay 
rent to someone living outside the home.  Income from each roommate is counted toward total 
household income, while income from boarders is not. 
 
Household Income 
 
All income for household members 18 years of age and older must be counted toward total 
household income, as well as the income of all household members 16 and 17 years of age who 
do not attend school full time.   
 
In cases of domestic violence, the income and resources of the abuser are not counted as long 
as the client does not have access to the abuser’s income and resources. 
 
 
 
 



 3 

Income Eligibility 
 
Each fund source specifies an income threshold for households seeking assistance.  These 
thresholds are based on either the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) guidelines or the State Median 
Income (SMI) guidelines.  Updated information outlining these guidelines will be attached to 
community partner contracts and should be adhered to throughout the entire fiscal year.   
 
Condition of Crisis  
 
When required by the fund source, eligible clients must be experiencing a crisis in order to 
qualify for services.   
 
Applicable crisis reasons 
 

1. Loss or reduction of income or public assistance benefits or a delay in receiving 
public assistance benefits.  

a. Examples include: loss of employment, theft of income, serious illness which 
causes a loss of income, divorce, abandonment or death of a wage earner, 
reduction of benefits or public assistance monies. 

 
2. Unexpected and/or unplanned expenses that cause a lack of resources. 

a. Examples include: car repairs, medical bills, natural or man-made disasters, 
death in the immediate family, court fines.  

 
3. A condition that endangers the health and safety of the household.  

a. Examples include: lead poisoning, condemned property, infestation, 
domestic violence, asbestos, a medical condition that requires uninterrupted 
utility service for life-saving equipment such as oxygen machines, heart 
monitors, breathing machines, etc. 

 

Document Verification 
 
Identity Verification 
 
The identity of the applicant and all household members must be verified before services can 
be provided.  Any of the documents listed below can be used for identity verification. 
 
Identity Verification Documents 
 

1. Driver’s license 
2. Work or school ID 
3. ID card from health benefits or social service program  
4. Social Security card 
5. Voter registration card 



 4 

6. Wage stubs 
7. Birth certificate 
8. Family census card 
9. Other reasonable sources 

 
In addition, the utility service address must be verified to match the applicant’s residential 
address.   
 
Citizenship Verification (URRD and HEAF only) 
 
The Utility Repair Replacement Deposit (URRD) and the Home Energy Assistance Fund (HEAF) 
both require that the primary applicant be verified as a U.S. Citizen or Legal Permanent 
Resident.  Information concerning this verification process and a list of all federally accepted 
documents can be found in Appendix D of this document.   
 
Income Verification 
 
In order to determine the eligibility of applicants, all household income must be accounted for 
and verified.  The most recent 30 days (up to and including the day of application) of countable 
income for each household member must be verified.  This includes earned and unearned 
amounts.  In addition, gross income amounts (not net income) must be counted, unless 
otherwise noted.  
 
Some sources of income do not count against total household income.  The following lists 
include the most common sources of both countable and excludable income.  For 
comprehensive lists, please refer to Appendix C of this document.  
 
Countable Income Sources 
 

1. Earned income: employment, self-employment1 
2. Benefit income: SSA, SSI, TANF-CA, VA, UI, GA, 
3. Pensions 
4. Worker’s compensation 
5. Child support 
6. Work study 
7. Other unearned income: rental income, and endowments or legal settlements. 
8. Indian gaming commissions 

 
 

                                                             
1
 Net income will be counted for self-employment income (gross income less business related expenses). 



 5 

Excludable Income Sources 
 

1. Food stamps 
2. Medicare 
3. WIC 
4. AmeriCorps stipend 
5. Earned income of a child under 16 years of age, or of a child that is 16 or 17 years of 

age and is a full time student 
6. Income tax refund 
7. Cash gifts of $50 or less per month per household member 
8. Insurance payments 
9. Foster care payments and adoption subsidies 

10. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) benefits. 
 

Steps to Calculate and Verify Household Income 
 

1. Identify the 30-day period prior to and including the application date.   
2. Determine the number of sources of countable income received by all household 

members during this 30-day period. 
3. Determine the amounts of countable income received from each source for each 

household member during this period. 
4. Combine these amounts to reach the total, 30-day household income.  
5. Compare this amount to the chosen fund source’s income threshold, based on the 

number of household members. 
6. Verify each amount from each income source using documents provided by the 

client and preserve a copy of each document for the client’s file.   
 

Payment Guarantee Process 
 
Once a decision to approve a client’s application has been made and all documents have been 
obtained and verified, a payment guarantee can be initiated on behalf of the client.  Each fund 
source has its own point of contact for receiving these guarantee requests.  This information 
can be found in the Payment Guarantee Process Summary (see Attachment 1 at the end of this 
document).  Payment guarantee requests should include all of the information listed below. 
 
Information Included in Payment Guarantee Requests 
 

1. Account Number 
2. Customer Name on account 
3. Customer Address 
4. Guarantee amount 
5. Fund source (if possible) 
6. Name of case worker requesting the guarantee 
7. Name of organization requesting the guarantee 



 6 

Record Keeping 
 
The applicant has the primary responsibility to provide all required documents.  In situations 
where it is difficult for the applicant to obtain documents needed to complete the eligibility 
determination, the local partner agency should offer assistance to the client in obtaining the 
information.   
 
In cases where all attempts to obtain necessary documents have failed, a client affidavit form 
can be used to allow the client to attest to the validity of any eligibility information provided.  
The form must be signed by the client and cannot be used to verify U.S. citizenship or legal 
permanent resident status.  
 
Case Files 
 
Supporting documentation for each client application must be kept in individual case files.  Each 
file must contain all of the necessary documents to support the eligibility determination 
decision reached by the agency.  Case files for every fund source must contain the documents 
listed below. 
 
Documents Included in Case Files2 
 

1. Intake sheet with client info and name of caseworker 
2. Verification document for ID of client and for all household members 
3. Citizenship verification of primary applicant (for HEAF and URRD only) 
4. Utility bill (or receipts for purchases of fuel) 
5. Income verification 
6. Crisis documentation (if required by fund source) 
7. Client affidavit form (if utilized) 
8. Statement of truth and release of information form, signed by the client 
9. Copy of completed payment guarantee request 

 
Additional documents may be required by certain fund sources when indicated on the fund 
source program summary. 
 
Maintaining Records 
 
Local partner agencies are required to maintain supporting financial records, documentation, 
and statistical records for three years. 

 
 
 

                                                             
2
 Agencies may be granted reasonable exemptions from including certain documents in case files.  Contact ACAA staff for 

exemption requests. 



 7 

Agency Reimbursement Process 
 
All guarantees and payments made by local partner agencies on behalf of clients are eligible for 
reimbursement from ACAA on a monthly basis.  These guarantees and payments must be 
accompanied by complete and accurate applications recorded properly in the Grants 
Management System (GMS) in order to receive reimbursement from ACAA.  See the GMS 
Training Manual for clarification on this process. 
 

Payments Made to Ineligible Households 
 
If assistance is provided to an ineligible household due to a caseworker’s error, an over-
expended fund source, or if the client was found to be ineligible after the payment was made, 
the award will be honored and the partner agency will be responsible for repaying the award 
amount, using funds other than those provided to the agency by ACAA.  The partner agency has 
the right to appeal any repayment determination directly to ACAA.  
 

Fraudulent Information and Conflict of Interest 
 
If a client is found to be fraudulent in his/her application and the payment has not been sent to 
the utility, the payment must be stopped and the client appropriately informed. 
 
Relatives of Applicants 
 
Caseworkers are not permitted to complete applications for their own relatives to the first-
cousin level including step and in-law relatives.  Specifically parents, siblings, spouses, aunts, 
and uncles are to be interviewed by another caseworker or supervisor.  Upon request, and 
when possible, ACAA staff may provide application intake. 
 
Agency Employees 
 
Agency employees should not be denied the right to apply for and receive services through this 
program.  These individuals or members of their households may apply for assistance; however, 
a supervisor must conduct the application intake process.  Upon request, and when possible, 
ACAA staff may provide application intake. 
 

Policy Changes and Clarifications 
 
Revisions to any policies and procedures will be reviewed and approved by the ACAA Home 
Energy Assistance Fund Advisory Board and the ACAA Board of Directors.  All revisions will be 
sent to local partner agencies as they occur.  Partner agencies have the responsibility to update 
their own information as revisions are received.  Issues regarding policy and/or procedures 
must be submitted in writing. 



 8 

Distributing Funds and Monitoring Balances 
 
Local partner agencies are responsible for monitoring the ongoing balances of each fund source 
under contract with ACAA, throughout the course of the contract year.  All funds must be 
distributed to eligible clients by the end of the contract year and over-expenditures must not be 
allowed.  Any over-expenditure incurred by the agency must be repaid to ACAA using funds 
other than those provided to the agency by ACAA.   

 
Monitoring/Audit Process 
 
Partner agencies are responsible for ensuring that all policies and procedures are being 
followed.  ACAA staff will conduct an audit of application and case files during annual 
monitoring visits.  The following four, general elements are reviewed in every audit. 
 
General Elements of an Audit 
 

1. Accuracy of information 
2. Client eligibility, based on the fund source utilized 
3. Completeness of the client file (all required documents included) 
4. Timeliness and accuracy of the guarantee/payment process 

 
Cooperation 
 
Applicants must cooperate in all aspects of the application process.  Applicants must provide 
requested information or verification and complete and sign an application.  If the applicant 
refuses, the application will be denied.  The partnering agency should document the lack of 
cooperation by the applicant for proper notation in refusal of assistance. 
 

Confidentiality 
 
All information, regarding an applicant or recipient, is confidential and may be disclosed only 
for purposes of determining eligibility, providing services, or investigating suspected fraud in 
connection with the program.  Applicants authorize access to their records by signing the 
release of information form.  Anyone not authorized on the application must have the 
applicant's written approval to access information. 
 
Information that can be divulged must pertain to the eligibility of the applicant, and excludes 
items that do not address eligibility, i.e. personal details.  Inappropriate disclosure of 
information can result in severe disciplinary action, or could result in the suspension of the 
partnering agreement. 
 
Access to information by inappropriate, unauthorized individuals or parties shall be considered 
a violation of the individual's right to confidentiality.  The Contractor shall take reasonable steps 



 9 

to safeguard, secure and maintain the confidentiality of any and all individual information in its 
possession, and to protect such information from unauthorized access, use or disclosure, 
utilizing the same degree of care it uses to protect its own confidential information and, in no 
event, less than a commercially reasonable degree of care.  All records shall be open to any and 
all federal, state, and contractor auditors and/or examiners in the course of their regular audits. 
 
General information, policy statements, or statistical materials that cannot be directly identified 
with any individual or family are not considered confidential.  They may be given to, or provided 
by: agencies, helping organizations, or contracted parties (unless restricted by Arizona statutes, 
federal regulations, or court orders). 
 

Non-Discrimination Policy 
 
In compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Executive Order 12250, no 
individual in Arizona shall be excluded from participation in, denied benefits from, or subjected 
to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal funds because of: race, color, 
national origin, disability, religion, or sex, or sexual orientation. 
 
In compliance with the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, no individual shall be denied services or 
participation or be subjected to discrimination in any of its programs or activities on the basis of 
age. 
 

Appeals Policy 
 
The client/agency has the right to appeal a denial of assistance or an awarded grant amount.  
Appeals by the client must follow the policies of the intake partner agency and will be 
addressed by ACAA administrative staff. 
 
Complaints regarding the service of the administering agency, discrimination or other issues 
directly related to the administering agency and staff must be addressed to the office where 
the application was made. 



 10 

Appendix A: URRD  
 
 

Purpose of the Program 
 
The Utility Repair, Replacement and Deposit (URRD) fund was established by state law (A.R.S. 
§46-731) to provide assistance to low income individuals in crisis situations with deposits for 
utility services and to make needed repairs and/or replacements to existing utility related 
appliances or their systems.  In January 2007, A.R.S. §46-731 was revised to require abandoned 
deposits to be administered by a qualified fuel fund entity. 
 
The Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) administers this program through 
Community Action Agencies throughout the State.  Utility Repair, Replacement and Deposit 
assistance may be received only once in a 12 month period and may not exceed $3,000.00. 
 

Types of Assistance 
 

1. Deposits for Utility Services: 
Electric  Water 
Gas   Home Telephone 

2. Repairs to existing heating or cooling systems, water heaters, space heaters and/or 
home telephones. 

3. Replacements of existing utility-related appliances or systems when repair costs exceed 
replacement costs or when an appliance is found to be inoperable with repairs.  
Replacement appliances must have an Energy Efficient Star Rating. 

 

Guidelines for Repair/Replacement 
 
Ownership and Inspection: 
 
The applicant must be the owner of the appliance or system to be repaired and/or replaced.  
The following documents can be used to verify ownership: 
 

1. Purchase receipt provided by the client, or 
2. Statement of ownership, signed by the client 

 
A qualified individual of the agency may complete inspection of the needed repair and/or 
replacement. 
 
Payments: 
 
The client must indicate in writing that repairs or replacements are completed and satisfactory 
before the vendor receives a reimbursement for services.   



 11 

 
Payment for a repair or replacement should be made after the completion of work, inspection 
and receipt of appropriate documentation, such as an invoice. 
 
Appliances and Systems: 
 

Eligible Appliances and 
Their Related Systems   Ineligible Appliances 

  
Water Heaters     Televisions 

 Cooking Stoves    Radios 
 Microwaves     VCRs 
 Furnaces     Hair Dryers 
 Air Conditioners    Blenders 
 Home Telephone (Landlines Only)  Water Softeners 
 Evaporative Coolers    Cable TV 
 Refrigerators     Satellite Receivers 
 Washers/Dryers 
 
For any appliance repair and/or replacement not listed on the list of eligible appliances, please 
contact ACAA at (602) 604-0640



 12 

Appendix B: HEAF 
 
 

Types of Assistance 
 
The Home Energy Assistance Fund (HEAF) provides funds, which can be utilized to assist clients 
with utility costs as a supplement to existing fund sources or when other fund sources are 
unavailable.  In addition, this fund source may be utilized to assist clients in obtaining fuel from 
alternative sources, including propane, oil, wood, coal, and pellets.  It may also be used to 
provide assistance to clients whose utility costs are included in rental payments. 
 

Alternative Fuel Sources (Propane, Oil, Wood, Coal, and Pellets) 
 
Specific processes for assisting clients with alternative fuel sources will depend on numerous 
factors including the availability of these fuel sources in the partner agency service area, the 
types of vendors in operation, and the amount of demand for these fuel sources.   
 
It is important that standard, well-defined processes are established for each partner agency 
assisting clients with these fuel sources.  Agency partners are encouraged to work with ACAA to 
establish and maintain viable processes.  The following guidelines apply to all assistance 
provided to clients in obtaining these fuel sources, regardless of the individual agency process. 
 
Alternative Fuel Source Guidelines 
 

1. Clients must meet all eligibility criteria guidelines found in the HEAF Program Summary  
2. Maximum grant amount of $500 must not be exceeded 
3. An invoice or receipt of purchase must be included in the client file  

 

Utility Costs Included in Rental Payments 
 
The following guidelines apply to all assistance provided to clients whose utility costs are 
included in rental payments. 
 
Guidelines for Utility Costs Included in Rental Payments 
 

1. Clients must meet all eligibility criteria guidelines found in the HEAF Program Summary  
2. Maximum grant amount of $500 must not be exceeded 
3. A copy of the client’s rental agreement or a note from the landlord must be included in 

the client’s file 
 
 
 



 13 

Appendix C: Countable and Excludable Income 
 
 

Countable Income 
 
EARNED and/or UNEARNED income will be considered in determining eligibility for services.  The 
gross amount of income prior to deductions will be counted unless otherwise specified. 
 

Earned Income 
 
Earned income is defined as either cash or in-kind income received as compensation for wages, 
salaries, commissions or profit through employment or self-employment. 
 

Earned income includes but is not limited to: 
 

1. ARIZONA TRAINING PROGRAM (ATP): Salaries to handicapped persons working in a 
sheltered workshop situation are counted. Verbal or written verification may be obtained 
from ATP. 
 

2. BABY-SITTING OR CHILDCARE INCOME: Earnings from baby-sitting are counted as self-
employment income. Verbal or written verification may be obtained from DES or the person 
paying for the care. 

 
3. CAN OR BOTTLE SALES OR OTHER USABLE DISREGARDS: Income from these sales is counted 

as self-employment income. Client should have receipts for such sales. If receipts are not 
available, a signed and dated client statement would be acceptable. 

 
4. CONTRACT INCOME: Income received by individuals who are employed under a contract 

that states a specific length of time and a specific income amount to be paid during that 
time. 

 
5. HOUSEKEEPER OR HOME HEALTH AIDES: Income earned as a housekeeper or home health 

aide is countable. Verbal or written verification may be obtained from the employer. 
Income is only counted once, if living in the household and paid by the applicant. 

 
6. IN-KIND EARNED INCOME: Work performed by a client in exchange for room, board, or 

other needs is earned in-kind income. The employer will establish the monetary value of the 
service. A collateral contact or a signed and dated statement from the employer, or client 
can verify in-kind income. The employer may be, but is not limited to: 

a. A landlord who is providing rent or portions of the rent or utilities in exchange for 
work. 

b. A storeowner who gives goods, such as groceries, clothes or furniture in exchange 
for work. 



 14 

c. An individual who receives a car, tools, trailer, building material, gasoline, etc. in 
exchange for work. 
 

7. JURY PAY: Counted as earned income. Check stubs should be available to verify income. 
 

8. MILITARY INCOME: Wages received while in the military are countable. This includes: base 
pay (BP), Proficiency pay (PRO), rations (separate/leave), basic allowance for housing (BAQ), 
basic allowances for subsistence (BAS) and variable housing allowance (VHA) when 
considered an entitlement. Use the leave and earnings statement, when available, to verify 
the amount of earned income issued. 

 
9. RENTAL INCOME: Any monies received from rental of property, including boarders, less 

expenses, are counted as earned income if work is involved. 
a. Work includes, but is not limited to, managing rental property requiring 

maintenance, collection of rent or accounting functions. There is no time 
requirement for number of hours worked. 

b. If a person's income from rental of property does not require work, rent is 
considered unearned income. 
 

10. SELF-EMPLOYMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES: Self-employment includes but is not limited 
to, businesses such as grocers, craftsmen, taking in boarders, ranching, farming, swap meet 
sales, odd jobs, baby-sitting, can and bottle collection, janitorial, guide for hunting or fishing 
or any wholesale or retail sales. 
 
Clients are not considered self-employed if they work for a business or another person on a 
commission basis, unless the client reports and pays his/her own withholding taxes for 
state, federal and FICA. 

 
Acceptable verification for self-employment is: 

a. IRS Form 1099 
b. Ledger statement 
c. Client statement 

 
When calculating self-employment income, the client may deduct any business expenses. 
Gross incomes minus business expenses equals countable income. 
 

11. VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION (VR): Wages from VR sponsored on-the-job training (OJT) are 
countable. 

 
12. WAGES: Gross earnings from employment, prior to any deductions, garnishments, 

allowances or adjustments. Special benefits or deductions connected with employment 
earnings are counted as follows: 

a. Advances, bonuses and commissions must be counted as earned income in the 
month received. 

b. When tips are shown on the pay-stub and the household claims a lesser amount but 
has no record of actual tips received, count the amount on the pay-stub. 



 15 

c. When tips are not shown on the pay-stub, obtain the individuals’ written tip record. 
When not available, obtain a written statement from the household or contact the 
employer. 

 
13. WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT (WIA): Earnings from employment through WIA will be 

counted for persons age 18 and over. 
 
14. WORK STUDY: Earnings received from the following: Work-study programs, when the funds 

do not come under Title IV of the Higher Education Act; Veterans Administration work-study 
program. 

 

Unearned Income (countable) 
 
Unearned income is defined as income, which was not received as a result of the performance of a 
service, or earned from sources other than employment, self-employment or in-kind income. 
 

Countable unearned income includes but is not limited to: 
 

1. ALIMONY OR SPOUSAL MAINTENANCE: A court-ordered support amount, which a legally 
divorced or separated person pays to the spouse, must be counted. Verbal or written 
verification may be obtained from the office of the Clerk of the Court or Division of Child 
Support Services. 
 

2. ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS: such as General Assistance (GA) or Cash Assistance (CA) from this 
state, as well as, other states must be counted. 

 
3. BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS (BIA): 

a. BIA-General Assistance payments are public assistance and treated as any other 
assistance payments. 

b. Clothing allowances available to the individual, whether in cash or a voucher made 
out to the individual must be counted. 

c. Tribal Work Experience Program (TWEP) or Tribal Assistance Project Program 
(TAPP). Exclude any portion of the amount, which is an incentive payment. 
 

4. CHILD SUPPORT: Any payment received directly by the household from an absent parent or 
paid through the Division of Child Support Services or Clerk of the Court. Only the amount 
paid to the client is counted (CP) = child support payment. All child support income is 
considered unearned income. 
 

5. COMMISSIONS: Commissions received from a terminated source of employment are 
counted as unearned income. 

 
6. CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPLIMENTARY ASSISTANCE: Cash contributions must be counted 

as unearned income, if not considered as gifts or child support. 
 



 16 

7. INDUSTRIAL COMPENSATION: The amount of the compensation, after attorney's fees are 
deducted, is unearned income. The Industrial Claim award letter will verify amount being 
paid but will not verify the attorney's fees. 

 
8. INDIAN GAMBLING INDUSTRY: Per capita disbursements are considered income in the 

month received. Any amount remaining in a following month will be counted as a resource. 
 

9. INSURANCE: Insurance payments made directly to the insured must be considered income 
IF the money is not used to replace or repair insured items, such as car, roof repair, or 
medical bills. Insurance benefits, which are used for or are intended to meet basic daily 
needs, are counted as unearned income. 

 
10. INTEREST, DIVIDENDS, AND ROYALTIES: Any interest, dividend, or royalty payments, 

exceeding $50 in the 30 days prior to and including date of application made directly to the 
individual, are counted as unearned income. Funds left on deposit or converted into 
additional securities are a resource. 

 
11. LEGAL SETTLEMENTS: Legal settlements, less attorney fees and medical bills paid by the 

attorney out of the settlement, are unearned income in the month received. 
 
 

12. MORTGAGES AND SALES CONTRACTS: Payments received from mortgages or sales contracts 
are counted. Includes payment received from a reverse mortgage. 
 

13. LUMP SUM PAYMENT: Any form of income received in a lump sum payment, including but 
not limited to: 

a. Inheritance 
b. Winnings from lotteries, bingo, or any other form of gambling 
c. Insurance settlements including amount withheld as a lawyer’s fee 
d. Property Tax Credit 
e. Rebates/Credits 
f. Refund Deposit 
g. Severance Pay 

 
14. RENTAL INCOME: If the property owner does not perform any services in order to receive 

the income, it is unearned income. 
 

15. RETIREMENT INCOME: The payments from retirement funds, pensions, and annuities must 
be considered unearned income. 

 
16. SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION BENEFITS: SSA benefits (sometimes referred to as RSDI-

Retirement, Survivors, and Disability Insurance) are granted to eligible wage earners and/or 
their dependents or survivors and are counted as unearned income.  

 
17. SUPPLEMENTAL SECURITY INCOME (SSI): Monthly cash payments made under the authority 

of Title XVI of the Social Security Act, as amended, to the aged, blind, and disabled (A 



 17 

Federally financed public assistance program). The recipient need not have contributed to 
the Social Security Fund to be eligible for SSI benefits. 

 
18. STRIKE PAY: from unions to striking employees is not wages and must be considered 

unearned income. If there is no check stub, verification can be obtained by calling the union. 
 

19. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE (UI): Considered unearned income in the month received. 
The amount of income can be verified by a check stub or contacting the local UI office. 

 
20. VETERANS ADMINISTRATION BENEFITS (VA): Retirement, Survivors, Disability, and 

Educational Benefits are paid to veterans and their dependents or survivors. Only the 
amount of the benefit, which is actually received by the person whose income must be 
included, will be counted. 

 
 

Excludable Income 
 
Only the income discussed in this section will be excludable: 
 

1. Insurance payments designated to repay a specific bill, debt, or estimate, which cannot be 
used for other needs, is not countable 
 

2. WIC – Payments or benefits to persons participating in the WIC program (Special 
Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children) must be disregarded 

 
3. Retirement, pension, and annuity interest/dividends are not countable as long as the money 

cannot be withdrawn without penalty 
 

4. Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) work-study program. This includes monies provided for 
educational and living expenses 

 
5. Work study programs funded under Title IV of the Higher Education Act 

 
6. Any portion of an education grant or scholarship received by a household member 

 
7. Earned income of a child 16 and 17 years of age who is a full time student 

 
8. Earned income of a child under 16 years of age 

 
9. Cash gifts of $50.00 or less per month per household member 

 
10. Non-cash benefits provided on behalf of a household member but not paid directly in the 

name of the household member, including but not limited to vouchers for food, clothing, or 
housing 

 



 18 

11. Loans that need to be repaid 
 

12. Money that a household member receives and uses for the care and maintenance of a 
person who is not a household member 

 
13. Payments/vouchers received by the household from the State for the health/well-being of a 

foster child residing in the household 
14. Stipends from senior companion programs – VISTA, Title II, Title V 
 
15. Earned Income Tax Credit 

 
16. Income Tax Refund 

 
17. Reimbursements, e.g.; mileage, gas, lodging and meals 

 
18. Agent Orange Payments 

 
19. AmeriCorps Network Program payments for living allowances, earnings, and in-kind aid. The 

AmeriCorps Network Program includes but is not limited to: 
a. Arizona Conservation Corp 
b. Arizona Council of Centers for Children and Adolescents (ACCCA) 
c. Border Volunteer Corps (BVC), Mesa AmeriCorps Community Services 

 
20. Partnership Rural Health Office, University of Arizona, Youth in Action, Learn and Serve 

(NAU) Child Care Food Program payments 
 

21. Disaster or emergency assistance provided by the Federal Disaster Relief Act or comparable 
assistance provided by States, local governments and disaster assistance organizations 

 
22. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) – Some individuals residing in HUD housing are 

granted benefits either in the form of credits against their rent or as cash allowances. The 
cash allowance must be used for the purpose intended, (rental or utility obligation) 

 
23. Education and Employment: (a) Any wages, allowances, or reimbursement for 

transportation and attendant care cost, unless accepted on a case-by-case basis, when 
received by an eligible handicapped individual employed in a project under Title VI of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as added by Title II of Public Law 95-602 (92 Stat.  

 
24. Payments to members of specific Indian Tribes and Groups: 

a. Settlement fund payments and the availability of such funds to members of the Hopi 
and Navajo Tribes under section 22 of Public Law 93-531 (88 Stat. 1722) as amended 
by Public Law 96-305 (94 Stat. 929) (Note: This exclusion applies to the income of 
sponsors of aliens only if the alien lives in the sponsor's household.) 

b. Any distributions of judgment funds to members of the San Carlos Apache Indian 
Tribe of Arizona under section 7 of Public Law 93-134 (87 Stat. 468) and Public Law 



 19 

97-95 (95 Stat. 1206) (Note: This exclusion applies to the income of sponsors of 
aliens only if the alien lives in the sponsor's household.) 
 

25. Adoption Subsidies/Reimbursements 
 
Adoption Subsidy payments are federally, state, or locally funded assistance payments 
provided to children with special needs. These payments are intended to help a child whose 
special needs otherwise might hinder their adoption. Adoption Subsidy payments vary 
depending on the special needs of the child. Adoption subsidy payments are NOT 
COUNTABLE as income. 
 

26. Other: 
a. Compensation provided to volunteers by the Corporation for National and 

Community Service (CNCS), unless determined by the CNCS to constitute the 
minimum wage in effect under the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. 201 
et seq.), or applicable State law, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 5044(f)(1) (Note: This 
exclusion does not apply to the income of sponsors of aliens.) 

b. Any assistance to an individual (other than wages or salaries) under the Older 
Americans Act of 1965 as amended by Section 102 (h)(1) of Pub. L. 95-478 (92 Stat. 
1515, 42 U.S.C. 3020a) 

c. Amounts paid as restitution to certain individuals of Japanese ancestry and Aleuts 
for losses suffered as a result of evacuation, relocation, and internment during 
World War II, under the Civil Liberties Act of 1988 and the Aleutian and Pribilof 
Islands Restitution Act, sections 105(f) and 206(d) of Public Law 100-383 (50 U.S.C. 
App. 1989 b and c) 

d. Payments made under section 6 of the Radiation Exposure Compensation Act, Public 
Law 101-426 (104 Stat. 925, 42 U.S.C. 2210) 

e. Payments made to individuals because of their status as victims of Nazi persecution 
excluded pursuant to section 1(a) of the Victims of Nazi Persecution Act of 1994, 
Public Law 103-286 (108 Stat. 1450) 

f. Any matching funds from a demonstration project authorized by the Community 
Opportunities, Accountability, and Training and Educational Services Act of 1998 
(Pub. L. 105-285) and any interest earned on these matching funds in an Individual 
Development Account, pursuant to section 415 of Pub. L. 105-285 (112 Stat. 2771) 

g. Any earnings, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families matching funds, and interest 
in an Individual Development Account, pursuant to section 103 of the Personal 
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104-193, 42 
U.S.C. 604(h)(4)) 

h. Payments made to individuals who were captured and interned by the Democratic 
Republic of Vietnam as a result of participation in certain military operations, 
pursuant to section 606 of the Departments of Labor, Health and Human Services 
and Education and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 105-78) 

i. Payments made to certain Vietnam veterans' children with spinal bifida, pursuant to 
section 421 of the Departments of Veterans Affairs and Housing and Urban 
Development, and Independent Agencies Appropriations Act of 1997 (Pub. L. 104- 
204, 38 U.S.C. 1805(a)) 



 20 

j. Payments made to certain Vietnam veterans' children with spinal bifida, pursuant to 
section 421 of the Departments of Veterans Affairs and Housing and Urban 
Development, and Independent Agencies Appropriations Act of 1997 (Pub. L. 104- 
204, 38 U.S.C. 1805(a)) 



 
 

21 

Appendix D: Instructions for Verifying Citizenship and 
Non-Citizen Legal Permanent Resident (LPR) Status  
 
 

Definition of U.S. Citizenship  
 
U.S. citizenship is established at birth when an applicant is born in the U.S., its territories, or 
possessions. U.S. territories or possessions include any of the following:  
 

 American Samoa  

 Guam - on or after January 17, 1917  

 Northern Mariana Islands-on or after November 4, 1986  

 Panama Canal Zone –on or after February 26, 1904  
 Puerto Rico - on or after July 1st, 2010 (Senate Bill 1182, Law #191 of 2009)  

 Swain Islands  

 U.S. Virgin Islands - on or after January 17, 1917  

 

Verification of U.S. Citizenship  
 
TO BE POTENTIALLY ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS WHO DECLARE U.S. CITIZENSHIP OR LEGAL RESIDENT 
STATUS MUST PROVIDE DOCUMENTATION FOR VERIFYING, WITH THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS:  
 
The following participants are exempt if they are receiving the following services:  
 

 Currently receiving Social Security Disability (SSD)...  

 Currently receiving Supplemental Security Income (SSI). This includes participants who move 
here from another state and are in the process of transferring their SSI benefits to Arizona.  

 Currently receiving Medicare (g).  

 Eligible in the Deemed Newborn MA category.  

 Children in Foster Care assisted under title IV-8 of the Social Security Act. Children who are 
recipients of Foster Care maintenance or adoption assistance payments under title IV-e.  

 Children receiving adoption subsidies.  
 
Note: The participants receiving the service must provide an award letter or documentation as 
proof of receiving the service. Once the participant is no longer receiving the benefits that meet the 
exemption criteria they must then provide the proper and approved documentation as described in 
the section below. 
 

Approved Documentation  
 
Citizenship may be verified using ANY of the documents indicated under sections A, B, C or D below:  
 
 



 
 

22 

 

A. Primary – Verification Documents  
 

1. A birth certificate showing birth in the U.S., its territories or possessions.  
 
2. Certificate of Birth issued by the Department of State (FS-545 or DPS-1350).  
 
3. U.S. Passport current or expired, except limited passports which are issued for periods of 

less than 5 years.  
 
4. U.S. Passport Card issued by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services 

(USCIS).  
 
5. Certificate of Naturalization (N-550 or N-570).  
 
6. Certificate of U.S. Citizenship (N-560 or N-561).  
 
7. Report of Birth Abroad of a U.S. Citizen (FS-240) issued by the U.S. State Department.  
 
8. U.S. Consular officer's statement.  
 
9. A United States Citizen Identification Card (I-197).  
 
10. Northern Mariana Identification Card (I-873).  
 
11. A tribal enrollment card or Certificate of Indian Blood issued by a federally recognized 

Indian Tribe that shows that the person is enrolled or affiliated with that tribe.  
 
12. American Indian Card (I-872) issued by USCIS with the classification code KIC. The benefit 

granting Service Provider shall require the applicant to present a membership card or 
other tribal document demonstrating membership in an Indian tribe. If the applicant has 
no document evidencing tribal membership, the benefit granting Service Provider should 
contact the Indian tribe for verification of membership.  



 
 

23 

B. Secondary – Verification Documents  

1. An identification card for use of Resident Citizen (I-179).  
 
2. U.S. Census record that shows the applicant's name, a U.S. place of birth and the date of 

birth or the applicant's age when the record was made. It must also indicate a place of 
birth in the U.S., its Territories or Possessions.  

 
3. Religious record created within three months after birth, showing the participant's date of 

birth, OR the participant's age when the record was made. It must indicate a place of birth 
in the U.S. Territories or Possessions.  

 
4. Proof of employment as a U.S. Government Civil Servant before June 1, 1976.  
 
5. Early school records, showing the date of admission, the child's date and place of birth 

and the names and places of birth of the parents.  
 
6. Adoption finalization papers showing the child's name and place of birth in the U.S., its 

territories or possessions. (When adoption is not finalized and the State will not release a 
birth certificate prior to final adoption, a statement from a state approved adoption 
Service Provider containing the child's name and place of birth may be used. The source of 
information must be an original birth certificate and must be indicated in the statement).  

 

C. Primary or Secondary Documents Are Not Available  
 
When none of the primary or secondary documents are available, accept any other document that 
establishes a U.S. place of birth or in some way indicates U.S. Citizenship. These include the 
following:  

 
1. Certificates of Live Birth signed by a hospital official and parent  
 
2. Medical records created at least five years before applying for services that list a U.S. 

place of birth (For children under age 16 the documents must be created near the time of 
birth OR five years prior to the application date. These include: hospital wrist bands, crib 
cards, or yellow copies of hospital birth certificates indicating birth in the U.S., its 
territories or possessions (See U.S. Citizenship on page 1).)  

 
3. American Indian Census Records  
 
4. Verification from the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS). (The 

documentation CANNOT be expired.)  
 
5. Verification from the Social Security Administration, e.g. award letter  
 
6. Verification sent directly to the agency from a local, state or federal bureau of vital 

records office  



 
 

24 

 
7. Legal records showing the applicant’s name and place of birth in the U.S., its territories or 

possessions  
 
8. Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Verification Information System (VIS) response 

that validates U.S. Citizenship  
 
9. Online data match screen print with the Arizona Department of Vital Records through the 

AHCCCS Citizenship Verification System  
 
10. Military papers - When verifying military service criteria, the following apply:  
 

a. An honorably discharged veteran of the Armed Forces of the U.S. must present an 
original or notarized copy of the veteran’s discharge papers  

b. Verify active duty status with an original or notarized copy of the applicant’s 
current orders or a military ID card (DD form 2(active))  

c. A spouse or unwed dependent child of a veteran or active duty non-citizen must 
provide a document to verify relationship along with military verification 
requirements  

d. A stepchild living with the stepparent must provide documents to verify 
relationship along with military verification requirements  

 
11. Marriage certificate showing marriage to a U.S. male citizen before September 22, 1922  
 
12. Life, health or other insurance record, created at least five years before the application 

date (Record must indicate a place of birth in the United States)  
 
13. State census records that show the participant’s name, a U.S. place of birth, and the date 

of birth or age of the participant  
 

14. Tribal census records for the Navajo or Seneca tribes (The records must be created at least 
five years before the application and list a U.S. place of birth.)  

 
15. An official notification of birth registration from a U.S. State’s Department of Vital 

Statistics  
 
16. An amended U.S. public birth record that is amended more than five years from the 

applicant’s birth  
 
17. A statement signed by the physician or midwife who was in attendance at the time of 

birth  
 
18. The roll of Alaska Natives from the Bureau of Indian Affairs  
 
19. A current decision letter from the ADES/Family Assistance Administration that 

demonstrates eligibility for the Food Stamp or Cash Assistance Programs (The award letter 



 
 

25 

must list the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) applicant as an 
eligible member of the household and for Short Term Crisis Services (STCS) Program the 
qualifying child must be listed as an eligible member of the household.)  

 
D. Primary or Secondary Documents Not Obtainable  
 
When the applicant cannot obtain the Primary or Secondary forms of verification they may provide 
an Affidavit Attesting Citizenship. An Affidavit Attesting Citizenship must meet all of the following 
requirements:  
 

1. Be completed by a U.S. Citizen who is knowledgeable about the participant’s 
circumstances  
 

2. Be signed by a U.S. Citizen that is not a member of the household  
 

3. Be approved by the Case Manager Supervisor  
 

4. Document the reason for using the affidavit form  
 
Only original or un-tampered copies of required documents are acceptable for verifying citizenship.  
 

Verification of Qualified Non-Citizens  
 
Applicants, who state they are Non-Citizen Legal Residents, must meet at least one of the 
categories set forth below:  
 

A. Lawful Permanent Resident (LPR)  
 
A lawful permanent resident (LPR) is admitted into the U.S. for permanent residence under the 
Immigration and Nationality Act (INA). This Non-Citizen Legal Resident is potentially eligible for 
services when they meet any of the following:  
 

1. They have been continuously lawfully residing in the U.S. and their date of entry is five 
years in the past or more  

 
2. They entered the U.S. as a Non-Citizen Legal Resident eligible for benefits in another 

qualified category prior to becoming an LPR  
 
3. They have a military connection  
 
4. They are American Indians born in Canada who possess at least 50 per centum of 

American Indian Blood. These Non-Citizen Legal Residents are recognized as LPR  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents.  
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED):  



 
 

26 

 
1. I-551- Resident Alien Card (Eligible for Benefits)  
 
2. I-151- Alien Registration Receipt Card (Eligible for Benefits)  

 
3. I-194- or unexpired passport with the words: Processed for I-551  

 
Temporary Evidence of Lawful Permanent Residence – Valid Until (Date)  
With the following Stamp/Annotations of Law  
 

1. Adjustment Admission Stamp - Eligible when any of the following sections of law are 
indicated: 203(a)(7); 207;208;212(d)(5); 243(h)(with a PRUCOL determination)  

 
2. Non-Specific Admission Stamp -Eligible when the form is noted with an I- 551 eligible 

status code  
 
3. Parole Admission Stamp - Eligible when the period of parole is for at least one year as 

verified on the stamp  
 
4. Replacement Admission Stamp - Eligible when the stamp displays an I-551 eligible Status 

Code  
 
5. Temporary I-551 Admission Stamp - Eligible when the key phrase reads one of the 

following:  
 

a. "Admission for Permanent Residence at: “D" or "Processed for I-551 Temporary 
evidence of admission for Permanent Residence" and displays one of the following 
Status Codes: AM1; -2; -3; -6; -7; -8,  
 

b. Asylee  
i. An Asylee, Non-Citizen Legal Resident is granted asylum through an exercise 

of discretion by the Attorney General, pursuant to Section 208 of INA. This 
Non-Citizen is potentially eligible for benefits for a period of seven years 
from the date their status is granted.  

ii. These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents. (NOT 
ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED):  

1. I-94 with one of the following:  
a. A stamp showing grant of asylum under Section 208 of the 

INA to include:  
i. AS1 - Eligible for benefits  

ii. AS2 - Eligible for benefits  
iii. AS3V92 - Eligible for benefits 

 
Note:  The eligibility period begins from the month the Asylee status is granted, 
NOT the month of U.S. entry.  

 



 
 

27 

B. Refugee or Amerasian  
 
A Refugee or Amerasian is admitted into the U.S. under Section 207 of INA. This Non-Citizen is 
potentially eligible for benefits for a period of seven years from the date that their status is granted.  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents: 
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED):  
 

1. I-94- endorsed to show entry as a refugee under Section 207 of the INA or entry as an 
Amerasian OR noted with one of the following Status Codes: NP2 – 7; P2 -6, -7, -71; RE-8; 
Z2; (Eligible for Benefits). 

 

C. Victim of Human Trafficking  
 
A victim of human trafficking is admitted onto the U.S. under the Trafficking Victims Protection Act 
(TVPA) of 2000. This Non-Citizen Legal Resident is potentially eligible for services for a period of 
seven years from the date that their status is granted.  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents:  
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED) 
 

1. I-94- with a T Visa or Derivative T Visa (T, T-2, T-3, T-4, or T-5)  
  

D. Non-Citizen Legal Resident Paroled Into The U.S.  
 
A Non-Citizen paroled into the U.S. is lawfully present in the U.S. as a result of a grant of parole by 
the Attorney General, pursuant to Section 212(d) (5) of the INA. This Non-Citizen is potentially 
eligible for services when the period of the parole is for at least one year.  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents:  
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED):  
 

1. I-94 - with PAROLE PURSUANT TO SECTION 212(d) (5) on the front.  
 
The form must not be expired and the expiration date must be at least one year after the issue 
date. Both dates are documented on the form (Eligible for Benefits).  
 

E. Non-Citizen Legal Resident Whose Deportation Is Withheld  
 
A Non-Citizen Legal Resident whose deportation is withheld is a Non-Citizen Legal Resident for 
whom the Attorney General has withheld deportation from the U.S. pursuant to Section 243(h) or 
241 (b)(3) of the INA. A Non-Citizen Legal Resident whose deportation is withheld is potentially 
eligible for services for a period of seven years from the date of the judge's orders.  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents:  



 
 

28 

(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED). 
 

1. I-94 -with an order from an immigration Judge showing one of the following:  
a. Deportation withheld under 243(h) of the INA (Eligible for Benefits)  
b. Removal withheld under 241(b)(3) of the INA (Eligible for Benefits)  

 
 

F. Cuban or Haitian Entrant  
 
Cuban or Haitian entrants are admitted to the U.S. by USCIS as a Cuban or Haitian entrant pursuant 
to Section 501 (e) of the Refugee Education Assistance Act of 1980 (PL 104-93). Cuban or Haitian 
entrants are potentially eligible for benefits for a period of seven years from the date that their 
status is granted.  
 
These applicants normally have the following USCIS document:  
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED)  
 

1. I-94 with the words: CUBAN/HAITIAN ENTRANT UNDER 212(D) OF THE INA (Eligible for 
Benefits)  

 

G. Conditional Entrant  
 
A conditional entrant was granted conditional entry into the U.S. before April 1, 1980, pursuant to 
Section 203 (a) (7) of the INA. Conditional entrants are potentially eligible for benefits regardless of 
any later change in their status.  
 
These applicants normally have one of the following USCIS documents.  
(NOT ACCEPTABLE IF DOCUMENTS ARE EXPIRED):  
 

1. I-94 – with the words: ADMITTED AS A REFUGEE – CONDITIONAL ENTRY under Section 
203(a) (7) of the INA. (Eligible for Benefits)  

 

H. Abused or Battered Non-Citizen  
 
Documented Non-Citizens may become qualified Non-Citizens when they have suffered abuse from 
a parent or a spouse.  
 
The Service Provider staff must inform the Abused or Battered applicant of the following:  
 

1. Applicant must contact the USCIS to obtain a Petition for Abused Aliens  
 
2. The abuse must have occurred in the U.S. and the abusive person must be a U.S. Citizen or 

Lawful Permanent Resident  
 
3. They must currently reside in the U.S.  
 



 
 

29 

4. They must provide any and all documentation verifying continuous residency in the U.S. 
for the prior five years  

 
Note: All periods of time that are not accounted for must be addressed by an applicant statement. 
 
In order for the Non-Citizen to be eligible under this category, they must meet ALL of the following:  
 

1. Possess appropriate USCIS status  
 
2. Be battered or subject to extreme cruelty  
 
3. Have a substantial connection between battery and the need for benefits  
 
4. No longer residing with the batterer  

 

I. Indefinite Detainee  
 
Indefinite detention status pertains to Non-Citizens who have served their time for a criminal 
conviction and have been given formal orders to leave the U.S. Subsequently, Indefinite Detainee 
status is met when the Non-Citizen is allowed to indefinitely remain the U.S. because neither their 
home country, nor any other country will accept them.  
 

J. Military Connection  
 
Non-Citizens who meet both of the following criteria are potentially eligible for benefits, regardless 
of their date of entry:  
 

1. They are a qualified Non-Citizen  
 
2. They meet one of the following military service criteria:  

a. An honorably discharged veteran or person on active duty  
b. On active duty in the Armed Forces of the U.S.  
c. A spouse of a veteran or person on active duty who meets one of the following:  

i. Is legally married to the veteran or person on active duty  
ii. Is legally separated from the veteran or person on active duty  

iii. Is a widowed spouse of the veteran or person on active duty and has not 
remarried  

 
Note: The applicant remains eligible regardless of whether they are living together or apart; the 
veteran or active duty person can be a U.S. Citizen or a Non-Citizen Legal Resident. 
When verifying military service criteria, the following apply: 
  

1. An honorably discharged veteran of the Armed Forces of the U.S. must present an original 
or notarized copy of the veteran's discharge papers  

 



 
 

30 

2. To verify the active duty status an original or notarized copy of the applicant's current 
orders or a military ID card (DD form 2 (active)) may be used  

 
3. Only full-time Air Force, Army, Navy, Marine or Coast Guard is eligible  
 
4. Any Reserve or National Guard duty is excluded  

 
A spouse or single dependent child of a veteran or active duty alien must provide a document to 
verify relationship along with military verification requirements.  

 

Non-Citizen Alien Identification Cards  
 
This section identifies alien ID cards that applicants may provide to determine whether they meet 
one of the qualified non-citizen requirements to receive benefits. Documents cannot be EXPIRED.  
 

Alien Identification Cards  
 
The eligible ID cards listed in this section are as follows:  

 
1. I-94 Arrival/Departure Record  

a. POTENTIALLY ELIGIBLE depending on the following:  
i. I-94 admission stamp used, section of law/class-code annotations; Applicant 

must also meet a qualified Non-Citizen Legal Resident Status criteria 
identified in Section II-A. NOT ELIGIBLE for benefits when the document 
lacks a registration number  

 
2. I-94 Parole Edition  

a. POTENTIALLY ELIGIBLE depending on the following:  
i. I-94 admission stamp used; section of law/class-code annotations; Applicant 

must also meet a qualified Non-Citizen Legal Resident Status criteria 
identified in Section II-A. NOT ELIGIBLE for benefits when the document 
lacks a registration number.  

 
 

3. I-151 Alien Registration Card  
a. POTENTIALLY ELIGIBLE – The I-151 is the original green card. Many however were 

printed on blue paper; several versions of this card exist. 
i. Applicants must also meet qualified Non-Citizen Legal Resident Status 

criteria identified in Section II-A.  
 

4. I-551 Permanent Resident Card  
 

5. Visa Stamps in Foreign Passports – Eligible when all of the following occur:  
a. The Visa is stamped "Processed for I-551, temporary Evidence of Lawful Admission 

for Permanent Residence".  



 
 

31 

b. Neither the Visa NOR the passport have expired. The passport's expiration date is 
normally found on the same page as the person's photograph.  

 
Note: Applicants, who have expired, lost or otherwise cannot locate their immigration documents 
from USCIS are responsible for contacting USCIS for replacement documents.  
 
Note: Qualified Non-Citizen Legal Residents may have documents described as eligible. Case 
managers must examine documents to establish their expiration date and cannot accept expired 
documents.  
 

Affidavit That Document(s) Is/Are True  
 
An eligible applicant must execute a sworn affidavit stating that the documentation provided as 
listed on this document during the verification process is true.  
 

1. Contractors who determine eligibility for these programs will be required to ensure that a 
sworn affidavit is obtained in a way that does not delay the eligibility determination 
process, or add cost to the process for the applicant.  

 
2. Eligible applicants are exempt from providing an affidavit only if they are 60 years of age 

or older, if they are Tribal Members or if they are disabled or have an incapacity of the 
body or mind which makes them unable to supply such affirmation.  

 
3. Any contractor classified as a non-profit charitable organization must notify Department 

of Economic Security, Division of Aging and Adult Services (DES/DAAS), if "discovered 
violations" will not be reported to ICE, also:  

a. Contractors will establish their own process for reporting discovered violations to 
the Federal Department of Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) and are 
advised to consult with legal counsel or ICE for further guidance.  

 

Determining Non-citizen Status  
 
To determine non-citizen status, complete the following:  
 

1. Ask the applicant for their USCIS documentation. When the applicant states they do not 
have documentation, do not question the participant further regarding their non-citizen 
status.  

 
2. When the document is provided, compare the document to the documents listed on 

pages 4 through 10. If the document is one of the qualified non-citizen documents, the 
non-citizen has a qualified status.  

 
3. A nonqualified non-citizen, who is residing in the United States without the knowledge or 

permission of USCIS, may do one of the following:  
 



 
 

32 

4. Voluntarily self-declare that they are residing in the U.S. illegally or  
 
5. Provide Immigrations and Customs Enforcement (ICE) documents verifying violation of 

USCIS law.  
 
6. When either of these occurs, follow your Service Provider's process for reporting 

discovered violations to the Federal Department of Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE).  

 

Non-Qualified Non-Citizens  
 
Consider the following Non-Citizens as Non-Qualified. Documents include, but are not limited to the 
following:  
 

1. I-94 (Non-citizens with this document may have either qualified or nonqualified status. 
The admission stamp annotated on the card determines the non-citizen's status.)  

 
2. I-184 (Crewman Landing Permit)  
 
3. I-185 (Nonresident Alien Canadian Border Crossing Card)  
 
4. I-186 (Nonresident Mexican Border Crossing Card)  
 
5. I-444 (-Mexican Border Visitor Permit)  
 
6. I-586 (Nonresident Alien Border Crossing Card)  
 
7. l-688A (Employment Authorization)  
 
8. I-688 (Temporary Resident [This is the first card issued to non-citizens living in the U.S. 

under the Amnesty Program of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.])  
 
9. I-688B (Employment Authorization [This is the second card issued to non-citizens under 

the Amnesty Program of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.])  
 
10. I-689 (Fee Receipt-Non-citizens [With this card may have either qualified or nonqualified 

status. The Provision of Law annotated on the card determines the non-citizen's status.])  
 
11. I-766 (Employment Authorization)  
 
12. DSP150 (Border Crossing Card [This card was introduced in 1997. Non-citizens with this 

card may have either qualified or nonqualified status. The Provision of Law annotated on 
the card determines the non-citizen's status.])  

 
13. Student Visa (This card was introduced in 1998)  



 
 

33 

Ineligible Alien ID Cards  

When an applicant provides one of the following alien ID cards they are INELIGIBLE for services and 
the applicant must provide another eligible document. All these forms expired before January 24, 
1990.  
 

1. Any alien ID cards that are expired.  
 
2. I-181a Memorandum of creation of record of lawful permanent residence  
 
3. I-184 Alien crewman landing permit and identification card  
 
4. I-185 Non-resident alien Canadian border crossing card  
 
5. I-186 Non-resident alien Mexican border crossing card  
 
6. I-444- Mexican border visitor permit  
 
7. I-586 Non-resident alien border crossing card  
 
8. I-688 Employment authorization  
 
9. I-688A Employment authorization document  
 
10. I-688B Employment authorization document  
 
11. I-689 Fee receipt  
 
12. I-766 Employment authorization document  
 
13. Non-resident border crossing card 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 1: 

 
PAYMENT GUARANTEE PROCESS 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE PROCESS 

--ALL UTILITIES-- 

 

APS: Online through the APS EAG system.   Call the APS Caps Team 

(602) 371-6774 for questions and assistance. 

 

SRP: Email: SRPEAG@srpnet.com 

 Phone: (602) 236-3003 

 Fax: (602) 236-3003 

 
 

SWG: Email: SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com 

 Phone: (877) 967-9427 

 Fax: (866) 997-9427  

  

GLOBAL WATER: Fax: (520) 568-6367 

 

TEP:     Email: AgencyDesk@tep.com 

Phone: 1-520-917-8418 

Fax: 1-520-571-4026 

 

UNISOURCE (Warm Spirits):  Email: AgencyDesk@uesaz.com 

Phone: 1-866-628-5721 

Fax: 1-866-870-5163 

 

REQUIRED INFO: Guarantees should include the following information: 

1. Account Number 

2. Customer Name on account 

3. Customer Address 

4. Guarantee amount 

5. Fund source (if possible) 

6. Name of case worker requesting the guarantee 

7. Name of organization requesting the guarantee 

 
 

mailto:SRPEAG@srpnet.com
mailto:SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com
mailto:AgencyDesk@tep.com
mailto:AgencyDesk@uesaz.com


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2: 
 

PROGRAM SUMMARIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ACAA UTILITY ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM SUMMARY OVERVIEW 
 

INFORMATION APPLIES TO:  All fund sources subcontracted to human service agencies 

through The Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA). 

 

INCOME VERIFICATION: All sources of household income received during the past 30 

days, including the date of application must be accounted for 

and verified. 

 

SERVICE PERIOD: A household may be assisted only once in a 12-month period for 

each fund source. 

 

SUBSTITUTE SSN (if necessary): Zip code + Birthday (for example: if zip code is 85203 and b-day is 

May 1, 1980 then the substitute SSN will be 852-03-0501) 

 

ACCEPTABLE CRISIS REASONS: 1.  Loss or reduction of income or public assistance 

benefits or a delay in receiving public assistance 

benefits. 

 2.  Unexpected and/or unplanned expense that caused a 

lack of resources. 

 3.  A condition that endangers the health and safety of 

the household. 

 

CLIENT FILES MUST CONTAIN:  1.  Intake sheet with client info and name of caseworker 

 2.  Verification document for ID of client and for all 

household members 

  3.  Citizenship verification (for HEAF and URRD only) 

  4.  Utility bill (or receipts for purchases of fuel) 

  5.  Income verification 

  6.  Crisis documentation (if required by fund source) 

  7.  Client affidavit form (if utilized) 

 8. Statement of truth/release of info, signed by the client  

 9.    Copy of payment guarantee request 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE INFO: Guarantees should include the following information: 

1. Account Number 

2. Customer Name on account 

3. Customer Address 

4. Guarantee amount 

5. Fund source (if possible) 

6. Name of case worker requesting the guarantee 

7. Name of organization requesting the guarantee 



 
 

 

 

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE (APS)  

CRISIS BILL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM SUMMARY  
 

CAN PAY:  Current and past due charges only.  No credits can be given. 

Cannot pay deposits, reconnection fees, or establishment 

charges.  

Payments can be given to clients who are already enrolled in the 

Equalizer Program, even if a credit balance is already showing on 

the account.  The payment amount should cover the current and 

upcoming month’s charges, as well as any outstanding debt due 

to missed payments. 

Payments for clients enrolled in the Prepay Program should be 

enough to cover outstanding debt and the next 30 days of energy 

usage, based on historical payments made by the client, taking 

into account upcoming weather conditions.    

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $400.00 

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA:  Household income must be at or below 200% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.  

Client must be the customer of record at the current address on 

the APS account.  Client must be a current APS customer.  

Disconnected accounts or bills from previous addresses are NOT 

eligible.  

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: None 

 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: Online through the APS EAG system.   Call the APS Caps Team 

(602) 371-6774 for questions and assistance. 



 
 

 

SALT RIVER PROJECT (SRP) 

BILL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 

CAN PAY: Current and past due charges, reconnection fees, establishment 

charges, deposits and balances from a previous SRP address.   

 Credits can be given to clients under circumstances where the 

case manager determines that the funds are necessary for the 

financial stability of the client.  Credits must be given only to 

clients whose circumstances truly warrant them.  In these 

situations, case notes should outline the details of the decision-

making process.  

 Payments can be given to clients who are already enrolled in the 

Budget Billing program, even if a credit balance is already 

showing on the account.  The payment amount should cover the 

current and upcoming month’s charges, as well as any 

outstanding debt due to missed payments.  

Payments for clients enrolled in the M-Power Program should be 

enough to cover outstanding debt and the next 30 days of energy 

usage, based on historical payments made by the client, taking 

into account upcoming weather conditions.    

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $600.00   

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA: Household income must be at or below 60% of the current, State 

Median Income (SMI) guidelines for Arizona.   Unless the 

household has 7 or more members, then switch to 150% of the 

Federal Poverty Level (FPL) guidelines.  

The client must be a household member, but does not have to be 

the customer of record.    

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: None 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: Email:  SRPEAG@srpnet.com  

 Phone:  (602) 236-3003 

FAX:     (602) 914-8732 

 

 

mailto:SRPEAG@srpnet.com


 
 

 

SOUTHWEST GAS LOW INCOME ENERGY CONSERVATON  

BILL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

CAN PAY: Current and past due charges, including deposits (up to 25% of 

the agency’s allocated funds can be used to assist clients with 

deposits). 

A client may receive a credit under circumstances where the case 

manager determines that the funds are necessary for the 

financial stability of the client.  

This may include assisting customers who have historically 

disconnected their gas in the summer, only to have a 

reconnection fee in the fall that they might have trouble paying.  

By crediting them in the spring/summer months, this can allow 

them to avoid such fees.  

Credits must be given only to clients whose circumstances truly 

warrant them.  In these situations, case notes should outline the 

details of the decision-making process.   

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $400.00  

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA Household income must be at or below 150% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.  

Client must have the Southwest Gas account in their name or 

apply for assistance by named proxy.   

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT None 

 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: Email: SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com 

 Phone: (877) 967-9427 

 Fax: (866) 997-9427  

 

mailto:SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com


 
 

 

SOUTHWEST GAS ENERGY SHARE  

PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

CAN PAY: Southwest Gas Utility Bills: Current and past due charges, 

including deposits, late charges, reestablishment fees, and other 

related costs or fees.  

A client may receive a credit under circumstances where the case 

manager determines that the funds are necessary for the 

financial stability of the client. This may include assisting 

customers who have historically disconnected their gas in the 

summer, only to have a reconnection fee in the fall that they 

might have trouble paying.  Providing a credit in the 

spring/summer months can allow them to avoid such fees.  

Credits must be given only to clients whose circumstances truly 

warrant them.  In these situations, case notes should outline the 

details of the decision-making process.    

Natural Gas Appliance Repair/Replacement: Costs associated 

with repairing natural gas equipment (or replacement costs in 

cases where repair is impossible or repair costs would exceed 

replacement costs).  

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: Southwest Gas Utility Bills: $400.00  

 Natural Gas Appliance Repair/Replacement: $2,000.00 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA Household income must be at or below 150% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.  

Client must be the customer of record, or a household member. 

For appliance repair/replacement: (1) A condition that endangers 

the health and safety of household members; (2) Proof of 

ownership of the appliance. 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT None 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS: For appliance repair/replacement: (1) Invoice for total costs from 

pre-approved contractor; (2) Client statement indicating that 

repairs/replacements have been completed. 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: Email: SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com 

 Phone: (877) 967-9427 

 Fax: (866) 997-9427  

mailto:SCA-SWGAgencies@swgas.com


 
 

 

 

HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE FUND (HEAF)  

PROGRAM SUMMARY  
 

 

CAN PAY:  Utility bills, including current and past-due charges, deposits, late 

fees, service establishment and reconnection fees.  

 Credits may not be issued to clients, except for those already 

enrolled in utility prepay programs.   

Heating fuel costs including propane, oil, wood, coal and pellets. 

 Utility costs included in a client’s rental agreement and collected 

along with rental payments are eligible for assistance. 

 
MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $500.00 

 Total grant amount for clients enrolled in a utility prepay 

program should be based on historical payments made by the 

client, taking into account seasonal weather conditions.   

 
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA:  Household income must be at or below 200% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.   

 
CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 
CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: Primary applicant must be U.S. citizen or legal resident 

 
ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS: Citizenship/Legal Resident status verification for primary 

applicant 

 Invoice or receipt of purchase for fuel costs (propane, wood, 

pellets, etc.) 

 Copy of the rental agreement or a note from the landlord for 

utility costs included in rent 

 
PAYMENT GUARANTEE: See Payment Guarantee Process Summary 

 



 
 

 

 

UTILITY REPAIR REPLACEMENT AND DEPOSIT (URRD)  

PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 

CAN PAY: Deposits for utility services (electric, gas, water, telephone)  

Repairs to existing utility related appliances or systems 

Replacement of existing utility related appliances only in cases 

where repair costs would exceed replacement costs.    

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $3,000.00  

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA: Household income must be at or below 200% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.  

For appliance repair/replacement: The applicant must be the 

owner of the appliance or system to be repaired and/or 

replaced.  

  

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: Primary applicant must be a U.S. citizen or legal resident. 

 

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS: Citizenship/Legal Resident status verification for primary 

applicant 

For appliance repair/replacement: (1) Proof of ownership of 

appliance or system (receipt or client statement is acceptable); 

(2) Invoice for total costs from pre-approved contractor; (3) 

Client statement indicating that repairs/replacements have 

been completed. 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: See Payment Guarantee Process Summary 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER (TEP) BILL ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 

CAN PAY: Current and past due charges.  

Cannot pay deposits, reconnect fees or establishment charges. 

No credits can be given on any accounts.  

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $400.00  

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA Households must be at or below 150% of the federal poverty 

guidelines.   

The client must be the customer of record and the TEP utility bill 

must be at the client’s present address ONLY.  Disconnected 

accounts do not qualify for services. 

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: None 

 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE:   Email: AgencyDesk@tep.com 

Phone: 1-520-917-8418 

Fax: 1-520-571-4026 

 

  

 

mailto:AgencyDesk@tep.com


 
 

 

  

 

WARM SPIRIT FUND PROGRAM SUMMARY 

(Funds Provided by UniSource Energy) 

 

CAN PAY: Utility bills, including current and past due charges, deposits, 

late fees, service establishment and reconnection fees.  

No credits can be given on any accounts.  

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $500.00 

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA Household income must be at or below 200% of the federal 

poverty guidelines.   

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: None 

 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application.   

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE:   Email: AgencyDesk@uesaz.com 

Phone: 1-866-628-5721 

Fax: 1-866-870-5163 

  

 

mailto:AgencyDesk@uesaz.com


 
 

 

 

 

GLOBAL WATER LOW INCOME RELIEF TARIFF  

PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 

WATER COMPANIES:   Santa Cruz Water Company (Water – Maricopa)  

     Palo Verde Utilities Company (Sewer – Maricopa)  

     Water Utility of Greater Tonopah 

     Water Utility of Northern Scottsdale 

     Willow Valley Water Company 

  

CAN PAY: Current and past due charges, deposits, late fees, reconnection 

fees, service fees, returned payment fees, after hours service 

fees (where applicable).   

 

MAXIMUM GRANT AMOUNT: $250.00  

 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA: Household income must be at or below 200% of the federal 

poverty guidelines. 

 Clients must not have a history of meter tampering or cutting 

locks.  

 

CITIZENSHIP REQUIREMENT: None. 

 

CRISIS: An acceptable crisis reason must be documented on the 

application. 

 

PAYMENT GUARANTEE: Fax:  (520) 568-6367 

 

  

 



Exhibit B

Percent of 

Poverty
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

For each 

additional 

member add: 

100% $990 $1,335 $1,680 $2,025 $2,370 $2,715 $3,061 $3,408 $3,754 $4,101 $347

150% $1,485 $2,003 $2,520 $3,038 $3,555 $4,073 $4,591 $5,111 $5,631 $6,151 $520

200% $1,980 $2,670 $3,360 $4,050 $4,740 $5,430 $6,122 $6,815 $7,508 $8,202 $693

updated 5/31/2016

Household Size

Arizona Community Action Association

Home Energy Assistance Fund

Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) - Income thresholds for the last 30 days by percent of FPG

FY2017 (July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017)



   

ARF-3826     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 - June
30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Funding Agreement No. 203-16 with the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) for the Weatherization
Assistance Program.

Background Information
The primary mission of the Gila County Weatherization Program is to reduce the fuel or electricity
expense for space heating, space cooling and water heating for income-eligible households, while
improving the health and safety of the dwelling's occupants.

The Weatherization Program enables income-eligible families to reduce their energy bills by making their
homes more energy efficient.

Since 1977, weatherization services have been provided to more than seven million homes.   

The program began as an anti-poverty initiative by the federal government shortly after the Arab Oil
Embargo of 1973. After providing the first grant to the state of Maine, the program quickly expanded to
encompass most of the New England states. In 1976, Congress gave the Federal Energy Administration
(FEA) the authority to operate a National Weatherization Assistance Program that would distribute funds
to state governments. The former FEA was eventually folded in the new U.S. Department of Energy in
1980.

Evaluation
Agreement No. 203-16 will provide $33,959 of Department of Energy Weatherization Assistance Program
for Low Income Persons (DOE WAP) funding, $87,770 of Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP WAP) funding, and $27,150 of Southwest Gas Corporation Weatherization Assistance
Program (SWG WAP) funding. 

Conclusion
If the Board of Supervisors approves this agreement, the Gila County Weatherization Program will
receive funding to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
agreement.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Agreement No. 203-16 between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County



Approval of Agreement No. 203-16 between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County
Division of Community Services, Housing Services, to provide Department of Energy Weatherization
Assistance Program for Low Income Persons funding in the amount of $33,959; Low Income Home
Energy Assistance Program funding in the amount of $87,770; and, Southwest Gas Corporation
Weatherization Assistance Program funding in the amount of $27,150 to be used to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2016, through
June 30, 2017.

Attachments
Agreement No. 203-16
Sample Forms
ADOH Funding Agreement Letter

































































































































   

ARF-3684     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2016 -
September 30, 2017

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
FFY2017 SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) Community Outreach Partner Application
with Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA).

Background Information
The ACAA unites communities to end poverty through community-based initiatives and solutions.  The
ACAA is a 501(c)(3) non-profit agency created in 1967 to address poverty across Arizona. Through a
collaboration of nearly 300 organizations and individuals, the ACAA develops and implements strategies
to address and ultimately eliminate poverty.

The Community Action Program (CAP) was launched in 1964 as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson’s
Economic Opportunity Act to fight poverty by empowering the poor. Core funding comes from
Community Service Block Grants (CSBG) with additional support from local, state and federal grants;
individual and corporate donations; foundation grants and community-based collaborations.

Programs operated, managed or supported by the ACAA include: 

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEAP) Utility Grants
Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Fund
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Outreach
Nutrition Assistance Community Organization Partnerships
Arizona Self Help (www.arizonaselfhelp.org)
People’s Information Guide

Evaluation
SNAP was formerly known as Food Stamps.  The ACAA is currently accepting SNAP Community
Outreach Partner Applications.  The Gila County Community Services Division CAP is applying with the
ACAA to continue to be a SNAP Partner and we received a 30-day extension to submit the application. 
The Partner Application has been completed, and if approved by the Board of Supervisors, it will be
submitted to the ACAA for review.  Included in the Partner Application is a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) which will be signed by both parties.  This MOU will provide funding from the
ACAA to CAP to be used to assist eligible citizens residing in Gila County to apply for SNAP assistance. 
The MOU will be in place for the period of October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors authorizing the SNAP Community Outreach Partner Application to be



By the Board of Supervisors authorizing the SNAP Community Outreach Partner Application to be
submitted to ACAA, and upon approval by ACAA, Gila County CAP will continue to be a SNAP Partner. 
If approved by the ACAA, an MOU will be signed by both parties, which will provide funding for CAP to
assist residents of Gila County in applying for SNAP benefits.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this application.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Community Outreach Partner
Application for Federal Fiscal Year 2017, between the Arizona Community Action Association and the
Gila County Community Services Division, Community Action Program which, if approved, will allow
Gila County to continue to be a SNAP Outreach Partner and be reimbursed for expenses in an
estimated amount of $14,000.94 for the period of October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017.

Attachments
FFY2017 SNAP Community Outreach Partner Application 





















































   

ARF-3837     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016 - 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 1, 2016 -
December 31, 2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 13 to Contract No. 700518523 with Arizona Public Service for Energy Wise Low-Income
Weatherization Program Implementation.

Background Information
On December 15, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 12 to Contract No.
700518523.
On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. 700518523.
On December 17, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 10 to Contract No.
700518523.
On September 3, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 9 to Contract No.
700518523.
On October 9, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 8 to Contract No. 700518523.
On December 20, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 7 to Contract No.
700518523.
On June 7, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 6 to Contract No. 700518523.
On June 8, 2010, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 700518523.
On January 5, 2010, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 700518523.
On February 17, 2009, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 700518523.
On February 28, 2008, the Board of Supervisors approved (previously known as PO 700287483) the
"Original Contract"  No. 700518523.
On November 20, 2007, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 and Amendment No. 3 to
Purchase Order No. 700287483.
On July 17, 2006, the Board of Supervisors approved Purchase Order No. 700287483 -- REV E.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 13 to an Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program
Implementation, (Contract No. 700581523) between Gila County Division of Community Services and
Arizona Public Service Company provides funding in an amount not to exceed $166,429 for the calendar
year 2016. 

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 13 to said Agreement, the Gila County
Weatherization Program will provide weatherization services to eligible low-income citizens of Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Amendment.



Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 13 to an Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program
Implementation (Contract No. 700518523) between Arizona Public Service (APS) and the Gila County
Division of Community Services, Weatherization Program, whereby APS will provide additional funding
in the amount of $60,000 not to exceed $166,429 to be used to provide weatherization services to
eligible low-income citizens residing in Gila County for the period from June 1, 2016, through December
31, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment No. 13 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 12 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 11 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 10 Contract No. 700518523 
Amendment No. 9 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 8 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 7 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 6 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 5 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 70051823
Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 700518523
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
Weatherization Agreement Changed from Agreement No. 700287483 to Contract No.
700518523
Original Agreement GC and APS
Approval as to Form

































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3805     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Director 

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Order to Cancel Precinct Committeemen Elections and Appoint Precinct Committeemen

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) §16-410 (A) states, "Notwithstanding any other law, in
any election that is to be held pursuant to title 15, title 48 or section 16-822, if the total of
the number of persons who file a nomination petition for a candidate and the number of
persons who file a nomination paper for a write-in candidate as prescribed by chapter 3,
articles 2 and 3 of this title is less than or equal to the number of positions to be filled at
the election for which the nomination petition or nomination paper is filed, the county
board of supervisors may cancel the election no earlier than seventy-five days before the
election and appoint the person or persons who filed the nomination petition or
nomination paper to fill the position for the term of office for which the candidate was
nominated by the qualified electors.”

Evaluation
As outlined in A.R.S. §16-410(A), the Board of Supervisors is the authorized agency to
cancel elections no earlier than seventy-five days before the election and appoint the
person or persons who filed the nomination petition.

Conclusion
In those precincts where the number of candidates filing nomination petitions or
write-in nomination papers is less than equal to the number of positions available, it is
permissible for the Board of Supervisors to cancel the elections as prescribed in A.R.S.
§16-410(A).

Recommendation
The Elections Department Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
the Order to cancel precinct committeemen elections and appoint precinct
committeemen as listed in Attachment A of the Order, which is attached to this agenda
item.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt an Order canceling precinct committeemen elections and appointing
precinct committeemen as shown in Attachment A of the Order, who have filed a
nomination petition for precinct committeeman of their party in the precinct shown.



Attachments
Order
Arizona Revised Statute 16-410



Order-Cancel Precinct Elections & Appoint Committeemen  Page 1 of 4 

 
 

 
 

 

ORDER 

 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CANCELLING PRECINCT ELECTIONS AND APPOINTING PRECINCT 

COMMITTEEMEN WHO HAVE FILED NOMINATION PETITIONS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-410(A) states, “Notwithstanding any other law, in any election that is 

to be held pursuant to title 15, title 48 or section 16-822, if the total of the number of persons 

who file a nomination petition for a candidate and the number of persons who file a nomination 

paper for a write-in candidate as prescribed by chapter 3, articles 2 and 3 of this title is less than 

or equal to the number of positions to be filled at the election for which the nomination petition 

or nomination paper is filed, the county board of supervisors may cancel the election no earlier 

than seventy-five days before the election and appoint the person or persons who filed the 

nomination petition or nomination paper to fill the position for the term of office for which the 

candidate was nominated by the qualified electors.”;  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 

hereby cancel precinct elections and appoints precinct committeemen who have filed nomination 

petitions as shown on Attachment A of this Order.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of July 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 

 



Order-Cancel Precinct Elections & Appoint Committeemen  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT A 

 

2016 PRECINCT COMMITTEEMEN APPOINTMENTS 

 

 

Gila County Democratic Precinct Committeemen 

Christine Tilley, Chairperson 

Precinct Name Date 

Elected/Appointed 

Globe 8 Gardea, Peter A 2016 

Globe 8 Overgaard, Gail W.  A 2016 

Payson 2 Dalby, Wilma A 2016 

Payson 3 Herbster, Myra Joan A 2016 

Payson 3 Hunter, Judith A 2016 

Payson 3 Janssen, Kristi A 2016 

Payson 3 Tilley, Christine A 2016 

Payson 7 Hershberger, Robert A 2016 

Payson 8 Fasano, Marie A 2016 

Payson 8 Waymire, Carol A 2016 

Payson 8 Franklin, Claudia A 2016 

                                                                   TOTAL 11  

 

 

Gila County Libertarian Precinct Committeemen 

Bruce Wales, Chairperson 

Precinct Name Date 

Elected/Appointed 

Globe 1 Moran, Richard A 2016 

Miami 3 Bahlen, Dan A 2016 

Roosevelt Brooks, Nolan A 2016 

Payson 1 Spurlock, Pat A 2016 

Payson 2 Wales, Bruce A 2016 

Zane Grey Daniels, Jefferey A 2016 

                                                                            TOTAL 6  

 

 

Gila County Republican Precinct Committeemen 

Gary Morris, Chairperson 

Precinct Name Date 

Elected/Appointed 

Globe 6 Alexander, John (Dan) A 2016 

Globe 6 Alexander, Judy A 2016 

Globe 6 Rasmussen, James A 2016 

Globe 7 Porter, Peggy A 2016 

East Globe Moorhead, Judy A 2016 



Order-Cancel Precinct Elections & Appoint Committeemen  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

East Globe Moorhead, Sam A 2016 

East Globe Wheeler, Diana A 2016 

Miami 1 Medina, Jose (Angel)  A 2016 

Miami 1 Medina, Maria (Louisa) A 2016 

Claypool 1  Plunkett, Emelie A 2016 

Payson 1 Evans, Jane A 2016 

Payson 2 Barton, Brenda A 2016 

Payson 2 Castleman, Don A 2016 

Payson 2 DeGrand, Gerald A 2016 

Payson 2 Dye, Shirley A 2016 

Payson 2 Ferris, James A 2016 

Payson 2 Hetrick, Marlene A 2016 

Payson 2 Jackson, Pamela A 2016 

Payson 2 Younker, Darlene S.  A 2016 

Payson 3 Feezor, James A 2016 

Payson 3 Galster, Glen A 2016 

Payson 3 Galster, Laureen M.  A 2016 

Payson 3 Galster, Silas A 2016 

Payson 3 Justice, Elouise H.  A 2016 

Payson 3 Potts, Cliff A 2016 

Payson 3 Sterner, Janell A 2016 

Payson 4 Long, Betty Lorraine A 2016 

Payson 5 Christy, Anita A 2016 

Payson 5 Christy, Thomas A 2016 

Payson 5 Kirch, Mark A 2016 

Payson 5 Low, Kathleen A 2016 

Payson 5 Powers, W.M. (Bill) A 2016 

Payson 5 Smith, Skip A 2016 

Payson 6 Osbeck, John A 2016 

Payson 7 Friestad, Gregory A 2016 

Payson 7 Freistad, Sharyn A 2016 

Payson 7 Cool, Vicki A 2016 

Payson 8 Williams, Janet A 2016 

Payson 8 Cox, Nancy A 2016 

Pine-Strawberry East Taylor, Terry A 2016 

Pine-Strawberry East Taylor, Toni A 2016 

Pine-Strawberry West Morris, Gary A 2016 

Pine-Strawberry West Mortensen, Charlotte A 2016 

Pine-Strawberry West Mortensen, Marvin A 2016 

Star Valley Bartlett-Armstrong, Laura A 2016 

Star Valley Brunson, Dawn A 2016 

Star Valley Cline, Donald A 2016 

Star Valley Ihle, Patricia  A 2016 

Star Valley Knoner, Don A 2016 

Star Valley  Knoner, Marylyn A 2016  



Order-Cancel Precinct Elections & Appoint Committeemen  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Star Valley McKinney, Paul A.  A 2016 

Star Valley Roehr, William A 2016 

Star Valley White, Michael A 2016 

Tonto Basin Bernard, Madra A 2016 

Tonto Basin Mullen, Daniel A 2016 

Tonto Basin  Roberson, Patricia A 2016 

Whispering Pines Ascoli, Anne A 2016 

Whispering Pines Ascoli, Don M.  A 2016 

Young Bendau, Vicki A 2016 

Young Cline, Letha A 2016 

Young LeFevre, Dee A 2016 

 TOTAL 61  

 

 





   

ARF-3834     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff
Hessenius,
Finance
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 110514-Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County.

Background Information
On March 17, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved a request to advertise Request
for Proposals (RFP) No. 110514-Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County. RFP No.
110514 was advertised in the March 25, 2015, and April 1, 2015, additions of the
Arizona Silver Belt. Responses received to RFP No. 110514 were opened in a public
setting on April 8, 2015; and, the Board of Supervisors awarded a contract to the
lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder which was Jani-Serv, Inc. The contract
annual amount was for $92,036.86.

Evaluation
The following County facilities are serviced under Contract No. 110514: Globe
Courthouse, Guerrero Building, Health and Community Services, WIC Building, Public
Works Administration Building/Sign Shops, and the Michaelson Building.

The original contract term for Contract No. 110514 was from May 5, 2015, to May 4,
2016, with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods at an annual cost
of $92,036.86. The contract also includes square foot pricing for the cost of carpet
cleaning and the cost for stripping and waxing floors, if requested, by County staff.
The unit pricing for the carpet cleaning and floor cleaning is not part of the annual
$92,036.86 price.

Amendment No. 1 will serve to exercise the option to renew the contract for one
additional year, from May 5, 2016, to May 4, 2017.

Conclusion
County staff is pleased with the service provided by Jani-Serv, Inc. and would like to
extend the contract for another year.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend



The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend
renewing the contract with Jani-Serv, Inc. for one additional year, whereby Jani-Serv,
Inc. will continue to provide janitorial services for various County facilities in southern
Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 110514-Janitorial Service for Southern
Gila County to extend the contract term with Jani-Serv, Inc. from May 5, 2016, to May
04, 2017, at a cost of $92,036.86.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1-110514
Contract No. 110514-JaniServ Inc.
Approval as to Form









































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3835     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall
Rhyne, Court
Administrator 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Superior Court
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-16 to
06-30-16

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040815 - Raymond
Geiser.

Background Information
On June 9, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional Services Contract
No. 040815 with Raymond Geiser, whereby Raymond Geiser will provide legal services
for indigent citizens as appointed by the Superior Court in Gila County for a period
from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. The original contract was executed for a not to
exceed, without written authorization, amount of $140,643.

Evaluation
The number of cases that have been assigned to Mr. Geiser by the Superior in Gila
County from July 1, 2015, to June 1, 2016, has caused the original contract amount of
$140,643 to be exceeded. Amendment No. 1 has been issued to increase the contract
amount by an additional $14,000 for an amended contract amount of $154,643 to
cover the remainder of the contract term from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Conclusion
Court Administration has requested an increase to Professional Services Contract No.
040815 with Raymond Geiser to cover the remainder of the contract term from July 1,
2015, to June 30, 2016.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Court Administrator Kendall Rhyne to increase
Professional Services Contract No. 040815 with Raymond Geiser to cover the
remainder of the contract term from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040815 between



Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040815 between
the Superior Court in Gila County and Raymond Geiser to increase the contract
amount by $14,000 for an amended contract amount of $154,643 to cover the
remainder of the contract term from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1-Raymond Geiser
Professional Services Contract No. 040815-Raymond Geiser
County Attorney's Comment



























June 24, 2016 

 

To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  July 5, 2016 board meeting; Agenda item 3835; Approval of 
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 040815 – 
Raymond Geiser. 

 

The original contract, which is being amended, has a provision 
regarding the use of interpreters in paragraph K.  The paragraph uses 
the word “should.”  The contracting attorney “should give the Court 
notice….,” “should get court permission….,” and “should be present….”  
The word “should” does not create a binding obligation and invites 
litigation.  If the court intends to establish a binding obligation on the 
attorney for this conduct, we recommend amending the original 
contract and replacing the word “should” with “must.” If this is not 
done, we still approve the amendment as to form. 



   

ARF-3844     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff
Hessenius,
Finance
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 7,
2016 to July
6, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Gila
County Medical Examiner Mark Fischione

Background Information
On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved Professional Services
Agreement No. 062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione to provide medical examiner services
to Gila County. The contract was issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed
amount of $30,000 without prior written approval from Gila County for the contract
term ending on January 6, 2015.  Additionally, the contract allows for the option to
renew the contract term for three additional one-year periods.

On June 24, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new total contract amount
of $70,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2015.

On October 21, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $30,000 for a new total contract amount
of $100,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2015.

On December 16, 2014, the BOS approved Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement which
renewed the contract for one additional year beginning January 7, 2015, through
January 6, 2016; and the total not to exceed amount was revised from $30,000 to
$70,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On September 1, 2015, the BOS approved Amendment No. 4 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new contract amount of
$110,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On January 19, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement which



On January 19, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement which
increased the total contract by an additional $10,000 for a new contract amount of
$120,000 for the contract term ending on January 6, 2016.

On February 2, 2016, the BOS approved Amendment No. 6 to the Agreement which
extended the term of the contract from January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016. This
Amendment also served to increase the original dollar amount of the contract from
$30,000 to $65,000.

Evaluation
As of Dr. Fischione's May billing, the sum of $65,000 has been expensed against the
yearly contract which ends on July 6, 2016.  Additional funds will be required to cover
the remaining term of this contract.  Amendment No. 7 will increase the current
contract amount of $65,000 by an additional $30,000 for a new, not to exceed without
prior written authorization total contract amount of $95,000 for the contract term from
January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016.

Conclusion
Additional funds are needed to cover the Medical Examiner's expense for the month of
May and June 2016. As it is not possible to predict the costs that will be incurred
during the course of the contract term, Amendment No. 7 has been issued to increase
the contract amount from $65,000 to $95,000 for the remainder of the contract term,
which expires on July 6, 2016.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 7 to increase the current contract
amount of $65,000 by an additional $30,000 for a new total contract amount of
$95,000 for the contract term from January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC, to increase
the current contract amount by $30,000, from $65,000 for a new total contract
amount of $95,000 for the contract term of January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr.
Fischione
Approval as to Form









































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3838     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall
Rhyne, Court
Administrator 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Superior Court
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3-Myers &
Associates, PLLC

Background Information
On June 9, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional Services Contract
041515-3 with Myers & Associates, PLLC whereby Myers & Associates, PLLC will
provide legal services for indigent citizens as appointed by the Superior Court in Gila
County for the period beginning July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. The original contract
was executed for a not to exceed, without written authorization, amount of $51,000.

Evaluation
The number of cases that have been assigned to Myers & Associates, PLLC by the
Superior Court in Gila County from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016, has caused the
original contract amount of $51,000 to be exceeded. Amendment No. 1 has been issued
to increase the contract amount by an additional $6,930 for an amended contract
amount of $57,930 to cover the remainder of the contract term from July 1, 2015, to
June 30, 2016.

Conclusion
Court Administration has requested an increase to Professional Services Contract No.
041515-3 with Myers & Associates, PLLC to cover the remainder of the contract term
from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Court Administrator Kendall Rhyne for the Board of
Supervisors to approve Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No.
041515-3 with Myers & Associates, PLLC to increase the contract amount ot $57,930
for the contract term of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion



Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3 between
the Superior Court in Gila County and Myers & Associates, PLLC to increase the
contract amount by $6,930 for an amended contract amount of $57,930 for the
contract term of July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041515-3
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3 Jamie Myers
County Attorney's Comment
Approval as to Form



Amendment No. 1/Contract 041515-3/Legal Services/Myers & Associates Page 1of 2 
 

 

 

 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 041515-3 

The following amendments are hereby incorporated into the contract 

documents for the below stated project: 

  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 041515-3 

LEGAL SERVICES 
 

MYERS & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
Effective June 09, 2015, Gila County and Myers & Associates entered into a contract whereby Myers & 
Associates agreed to provide Legal Services to the Superior Court in Gila County.   
 
 
The Gila County Superior Court would like to increase the original contract amount by an additional 
Six Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty dollars and 00/100’s, to provide legal services for indigent citizens. 
Attorney Myers has exceeded the amended contract amount of $51,000.00. An additional $6,930.00 is 
projected to cover the remainder of the contract term. 
 
 
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3 will serve to increase the 
original contract amount by Six Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty Dollars and 00/100’s  ($6,930.00), for 
a new total contract amount of Fifty-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty dollars and 00/100’s 
($57,930.00), for the contract term of July 01, 2015 to June 30, 2016.  It is understood, by both parties, 
that the increase will only be drawn upon as the caseloads warrant 
 
 
Consequently, the contract is amended to increase the contract amount by $6,930.00 for a new total 
contract amount not to exceed Fifty-Seven Thousand, Nine Hundred Thirty dollars and 00/100’s ($57, 
930.00) without prior written approval from the County. 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of the original agreement shall remain in full force and affect during the 
July 01, 2015 to June 30, 2016 term of the contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























June 24, 2016 

To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  July 5, 2016 board meeting; Agenda item 3838; Approval of 
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3 – 
Meyers & Associates 

 

The original contract, which is being amended, has a provision 
regarding the use of interpreters in paragraph K.  The paragraph uses 
the word “should.”  The contracting attorney “should give the Court 
notice….,” “should get court permission….,” and “should be present….”  
The word “should” does not create a binding obligation and invites 
litigation.  If the court intends to establish a binding obligation on the 
attorney for this conduct, we recommend amending the original 
contract and replacing the word “should” with “must.” If this is not 
done, we still approve the amendment as to form. 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3842     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall
Rhyne, Court
Administrator 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Department: Superior Court
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-16 to
06-30-17

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendments on Various Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to provide
professional legal services, such as representation for indigent citizens in the
categories of felons and misdemeanor criminal actions, delinquency, dependency, and
mental health cases, as well as mediation services.

On June 9, 2015, the Board approved the contracts (attached) for all of the attorneys
with the exception of Ronald DeBrigida, John Perlman, and Barry Standifird.  Ronald
DeBrigida's contract was awarded on June 23, 2015, at such time when it was
presented to the Board; John Perlman's and Barry Standifird's contracts were awarded
on July 7, 2015, at such time they were presented to the Board.

Evaluation
The Professional Services Contracts for various attorneys utilized annually by the
Superior Court in Gila County will expire on June 30, 2016. Amendments to the
contracts have been issued to extend the contract term for an additional one-year
period, from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017.

Conclusion
Court staff wishes to execute Amendments with the attorneys utilized by the Superior
Court of Gila County to extend the term of their contracts for an additional one-year
period, from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

Recommendation
The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County recommends that the
Board of Supervisors approve the attached Amendments to Professional Services
Contracts with the various attorneys, which the Court utilizes on an annual basis.



Suggested Motion
Approval of the ten separate Amendments to ten separate Professional Services
Contracts, which are between Gila County and various attorneys (attached to the
agenda item) who are utilized by the Superior Court to extend the term of the contracts
for an additional one-year period, from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017; all of whom
assist the Superior Court in Gila County as public defenders on an annual basis.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 Ronald Debrigida
Professional Services Contract No. 041415-Ronald DeBrigida
Amendment No. 1 Anna Ortiz
Professional Services Contract No. 041015-Anna Ortiz
Amendment No. 2 Carrie Canizales 041515-1
Amendment No. 1-Carrie Canizales (2)
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-1-Canizales Law
Amendment No. 1-Jonathan Warshaw
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-6-Jonathan Warshaw
Amendment No. 1-Emily Danies
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-8-Emily Danies
Amendment No. 1-David Bell
Professional Services Contract No. 050615-David Bell
Amendment No. 1-Michael Freeman
Professional Services Contract No. 041415-1-Michael Freeman
Amendment No. 1-Carolyn Clark
Professional Services Contract No. 050715-Carolyn Clark
Amendment No. 1-Barry Standifird
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-4-Barry Standifird
Amendment No. 1-John Perlman
Professional Services Contract No 041415-2-John Perlman
County Attorney's Comments



























Amendment No. 1/Contract 041015/Legal Services/Anna Ortiz Page 1of 2 
 

 

 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 041015 

The following amendments are hereby incorporated into the contract 

documents for the below stated project: 

  
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 041015 
LEGAL SERVICES 

 
ANNA ORTIZ 

 
 
Effective June 09, 2015, Gila County and Anna Ortiz entered into a contract whereby Anna Ortiz agreed 
to provide Legal Services to the Superior Court in Gila County.   
 
 
Professional Services Contract 041015 expires June 30, 2016. Per Article II, Term of Agreement, the 
contract may be extended for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, upon agreement of both parties. 
 
 
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041015 will allow for Gila County to 
exercise the option to renew the term of the contract for one (1) one (1) year term, from July 01, 2016 
to June 30, 2017. 
 
 
Additionally, Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041015 will serve to add to 
Article II-B, Term of Agreement, Termination, the clause “In the event of formal discipline of the 
Attorney by the State Bar of Arizona, the Court may suspend or terminate the contract”. 
 
Further, Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041015 will serve to increase 
the original contract amount of $100,500.00 by Three Thousand dollars and 00/100’s ($3,000.00). 
 
Consequently, the contract is amended to extend the term of the contract for one additional year from 
July 01, 2016 to June 30, 2017; to add the sentence “In the event of formal discipline of the Attorney by 
the State Bar of Arizona, the Court may suspend or terminate the contract”; and to increase the contract 
amount by $3,000.00 for a new total contract amount not to exceed One Hundred Three Thousand, 
Five Hundred dollars and 00/100’s ($103,500.00) without prior written approval from the county;. 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of the original agreement shall remain in full force and affect during the 
term of the contract. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical copies of this amendment, each which shall include original 
signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this _______________ day of ________________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 















































































































































































































June 24, 2016 

To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  July 5, 2016 board meeting; Agenda item 3842; Approval of 
amendments on Various Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court. 

 

1. There are clerical errors in Amendment No. 2 to the contract with 
Carrie Canizales. The second paragraph states that the original 
contract was amended on May 3, 2016 to be “Fifty-Three 
Thousand dollars and 00/100’s ($53,100.00).” As you can see, two 
different amounts are stated in that quotation.  Then, the 
amendment goes on to say that the new contract is increased by 
$600.00 for a new total of “$51,600.” But $53,100 plus $600.00 is 
$53,700 and not $51,600.  This needs to be fixed or we cannot 
approve this contract as to form. 

2. The original contract for Barry Standifird is not attached. We 
recommended that this contract be attached.  If it is not attached, 
we can still approve this contract amendment as to form. 

3. The contract with “Fountain Hills Law Firm” is not a contract with 
an individual attorney.  It is in the name of a firm and the 
signature is not legible.  The amendment adds a new clause: “In 
the event of formal discipline of the attorney by the State Bar of 
Arizona, the Court may suspend or terminate the contract.”  
Would the new clause apply only if the Fountain Hills Law Firm 
were disciplined or would the new clause apply if only one 



member of the firm were disciplined?  Without this correction, we 
cannot approve this contract amendment as to form. 

4. The original contracts for the attorneys which are attached, 
except the one with Carolyn Clark, have a provision regarding the 
use of interpreters in paragraph K.  The paragraph uses the word 
“should.”  The contracting attorney “should give the Court 
notice….,” “should get court permission….,” and “should be 
present….”  The word “should” does not create a binding 
obligation and invites litigation.  If the court intends to establish a 
binding obligation on the attorney for this conduct, we 
recommend amending the original contract and replacing the 
word “should” with “must.” If this is not done, we still approve 
the amendments as to form. 



   

ARF-3843     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist
Department: Public Works Division: Fairgrounds Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Application for a waiver of Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall rental fees for Father
Jay's Appreciation Dinner given by Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament Roman
Catholic Church on July 22, 2016.

Background Information
Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament Roman Catholic Church Parish (Parish) is part of
the Tucson Diocese of the Roman Catholic Church and is a 501 (c)(3) Non-Profit
organization.  They are sponsoring this event that is open to the public to allow all
persons in Gila County to participate in showing appreciation for Father Jay Luczak's
19 years of service to the Church and community.

Evaluation
The Parish is requesting that the Board of Supervisors waive the fees that are charged
for the use of the Exhibit Hall the the County Fairgrounds for it's Appreciation Dinner
for Father Jay on July 22, 2016.  The event will be engaging the services of the Knights
of Columbus to provide liquor for sale during the event.  The Knights of Columbus will
be responsible for obtaining an Event License from the State of Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control and liquor liability insurance for the event.

Conclusion
Father Jay Luczak has implemented several programs and ministries in Gila County
during his tenure at Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament.  Through the Church many
citizens in Gila County have been given financial assistance throughout the years.

Recommendation
Approval of a fee-waiver request submitted by Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament
Roman Catholic Church Parish for Father Jay's Appreciation Dinner on July 22, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a fee-waiver request submitted by Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament
Roman Catholic Church Parish for Father Jay's Appreciation Dinner at the Gila
County Fairgrounds Exhibition Hall on July 22, 2016.

Attachments
Our Lady Fee Waiver App



Our Lady Fee Waiver App
Our Lady Application
Our Lady Letter
Our Lady Ins
County Attorney's Comment

















 

June 27, 2016 

 

To:  Gila County Board of Supervisors 

From: Gila County Attorney’s Office Comments 

Re:  July 5, 2016 agenda; Item 3843; Fee-waiver request from 
Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament Roman Catholic Church Parish 
for Father Jay’s Appreciation Dinner. 

 

Summary 

From the information furnished, we cannot discern any 
consideration given by the applicant to the county for a fee waiver, 
and therefore, a waiver likely violates the Gift Clause of the Arizona 
Constitution. 

 

Analysis 

The question presented is whether a fee-waiver to the applicant for 
an appreciation dinner would violate the Gift Clause of the Arizona 
Constitution which states: 

Neither the state, nor any county, city, town, 
municipality, or other subdivision of the state 
shall ever give or loan its credit in the aid of, or 
make any donation or grant, by subsidy or 
otherwise, to any individual, association, or 
corporation, or become a subscriber to, or a 



shareholder in, any company or corporation, or 
become a joint owner with any person, 
company, or corporation, except as to such 
ownerships as may accrue to the state by 
operation or provision of law or as authorized 
by law solely for investment of the monies in 
the various funds of the state. 

 
Ariz. Const. art. 9, § 7. (Emphasis added.) 

 

The Supreme Court of Arizona established a two part test to 
determine if a governmental expenditure violates the Gift Clause:  
One, it must have a public purpose, and, two, the governmental 
entity receives consideration in return for its expenditure that is not 
so inequitable and unreasonable that it amounts to an abuse of 
discretion.  Otherwise, the expenditure constitutes a forbidden 
subsidy to the private entity.  Meyer v. Turken, 223 Ariz. 342, 224 .3d 
158 (2010). 

 First Test 

The first test is whether the expenditure serves a public purpose.  
Cases interpreting public purpose have given it an expansive 
meaning.  Id.   For example, Town of Gila Bend v. Walled Lake Door 
Co., 107 Ariz. 545, 490 P.2d 551 (1971) (public purpose found in 
constructing a water line serving only one factory), and Humphrey v. 
City of Phoenix, 55 Ariz. 374, 102 P.2d 82 (1940) (slum clearance 
project found to be in the interests of the general public). 

The applicant for the fee waiver cites many and varied public 
benefits historically given by the organization and the honoree, e.g. 



restoration of the applicant’s church which is now on the National 
Registry of Historic Sites and is currently a tourist attraction; a jail 
ministry; and helping the public with utility bills through St. Vincent 
de Paul.   

In Meyer v. Turken, the court stated: “we have repeatedly 
emphasized that the primary determination of whether a specific 
purpose constitutes a ‘public purpose’ is assigned to the political 
branches of government, which are directly accountable to the 
public.” Absence of public purpose is found only in rare cases where 
the governmental body’s discretion has been unquestionably 
abused.  Id. 

In this case, we are of the opinion that if the board determines that 
that this dinner constitutes a public purpose, it would be a well-
founded determination. 

 Second Test 

The second question is about the comparison of the consideration to 
be exchanged.  Courts do not ordinarily examine the proportionality 
of consideration between parties contracting at arm’s length, leaving 
such issues to the marketplace.  However, in Gift Clause analysis, 
adequacy of consideration is examined because paying far too much 
for something creates a forbidden subsidy by the public. Id. 

Let us examine the consideration going both ways.  The objective 
fair market value of what each party gives and receives directly in 
benefits is to be compared.  The anticipated indirect benefits to the 
county of the value of the dinner cannot be counted in the 
consideration analysis because indirect benefits are only counted in 
the public purpose test. 



The objective fair market value given by the county is the 
reasonable rental rate for fairgrounds.  We cannot discern any direct 
benefit being conferred to the county by the applicant.  

Therefore, the duty of the board, to avoid violating the Gift Clause, is 
to make the following determinations: 

1. That the dinner serves a public purpose, 
2. That the value of the fee waiver is not grossly 

disproportionate to the consideration given by the 
applicant. 
 

Conclusion 

There is evidence to support public purpose of this dinner from the 
indirect benefits conferred by the applicant on the county.  However, 
there is no evidence to support a direct benefit to be given by the 
applicant to the county.  Because the value of the fee waiver must be 
compared to the absence of any direct benefit in return, the fee 
waiver is likely grossly disproportionate to what is received, and  
would likely violate the Gift Clause of the constitution. 



   
ARF-3857     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Special Event Liquor License Application for the Pleasant Valley
Community Council, Inc. for July 15-17, 2016.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a
special event for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) approves all liquor-related
applications; however, part of the DLLC's process requires that the local
governing body review the application and submit a recommendation for
approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment located within
the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the
attached application and has determined that it has been completed
correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization properly completed the application.  If the
Board of Supervisors approves this application and final approval is given
by the DLLC, the Pleasant Valley Community Council, Inc. will have used
3 days of the allowable 10 days per year to serve liquor at a special event
in 2016.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board Department recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve this application to allow the Pleasant Valley
Community Council, Inc. to serve liquor at the annual Pleasant Valley
Days event to be held on July 15-17, 2016.  The Pleasant Valley
Community Council, Inc. will receive 100% of the gross revenue of liquor
sales for this special event.



Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by
Pleasant Valley Community Council, Inc. to serve liquor at the Annual
Pleasant Valley Days to be held in Young on July 15-17, 2016.

Attachments
Special Event Liquor License Application Pleasant Valley Days July
15-17, 2016











   
ARF-3824     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

May 2016

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for May 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
May 2016



















   
ARF-3832     Consent Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

May 2016

Submitted By: Dorothy Little,
Justice of the
Peace-Payson
Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for May
2016. 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
May 2016 Report













   
ARF-3845     Consent Agenda Item      4. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

May 2016

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2016























   
ARF-3836     Consent Agenda Item      4. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

June 21, 2016 and June 23, 2016

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
June 21, 2016, and June 23, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 21, 2016, and June 23, 2016, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

Attachments
06-21-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
06-23-16 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 10 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 21, 2016 

 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 

 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 

this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Scott Buzan led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Don McDaniel delivered the invocation.   

 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.  Presentation of the 2016 Gila County Teacher of the Year awards to 
Erika Flores and Kevin Mart by Dr. Linda O'Dell, Gila County School 
Superintendent.  

 
Linda O’Dell, School Superintendent, introduced the two Teacher of the Year 

recipients and stated that this program’s purpose is to publicly acknowledge 
and celebrate the efforts of professional educators who demonstrate excellence, 
both in and out of the classroom.  Erika Flores currently teaches first grade at 

Copper Rim Elementary School in Globe and represents elementary school 
teachers, and Kevin Mart teaches science for grades 3-12 at Young Public 

School, and represents middle and high school teachers.  She added that the 
winners of this award will receive a plaque and a $500 cash award.  Ms. Flores 
stated that she was thankful for this opportunity and was grateful to have 

stood out among many teachers who are a good example for students and 
deserving of this award.  Mr. Mart stated that he was humbled and honored to 
be present at the meeting and gave kudos to all rural educators.  Each of the 

Board members commented favorably and thanked the two Teacher of the Year 
award recipients.   



Page 2 of 10 

 

 
B.  Public recognition of two employees for June's "Spotlight on 

Employees" Program, as follows: Debra Aguirre and Teri Berumen.   
 

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior, read aloud the Spotlight 
on Employees nomination for Debra Aguirre, Assessor’s Aide, which stated in 
part that Ms. Aguirre provides excellent customer service to taxpayers by 

taking extra steps to help the taxpayer with all of their issues and concerns, 
rather than sending them somewhere else for help and that she makes the 
transaction a pleasant experience.  She has been employed by Gila County for 

8 years.  Ms. Raymond then read the Spotlight on Employees nomination for 
Teri Berumen, Title Examiner, which stated in part that Ms. Berumen goes the 

extra mile to make sure title documents are correct.  Ms. Berumen also wrote a 
process manual regarding her job as a reference for others in the Assessor’s 
Office.  She has been employed by Gila County for 7 years.  Both of the 

nominations were submitted by Deborah Hughes, Assessor.  Both of the 
recipients thanked Ms. Hughes and stated that they are very happy working in 

the Assessor’s Office.  The Board members congratulated and thanked Ms. 
Aguirre and Ms. Berumen for being so helpful to Gila County taxpayers. 
 

Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Gila County Order No. LL-16-

02 that is related to a liquor license application submitted by Susan Mary 
Alexander for a person transfer of a Series 6 bar license with an interim 

permit to operate at the Roosevelt Resort Park located in Roosevelt.  
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, stated that the County process with 

regard to liquor license applications includes an internal review by the Building 
Permitting Department, the Health Department, and the Treasurer’s Office; 
none of which had any pending issues with the applicant.  Ms. Sheppard 

advised that she did not receive any opposition to this application; therefore, 
she recommended proceeding with the public hearing.  Chairman Pastor 

opened the public hearing; however, there were no comments, so he closed the 
public hearing and asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 

adopted Gila County Order No. LL-16-02 to recommend approval of the 
application by the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.   

 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   

 



Page 3 of 10 

 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Library Services and 
Technology Act (LSTA) Grant No. 2016-36001-04 in the amount 

of $5,500 from the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records to 
add Audio eBooks for the Gila County Library District's Overdrive 

platform.   
 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager, Librarian, stated that the Library 

District began a new electronic book (e-book) collection last year with a very 
limited budget to provide e-books to all residents of the County.  Several of the 
local libraries have contributed funds to grow the e-book collection.  In March 

2016, Emily Linkey, Payson Librarian on behalf of the Gila County Library 
District, applied for a Library Services and Technology Act Grant which was 

awarded.  If accepted, this grant would be used to expand the e-book collection 
to include e-audio books.  Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to accept 
Library Services and Technology Act Grant No. 2016-36001-04, which was 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin.  Prior to asking for the vote, Chairman 
Pastor asked Jeff Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, if 

he wished to add any comments, which he did not; however, Chairman Pastor 
noted that Mr. Dalton’s written comments were attached to this agenda item.  
Chairman Pastor then asked for the vote on the motion, which was 

unanimously approved. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 

Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District.   
 

Ms. Sanders explained that the Library District budget is included in the Gila 
County budget; however, it first must be approved by the Gila County Library 
District Board of Directors.  The Library District budgeted tax rate for Fiscal 

Year 2016-2017 is 0.2425 cents, which is up from last year’s tax rate of 20 
cents per $100,000 resulting in a revenue increase of approximately $1.2 
million.  The Library District estimated amount of expenditures received from 

grants and assistance is approximately $186,000 with total estimated 
expenditures from library assistance of $1.7 million.  She stated that the 

Library District has a contingency reserve fund of approximately $.5 million for 
emergencies to be used when times are lean, which accounts for the difference 
in estimated revenue and expenses.  The increase in the funds will also allow 

for a one additional position, which is a computer technician.  This position is 
being added due to an increase in the use of computers versus books being 

checked out of the library.  At the Board’s request, Ms. Sanders clarified that 
the computer technician position does not replace the Public Services 
Librarian, and it will be categorized under the Library District and not the 

Information Technology Department.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted the Fiscal 
Year 2016-2017 Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District.   

 



Page 4 of 10 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of 

Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
Annual Tentative Gila County Budget in the amount of $94,014,975; 
authorize the publication of the summary budget; and set the public 

hearing for July 26, 2016, to adopt the Final Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Gila 
County Budget.   
 

Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that he wanted to provide the Board 
with a review of the budget process and acknowledge the Budget Review Team 

which consists of Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Jacque Sanders, 
Assistant County Manager; Shelley McPherson, Human Resources Director; 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director; Robert Mawson, Senior Accountant; Lisa 

Wilckens, Accounting Analyst.  Mr. McDaniel also serves on the Budget Review 
Team.  Mr. McDaniel reviewed the budget process, related timelines and some 

key budget item dollar amounts, which he stated that Mr. Hessenius would 
expand upon during his presentation of the proposed budget.   
 

Mr. Hessenius thanked the Board for the opportunity to outline the budget 
goals and assumptions as set forth at the March 10, 2016, Leadership/Budget 
Kick-Off Meeting.  The following goals have been established to support a 

continuous improvement process:  reduce and simplify the budget process; 
improve communication and transparency; identify all fixed and future funding 

commitments; integrate a five-year capital plan and capital planning process; 
and, “close the loop” with County departments and elected offices during the 
process.  Budget assumptions include increases in retirement costs; increases 

in insurance costs; increases in pay associated with the Consumer Price Index 
and pay for performance if the Countywide budget is balanced and sustainable; 
continued State unfunded mandates and revenue sweeps; no Countywide 

mandatory reductions in either budgets or personnel; no new programs unless 
accompanied by new guaranteed funding; and, maintain the County’s 

commitments to fund services provided through the three Supervisors’ 
Constituent funds, Community Agency fund, Economic Development fund, 
Natural Resources fund, and the Community College.  Two public forums have 

been scheduled to discuss the proposed County budget – one meeting will be 
held on June 29, 2016, from 4:00-6:00 p.m. in Payson, and the other meeting 

will be held on June 30, 2016, from 4:00-6:00 p.m. in Globe.  The Fiscal Year 
2016-2017 Tentative Budget maintains the existing County property tax rate of 
4.19%; the assessed property valuations increased $13.8 million to 

$496,294,071 or 2.86%; the property tax levy increased $779,511 over the 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget; the Countywide overall budget increased 
$996,664; and, the total authorized positions increased to 3 full-time 

equivalency employees.  County staffing levels are at 630, which is slightly 
higher than last year at 627.  Accomplishments are as follows: outdated and 



Page 5 of 10 

 

aged elections equipment was replaced; improvements were made to 
Countywide Information Technology infrastructure and Courthouse security; 

the gap was closed on 3rd party leases/rent; and, the commitment to fund the 
reimbursement of capital funds allocated to the Copper Administration 

Building was fulfilled.  Ongoing budget challenges are as follows:  maintaining 
a sustainable and structurally balanced budget; anticipated slow population 
and economic growth; anticipated slow growth in sales taxes, vehicle licensing 

and revenue derived from new construction; Information Technology challenges 
relating to bandwidth and infrastructure; continued demand for capital 
improvements; ongoing costs associated with criminal justice; claims against 

the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) have increased costs 
and placed additional strains on the budget; continued likelihood for further 

funding shifts, reductions and new funding mandates from the State; possible 
mild recession anticipated during FY2018-2019 or FY2019-2020; and, the 
current reduction in mining activities will likely result in reduced centrally 

assessed valuations in Fiscal Year 2017-2018. 
 

Supervisor Marcanti inquired if the issue with the Sheriff’s Office evidence 
storage facility has been figured into this equation.  Chairman Pastor agreed 
with Supervisor Marcanti regarding the importance of the evidence storage 

facility and stated that he would continue to have discussions with Sheriff 
Sheppard with regard to this project.  Mr. Hessenius advised that there are 
specific amounts that have been slated for that project as well as many other 

projects; however, the amounts to be budgeted for each project as well as the 
priority of the projects will be decided by the Board at its June 28, 2016, Work 

Session.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously adopted the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Annual 
Tentative Gila County Budget in the amount of $94,014,975; authorized the 

publication of the summary budget; and set the public hearing for July 26, 
2016, to adopt the Final Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Gila County Budget.   
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the transfer of a mobile 
communications vehicle from the Arizona Department of Emergency and 

Military Affairs to Gila County Emergency Management.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Division Director, 

stated that this mobile communications vehicle was originally purchased 
approximately six years ago through federal grant funding provided by the 

Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs (DEMA).  Roughly two 
years ago said vehicle was returned to DEMA because it was no longer in good 
working order.  Since that time, new equipment has been installed in the 

vehicle and it has been offered back to Gila County for use throughout the 
County, and if necessary, to assist partnering counties in emergencies.  He 
added that the vehicle is equipped with data and Wi-Fi (wireless fidelity) 

capabilities and it has an antenna that extends 35 feet to get a signal in order 
to communicate from all areas of the County.  Mr. O’Driscoll answered some 



Page 6 of 10 

 

questions of the Board and he clarified that:  this vehicle is separate from and 
provides redundancy to the Sheriff’s Office; the vehicle is also known as “TOAD 

3”; it is being donated to Emergency Management at no cost to the County; the 
vehicle is expected to be functional for at least five years; and, when 

maintenance or upgrades are necessary, the County will be able to utilize 
volunteer hours for soft match; therefore, paid for by DEMA.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 

unanimously approved the transfer of a mobile communications vehicle from 
the Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs to Gila County 
Emergency Management.   

 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to 

dispose of a portion of an alley in Block 6, between Lots 6-12 and Lots 13-
19, in the Cobre Valley Townsite Subdivision, Official Map No. 56 Gila 
County Records.   

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that the Cobre Valley 

Townsite Subdivision in Lower Miami was recorded in 1918.  Some of the roads 
and alleys in said subdivision have never been built and exist only on a map.  
Staff has identified a portion of this alley as never being built and suitable for 

abandonment to the adjoining land owners.  He added that the request today is 
only to begin the process, which will likely take at least six months to 
determine if it is feasible to abandon said alley.  Chairman Pastor stated that a 

concern has been expressed by one of the adjoining land owners, Mr. Albert 
Porto, who is also the neighborhood advocate for this area of Claypool.  

Chairman Pastor added that he has had conversations and meetings with Mr. 
Porto regarding this issue, and asked him to be present today.  Mr. Porto 
submitted a Public Participation Form to speak to this item at this time.   

 
Mr. Porto stated that if the Board approves moving forward with this item it 
would ignore his concerns regarding the safety of his property and the erosion 

problem that exists.  He added that he has tried working with previous 
Supervisors and County staff and there has been no attempt to work together 

to find a permanent solution.  Chairman Pastor stated that he was surprised to 
see this item on the agenda today, so he would like to arrange a meeting with 
Mr. Sanders and Mr. Porto to discuss this issue further before proceeding with 

a Board action.  He then requested a motion from the Board to continue this 
item until such meeting could be held.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously continued this 
item to a future meeting.    
 

F.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-06-04 
authorizing staff to submit an application to Central Federal Lands 
Highway Division of the Federal Highway Administration to obtain 

funding for a paving project on Forest Highway 12.  
 



Page 7 of 10 

 

Mr. Sanders stated that the Central Federal Lands Highway Division of the 
Federal Highway Administration issued a call for projects for the Federal Lands 

Access Program (FLAP) for the next five years.  Forest Highway 12 also known 
as Forest Road 12 or the Young Road is the road that staff would like to be 

considered for this application.  A County match of 5.7% of the total cost of the 
project, estimated at approximately $4 million, would be required as well as 
adopting a resolution before submitting the application.  Vice-Chairman Martin 

stated that she really supports this project and she asked for clarification 
regarding the specific location of the four-mile paving project described in this 
agenda item.  Mr. Sanders replied that it would be about a couple of miles 

north of Red Lake.  Vice-Chairman Martin expressed concern regarding the 
area south of Otto Springs for potential liability and she hopes that the County 

will be able to finish paving the road all the way to the bottom.  Mr. Sanders 
indicated that he believes this portion of the paving project to be the most 
expensive portion and that the County could contract out smaller sections of 

the road in order to complete the paving project to the end of the road.  
Supervisor Marcanti commented favorably and asked if the motion could state 

that Forest Highway 12 is also known as the north road to Forest Road 512.  
Chairman Pastor asked for clarification with respect to safety improvements.  
Mr. Sanders stated that if the application for this project is accepted, the 

Federal Highway Administration, Central Federal Lands Highway Division, 
would design and administer the project and the County would just pay the 
agreed match toward the project.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution 
No. 16-06-04 authorizing staff to submit an application to the Central Federal 

Lands Highway Division of the Federal Highway Administration to obtain 
funding for a paving project on Forest Highway 12, also known as Forest Road 
512.  (A copy of the resolution is attached to the minutes and 

permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 

Agreement No. 033116 whereby the Gila County Sheriff's Office shall 
continue to provide law enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley 

for a period of four years, effective July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020.  
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board may want to continue this item to a later 

meeting as the Star Valley Town Council has been unable to have a meeting to 
approve the agreement.  He provided a summary of the differences between the 

existing agreement and the new agreement as follows:  the new agreement term 
will be four years total; instead of one year with three automatic renewals, the 
agreement amount will increase to align with the full cost of providing the 

services, and it will allow the increase of $60,000 to be paid over the first three 
years; and, a 2% annual increase was added to the agreement based on the 
Consumer Price Index.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously continued this agenda item to a 



Page 8 of 10 

 

future meeting until such time as the agreement is approved and signed by the 
Star Valley Town Council. 

 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 022414 between Gila County and 
the City of Globe to extend the IGA for a one-year period, whereby upon 
request from the City of Globe, the County will provide excess granite 

resurfacing material on occasion and when available during the time 
period of June 21, 2016, to June 20, 2017, for use in the City's park 
recreational facilities.   

 
Mr. Hessenius requested that the Board approve Amendment No. 2 to 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 022414 to allow the Public Works 
Division to continue to provide excess granite resurfacing material to the City 
of Globe as prudent to do so, and in accordance with this IGA. Upon motion by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved Amendment No. 2 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. 

022414. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to amend the FY16 Tax Levies and Tax 

Rates tax table for School Districts to reflect the correct Debt Service rate 
of 1.0427 and correct Override rate of 0.5089 for the Payson School 
District #10 jurisdiction.   

 
Mr. Hessenius stated that this error occurred because two line items were 

transposed; as a result, the fund balances for each of those two line items are 
incorrect.  The correct amount of money has been collected; however, the 
monies are in the incorrect funds to pay the debt service.  Therefore, it is 

advisable that the Board approve this amendment in order to enable the 
correction to be made.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously amended the FY16 Tax Levies 

and Tax Rates tax table for School Districts to reflect the correct Debt Service 
rate of 1.0427 and corrected Override rate of 0.5089 for the Payson School 

District #10 jurisdiction.  (For the record, Resolution No. 15-08-02 will be re-
recorded to add the corrected tax table.) 
 

Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS17-
133182) between the Arizona Department of Health Services and the Gila 
County Health and Emergency Management Division to provide a total 

contract amount of $186,389.67 and begin a new contract period from 



Page 9 of 10 

 

July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, in order to provide continued public 
health emergency preparedness services.  

 
B.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 

the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor 
at a fund-raising event on October 8, 2016 in Pine.  
 

C.  Acknowledgment of the Gila County Drug, Gang, Violent Crimes Task 
Force Fiscal Year 2016 Quarterly Report for January through March 2016.  
 

D.  Acknowledgment of the recent election of Travis Baxley as a member 
of the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board effective 

April 18, 2016, through December 31, 2019.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted 

by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 

F.  Acknowledgment of the April 2016 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 

G.  Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 

H.  Acknowledgment of the May 2016 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  

 
I.  Acknowledgment of the March and April 2016 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  

 
J.  Approval of the June 7, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5A – 5J.  

 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  

 
There were no comments from the public. 



Page 10 of 10 

 

 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on information presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 

current events.  
 
Mr. O’Driscoll provided an update regarding the Cedar Fire located on the 

White Mountain Apache Tribe Reservation.  He stated that Arizona Governor 
Doug Ducey has declared a state of emergency this date as a result of the 

Cedar Fire; however, not by direction of the Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs.  He added that the fire seems to be moving away from Gila 
County; however, it is affected by the wind and could change overnight.   

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:50 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 2 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Michael K. Scannell, Deputy 
County Manager; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau 
Chief; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
ABSENT:  Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; and Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in an emergency session at 1:00 
p.m. this date in the Board of Supervisors’ conference room.   
 
Item 2 – Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-06-05 
declaring a state of local emergency in Gila County for the Cedar Fire.  
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, provided 
information regarding the Cedar Fire located on the White Mountain Apache 
Reservation as stated in Resolution No. 16-06-05, and requested that the 
Board adopt said resolution in order to mitigate hazardous conditions which 
occur before, during, and after a disaster such as the Cedar Fire.  The Board 
members were given a more detailed update of the Cedar Fire two days prior at 
its Regular meeting held on June 21, 2016.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 16-06-05.  (A copy of the Resolution is attached to the 
minutes and permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 1:10 p.m. 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  
 



   
ARF-3692     Consent Agenda Item      4. R.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

06/07/16, 06/14/16, 06/21/16, and 06/28/16

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of June 7, 2016, June 14, 2016,
June 21, 2016, and June 28, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of June
7, 2016, June 14, 2016, June 21, 2016, and June 28, 2016.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
06/07/16 Human Resources Report
06/14/16 Human Resources Report
06/21/16 Human Resources Report
06/28/16 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16 Nov‐16 Dec‐16

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 78 11 10 19 9 19 10

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 54 8 5 17 5 13 6

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 12 1 4 1 0 3 3

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 29 5 1 5 5 0 13

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 46 6 8 8 9 9 6

OTHER ACTIONS 28 5 1 4 1 3 14

REQUEST TO POST 57 7 7 11 6 13 13

  Total Transactions 304 43 36 65 35 60 65 0 0 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 7, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Lee Alexander – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 05/25/16 – General Fund – DOH 10/04/04 
2. Beverly Puhara – County Attorney’s Office – Child Support Services Supervisor – 05/06/16 – General 

Fund – DOH 03/18/96 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Karla Fandrich – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 06/20/16 – CAP(.40)/GEST(.60) 
Funds – Replacing Evelyn Guevera  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

4. Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – From Legal Secretary Underfill – To Legal Secretary – 
06/06/16 – From Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Lisa King 

5. Jonathan Bearup – Superior Court Administrator – From Deputy Court Administrator – To Court 
Administrator – 07/01/16 – General Fund – Replacing Mary Hawkins 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. County Attorney’s Office – Child Support Services Supervisor – Vacated by Beverly Puhara 
7. County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – Vacated by Christian Leos 
8. Superior Court – Deputy Court Administrator – Vacated by Jonathan Bearup 
9. Probation – Surveillance Officer – Vacated by Marcos Diaz 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 14, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Ryan Holguin – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 05/31/16 – General Fund – DOH 
02/29/16 

2. Laura Real – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician– 06/08/16 – General Fund – DOH 
11/30/15 

3. Sarah Roberts – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 06/01/16 – General(.80)/Diversion 
Consequences(.20) Funds – DOH 05/31/16 

  
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Tucker Kilbourne – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 06/16/16 – General Fund – Replacing Wayne 
Dorsett 

5. Edwiges Moreno-Roberts – Globe Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate(.60) – 06/27/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Jeannette Castillo 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

6. Diana Jones – Finance – Temporary Accounting Analyst – 06/06/16 – General Fund  
7. Destinee Bajaras – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 06/20/16 – General Fund – Replacing 

Savannah Barajas 
8. Kiani Kame – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 06/20/16 – General Fund – Replacing 

Destinee Barajas 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Mariah Campagna – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 06/07/16 – Teen 
Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Johnie Brake – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer – To Deputy Sheriff – 06/20/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Robert Corn 

11. Craig Humphrey – Health and Emergency Services – From Communicable Disease Specialist – To 
PHEP Coordinator – 06/20/16 – Public Health Emergency Preparedness Fund – Replacing Dezirae 
Williams 

12. John Garrett – From Health and Emergency Services – To Community Development – Environmental 
Engineer Manager – 06/09/16 – General Fund 

13. Svanhildur Jafetsdottir – From Health and Emergency Services – To Community Development – 
Environmental Engineering Specialist – 06/09/16 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

14. Thersea Mikeworth – Superior Court – Calendar Administrator – 06/06/16 – General(.904)/Superior 
Court Cost of Prosecution(.096) Funds – Rescinded resignation 

15. Savannah Barajas – Clerk of Superior Court – Temporary Court Clerk – 06/20/16 – Document 
Conversion Superior Court Fund – Increase in hours from 19 to 40 per week 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 14, 2016 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

16. Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Lieneke Mellema 
17. Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Part-Time – Vacated by Ted Schaefer 
18. Sheriff’s Office - Medical Assistant – Vacated by Noreen Prater  
19. Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by Laura Real 
20. Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Sarah Roberts 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 21, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Christine Lopez – Community Development – Temporary Administrative Clerk – 06/16/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/30/15 

2. Adela Johnson – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 06/24/16 – General Fund – DOH 
05/04/15 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Elaine Votruba – Library District – Public Services Librarian – 06/27/16 – Library District 
Grant(.30)/Library Assistance(.70) Funds – Replacing Nola Magneson  

4. Carl Melford – Health and Emergency Services – From Temporary Executive Administrative Assistant 
– To Executive Administrative Assistant – 06/27/16 – General Fund  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Amber Warden – Finance – Accountant Senior – 07/05/16 – General Fund  
6. Stephanie Chaidez – Purchasing – Buyer – 06/22/16 – General Fund 
7. Brian Jennings – Public Works – Public Works Roads Supervisor – 06/28/16 – Public Works Fund 
8. Jace Johnson – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 06/28/16 – Facilities 

Management Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Veronica Guadiana – From Clerk of Superior Court – To Superior Court Division 2 – From Courtroom 
Clerk Technician – To Judicial Assistant – 06/27/16 – General Fund – Replacing Emma Yeoman 

10. Erich Kenney – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer Sgt. – To Detention Officer Lt. – 06/20/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Lee Alexander 

11. Kevin Roberts – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer – To Detention Officer Sgt. – 06/20/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Erich Kenney 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

12. County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – Vacated by Adela Johnson 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 28, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Dakota McCall – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/16 – General Fund – DOH 03/07/16 
2. Shirley Lance – Clerk of Superior Court – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 06/30/16 – General Fund – 

DOH 08/03/98 
3. Samantha Dickison – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 07/04/16 – Rabies 

Control Fund – DOH 03/19/12 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Sheldon Benedict – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 07/11/16 – Rabies 
Control Fund – Replacing Hannah Moore 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Jessica Moul – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 06/28/16 – 
WIC(.99)/Commodity Supplement Food Program(.01) Funds 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

6. Victoria Waynick – From Superior Court – To Clerk of Superior Court – From Administrative Clerk 
Senior – To Courtroom Clerk Technician – 07/04/16 – General Fund – Replacing Veronica Guadiana  

7. Amber Dean – From Probation – To Clerk of Superior Court – From Administrative Clerk Senior – To 
Courtroom Clerk Technician – 07/04/16 – General Fund – Replacing Laura Real  

8. Stephanie Canizales – County Attorney’s Office – From Child Support Case Manager – To Child 
Support Services Supervisor – 07/04/16 – General Fund – Replacing Beverly Puhara  

9. Denice Ripple – From Superior Court Division 2 – To Superior Court – Court Reporter – 07/01/16 – 
General Fund  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Kenneth Wortman – County Attorney’s Office – Diversion Officer – 06/27/16 – Diversion Program CA 
Fund – Temporary reduction in hours  

11. Sarah Chavez – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

12. Malissa Buzan – Community Services – Director of Community Services – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

13. Dana True – Community Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – Change in 
fund codes 

14. Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services –Accounting Analyst – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

15. Karla Fandrich – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

16. Allison Torres – Community Services – Social Services Case Manager – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

17. Gabriel Eylicio – Community Services – Housing Project Administrator – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes 

18. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative Assistant – 07/01/16 – 
Various Funds – Change in fund codes 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 28, 2016 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

 
19. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – EM/PHEP Manager – 07/01/16 – Various Funds – 

Change in fund codes 
20. Michael O’Driscoll – Health and Emergency Services – Director of Health and Emergency Services – 

07/01/16 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes 
21. Paula Horn – Health and Emergency Services – Deputy Director of Health – 07/01/16 – Various Funds 

– Change in fund codes  
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

22. Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – Vacated by Samantha Dickison 
23. Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Amber Dean 
24. County Attorney’s Office – Child Support Case Manager – Vacated by Stephanie Canizales  

 



   

ARF-3833     Consent Agenda Item      4. S.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  

Reporting
Period:

May 20, 2016; and May 27, 2016

Submitted For: Jeff
Hessenius,
Finance
Director 

Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Buyer

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
05-20-16; and 05-27-16.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of May 16, 2016 through May 20, 2016; and May 23, 2016
through May 27, 2016.

Attachments
Contracts Under $50K Signed by County Manager Summary Weeks Ending 05-20-16
and 05-27-16
Contract No. 042616-1
Contract No. 040616
Service Agreement No. 051216
Service Agreement No. 051016
Service Agreement No. 051116
Service Agreement No. 040416
MegaTronics International Corp.
Norment Security-13024-S
Service Agreement No. 051216-2
Payson Courthouse County Remodel
Lease Agreement 2016-2017
Service Agreement No. 051216-1
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 071415-1
Service Agreement No. 051316
Amendment No.1-Exterior Cameras-Sheriff's Admin



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
May 16, 2016 thru May 20, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

042616-1 
Grasso Law Firm P.C. 

 

 
Legal Representation to the 
Gila County Sheriff’s CORP 

Board 

 
$5000.00 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
Firm to provide legal advice and 
consultation to the Gila County Corrections 
Officer Retirement Plan Local Board. The 
Local Board is required to retain 
independent counsel. 
 
 

 
040616 

Grasso Law Firm P.C. 

 
Legal Representation to the 

County Sheriff’s Local 
Board of the PSPRS 

 

 
$8,000.00 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
Firm to provide legal advice and 
consultation to the Gila County Public 
Safety Personnel Retirement System Local 
Board. The Local Board is required to retain 
independent counsel. 
 
 

 
051016 

Rodriguez Construction, 
Inc. 

 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#8592 

 

 
$6,150.00 

 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this Weatherization 
contract is, but not limited to, seal cabinet, 
fiberglass insulation floor, LCNC weather 
stripping, patch holes, and replace old 
cooler. 

 
051216 

Rodriguez Construction, 
Inc. 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10634 

 
$2,000.00 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this Weatherization 
contract is, but not limited to, correcting 
electric problems. 

 
051116 

Rodriguez Construction, 
Inc. 

 

 
Weatherization HH#3700 

 

 
$15,650.00 

 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this Weatherization 
contract is but not limited to, replace 
heater, install furnace, repair ductwork, 
fiberglass insulation, infiltration repair 
subfloor, and install keyed lockset. 

 

 

 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

May 16, 2016 thru May 20, 2016 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

040416 
Tree Pro 

 

 
Miscellaneous Tree 

Removals Copper Region 
and Timber Region 

 

 
$5,500 

 

 
05-15-16 to 05-14-17 

 
05-18-16 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one-year 
periods 

 
To contract with a professional tree removal 
company to provide tree cutting and 
removal of dead/dying or wind/storm 
damaged trees, for both Roads and 
Facilities Departments, that may cause a 
hazard to Gila County right of way or County 
maintained roads or properties. Contractor 
will also provide these services in an 
emergency situation because of the 
potential hazard to the public. These 
services would be for both Copper and 
Timber regions. Sometimes these hazard 

trees are outside the expertise and/or 
safety of Gila County personnel. On 
these occasions, the County needs to 
hire a Tree Service to remove the trees. 

 
MegaTronics 

Internationals Corp. 
 

 
Extended Warranty 

Agreement 
 
 
  

 

 
$4,285.00 

 

 
05-13-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Contractor will provide extended warranty 
for the fuel maintenance system utilized by 
the County.  Fuel access MCU on all fuel 
tanks and service trucks.  
 

 
13024-S Maricopa 

County S.A.V.E. 
Norment Security 

Group, Inc. 

 
Woman’s Dorm Control 

Computer Labor 
 
 
  

 

 
$800.00 

 

 
05-13-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide extended warranty 
for the fuel maintenance system utilized by 
the County.  Fuel access MCU on all fuel 
tanks and service trucks.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

May 16, 2016 thru May 20, 2016 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

051216-2 
Mountain Retreat 

Builders 
 

 
REM Design and Labor 

 
  

 

 
$860.00 

 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this contract is to assist the 
Housing Program in additional labor and 
REM designs. 

 
ADSPO12-013788 
SD Crane Builders. 

 

 
Payson  Courthouse County 

Remodel 
 
 
  

 

 
$28,182.32 

 

 
05-13-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-18-16 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
Gila County wishes to utilize SD Crane 
Builders on the Payson Courthouse County 
Attorney Remodel. The Contractor will 
provide all labor, materials and equipment 
to perform the scope of work outlined on 
the Job Order Contract Price Proposal 
Summary as submitted by the Gordian 
Group on behalf of SD Crane Builders to Gila 
County. All Documents executed by the 
State of Arizona on Contract No. ADSPO12-
013788, apply to this procurement between 
Gila County and SD Crane Builders, Inc. 

 
High Desert Humane 

Society, Inc. 
 

 

 
Lease Agreement 2016-

2017 
 

 

 
$9,600.00 

 

 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
05-25-16 

 
Option to Renew for 

two additional one-year 
periods. 

 
Annual Lease agreement with High Desert 
Humane Society, term of agreement from 
07-01-16 to 06-30-17 

 
051216-1 

Noble Building, Inc. 
 

 
Weatherization Project 

HH#7716 
 
 
  

 

 
$8,011.57 

 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-25-16 

 
Expires 

 
Contract includes, but is not limited to, 
LCNC Weather-strip door, fiberglass 
insulation, furnace cabinet, and install heat 
pump. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

May 23, 2016 thru May 27, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

071415-1 
Earthquest Plumbing, 

Inc. 
 

 
Amendment No. 1 will 

increase contract to cover 
remaining term. 

  

 

 
Increase original 

contract 
amount of 

$9,000.00 by   
$2,750.00 for an 

amended 
contract 

amount  of 
$11,750.00 

 
07-29-15 to 07-28-16 

 
05-28-16 

 
Option to Renew for 

two additional one-year 
periods. 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the 
contract amount by $2,750.00 to ensure 
that funds are available for URRD clients for 
the remainder of the July 29, 2015 to July 
28, 2016 term of the contract. The Utility 
repair and Replacement Program (URRD) 
was established to provide assistance to low 
income individuals in crisis situations to 
make needed repairs and/or replacements 
to existing utility related appliances or 
systems. This contract will enable 
Earthquest Plumbing to react quickly to our 
client’s needs.  
 

 
051316 

Pueblo Mechanical & 
Controls, Inc. 

 

 
Jail Kitchen HVAC 

replacement 
 
 
  

 

 
$7,500.00 

 

 
05-18-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-25-16 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to remove old non-working, 
irreparable HVAC unit for Jail Kitchen and 
replace with a new Trane rooftop packaged 
unit. Pricing is based on Mohave’s co-op 
agreement. 
 

 
13412 City of Avondale 

S.A.V.E. 
Stanley Security 

Solutions 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

S.A.V.E. 13412 
Exterior Cameras-Sheriff’s 

Administration 
 

 

 
$26,266.33 

 

 
05-14-16 to 06-30-16 

 
05-125-16 

 
Expires  

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the 
contract by $12,506.49 to cover the added 
cost of installation and programming for a 
new BASIS location in 911 Dispatch. Install 
Cameras for the Exterior of the Sheriff’s 
Office Administration Building-1777 E. 
Monroe Street, Globe, AZ 85501. This will 
be used in conjunction with the Intercom 
System in place that will now provide a 
Camera, Monitor and Speakers for Security 
purposes. 

 





























































































































































































   
ARF-3707     Consent Agenda Item      4. T.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

May 30-June 5, 2016; June 6-12, 2016; June 13-19,
2016; June 20-26, 2016

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
Finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May 30-June 5,
2016; June 6-12, 2016; June 13-19, 2016; and June 20-26, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May
30-June 5, 2016; June 6-12, 2016; June 13-19, 2016; and June 20-26,
2016.

Attachments
Finance Report June 20-26, 2016
Finance Report June 13-19, 2016
Finance Report June 06-12, 2016
Finance Report May 30, 2016-June 5, 2016


























































































































































































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Recognition of the 40th Anniversary of the Gila County Courthouse
	Att1_Courthouse Wall Plaque
	 Item 3.A. - Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa County and Gila County for Basic Detention Training Academy
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-17-00__-3-00
	Att2_Corrections Needed
	 Item 3.B. - Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Payson and Gila County for Centralized Dispatch Services
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement for Centralized Dispatch Services
	 Item 3.C. - Miami FY 2016-2017 Grant Request Cobre Valley Transit System (Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061716
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061716 with Town of Miami Cobre Valley Community Transit System
	Att2_County Attorney's Comment
	Att3_Cobre Valley Transit Presentation
	 Item 3.D. - Accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to begin the process to designate Cohea Lane as a Primitive Road.
	Att1_Citizens' Petition
	Att2_Map
	 Item 3.E. - Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414 with Canyon State Oil for Bulk Fuel and Lubricants
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 041414
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 041414
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041414
	Att4_Contract 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants Signed on 6-24-14.
	Att5_County Attorney's Comments
	Att6_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.F. - Resolution No. 16-07-02 authorizing staff to submit an application to the Central Federal Lands Highway Division
	Att1_Resolution No. 16-07-02
	 Item 3.G. - Adoption of the 2016 Gila County Emergency Operations Plan
	Att1_Emergency Operations Plan
	 Item 3.H. - Adoption of Community Wildfire Protection Plans for Northern and Southern Gila County
	Att1_Northern CWPP
	Att2_Southern CWPP
	 Item 3.I. - Order to Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers for the August 30, 2016 Primary Election
	Att1_Order
	Att2_Arizona Revised Statute 16-411
	Att3_Arizona Revised Statute 16-531
	 Item 3.J. - Adoption of Resolution No. 16-07-01 regarding U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's finalized changes to the Mexican Wolf Experimental Population Rule in A
	Att1_Resolution No. 16-07-01
	 Item 4.A. - Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement for FY17 Award (ACJC _DC-17-004)
	Att1_Grant Agreement No. DC-17-004
	Att2_Award Letter
	Att3_Grant Reference Manual 
	Att4_Websites referenced in Grant Agreement
	 Item 4.B. - Independent Contractor Agreement 2016-17 Utility Assistance Programs Contract No. 07012016-17 with Arizona Community Action Association
	Att1_Contract No. 07012016-17 Revised
	Att2_Exhibit A - Policy Manual
	Att3_Exhibit B - FY17 Federal Poverty Guidelines
	 Item 4.C. - Funding Agreement No. 203-16 with the Arizona Department of Housing for the Weatherization Assistance Program
	Att1_Agreement No. 203-16
	Att2_Sample Forms
	Att3_ADOH Funding Agreement Letter
	 Item 4.D. - FFY2017 SNAP Community Outreach Partner Application with Arizona Community Action Association
	Att1_FFY2017 SNAP Community Outreach Partner Application 
	 Item 4.E. - Amendment No. 13 to Contract No. 700518523 with Arizona Public Service for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program Implementation
	Att1_Amendment No. 13 Contract No. 700518523
	Att2_Amendment No. 12 Contract No. 700518523
	Att3_Amendment No. 11 Contract No. 700518523
	Att4_Amendment No. 10 Contract No. 700518523 
	Att5_Amendment No. 9 Contract No. 700518523
	Att6_Amendment No. 8 Contract No. 700518523
	Att7_Amendment No. 7 Contract No. 700518523
	Att8_Amendment No. 6 Contract No. 700518523
	Att9_Amendment No. 5 Contract No. 700518523
	Att10_Amendment No. 4 Contract No. 70051823
	Att11_Amendment No. 3 Contract No. 700518523
	Att12_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. 700518523
	Att13_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
	Att14_Weatherization Agreement Changed from Agreement No. 700287483 to Contract No. 700518523
	Att15_Original Agreement GC and APS
	Att16_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.F. - Order to Cancel Precinct Committeemen Elections and Appoint Precinct Committeemen
	Att1_Order
	Att2_Arizona Revised Statute 16-410
	 Item 4.G. - Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 110514-Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County
	Att1_Amendment No. 1-110514
	Att2_Contract No. 110514-JaniServ Inc.
	Att3_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.H. - Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 040815-Raymond Geiser
	Att1_Amendment No. 1-Raymond Geiser
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 040815-Raymond Geiser
	Att3_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 4.I. - Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Gila County Medical Examiner Mark Fishione
	Att1_Amendment No. 7 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att2_Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att3_Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att4_Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att5_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att6_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att7_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att8_Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Fischione
	Att9_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.J. - Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3-Myers & Associates, PLLC
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041515-3
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-3 Jamie Myers
	Att3_County Attorney's Comment
	Att4_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.K. - Amendments on Various Attorney Contracts for Superior Court
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 Ronald Debrigida
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 041415-Ronald DeBrigida
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 Anna Ortiz
	Att4_Professional Services Contract No. 041015-Anna Ortiz
	Att5_Amendment No. 2 Carrie Canizales 041515-1
	Att6_Amendment No. 1-Carrie Canizales (2)
	Att7_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-1-Canizales Law
	Att8_Amendment No. 1-Jonathan Warshaw
	Att9_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-6-Jonathan Warshaw
	Att10_Amendment No. 1-Emily Danies
	Att11_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-8-Emily Danies
	Att12_Amendment No. 1-David Bell
	Att13_Professional Services Contract No. 050615-David Bell
	Att14_Amendment No. 1-Michael Freeman
	Att15_Professional Services Contract No. 041415-1-Michael Freeman
	Att16_Amendment No. 1-Carolyn Clark
	Att17_Professional Services Contract No. 050715-Carolyn Clark
	Att18_Amendment No. 1-Barry Standifird
	Att19_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-4-Barry Standifird
	Att20_Amendment No. 1-John Perlman
	Att21_Professional Services Contract No  041415-2-John Perlman
	Att22_County Attorney's Comments
	 Item 4.L. - Our Lady of the Blessed Sacrament - Father Jay's Appreciation Dinner
	Att1_Our Lady Fee Waiver App
	Att2_Our Lady Application
	Att3_Our Lady Letter
	Att4_Our Lady Ins
	Att5_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 4.M. - Special Event Liquor License Application for the Pleasant Valley Community Council, Inc.
	Att1_Special Event Liquor License Application Pleasant Valley Days July 15-17, 2016
	 Item 4.N. - May 2016
	Att1_May 2016
	 Item 4.O. - May 2016
	Att1_May 2016 Report
	SPR04PAYCNT16060711130.pdf
	jp0404 may 2016

	 Item 4.P. - May 2016
	Att1_Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2016
	 Item 4.Q. - June 21, 2016 and June 23, 2016
	Att1_06-21-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_06-23-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.R. - 06_07_16, 06_14_16, 06_21_16, and 06_28_16
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_06_07_16 Human Resources Report
	Att3_06_14_16 Human Resources Report
	Att4_06_21_16 Human Resources Report
	Att5_06_28_16 Human Resources Report
	 Item 4.S. - May 20, 2016_ and May 27, 2016
	Att1_Contracts Under $50K Signed by County Manager Summary Weeks Ending 05-20-16 and 05-27-16
	Att2_Contract No. 042616-1
	Att3_Contract No. 040616
	Att4_Service Agreement No. 051216
	Att5_Service Agreement No. 051016
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 051116
	Att7_Service Agreement No. 040416
	Att8_MegaTronics International Corp.
	Att9_Norment Security-13024-S
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 051216-2
	Att11_Payson Courthouse County Remodel
	Att12_Lease Agreement 2016-2017
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 051216-1
	Att14_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 071415-1
	Att15_Service Agreement No. 051316
	Att16_Amendment No.1-Exterior Cameras-Sheriff's Admin
	 Item 4.T. - May 30-June 5, 2016_ June 6-12, 2016_ June 13-19, 2016_ June 20-26, 2016
	Att1_Finance Report June 20-26, 2016
	Att2_Finance Report June 13-19, 2016
	Att3_Finance Report June 06-12, 2016
	Att4_Finance Report May 30, 2016-June 5, 2016

